

**Annual Scientific Congress of Malaysian Oncological Society** 

# ABSTRACT BOOK



Where Science Meets Reality



### **CONTENTS**

ORAL PRESENTATION LISTING	13
POSTER PRESENTATION LISTING	14
OP-01 A-0031	29
OUTCOME AND TRANSCRIPTOMIC FEATURES OF DUAL EGFR AND MET BLOCKADE IN NSCLC	29
OP-02 A-0110	
LEVERAGING PHENOMIC AND GENOMIC DATA FROM A LARGE-SCALE COHO STUDY IN ADVANCING PERSONALIZED ONCOLOGY – A PRELIMINARY UK BIOBANK ANALYSIS	ORT
OP-03 A-0114	31
CABOZANTINIB PLUS NIVOLUMAB (C+N) VS SUNITINIB (S) FOR 1ST LINE ADVANCED RENAL CELL CARCINOMA (ARCC): 55.6 MONTH FOLLOW-UP OF CHECKMATE 9ER TRIAL	
OP-04 A-0116	33
IMPROVED BRCA PREDICTION FOR ASIAN BREAST CANCER PATIENTS	33
<i>OP-05 A-0147</i>	35
PERSONALIZED MUTATION TRACKING IN CIRCULATING-TUMOR DNA PREDICTS RECURRENCE IN PATIENTS WITH HIGH-RISK EARLY BREAST CANCER	35
OP-06 A-0152	
ONCOLOGISTS' EVALUATION OF THE FRAMEWORK OF STRATEGIES FOR MANAGING CHEMOTHERAPY-INDUCED NAUSEA AND VOMITING (CINV)	
OP-07 A-0174	38
SWALLOWING ASSESSMENT IN PATIENTS WITH ORAL TONGUE SQUAMOUS CELL CARCINOMA (OTSCC) TREATED WITH UPFRONT BRACHYTHERAPY VERSUS SURGERY	38
OP-08 A-0177	39
AVELUMAB FIRST-LINE MAINTENANCE FOR ADVANCED UROTHELIAL CARCINOMA: REAL-WORLD RESULTS FROM THE EARLY ACCESS PROGRAM MALAYSIA	
PP-01 A-0029	41
HRQOL WITH TEPOTINIB IN PATIENTS WITH <i>MET</i> EX14 SKIPPING NSCLC WITH BRAIN, LIVER, ADRENAL OR BONE METASTASES IN THE PHASE II VISION TR	RIAL
PP-02 A-0091	
UPDATED RESULTS OF PHASE 3 GLOW STUDY EVALUATING ZOLBETUXIMAL CAPOX IN CLDN18.2+ HER2- ADVANCED GASTRIC OR GASTROESOPHAGEAI	B +
JUNCTION ADENOCARCINOMA	43



PP-03 A-0106	45
PREVALENCE OF HER2-LOW BREAST CANCER PATIENTS IN SUBANG JAYA MEDICAL CENTRE (SJMC)	45
PP-04 A-0109	46
BIOINFORMATICS ANALYSES TO ELUCIDATE METASTASIS-RELATED GENES IN METASTATIC NASOPHARYNGEAL CARCINOMA (NPC)	
PP-05 A-0120	47
PATIENT SCALP COOLING EXPERIENCES	47
PP-06 A-0122	48
CYTOGENETICS ABNORMALITIES OBSERVED AMONG MULTIPLE MYELOMA PATIENTS IN MALAYSIA	48
PP-07 A-0131	49
REAL-WORLD TREATMENT PATTERNS AND EFFECTIVENESS OF SUBSEQUENT TREATMENTS FOLLOWING FIRST-LINE (1L) BRIGATINIB FOR PATIENTS WITH ALK+ NSCLC	
PP-08 A-0132	51
SOFTWARE FOR AUTOMATED CALCULATION OF PTV MARGINS FROM CBCT-BASED IGRT PROTOCOLS	51
PP-09 A-0140	52
BEAMING MIRACLE – THE TRIUMPH OF RADIOTHERAPY IN BATTLING CONDYLOMA ACUMINATUM. A CASE REPORT	52
PP-10 A-0159	53
AMICABLE RESPONSE IN COMBINING SYSTEMIC THERAPIES AND SELECTIVE INTERNAL RADIATION THERAPY (SIRT) IN INOPERABLE PRIMARY AND SECONDARY LIVER TUMOURS: CASE SERIES	
PP-11 A-0160	
REAL-WORLD APPLICATION OF A MULTICANCER EARLY DETECTION TEST TO	
DETECT CANCERS LACKING RECOMMENDED SCREENINGS	
PP-12 A-0164	56
A CASE REPORT OF ESOPHAGEAL ALK-EXPRESSING INFLAMMATORY MYOFIBROBLASTIC TUMOUR (IMT) TREATED WITH CRIZOTINIB IN A PATIENT WITH A HISTORY OF MEDIASTINAL MIXED GERM CELL TUMOUR	
PD-01 A-0035	57
TOGETHER: POOLED REAL-WORLD DATASETS OF METEX14 SKIPPING NSCLC AND ADJUSTED COMPARISON OF UPFRONT (CHEMO) IMMUNOTHERAPY WITH TEPOTINIB FROM VISION	
PD-02 A-0068	
OPTIMIZING PROSTATE SERT WITH RECTAL SPACER AND FIDUCIAL MARKER	



PD-03 A-0069	60
ENHANCING LUNG CANCER MUTATION DETECTION THROUGH COMBINED TISSUE AND CIRCULATING TUMOR DNA PROFILING	60
PD-04 A-0070	61
TOTAL NEOADJUVANT THERAPY IN LOCALLY ADVANCED RECTAL CANCER: A MONO-INSTITUTIONAL RETROSPECTIVE STUDY	
PD-05 A-0082	63
PNEUMONITIS CHRONICLES: UNRAVELING DOCETAXEL'S VEILED IMPACT- A CASE REPORT	
PD-06 A-0083	65
COLLABORATION BETWEEN SARAWAK GENERAL HOSPITAL (SGH), UNIMAS AND AMERICAN SOCIETY OF CLINICAL ONCOLOGY- INTERNATIONAL CANCE CORPS (ASCO-ICC): SARAWAK'S BEACON OF HOPE IN CANCER	
PD-07 A-0085	67
PREVALENCE OF <i>MET</i> EXON 14 SKIPPING ALTERATIONS IN NON-SMALL CELL LUNG CANCER: A MOLECULAR APPROACH USING NEXT GENERATION SEQUENCING	67
PD-08 A-0087	69
MOLECULAR PROFILE OF PATIENTS WITH ADVANCED NSCLC IN SARAWAK, MALAYSIA	69
PD-09 A-0090	71
PREVALENCE OF HER2-LOW IN HER2 EQUIVOCAL ON IMMUNOHISTOCHEMISTRY (IHC)	71
PD-10 A-0092	73
MANAGEMENT OF NAUSEA AND VOMITING WITH ZOLBETUXIMAB + CHEMOTHERAPY IN CLDN18.2+ HER2- ADVANCED GASTRIC OR GASTROESOPHAGEAL JUNCTION ADENOCARCINOMA	73
PD-11 A-0096	
CLINICOPATHOLOGICAL FEATURES AND TREATMENT OF TESTICULAR GERM CELL TUMOUR IN SARAWAK	
PD-12 A-0103	75
LEFT BREAST DEEP INSPIRATION BREATH-HOLD RADIOTHERAPY (DIBH-RT) IMPLEMENTATION IN MALAYSIA	75
PD-13 A-0107	76
ISLAND HOSPITAL'S EXPERIENCE IN THE USE OF ULTRASOUND FOR PRE- RADIOTHERAPY ASSESSMENT OF RECTAL CONDITION	76
PD-14 A-0111	77
LEFT-SIDED BREAST CANCER IRRADIATION WITH VOLUNTARY DEEP INSPIRATION BREATH-HOLD (NON-COMPUTER CONTROLLED)	77



PD-15 A-0113	78
EXPLORING WILLINGNESS TO PAY OUT-OF-POCKET FOR GENETIC TESTING AMONG OVARIAN CANCER PATIENTS IN MALAYSIA, A MIDDLE-INCOME COUNTRY IN ASIA	78
PD-16 A-0117	80
HIGH PREVALENT OF HRD STATUS IN OVARIAN CANCER	80
PD-17 A-0121	82
CLINICAL CHARACTERISTICS, MOLECULAR PROFILE AND TREATMENT OF EPIDERMAL GROWTH FACTOR RECEPTOR (EGFR) MUTATED NON-SMALL CEILUNG CANCER IN SARAWAK	
PD-18 A-0124	84
IS BREAST CANCER ASSOCIATED WITH GERMLINE MSH6 MUTATION: A CASE REPORT	
PD-19 A-0125	86
PREVALENCE OF PIK3CA GENE MUTATIONS IN ADVANCED METASTATIC BREAST CANCER IN SOLID TUMOUR AND LIQUID BIOPSY	86
PD-20 A-0129	88
CLINICAL CHARACTERISTICS AND TREATMENT OF EARLY LUNG CANCER IN SARAWAK, MALAYSIA	
PD-21 A-0141	89
CHEMOTHERAPY: THE UNLIKELY HERO IN OVERCOMING HCC RESISTANCE.	
PD-22 A-0142	90
SHINING LIGHT ON A DARK DIAGNOSIS: EDP-MITOTANE'S PROMISE ADRENOCORTICAL CARCINOMA. A CASE REPORT	90
PD-23 A-0148	92
K-TRACK™: A STREAMLINED PERSONALIZED ASSAY TO DETECT MOLECULARESIDUAL DISEASE IN SOLID TUMORS	
PD-24 A-0155	93
A RARE CASE OF CRIBRIFORM-MORULAR THYROID CARCINOMA	93
PD-25 A-0156	94
UNMET SUPPORTIVE CARE NEEDS IN WOMEN WITH ADVANCED BREAST CANCER IN A MALAYSIAN SETTING	94
PD-26 A-0161	
ADULT NEPHROBLASTOMA (WILMS' TUMOUR): A CASE REPORT	
PD-27 A-0167	97



IMPACT OF A DIGITAL EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM ON NURSES' KNOWLEDGE AND ATTITUDES TOWARD PAIN ASSESSMENT AND MANAGEMENT IN A MALAYSIAN ONCOLOGY HOSPITAL	97
PD-28 A-0169	99
ERYTHROCYTOSIS: A RARE BUT DISTINCTIVE COMPLICATIONS IN HEPATOCELLULAR CARCINOMA PATIENTS TREATED WITH LENVATINIB	99
PD-29 A-0170	101
COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS OF SYSTEMATIC AND RANDOM ERRORS IN TUMOR LOCALIZATION FOR HEAD AND NECK CANCER IMRT	
PD-30 A-0176	103
CASE REPORT: ADRENOCORTICAL CARCINOMA IN TWO YEARS OLD GIRL	103
EP-01 A-0009	105
A CASE OF EXTRANEURAL METASTASES IN ANAPLASTIC EPENDYMOMA	
EP-02 A-0011	106
UPDATED PATIENT-LEVEL NETWORK META-ANALYSIS OF FIRST-LINE SYSTEMIC THERAPIES FOR ADVANCED HEPATOCELLULAR CARCINOMA	106
EP-03 A-0012	107
ASSESSING THE OVERALL EFFECTIVENESS OF MOUTHWASHES IN REDUCING ORAL MUCOSITIS PAIN DURING CHEMORADIOTHERAPY IN NASOPHARYNGE CARCINOMA PATIENTS	EAL
EP-04 A-0014	109
SUCCESFUL IVF PREGNANCY FOLLOWING RADICAL TRACHELECTOMY FOR EARLY CERVICAL CANCER. A CASE REPORT	
EP-05 A-0017	110
THE IMPACT OF CHEMOTHERAPY COMPLETION AND RELATIVE DRUG INTENSITY ON OVERALL SURVIVAL OF BREAST, COLORECTAL AND LUNG CANCER PATIENTS	110
EP-06 A-0018	
FACTORS INFLUENCING RESILIENCE IN PATIENTS WITH TERMINAL ILLNESS A CROSS SECTIONAL STUDY	ES:
EP-07 A-0019	113
SEVERE HYPERSENSITIVITY REACTION TO INTRAVENOUS ETOPOSIDE: A CA REPORT	
EP-08 A-0021	115
ASSESSING MOTION OF LUNG TUMOURS PTV DURING STEREOTACTIC BODY RADIOTHERAPY (SBRT): UTILIZING FOUR DIMENSIONAL COMPUTED TOMOGRAPHY (4DCT) AND THREE DIMENSIONAL COMPUTED TOMOGRAPHY (3DCT) IMAGING	Y
$FP_{-}00 A_{-}0022$	116



DOSIMETRIC STUDY ON THE EFFECT OF DENTAL IMPLANT IN EXTERNAL	
BEAM RADIOTHERAPY OF SALIVARY GLAND CANCER USING GEANT4 MON	
CARLO SIMULATION	
EP-10 A-0023	
RELIABILITY AND VALIDITY OF THE MALAY VERSION OF CAREGIVER QUAL OF LIFE INDEX-CANCER (CQOLC) SCALE IN MALAYSIAN CANCER CAREGIVE	ERS
EP-11 A-0025	
KNOWLEDGE LEVEL ON ESOPHAGUS CANCER AMONG HEALTHCARE WORKERS IN RADIOTHERAPY AND ONCOLOGY DEPARTMENT AT INSTITUT KANSER NEGARA, PUTRAJAYA	. 119
EP-12 A-0027	. 120
LONG-TERM RESPONDERS TO DUAL ANTI-HER2 THERAPY IN HER2-POSITIVE METASTATIC BREAST CANCER: CASE REPORTS	
EP-13 A-0028	. 122
MULTINATIONAL SURVEY STUDY ASSESSING GENETIC TESTING AND COUNSELLING AMONG PATIENTS WITH BREAST CANCER [MAGENTA]	. 122
EP-14 A-0030	. 124
IMPLEMENTATION FEASIBILITY OF CANCER INFORMATION PLATFORM (NEE HERO PLATFORM) AT UNIVERSITY MALAYA MEDICAL CENTRE (UMMC)	
EP-15 A-0032	. 125
A CASE REPORT: METASTATIC BREAST CANCER EMULATING OF A PRIMARY GASTRIC LINITIS PLASTICA IN A PATIENT WITH PECTUS EXCAVATUM	. 125
EP-16 A-0033	. 127
A RARE MALIGNANCY OF BREAST CARCINOMA METASTASIS TO COLON	. 127
A CASE REPORT	. 127
EP-17 A-0036	. 128
HOPE? WHEN ALL IS LOST FOR YOUNG AND AGGRESSIVE MALIGNANCY	. 128
EP-18 A-0037	. 129
EVALUATING TREATMENT ACCURACY: AN ANALYSIS OF EPID-BASED IN VIVOUS DOSIMETRY IMPLEMENTATION AT GLENEAGLES HOSPITAL PENANG	
EP-19 A-0038	. 130
A CASE REPORT OF FAVOURABLE RESPONSE TOWARDS EVEROLIMUS IN TREATING TSC2-MUTATED MALIGNANT RENAL EPITHELIAL ANGIOMYOLIPOMA (EAML)	130
EP-20 A-0041	
EXPLORING THE ROLES OF MITOCHONDRIAL-ASSOCIATED MICRORNAS OF HEAD AND NECK CANCER STEM CELLS IN DRUG RESISTANCE AND TUMOR	
RECURRENCE	132



EP-21 A-0042	134
REAL-WORLD OUTCOMES OF NEXT GENERATION SEQUENCING TESTING IN PATIENTS WITH CANCER: AN OBSERVATIONAL STUDY ON THE IMPACT OF SELECTION BASED ON CLINICAL JUDGEMENT	
EP-22 A-0043	135
RADIOTHERAPY POSITIONING REPRODUCIBILITY OF TATTOO-LESS PATIENT FOR PELVIS REGION	
EP-23 A-0045	. 137
IS BEARING MY OWN CHILD A DREAM IMPOSSIBLE TO FULFILL? PREGNANCIN METASTATIC HORMONE RECEPTOR POSITIVE BREAST CANCER	
EP-24 A-0046	. 139
COMPLETE REMISSION OF ADVANCED LOW-GRADE ENDOMETRIAL STROMA SARCOMA AFTER ENDOCRINE THERAPY: A CASE REPORT	
EP-25 A-0047	. 141
EFFICACY COMPARISON OF LOW VS. HIGH-DOSE RADIO-IODINE ABLATION I LOW-TO-INTERMEDIATE RISK DIFFERENTIATED THYROID CANCER: A FIVE- YEAR DUAL-CENTER RETROSPECTIVE STUDY IN MALAYSIA	
EP-26 A-0048	. 143
UNVEILING THE HIDDEN COST OF CANCER: INSIGHTS INTO TRANSPORTATIONAL SUPPLEMENT EXPENSES	
EP-27 A-0049	. 144
A CASE REPORT OF PARAURETHRAL EWING SARCOMA WITH UNDERLYING LEFT MEDIASTINAL DESMOID FIBROMATOSIS	. 144
EP-28 A-0053	145
ANTHRACYCLINE INDUCED HEART FAILURE – A CASE REPORT	. 145
EP-29 A-0054	146
UNDERSTANDING THE SIGNIFICANCE OF COMPLEMENTARY AND ALTERNATIVE MEDICINE FOR BREAST CANCER SURVIVORS	. 146
EP-30 A-0055	. 148
TREATMENT RELATED POSTERIOR REVERSIBLE ENCEPHALOPATHY SYNDROME IN CANCER PATIENTS	. 148
EP-31 A-0056	. 150
EFFECTIVENESS OF PRE-TREATMENT EDUCATION FOR NEWLY DIAGNOSED CANCER PATIENTS: A RETROSPECTIVE ANALYSIS	. 150
EP-32 A-0057	. 151
PREVALENCE OF HOMOLOGOUS RECOMBINATION DEFICIENCY IN MALAYSI TRIPLE-NEGATIVE BREAST CANCER PATIENTS	
EP-33 A-0058	153



TRIPLE NEGATIVE INTERNAL MAMMARY LYMPH NODE RECURRENCE IN BROWN MUTANT ER POSITIVE EARLY BREAST CANCER	
EP-34 A-0059	155
LENVATINIB FOR TREATMENT OF UNRESECTABLE HEPATOCELLULAR CARCINOMA: EXPERIENCE IN A SINGLE INSTITUTION IN MALAYSIA	
EP-35 A-0060	156
ALK FUSION IN MALAYSIAN NON-SMALL CELL LUNG CANCER: A REAL-WORLD ANALYSIS USING NEXT GENERATION SEQUENCING DATA	
EP-36 A-0061	157
RETROSPECTIVE ANALYSIS OF MOLECULAR PROFILE IN LUNG CANCER PATIENTS: A SINGLE-CENTER STUDY IN A PRIVATE HOSPITAL SETTING	157
EP-37 A-0062	158
LINAC-BASED SBRT FOR LOCALIZED PROSTATE CANCER PATIENTS: A RETROSPECTIVE, SINGLE CENTRE STUDY	
EP-38 A-0064	
NURSING OBSERVATION FOR BLADDER AND RECTUM TOXICITY FOR RADICA	
PROSTATE RADIOTHERAPY WITHIN THE TREATMENT DAY	
EP-39 A-0065	161
GENETIC TESTING IN AN ENDOMETRIAL CANCER PATIENT IDENTIFIES	
RELATIVES AT RISK OF LYNCH SYNDROME – A CASE STUDY	161
EP-40 A-0066	162
ASSESSING THE ACCURACY OF CIRCULATING TUMOR DNA FOR EARLY MUL' CANCER DETECTION IN THE ASIAN POPULATION	
EP-41 A-0067	163
CHARACTERIZING CANCER-SUSCEPTIBILITY GENOMIC VARIANTS IN THE MALAYSIAN POPULATION	163
EP-42 A-0072	
FALSE ALARM: A FALSE POSITIVE CASE IN BONE SCINTIGRAPHY IN OSTEOSARCOMA	
EP-43 A-0074	100
INVASIVE LOBULAR BREAST CANCER WITH METASTASES TO GATROINTESTINAL TRACT AND SKELETAL MUSCLES: A CASE REPORT	166
EP-44 A-0075	167
THREE-YEARS LUNG CANCER SURVIVAL RATE IN BEACON HOSPITAL, MALAYSIA	167
EP-45 A-0076	168
SEMI QUANTITATIVE ANALYSIS USING MAXIMUM STANDARDIZED UPTAKE VALUE SINGLE-PHOTON EMISSION COMPLITED TOMOGRAPHY/COMPLITED	



TOMOGRAPHY FOR MONITORING RESPONSE OF THERAPY IN PROSTATE CANCER PATIENTS	168
EP-46 A-0077	169
APPLICATION OF SUVmean AND SUVmax IN SPECT/CT OF THE NORMAL SPINE BONE SCANS OF BREAST CANCER PATIENTS	
EP-47 A-0078	171
A RARE CASE OF NUTM1-REARRANGED PERITONEAL NEOPLASM	171
EP-48 A-0079	173
MULTIMODALITY TREATMENT APPROACH IN A PATIENT WITH METASTATIC COLON ADENOCARCINOMA	173
EP-49 A-0080	174
DABRAFENIB AND TRAMETINIB IN BRAF V600E MUTANT METASTATIC NSCL	
EP-50 A-0081	175
INCENTIVES FOR CHILDREN RECEIVING RADIOTHERAPY: SHARING OF EXPERIENCE FROM HWKKS	175
EP-51 A-0084	177
NEOADJUVANT PERTUZUMAB AND TRASTUZUMAB IN THE TREATMENT OF HER2 POSITIVE BREAST CANCER IN PUBLIC CANCER CENTER: CHALLENGES AND EXPERIENCES.	
AND EXPERIENCES	
EP-52 A-0086	
REBUNG TRAIN-THE-TRAINER COMMUNITY NURSES COMPETENCY PROGRAIN CANCER SCREENING AND NAVIGATION FOR EARLY DIAGNOSIS OF CANCI	ER
EP-53 A-0088	
A CASE OF PROSTATE GERM CELL TUMOUR: A CASE REPORT	180
EP-54 A-0089	182
CENTRE EXPERIENCES ON THE ABDOMINAL COMPRESSION TECHNIQUE IN SBRT LIVER	182
EP-55 A-0093	183
FINAL OVERALL SURVIVAL IN PHASE 3 SPOTLIGHT: ZOLBETUXIMAB + mFOLFOX6 IN CLDN18.2+ HER2- ADVANCED GASTRIC/GASTROESOPHAGEAL JUNCTION ADENOCARCINOMA	
EP-56 A-0094	
GHOST CELL ODONTOGENIC CARCINOMA ARISING FROM RECURRENT	
DENTINOGENIC GHOST CELL TUMOR	185
EP-57 A-0095	187
LUNG CANCER IN SARAWAK, MALAYSIA	187



EP-58 A-0097	188
KNOWLEDGE, ATTITUDE AND PRACTICE OF FOOD SAFETY AMONG CANCER PATIENTS RECEIVING CHEMOTHERAPY AT A TEACHING HOSPITAL	
EP-59 A-0098	189
BARRIERS AND CHALLENGES OF MULTIDISCIPLINARY TEAM MEETINGS SCOPING REVIEW – UPDATES ON TRANSLATION OF RESEARCH FINDINGS	189
EP-60 A-0099	190
COST-EFFECTIVE SAMPLING KIT FOR MICROBIOME RESEARCH IN LOW RESOURCE SETTINGS	190
EP-61 A-0100	192
THE DILEMMA OF A SMALL ROUND CELL TUMOUR	192
EP-62 A-0101	194
GENETIC TESTING AND DECISION-MAKING FOR BREAST CANCER PATIENT DURING PREGNANCY - A CASE STUDY	194
EP-63 A-0104	195
'FROM TERATOMA TO THYROID CARCINOMA'. A CASE OF PRIMARY MALIGNANT STRUMA OVARII	195
EP-64 A-0105	
DILEMMA IN MANAGING SEROUS BORDERLINE OVARIAN TUMOUR WITH DISTANT LYMPH NODE INVOLVEMENT	
EP-65 A-0108	
CLINICAL UTILITY AND ADVANTAGES OF LIQUID BIOPSY: CASE STUDIES UNVEILING REVOLUTIONARY DIAGNOSTIC INSIGHTS	
EP-66 A-0115	200
UNLOCKING HOPE: NEXT GENERATION SEQUENCING (NGS) A GAME CHANG IN RARE SUBTYPE THYMIC CELL CARCINOMA	ER
EP-67 A-0118	201
PEMBROLIZUMAB TREATMENT IN MALIGNANT MELANOMA WITH PRE- EXISTING VITILIGO: A CASE REPORT	
EP-68 A-0119	
CLINICAL CHARACTERISTICS OF NON-SMALL CELL LUNG CANCER IN SARAWAK, MALAYSIA	
EP-69 A-0123	
PRIMARY NEUROENDOCRINE LUNG CARCINOMA MANIFESTING AS	_01
UNCOMMON ORAL CAVITY LESION - A HARBINGER OF GRAVE PROGNOSIS?: CASE REPORT	
EP-70 A-0126	



CHEMOTHERAPY-INDUCED PNEUMATOSIS INTESTINALIS IN	205
GASTROESOPHAGEAL CANCER	
EP-71 A-0127	. 207
CLINICAL CHARACTERISTICS AND TREATMENT OF SMALL CELL LUNG CANCER IN SARAWAK	. 207
EP-72 A-0128	. 208
CLINICAL CHARACTERISTICS AND TREATMENT OF ALK POSITIVE LUNG CANCER IN SARAWAK, MALAYSIA	. 208
EP-73 A-0133	
THE SILENT ALARM: FROM BACK PAIN TO LEUKAEMIA	
EP-74 A-0137	
EFFICACY OF PERIOPERATIVE FLOT IN GASTRIC CARCINOMA AND GASTRO OESOPHAGEAL JUNCTION CARCINOMA IN ACHIEVING PCR: RETROSPECTIVANALYSIS IN A SINGLE INSTITUTION EXPERIENCE	)- E . 211
EP-75 A-0138	. 213
USING PARAFFIN WAX BASED IN RADIOTHERAPY TREATMENT USING ELECTRON FOR PATIENT WITH BASAL CELL CARCINOMA AT RIGHT TIPS OF NOSE: A CASE STUDY	. 213
EP-76 A-0139	
PRIMARY ADULT EWING'S SARCOMA OF KIDNEY: A RARE ENTITY	
EP-77 A-0143	
CASE REPORT: KETAMINE USE IN REFRACTORY NEUROPATHIC PAIN OF MALIGNANT PERIPHERAL NERVE SHEATH TUMOUR	
EP-78 A-0144	. 217
NON-THYROGLOBULIN SECRETING COLUMNAR CELL PAPILLARY THYROID CARCINOMA	
EP-79 A-0145	. 219
DIBH FOR LIVER STEREOTACTIC BODY RADIATION THERAPY (SBRT)	
EP-80 A-0146	
A CASE REPORT OF PRIMARY PULMONARY MYXOID SARCOMA	
EP-81 A-0149	
GENDER DIFFERENCES IN HEALTH-RELATED QUALITY OF LIFE AMONG CANCER PATIENTS	
EP-82 A-0151	
BUDD-CHIARI SYNDROME AND HEPATOCELLULAR CARCINOMA: A CLINICA	
QUANDARY	. 224
EP-83 A-0154	
RARE CASE OF LUNG ADENOCARCINOMA METASTASIZING TO THE COLON.	. 226



EP-84 A-0157	. 227
A RARE CASE REPORT OF URETHRAL SQUAMOUS CELL CARCINOMA WITH BRAIN METASTASIS	. 227
EP-85 A-0158	. 228
EMPOWERING FUTURE RADIATION THERAPISTS: DEVELOPMENT OF A PSYCHOSOCIAL AND SUPPORTIVE CANCER CARE [PSOSC] MODULE FOR MALAYSIAN STUDENTS	. 228
EP-86 A-0163	. 230
ASSOCIATION OF DELTA RADIOMICS OF PAROTID GLANDS FROM CONE BEA COMPUTED TOMOGRAPHY TO LATE XEROSTOMIA FOLLOWING HEAD AND NECK RADIOTHERAPY	
EP-87 A-0165	. 232
HDR INTERSTITIAL BRACHYTHERAPY AND CHEMORADIATION IN TREATING BUCCAL MUCOSA SQUAMOUS CELL CARCINOMA- A CASE REPORT	
EP-88 A-0168	. 233
EXAMINING MARITAL CHALLENGES: A QUALITATIVE STUDY ON THE IMPACT OF CERVICAL CANCER ON INTIMATE PARTNERSHIPS IN SARAWAK	
EP-89 A-0171	. 234
GOING THE DISTANCE: A CASE STUDY OF LOCAL ABLATIVE THERAPY IN OLIGOMETASTATIC EGFR MUTATED NON SMALL CELL LUNG CANCER (NSCI	
EP-90 A-0172	. 236
SELECTION OF PATIENTS FOR LU-177 THERAPY	. 236
EP-91 A-0173	. 237
OCCURRENCE OF UNUSUAL SITES OF METASTASES IN DIFFERENTIATED THYROID CARCINOMA DETECTED ON I-124 PET-CT. A REVIEW OF 15 CASES I INSTITUT KANSER NEGARA	
EP-92 A-0175	. 238
LYNCH SYNDROME ASSOCIATED COLORECTAL CANCER: AN INVISIBLE	238



### **ORAL PRESENTATION LISTING**

Oral ID	Title	Authors
OP-01 A-0031	Outcome And Transcriptomic Features of Dual EGFR And MET Blockade In NSCLC	David Dai-Wee Lee Ng WP, Ang SF, Lau DP, Wan LY, Lai GGY, Boey MYW, Lim TKH, Tan DSW
OP-02 A-0110	Leveraging Phenomic and Genomic Data from a Large-Scale Cohort Study in Advancing Personalized Oncology – a preliminary UK Biobank Analysis	Shirin Tan Hui Lai WH, Sim EUH, Voon PJ
OP-03 A-0114	Cabozantinib Plus Nivolumab (C+N) Vs Sunitinib (S) For 1st Line Advanced Renal Cell Carcinoma (ARCC): 55.6 Month Follow-Up Of The Checkmate 9ER Trial	Ankush Kalra Bourlon MT, Escudier B, Burotto M, Powles T,4 Apolo AB, Shah AY, Porta C, Suárez C, Barrios CH, Richardet M, Gurney H, Kessler ER, Tomita Y, Bedke J, Wang F, Wang P, Panzica J, Fedorov V, Motzer RJ, Choueiri TK
OP-04 A-0116	Improved BRCA Prediction For Asian Breast Cancer Patients	Boon Hong Ang Wong ZL, Tai MC, Ng PS, Yoon SY, Hasan SN, Lim JMC, Hassan NT, Padmanabhan H, Lee VYM, Mohd Taib NA, Yip CH, Hartman M, Lim SH, Tan EY, Tan BKT, Tan SM, Tan VKM, Ho PJ, Khng AJ, Li J, Loh SHS, Teo SH, Ho WK
OP-05 A-0147	Personalized Mutation Tracking In Circulating-Tumor DNA Predicts Recurrence In Patients With High- Risk Early Breast Cancer	Van-Anh Nguyen Hoang Nguyen ST, Nguyen Trieu V, Nguyen DS, Tu LN
OP-06 A-0152	Oncologists' Evaluation Of The Framework Of Strategies For Managing Chemotherapy-Induced Nausea And Vomiting (CINV)	Nurul Suhaida Badarudin Mohamed Shah N, Ismail F, Islahuddin F, Mohd Tahir NA
OP-07 A-0174	Swallowing Assessment in Patients with Oral Tongue Squamous Cell Carcinoma (OTSCC) Treated with Upfront Brachytherapy versus Surgery	Muhamad Yusri Musa Ong KP, Mohamad I, Gokulakumar A, Jalil J, Zahri M, Fakhrurozi M
OP-08 A-0177	Avelumab First-Line Maintenance For Advanced Urothelial Carcinoma: Real-World Results From The Early Access Program In Malaysia	John Low Ismail F, Abdul Wahid MI, Thiagarajan M, Tan AL, Chin NCL, Lam KS, Chow SY, Ang SF, Ng M, Loke H



Poster ID	Title	Authors
PP-01 A-0029	HRQOL With Tepotinib In Patients With METex14 SKIPPING NSCLC With Brain, Liver, Adrenal Or Bone Metastases In The Phase II Vision Trial	Tho Lye Mun Reinmuth N, Mazieres J, Popat S, Paz-Ares L, Hook E, Hatswell A, Vlassak S, Johne A, Vioix H, Paik P
PP-02 A-0091	Updated Results Of Phase 3 Glow Study Evaluating Zolbetuximab + Capox In CLDN18.2+ HER2- Advanced Gastric Or Gastroesophageal Junction Adenocarcinoma	J Hoo HFS, Lordick F, Shah MA, Shitara K, Ajani JA, Bang YJ, Enzinger P, Ilson D, Van Cutsem E, Plazas JG, Huang J, Shen L, Oh SC, Sunpaweravong P, Turk HM, Park JW, Moran D, Bhattacharya P, Cao Y, Xu RH
PP-03 A-0106	Prevalence Of HER2-Low Breast Cancer Patients In Subang Jaya Medical Centre (SJMC)	Sum Yee Ling Sum YL, Yap NY, Ariffen NA, Sukri NS, Sairan NA, Rajadurai P, Cheah YK
PP-04 A-0109	Bioinformatics Analyses To Elucidate Metastasis-Related Genes In Metastatic Nasopharyngeal Carcinoma (NPC)	Loo Ee Mun Tan BS, Leong WM, Leong CO, Mai CW
PP-05 A-0120	Patient Scalp Cooling Experiences	Tan King Mee Lau J, Loh K
PP-06 A-0122	Cytogenetics Abnormalities Observed Among Multiple Myeloma Patients In Malaysia	Muhammad Nur Arif Nor Azan Yap MMHP, Rosmanizam SLA, Chan PZ, Abdul Raub SH, Noor Akmal S, Muhammed MH
PP-07 A-0131	Real-World Treatment Patterns and Effectiveness of Subsequent Treatments Following First-line (1L) Brigatinib For Patients With ALK+ NSCLC	Ahmet Melih Kurec Delmonte A, Ahn MJ, Ghosh S, Hochmair M, Yang TY, Yang JCH, Han JY, Hansen KH, Wu Y, Wan Y, Lin HM, Kretz J, Hupf B, Churchill EN, Fram RJ, Cabasag CJ, Goriya V, Zhao Y, Campelo MRG
PP-08 A-0132	Software For Automated Calculation Of PTV Margins From CBCT-Based IGRT Protocols	Mohd Hafiz Mohd Zin Mazlan NA, Abubakar A, M Zamri NA, Shaukat SI



Poster ID	Title	Authors
PP-09 A-0140	Beaming Miracle – The Triumph Of Radiotherapy In Battling Condyloma Acuminatum. A Case Report	Ch'ng Wan Ping Mohamad NN
PP-10 A-0159	Amicable Response In Combining Systemic Therapies And Selective Internal Radiation Therapy (SIRT) In Inoperable Primary And Secondary Liver Tumours: Case Series	Audi Adawiah Sulaiman Shah Boey CY, Yee MLS, Aslum Khan F
PP-11 A-0160	Real-World Application Of A Multicancer Early Detection Test To Detect Cancers Lacking Recommended Screenings	Hanh Nguyen Nguyen TT, Nguyen DLH, Phan MN, Tieu LB, Nguyen SD, Tang SH, Tran SL
PP-12 A-0164	A Case Report Of Esophageal Alk- Expressing Inflammatory Myofibroblastic Tumour (IMT) Treated With Crizotinib In A Patient With A History Of Mediastinal Mixed Germ Cell Tumour	<b>Nilasha Krishnan</b> Fong CH
PD-01 A-0035	Together: Pooled Real-World Datasets Of METex14 Skipping NSCLC And Adjusted Comparison Of Upfront (CHEMO-) Immunotherapy With Tepotinib From Vision	Tho Lye Mun Christopoulos P, Ekman S, Guisier F, Ho C, Blasi M, Brunnstromm H, Cvetkovic J, Kazdal D, Kuon J, Haglund de Flon F, Stenzinger A, Wong S, Hatswell A, Mclean T, Bergman S, Orlowski K, Vioix H, Thomas M
PD-02 A-0068	Optimizing Prostate SBRT with Rectal Spacer and Fiducial Marker	Tunisha Nair Devadass Foo, YH, Syarifah NSA, Siti FAF
PD-03 A-0069	Enhancing Lung Cancer Mutation Detection through Combined Tissue and Circulating Tumor DNA Profiling	Tan Boon Shing Loo EM, Toh HC, Mohan A, Ng ZW, Yi CX, Khor BY, Teow KS, Ashvinder S, Khoo YS, Leong WM, Mai CW, Leong CO
PD-04 A-0070	Total Neoadjuvant Therapy In Locally Advanced Rectal Cancer: A Mono- Institutional Retrospective Study	Suganeswaran Marimuthu Kwan AKN, Chan MJ



Poster ID	Title	Authors
PD-05 A-0082	Pneumonitis Chronicles: Unraveling Docetaxel's Veiled Impact- A Case Report	<b>Cheng Kai Jie</b> Ngu MR
PD-06 A-0083	Collaboration Between Sarawak General Hospital (SGH), UNIMAS And American Society Of Clinical Oncology- International Cancer Corps (ASCO-ICC): Sarawak's Beacon Of Hope In Cancer	Cheng Kai Jie Lim YN
PD-07 A-0085	Prevalence of MET Exon 14 Skipping Alterations in Non-small Cell Lung Cancer: A Molecular Approach Using Next Generation Sequencing	Bee Suan Tay Yap NY, Che Zainudin CZ, Jeffry NL, Cheah YK, Rajadurai P
PD-08 A-0087	Molecular Profile of Patients with Advanced NSCLC in Sarawak, Malaysia	Cheo Seng Wee Chong JKM, Pui ESH, Chan YL, Lim SY, Nabilah NQ, Ang CS, Low QJ, Voon PJ
PD-09 A-0090	Prevalence Of HER2-LOW In HER2 Equivocal On Immunohistochemistry (IHC)	Michelle Marie Yap Hwei Ping Nor Azan MNA, Rosmanizam SLA, Chan PZ, Abdul Raub SH, Noor Akmal S, Muhammed MH
PD-10 A-0092	Management Of Nausea And Vomiting With Zolbetuximab + Chemotherapy In CLDN18.2+ HER2– Advanced Gastric Or Gastroesophageal Junction Adenocarcinoma	J Hoo HFS, Shitara K, Pophale R, Matsangou M, Park JW, Oh M, Bhattacharya P, Ranganath R
PD-11 A-0096	Clinicopathological Features And Treatment Of Testicular Germ Cell Tumour in Sarawak	Chow Poh Lee Chong CT, Cheo SW, Low QJ, Voon PJ, Ang CS
PD-12 A-0103	Left Breast Deep Inspiration Breath- Hold Radiotherapy (DIBH-RT) Implementation In Malaysia	Nur Aqila Mazlan AbuBakar A, Kassim MZ, Shaukat SI, Jalil J, Appalanaido GK, Mohd Zain H, Ahmad R
PD-13 A-0107	Island Hospital's Experience In The Use Of Ultrasound For Pre- Radiotherapy Assessment Of Rectal Condition	Ooi Gim Chee Jaimin N, Yusof MZ, Abd Hadi SN



Poster ID	Title	Authors
PD-14 A-0111	Left-sided Breast Cancer Irradiation With Voluntary Deep Inspiration Breath-Hold (Non-Computer Controlled)	Mohd Rizq Raymond Abdullah
PD-15 A-0113	Exploring Willingness To Pay Out-Of-Pocket For Genetic Testing Among Ovarian Cancer Patients In Malaysia, A Middle-Income Country In Asia	Heamanthaa Padmanabhan Lim KK, Hassan T, Ahmad Bashah NS, Lee YQ, Lim J, Teo IH, Gunasagran Y, Kalimuthu RK, Omar J, Mohd Abas MN, Ramasamy VT, Yong CM, Mohamed Jamli MF, Sim WW, Ahmad Mustafa AM, Mat Ali NH, Aliyas I, Lim KJ, Thong MK, Woo YL, Shafie AA, Teo SH, Yoon SY
PD-16 A-0117	High Prevalent of HRD Status in Ovarian Cancer	Nurina Afifah Saiful Saaid NN, Azhari AK, Ismail NI, Pulandran L, Zainal Abidin NA, Che Omar RN, Abdul Raub SH, Syed Hussain SNA, Muhammed MH
PD-17 A-0121	Clinical Characteristics, Molecular Profile And Treatment Of Epidermal Growth Factor Receptor (EGFR) Mutated Non-Small Cell Lung Cancer In Sarawak	Cheo Seng Wee Chong JKM, Pui ESH, Chan YL, Lim SY, Nabilah NQ, Ang CS, Low QJ, Chai CS, Kho SS, Tie ST, Voon PJ
PD-18 A-0124	Is Breast Cancer Associated with Germline MSH6 Mutation: A Case Report	Vivian Lee Yi Mun Lim JMC, Mohd Ghazali PHI, Yoon SY
PD-19 A-0125	Prevalence Of PIK3CA Gene Mutations In Advanced Metastatic Breast Cancer In Solid Tumour And Liquid Biopsy	Azlah Kamilah Azhari Saaid NN, Pulandran L, Che Omar RN, Zainal Abidin NA, Saiful NA, Ayub M, Ismail I, Ganesan UN, Najwa NA, Mohamad FH, Abdul Raub SH, Syed Hussain SNA, Muhammed MH
PD-20 A-0129	Clinical Characteristics and Treatment of Early Lung Cancer in Sarawak, Malaysia	Yi Leen Chan Chong JKM, Pui ESH, Lim SY, Nabilah NQ, Ang CS, Low QJ, Cheo SW
PD-21 A-0141	Chemotherapy: The Unlikely Hero In Overcoming HCC Resistance. A Case Report	Nurfarhana Abbas Mohamad NN



Poster ID	Title	Authors
PD-22 A-0142	Shining Light On A Dark Diagnosis: EDP-Mitotane's Promise Adrenocortical Carcinoma. A Case Report	Nurfarhana Abbas Mohamad NN
PD-23 A-0148	K-Track <sup>TM</sup> : A Streamlined Personalized Assay To Detect Molecular Residual Disease In Solid Tumors	Ngoc Nguyen Thi Bich Nguyen Hoang VA, Nguyen T, Nguyen DS, N Tu L
PD-24 A-0155	A Rare Case Of Cribriform-Morular Thyroid Carcinoma	Fatin Najiha Rahman Karthikeashvaren S
PD-25 A-0156	Unmet Supportive Care Needs in Women with Advanced Breast Cancer in A Malaysian Setting	Harenthri Devy Alagir Rajah Hoo YY, Abdul Satar NF, Thiagarajan M, Yip CH, Wong N, Bhoo-Pathy N
PD-26 A-0161	Adult Nephroblastoma (Wilms' Tumour): A Case Report	Dorothy Linda Savarimuthu Kwan AKN, Chan MJ, Rajaratenam L
PD-27 A-0167	Impact Of A Digital Educational Program On Nurses' Knowledge And Attitudes Toward Pain Assessment And Management In A Malaysian Oncology Hospital	Koon Sim Lan Zamri NA, The PK, Tan J
PD-28 A-0169	Erythrocytosis: A Rare but Distinctive Complications in Hepatocellular Carcinoma Patients Treated with Lenvatinib	Hema Darshinee Johnson Ratnavelu K
PD-29 A-0170	Comparative Analysis of Systematic and Random Errors in Tumor Localization for Head and Neck Cancer IMRT	<b>Zul Iskandar Johari</b> Azmi NA, Ab Muin NF, A Latiff R, Ahmad Fadzil MS, Ahmad Razali R
PD-30 A-0176	Case Report: Adrenocortical Carcinoma In Two Years Old Girl	Andi Cahyadi Rochmah N, Andarsini MR, Faizi M, Ugrasena IDG



Poster ID	Title	Authors
EP-01 A-0009	A Case Of Extraneural Metastases In Anaplastic Ependymoma	Harjun Singh Brar Mahinder Singh Ngu RN
EP-02 A-0011	Updated Patient-Level Network Meta- Analysis of First-Line Systemic Therapies for Advanced Hepatocellular Carcinoma	Low Qin Jian Cheo SW, Ang CS, Wan Maharuddin I, Chong CT, Ngu RN, Eng JY, Hadi Y, Ab. Jalil H, Heng FY, Lim YN, Voon PJ
EP-03 A-0012	Assessing The Overall Effectiveness Of Mouthwashes In Reducing Oral Mucositis Pain During Chemoradiotherapy In Nasopharyngeal Carcinoma Patients	Rhubain Mageswaran Ang ZY
EP-04 A-0014	Successful IVF Pregnancy Following Radical Trachelectomy For Early Cervical Cancer. A Case Report	<b>Badrul Zaman Muda</b> Omar J, Kurian F
EP-05 A-0017	The Impact Of Chemotherapy Completion And Relative Drug Intensity On Overall Survival Of Breast, Colorectal And Lung Cancer Patients	Gobi Hariyanayagam Gunasekaran Wan Sabri WMA , Selvarajoo K
EP-06 A-0018	Factors Influencing Resilience in Patients with Terminal Ilnesses: A Cross Sectional study	Wan Jun Ng Sulaiman N, Abdullah SH, Abdul Rahman AS
EP-07 A-0019	Severe Hypersensitivity Reaction to Intravenous Etoposide: A Case Report	Elaine Kan Mei Ying Balakrishnan A, Jeyasingam V
EP-08 A-0021	Assessing Motion Of Lung Tumours Ptv During Stereotactic Body Radiotherapy (SBRT): Utilizing Four Dimensional Computed Tomography (4DCT) And Three Dimensional Computed Tomography (3DCT) Imaging	Nurhaziqah Roslan How CY, Sendisa Sagaram S, Lee FWL, Letchumanan M, Azman MT, Chuah KW
EP-09 A-0022	Dosimetric Study On The Effect Of Dental Implant In External Beam Radiotherapy Of Salivary Gland Cancer Using Geant4 Monte Carlo Simulation	<b>Azizah Noor Baha</b> Aziz Hashikin NA



Poster ID	Title	Authors
EP-10 A-0023	Reliability and Validity of the Malay version of Caregiver Quality of Life Index-Cancer (CQOLC) Scale in Malaysian Cancer Caregivers	Aisyah Ali Puslan RZ, Lim HL, Razali NH, Lim CS
EP-11 A-0025	Knowledge Level On Esophagus Cancer Among Healthcare Workers In Radiotherapy And Oncology Department At Institut Kanser Negara, Putrajaya	Ros Idayu Mat Nawi Abdillah TAT
EP-12 A-0027	Long-Term Responders to Dual Anti- HER2 Therapy in HER2-Positive Metastatic Breast Cancer: Case Reports	Tay Siow Chia Jeyasingam V, Chuah PL, Kan E
EP-13 A-0028	Multinational Survey Study Assessing Genetic Testing And Counselling Among Patients With Breast Cancer [Magenta]	Tan Jun Hao Powell S, Artigas M, Borovova I, Gadiya P, Hsu A, Kidd L, Rosenfeld D, Saeed MM, Scarelli E, Waheeb Youssef M, Pritam Singh RK
EP-14 A-0030	Implementation Feasibility Of Cancer Information Platform (Need's Hero Platform) At University Malaya Medical Centre (UMMC)	Rozita Abdul Malik Mohd Shariff N, Wan Ishak WZ, Yong TY, Bowler C, Chen PHC
EP-15 A-0032	A Case Report: Metastatic Breast Cancer Emulating Of A Primary Gastric Linitis Plastica In A Patient With Pectus Excavatum	Ting Xue Ru Sum YY, Lee CL
EP-16 A-0033	A Rare Malignancy Of Breast Carcinoma Metastasis To Colon A Case Report	Anthony Lim Kim Tek Selina Sze MT, Mohamed Nor TMA
EP-17 A-0036	Hope? When All Is Lost For Young And Aggressive Malignancy	Yvonne Jee Yih Huan Ab Jalil H
EP-18 A-0037	Evaluating Treatment Accuracy: An Analysis of EPID-based In Vivo Dosimetry Implementation at Gleneagles Hospital Penang	Noor Naslinda Noor Rizan Teo YX, Ibrahim NAA, Sepian MF



Poster ID	Title	Authors
EP-19 A-0038	A Case Report Of Favourable Response Towards Everolimus In Treating TSC2-Mutated Malignant Renal Epithelial Angiomyolipoma (EAML)	Lim Xue Ling Md Nasir MN, LIM SB
EP-20 A-0041	Exploring The Roles Of Mitochondrial-Associated Micrornas Of Head And Neck Cancer Stem Cells In Drug Resistance And Tumor Recurrence	Zhu Xiaoning Subha ST, Fong VH, Tan WL, Cheah YK
EP-21 A-0042	Real-World Outcomes of Next Generation Sequencing Testing in Patients with Cancer: An Observational Study On The Impact Of Selection Based On Clinical Judgement	Low Qin Jian Cheo SW, Ang CS, Wan Maharuddin I, Chong CT, Ngu MR, Eng JY, Hadi Y, Ab. Jalil H, Heng FY, Lim YN, Voon PJ
EP-22 A-0043	Radiotherapy Positioning Reproducibility of Tattoo-Less Patient for Pelvis Region	Nur Ruzainah Gafoor Rashidi MT, Mohamad Adnan NAN
EP-23 A-0045	Is Bearing My Own Child A Dream Impossible To Fulfill? Pregnancy In Metastatic Hormone Receptor Positive Breast Cancer	Tan Keh Yee Nik Eezamuddeen M, Ahmad MF
EP-24 A-0046	Complete Remission Of Advanced Low-Grade Endometrial Stromal Sarcoma After Endocrine Therapy: A Case Report	Intissar Jamaludin Mohd Zaid R
EP-25 A-0047	Efficacy Comparison Of Low Vs. High-Dose Radio-Iodine Ablation In Low-To-Intermediate Risk Differentiated Thyroid Cancer: A Five-Year Dual-Center Retrospective Study In Malaysia	Nashrulhaq Tagiling Gan SY, Mohd Rohani MF, Yahya MM, Mat Nawi N
EP-26 A-0048	Unveiling The Hidden Cost Of Cancer: Insights Into Transportation And Nutritional Supplement Expenses	Farhana Aminuddin Mohd Hassan NZA, Jefri MS, Bahari MS, Zaimi NA, Raman S, Mostapha M, Tan YP



Poster ID	Title	Authors
EP-27 A-0049	A Case Report Of Paraurethral Ewing Sarcoma With Underlying Left Mediastinal Desmoid Fibromatosis	Anne-Marie Thomas Subramaniam S
EP-28 A-0053	Anthracycline Induced Heart Failure – A Case Report	Nurul Faizdzrin Cheo SW
EP-29 A-0054	Understanding the Significance of Complementary and Alternative Medicine for Breast Cancer Survivors	Siti Khadijah Padzil Ali A
EP-30 A-0055	Treatment Related Posterior Reversible Encephalopathy Syndrome In Cancer Patients	Soo Hoo Hwoei Fen Lai FM, Hj Dimin MS, Tan K, Lim CH
EP-31 A-0056	Effectiveness of Pre-Treatment Education for Newly Diagnosed Cancer Patients: A Retrospective Analysis	Tan Yu Chin
EP-32 A-0057	Prevalence of Homologous Recombination Deficiency in Malaysian Triple-Negative Breast Cancer Patients	Siti Norhidayu Hasan Tan ZC, Yip CH, Rajadurai P, Looi LM, Mohd Taib NA, Fuang HG, MD Yusof M, Lim CS, Fong KV, Selvam B, Ng PS, Ahmad Zabidi MM, Teo JY, Ying CW, Abdul Rahman N, Ali A, Chee KM, M. Rueda O, Caldas C, Chin SF, Lim J, Teo SH, Pan JW
EP-33 A-0058	Triple Negative Internal Mammary Lymph Node Recurrence In BRCA Mutant ER Positive Early Breast Cancer	Fong Pey Shan Kwan AKN, Chan MJ
EP-34 A-0059	Lenvatinib For Treatment Of Unresectable Hepatocellular Carcinoma: Experience In A Single Institution In Malaysia	Fong Pey Shan Kwan AKN, Chan MJ
EP-35 A-0060	ALK Fusion In Malaysian Non-Small Cell Lung Cancer: A Real-World Analysis Using Next Generation Sequencing Data	Yap Ning Yi Pailoor J, Tay BS, Che Zainudin CZ, Rajadurai P



Poster ID	Title	Authors
EP-36 A-0061	Retrospective Analysis Of Molecular Profile In Lung Cancer Patients: A Single-Center Study In A Private Hospital Setting	Tan Pei Yun Ahmad AR, Tho LM, Chen BJ, Wahid MI
EP-37 A-0062	LINAC-Based SBRT For Localized Prostate Cancer Patients: A Retrospective, Single Centre Study	Teo Kok Phin Low JSH, Azman MA
EP-38 A-0064	Nursing Observation For Bladder And Rectum Toxicity For Radical Prostate Radiotherapy Within The Treatment Day	Gan Chee Shan Mohd Sabri NS, Sarbini MR
EP-39 A-0065	Genetic Testing In An Endometrial Cancer Patient Identifies Relatives At Risk Of Lynch Syndrome – A Case Study	Lee Yong Quan Padmanabhan H, Lee DSC, Lim J, Yong CM, Yoon SY
EP-40 A-0066	Assessing The Accuracy of Circulating Tumor DNA for Early Multi-Cancer Detection in the Asian Population	Tan Boon Shing Mohan A, Toh CH, Loo EM, Ng ZW, Yi CX, Khor BY, Teow KS, Ashvinder S, Khoo YS, Leong WM, Mai CW, Leong CO
EP-41 A-0067	Characterizing Cancer-Susceptibility Genomic Variants in the Malaysian Population	Tan Boon Shing Toh HC, On JW, Loo EM, Mohan A, Ng ZW, Yi CX, Khor BY, Teow KS, Ashvinder S, Khoo YS, Leong WM, Mai CW, Leong CO
EP-42 A-0072	False Alarm: A False Positive Case In Bone Scintigraphy In Osteosarcoma	Sheila Shazlina Kemis Lee YF, Ng CS
EP-43 A-0074	Invasive Lobular Breast Cancer With Metastases To Gatrointestinal Tract And Skeletal Muscles: A Case Report	Ili Nurathirah Minggu Abd Ghafar NK
EP-44 A-0075	Three-Years Lung Cancer Survival Rate in Beacon Hospital, Malaysia	Peh Chee Hui Azlan UW, A Wahid MI, Mun TL, Chen BJ



Poster ID	Title	Authors
EP-45 A-0076	Semi Quantitative Analysis Using Maximum Standardized Uptake Value Single-Photon Emission Computed Tomography/Computed Tomography For Monitoring Response Of Therapy In Prostate Cancer Patients	<b>Norhanan Abdullah</b> Mat Nawi N
EP-46 A-0077	Application Of SUVmean AND SUVmax In SPECT/CT Of The Normal Spine In Bone Scans Of Breast Cancer Patients	Ilyana Ab Aziz Mat Nawi N
EP-47 A-0078	A Rare Case Of NUTM1-Rearranged Peritoneal Neoplasm	Chua Ker Hooi Razali NH, Bao MB, Chen MF
EP-48 A-0079	Multimodality Treatment Approach In A Patient With Metastatic Colon Adenocarcinoma	Flora Chong Li Tze Shabudin S
EP-49 A-0080	Dabrafenib And Trametinib In BRAF V600E Mutant Metastatic NSCLC	Low Kai Lee Tho LM
EP-50 A-0081	Incentives For Children Receiving Radiotherapy: Sharing Of Experience From HWKKS	Bryan Lee Yen Pei Chong FLT
EP-51 A-0084	Neoadjuvant Pertuzumab And Trastuzumab In The Treatment Of HER2 Positive Breast Cancer In Public Cancer Center: Challenges And Experiences	Fukaihah Zakiah Zainal Chan MJ, Kwan AKN
EP-52 A-0086	Rebung Train-The-Trainer Community Nurses Competency Program In Cancer Screening And Navigation For Early Diagnosis Of Cancer	Chui Ping Lei Mohd Taibb NA, Musthaffac S, Ellsworth-Beaumontd C
EP-53 A-0088	A Case Of Prostate Germ Cell Tumour: A Case Report	Ooi Cea Yin Subramaniam S
EP-54 A-0089	Centre Experiences On The Abdominal Compression Technique In SBRT Liver	Goh Jun Yan Mak KZ



Poster ID	Title	Authors
EP-55 A-0093	Final Overall Survival In Phase 3 Spotlight: Zolbetuximab + mFOLFOX6 In CLDN18.2+ HER2- Advanced Gastric/Gastroesophageal Junction Adenocarcinoma	J Shitara K, Van Cutsem E, Lordick F, Enzinger P, Ilson D, A. Shah M, Xu RH, Lonardi S, Yamaguchi K, Hung YP, Kukielka-Budny B, Bhattacharya P, Matsangou M, Li R, Moran D, Ranganath R, Pophale R, A. Ajani J
EP-56 A-0094	Ghost Cell Odontogenic Carcinoma Arising From Recurrent Dentinogenic Ghost Cell Tumor	Sabrini Abbas Abu Bakar N
EP-57 A-0095	Lung Cancer In Sarawak, Malaysia	Cheo Seng Wee Chong JKM, Pui ESH, Chan YL, Lim SY, Nabilah NQ, Ang CS, Low QJ, Voon PJ
EP-58 A-0097	Knowledge, Attitude And Practice Of Food Safety Among Cancer Patients Receiving Chemotherapy At A Teaching Hospital	Nor Aziyan Yahaya Hoh WQ
EP-59 A-0098	Barriers And Challenges Of Multidisciplinary Team Meetings Scoping Review – Updates On Translation Of Research Findings	Nicholas Law Lee Wei Wei HL, Tan SSN, Foo CJ, Lee D, Voon PJ
EP-60 A-0099	Cost-Effective Sampling Kit For Microbiome Research In Low Resource Settings	Audrey Lee Weng Yan Yeo LF, Wan Ishak WZ, Fong CH, Rama Rao S, Abdul Aziz NA, Pan JW, Lim JMC, Cheong SC
EP-61 A-0100	The Dilemma of a Small Round Cell Tumour	Nur Nadya Mohamad Nasip Abd Ghafar NK, Omar N
EP-62 A-0101	Genetic Testing And Decision-Making For Breast Cancer Patient During Pregnancy - A Case Study	Claudia Richard Beginda Padmanabhan H, Hassan NT, Thong MK, Yoon SY
EP-63 A-0104	'From Teratoma To Thyroid Carcinoma'. A Case Of Primary Malignant Struma OvarII	Izzati Zainee Onny MAA



Poster ID	Title	Authors
EP-64 A-0105	Dilemma In Managing Serous Borderline Ovarian Tumour With Distant Lymph Node Involvement	<b>Noradila Ishak</b> Ab Jalil H
EP-65 A-0108	Clinical Utility and Advantages of Liquid Biopsy: Case Studies Unveiling Revolutionary Diagnostic Insights	Amanda Goon Suet Min Tan JW, Goh SY, Teh AHT, Lim sw
EP-66 A-0115	Unlocking Hope: Next Generation Sequencing (NGS) A Game Changer In Rare Subtype Thymic Cell Carcinoma	Meerah Ghandhi Muniandy Soo HHF
EP-67 A-0118	Pembrolizumab Treatment In Malignant Melanoma With Pre-Existing Vitiligo: A Case Report	Ili Nurathirah Minggu Mohamad Zuki MS, Abd Ghafar NK
EP-68 A-0119	Clinical Characteristics Of Non-Small Cell Lung Cancer In Sarawak, Malaysia	Elsie Pui Sie Hui Chong JKM, Chan YL, Lim SY, Nabilah NQ, Cheo SW
EP-69 A-0123	Primary Neuroendocrine Lung Carcinoma Manifesting As Uncommon Oral Cavity Lesion - A Harbinger Of Grave Prognosis?: A Case Report	Huang Ling Poh Eng JY
EP-70 A-0126	Chemotherapy-Induced Pneumatosis Intestinalis In Gastroesophageal Cancer	Norhidayu Salimin Wong JH
EP-71 A-0127	Clinical Characteristics And Treatment Of Small Cell Lung Cancer In Sarawak	Nur Qistina Nabihah Ahmad Zaki Chong JKM, Pui ESH, Chan YL, Lim SY, Cheo SW
EP-72 A-0128	Clinical Characteristics And Treatment Of ALK Positive Lung Cancer In Sarawak, Malaysia	Jenny Chong Kha Mieng Pui ESH, Chan YL, Cheo SW
EP-73 A-0133	The Silent Alarm: From Back Pain To Leukaemia	Nurul Syamelia Afza Samsuri Zainuddin NH, Nor A'zam NZ



Poster ID	Title	Authors
EP-74 A-0137	Efficacy of Perioperative FLOT in Gastric Carcinoma and Gastro- Oesophageal Junction Carcinoma in achieving PCR: Retrospective Analysis in a Single Institution Experience	Ting Xue Ru Sum YY, Lee CL
EP-75 A-0138	Using Paraffin Wax Based In Radiotherapy Treatment Using Electron For Patient With Basal Cell Carcinoma At Right Tips Of Nose: A Case Study	Aznita Adan Abu Bakar SH, Rusli I
EP-76 A-0139	Primary Adult Ewing's Sarcoma Of Kidney: A Rare Entity	Suganeswaran Marimuthu Kwan AKhN, Rajaretnam L, Chan MJ
EP-77 A-0143	Case Report : Ketamine Use In Refractory Neuropathic Pain Of Malignant Peripheral Nerve Sheath Tumour	Yoke Yeng Leong Choi LY
EP-78 A-0144	Non-Thyroglobulin Secreting Columnar Cell Papillary Thyroid Carcinoma	Aimi Nadiah Zainudin Abdul Hamid K, Ghazali MW, Tengah MI
EP-79 A-0145	DIBH For Liver Stereotactic Body Radiation Therapy (SBRT)	Nur Idalia Abdul Majid Shariff NA
EP-80 A-0146	A Case Report of Primary Pulmonary Myxoid Sarcoma	Vannessa Wee Zhi Ling Lee FW, Sum YY
EP-81 A-0149	Gender Differences In Health-Related Quality Of Life Among Cancer Patients	Shridevi Subramaniam Omar ED, Yip CH, Bhoo-Pathy N
EP-82 A-0151	Budd-Chiari Syndrome and Hepatocellular Carcinoma: A Clinical Quandary	Hema Darshinee Johnson Ratnavelu K
EP-83 A-0154	Rare Case of Lung Adenocarcinoma Metastasizing to the Colon	Sasitaran Putraperaman Theoann LD, Karthikeashvaren S
EP-84 A-0157	A Rare Case Report Of Urethral Squamous Cell Carcinoma With Brain Metastasis	Yeoh Yun Xuan Fong CH, Sum YY



Poster ID	Title	Authors
EP-85 A-0158	Empowering Future Radiation Therapists: Development of a Psychosocial and Supportive Cancer Care [PSOSC] Module for Malaysian Students	Nor Aniza Azmi Chan CMH, Ab Muin NF, Syaqirah M, Shamsuddin AS, Shukri A, Nizam AH
EP-86 A-0163	Association of Delta Radiomics of Parotid Glands from Cone Beam Computed Tomography to Late Xerostomia Following Head and Neck Radiotherapy	Mahayu Ismail Mohamed Hanifa MA, Mohd Mahidin EI, Abdul Manan H, Yahya N
EP-87 A-0165	HDR Interstitial Brachytherapy And Chemoradiation In Treating Buccal Mucosa Squamous Cell Carcinoma- A Case Report	Miqdad Danial Musa Y
EP-88 A-0168	Examining Marital Challenges: A Qualitative Study on The Impact of Cervical Cancer on Intimate Partnerships in Sarawak	Kristy Karthini John Abdullah Vincent Balang R
EP-89 A-0171	Going The Distance: A Case Study Of Local Ablative Therapy In Oligometastatic EGFR mutated Non Small Cell Lung Cancer (NSCLC)	Sophia Waheida Ahmad Alip A
EP-90 A-0172	Selection Of Patients For LU-177 Therapy	Madhumathi Ananda Dorai
EP-91 A-0173	Occurrence Of Unusual Sites Of Metastases In Differentiated Thyroid Carcinoma Detected On I-124 PET- CT. A Review Of 15 Cases In Institut Kanser Negara.	Muhammad Adib Abdul Onny Mokhtar N, Sulaiman N, Ali NS
EP-92 A-0175	Lynch Syndrome Associated Colorectal Cancer : An Invisible Predator	Hema Darshinee Johnson Ratnavelu K, Dharmaratnam J



### OUTCOME AND TRANSCRIPTOMIC FEATURES OF DUAL EGFR AND MET BLOCKADE IN NSCLC

David Dai-Wee Lee<sup>1</sup>, Win Pin Ng<sup>2</sup>, Su Fen Ang<sup>2</sup>, Dawn Pingxi Lau<sup>2</sup>, Lan Ying Wan<sup>2</sup>, Gillianne Geet Yi Lai<sup>2</sup>, Matilda Ya Wen Boey<sup>2</sup>, Tony Kiat Hon Lim<sup>2</sup>, Daniel Shao Weng Tan<sup>2</sup>.

<sup>1</sup>Department of Clinical Oncology, Faculty of Medicine, University of Malaya, Malaysia.

<sup>2</sup>Department of Medical Oncology, National Cancer Centre Singapore, Singapore.

### INTRODUCTION

MET alterations are known resistance mechanisms to EGFR-TKI. Dual EGFR and MET inhibition show promise in overcoming EGFR resistance. We present the outcome of patients treated with MET inhibitors +/- EGFR-TKI.

### **MATERIALS & METHODS**

We evaluated NSCLC patients with MET alterations (amplification, polysomy, mutation) & EGFR mutation who received crizotinib, capmatinib, or tepotinib +/- EGFR-TKI after progression on EGFR-TKI. MET amplification was detected by FISH or NGS.

### **RESULTS**

From 2012 to 2020, 46 patients were identified. Median age was 60 years old, 58.7% were male and 76% were never smokers. MET alterations detected: MET amplification (50%, 23/46), MET polysomy (47.8%, 22/46), & MET mutation (2.2%, 1/46). Thirteen patients received single-agent MET inhibitors and 33 received dual EGFR/MET inhibitors. The median duration of response (DOR) was 2.8 months (2.0 months for MET blockade and 4.2 months for dual MET and EGFR blockade). Among patients with MET polysomy, the median DOR was 5.8 months versus 1.9 months in those with MET amplifications. In evaluable patients, 54% (20/37) had disease progression, 27% (10/37) had a partial response and 19% (7/37) had stable disease. All patients who had partial response received dual EGFR/MET inhibitors.

Six tissue samples among patients that received both EGFR & MET inhibitors – 3 responders (DOR > 2 months) and 3 non-responders (DOR < 2 months) were evaluated with WES and RNA-seq. All responders are female and all non-responders are male. Responders showed higher tumor content (purity estimate by PUREE). All responders show TRU (terminal respiratory unit) subtype, whereas non-responders show either PI (proximal-inflammatory) or PP (proximal proliferative) subtypes. There were no remarkable differences in mutational signatures, CIBERSORT, and GEP scores.

### **CONCLUSION**

Our data suggests a potential benefit of adding MET inhibitor while continuing EGFR-TKI. Possible predictive factors are MET polysomy, high tumor content, and TRU subtype.



35<sup>th</sup> Annual Scientific Congress of Malaysian Oncological Society *OP-02 A-0110* 

# LEVERAGING PHENOMIC AND GENOMIC DATA FROM A LARGE-SCALE COHORT STUDY IN ADVANCING PERSONALIZED ONCOLOGY – A PRELIMINARY UK BIOBANK ANALYSIS

Shirin Hui Tan<sup>1,2</sup>, Wei Hong Lai<sup>1</sup>, Edmund Ui Hang Sim<sup>2</sup>, Dr Pei Jye Voon<sup>3</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Clinical Research Centre, Sarawak General Hospital, Institute for Clinical Research,

Ministry of Health Malaysia, Kuching, Sarawak, Malaysia

<sup>2</sup>Faculty of Resource Science and Technology, Universiti Malaysia Sarawak, Kota

Samarahan, Sarawak, Malaysia

<sup>3</sup>Department of Radiotherapy, Oncology and Palliative Care, Sarawak General Hospital,

Ministry of Health Malaysia, Kuching, Sarawak, Malaysia

### INTRODUCTION

Gastrointestinal (GI) cancers are a significant global health challenge. Understanding the phenomic and genomic characteristics associated with these cancers is crucial for advancing personalized medicine. The UK Biobank, with its extensive phenomic and whole exome sequencing (WES) data, provides a valuable resource for such research.

### MATERIALS AND METHODS

We utilized data from the UK Biobank, a prospective cohort study of over 500,000 participants aged 40-69 years. Phenomic data, including socio-demographic factors, lifestyle variables, anthropometric measurements, and biological markers, were collected. Our study focused on 441,141 participants, including 7,952 incident GI cancer cases and 433,189 controls. Univariate and multivariate logistic regression analyses identified significant risk factors. Ongoing WES analyses aim to identify genetic variants and assess their downstream effects on protein functions.

### **RESULTS**

Preliminary analyses showed elevated levels of cystatin C significantly associated with increased GI cancer risk (adjusted OR 2.43; 95% CI 2.23–2.64). Racial differences in cancer prevalence were observed, with Whites having a higher risk compared to Asians. Initial WES data indicated several genetic variants with potential impacts on protein function and cancer pathogenesis.

### **DISCUSSION**

Phenomic and genomic data from the UK Biobank enable the identification of critical biomarkers and risk factors for GI cancers. The significant association of cystatin C and racial differences in cancer risk highlights the importance of diverse population studies. Integrating phenomic data is essential for decoding the effects of genomic variations, enhancing disease mechanism understanding. Ongoing WES analyses bridge research and clinical practice by identifying genetic variants for personalized treatment strategies, benefiting patients through tailored approaches.

### **CONCLUSION**

This study underscores the value of large-scale cohort studies in phenomic and genomic data analysis for oncology. The UK Biobank dataset helps identify key risk factors and biomarkers, advancing GI cancer understanding and supporting personalized medicine approaches. These insights are crucial for Malaysia as it advances towards precision medicine, ensuring effective, targeted treatments for its diverse population.



# CABOZANTINIB PLUS NIVOLUMAB (C+N) VS SUNITINIB (S) FOR 1ST LINE ADVANCED RENAL CELL CARCINOMA (ARCC): 55.6 MONTH FOLLOW-UP OF THE CHECKMATE 9ER TRIAL

Maria Teresa Bourlon, <sup>1</sup> Bernard Escudier, <sup>2</sup> Mauricio Burotto, <sup>3</sup> Thomas Powles, <sup>4</sup> Andrea B. Apolo, <sup>5</sup> Amishi Yogesh Shah, <sup>6</sup> Camillo Porta, <sup>7</sup> Cristina Suárez, <sup>8</sup> Carlos H. Barrios, <sup>9</sup> Martin Richardet, <sup>10</sup> Howard Gurney, <sup>11</sup> Elizabeth R. Kessler, <sup>12</sup> Yoshihiko Tomita, <sup>13</sup> Jens Bedke, MD, <sup>14</sup> Fong Wang, <sup>15</sup> Peter Wang, <sup>16</sup> Julie Panzica, <sup>16</sup> Viktor Fedorov, <sup>16</sup> Robert J. Motzer, <sup>17</sup> Toni K. Choueiri <sup>18</sup>

Presenting author – Ankush Kalra

1 Urologic Oncology Clinic, Instituto Nacional de Ciencias Médicas y Nutrición Salvador Zubirán, Mexico City, Mexico; 2Gustave Roussy, Villejuif, France; 3Bradford Hill Clinical Research Center, Santiago, Chile; 4Barts Cancer Institute, Cancer Research UK Experimental Cancer Medicine Centre, Queen Mary University of London, Royal Free National Health Service Trust, London, UK; 5Center for Cancer Research, National Cancer Institute, National Institutes of Health, Bethesda, MD; 6MD Anderson Cancer Center, Houston, TX; 7University of Pavia, Pavia, Italy; 8Vall d'Hebron Institute of Oncology (VHIO), Hospital Universitari Vall d'Hebron, Vall d'Hebron Barcelona Hospital Campus, Barcelona, Spain; 9Centro de Pesquisa em Oncologia, Hospital São Lucas, PUCRS, Latin American Cooperative Oncology Group, Porto Alegre, Brazil; 10Fundación Richardet Longo, Instituto Oncológico de Córdoba, Córdoba, Argentina; 11Westmead Hospital and Macquarie University, Westmead and Sydney, NSW, Australia; 12University of Colorado School of Medicine, Aurora, CO; 13Niigata University Graduate School of Medical and Dental Sciences, Niigata, Japan; 14Eberhard Karls University Tübingen, Tübingen, Germany; 15Exelixis, Inc., Alameda, CA; 16Bristol Myers Squibb, Princeton, NJ; 17Memorial Sloan Kettering Cancer Center, New York, NY; 18Lank Center for Genitourinary Oncology, Dana-Farber Cancer Institute, Brigham and Women's Hospital, and Harvard Medical School, Boston, MA

### **BACKGROUND**

C+N demonstrated superior progression-free survival (PFS), overall survival (OS), and objective response rate (ORR) vs S in patients (pts) with previously untreated aRCC in the primary analysis of the phase 3 CheckMate 9ER trial (18.1 mo median follow-up). C+N maintained efficacy benefits vs S with 44.0 mo median follow-up. Here, we report updated efficacy in intent-to-treat (ITT), and safety with extended follow-up.

### **METHODS**

Pts with aRCC were randomized to N 240 mg every 2 weeks + C 40 mg QD vs S 50 mg QD (4 weeks of 6-week cycles) until disease progression or unacceptable toxicity, with up to 2 y of N. The primary endpoint was PFS per RECIST v1.1 by blinded independent central review (BICR). Secondary endpoints included OS, ORR per RECIST v1.1 by BICR, and safety.

### **RESULTS**

323 pts were randomized to C+N and 328 to S (ITT). With 55.6 mo median (48.1 mo min.) follow-up for OS, median PFS was 16.4 vs 8.4 mo (hazard ratio [HR] 0.58, 95% CI 0.49- 0.70) and median OS was 46.5 vs 36.0 mo (HR 0.77, 95% CI 0.63-0.95) with C+N vs S. ORR (95% CI) was 55.7% (50.1-61.2) vs 27.7% (23.0-32.9); 13.6% vs 4.6% of pts achieved complete



response (CR); 6.5% vs 13.7% had progressive disease (PD), respectively. Anygrade TRAEs led to discontinuation of N or C in 28.1% of pts (N only, 10.0%; C only, 10.3%; C+N simultaneously, 6.6%; C+N sequentially, 1.3%) and of S in 10.9% of pts.

### **CONCLUSIONS**

With 55.6 mo median follow-up, C+N continues to maintain meaningful longterm efficacy benefits over S. No new safety concerns were identified. These results continue to support C+N as a standard of care for previously untreated aRCC.

Research Sponsor: Bristol Myers Squibb. © 2024 ASCO, Inc. Reused with permission



### IMPROVED BRCA PREDICTION FOR ASIAN BREAST CANCER PATIENTS

Dr Boon Hong Ang, PhD<sup>1</sup>, Zhi Lei Wong, BSc<sup>1,2</sup>, Dr Mei Chee Tai, PhD<sup>1</sup>, Dr Pei Sze Ng, PhD<sup>1</sup>, Sook Yee Yoon, MA<sup>1</sup>, Siti Norhidayu Hasan, Dip<sup>1</sup>, Dr Joanna M. C. Lim, PhD<sup>1</sup>, Nur Tiara Hassan, MGenCouns<sup>1</sup>, Heamanthaa Padmanabhan, BSc<sup>1</sup>, Vivian Yi-Mun Lee, BA<sup>1</sup>, Prof Nur Aishah Mohd Taib, MS, MBBS<sup>3,4</sup>, Prof Cheng Har Yip, MBBS<sup>5</sup>, Assoc Prof Mikael Hartman, MD, PhD<sup>6</sup>, Dr Swee Ho Lim, MBBS, MMed<sup>7</sup>, Assoc Prof Ern Yu Tan, MBBS, MMed, DPhil<sup>8,9,10</sup>, Assoc Prof Benita K. T. Tan, MBBS, MMed, PhD<sup>11,12,13</sup>, Dr Su-Ming Tan, MBBS, MMed<sup>14</sup>, Assoc Prof Veronique K. M. Tan, MBBS, MMed, MSc<sup>11,12</sup>, Dr Peh Joo Ho, PhD<sup>15</sup>, Alexis J. Khng, BSc<sup>15</sup>, Dr Jingmei Li, PhD<sup>15</sup>, Prof Sandy Hwei-San Loh, PhD<sup>2</sup>, Prof Soo Hwang Teo, PhD FASc OBE DSIS<sup>3</sup>, Assoc Prof Weang Kee Ho, PhD<sup>1,16</sup> <sup>1</sup>Cancer Research Malaysia, MY; <sup>2</sup>Faculty of Science and Engineering, School of Biosciences, University of Nottingham Malaysia, MY; <sup>3</sup>Faculty of Medicine, University Malaya Cancer Research Institute, University of Malaya, MY; <sup>4</sup>Department of Surgery, Faculty of Medicine, University of Malaya, MY; <sup>5</sup>Subang Jaya Medical Centre, MY; <sup>6</sup>Department of Surgery, National University Hospital and NUHS, SG; <sup>7</sup>Breast Department, KK Women's and Children's Hospital, SG; 8Department of General Surgery, Tan Tock Seng Hospital, SG; <sup>9</sup>Lee Kong Chian School of Medicine, Nanyang Technological University, SG; <sup>10</sup>Institute of Molecular and Cell Biology, SG; <sup>11</sup>Division of Surgery and Surgical Oncology, National Cancer Centre Singapore, SG; 12 Department of Breast Surgery, Singapore General Hospital, SG; <sup>13</sup>Department of General Surgery, Sengkang General Hospital, SG; <sup>14</sup>Division of Breast Surgery, Department of General Surgery, Changi General Hospital, SG; <sup>15</sup>Laboratory of Women's Health and Genetics, Genome Institute of Singapore, SG; <sup>16</sup>Faculty of Science and Engineering, School of Mathematical Sciences, University of Nottingham Malaysia, MY

### INTRODUCTION

Accurate estimates of the individual likelihood of carrying a faulty gene, such as those provided by our Asian Genetic Risk Calculator (ARiCa), could empower women to make informed decisions about genetic testing. However, like other *BRCA*-likelihood prediction models that rely on factors associated with *BRCA* status, ARiCa is thus far less accurate in women without these predictive factors, such as those with oestrogen receptor-positive (ER+) breast cancers, or when family history of cancer is sparse.

### **MATERIALS & METHODS**

Using data from 8,162 Asian women with breast cancer (122 BRCA1 and 201 BRCA2 carriers), we aimed to enhance the predictive accuracy of ARiCa for patients with ER+ disease or a limited family history. We evaluated the association of exogenous hormone use, reproductive history, and detailed family cancer history data with BRCA status and assessed whether inclusion of these factors improved the predictive accuracy, as measured by discrimination, calibration, and sensitivity.



### **RESULTS**

We found that oral contraceptive use, age at first birth, and specific features of family history of cancers were associated with *BRCA* status. Incorporating these factors into ARiCa resulted in a well-calibrated model (Hosmer Lemeshow, p-value:0.680) with good discrimination between *BRCA* and non-*BRCA* carriers (Area Under Curve:0.81, 95% Confidence Interval:0.77-0.86). Overall sensitivity for *BRCA* detection increased from 71% to 75%, notably improving for *BRCA2* carriers (63% to 67%), ER+ cases (58% to 70%), and individuals with a limited family history (77% to 96%).

### **DISCUSSION**

We demonstrated that integrating exogenous hormone use, age at first birth, and detailed family cancer history into a *BRCA*-likelihood prediction model improves accuracy to detect *BRCA* carriers among breast cancer patients with ER+ breast cancer or a limited family history.

### **CONCLUSION**

Customising model for specific Asian subpopulations improves *BRCA* prediction. Ongoing studies are underway to further enhance sensitivity through personalised thresholds or alternative modelling approaches.

### REFERENCE

1. Ang BH, et al., Journal of Clinical Oncology. 2022 May 10;40(14):1542-51.



35<sup>th</sup> Annual Scientific Congress of Malaysian Oncological Society *OP-05 A-0147* 

# PERSONALIZED MUTATION TRACKING IN CIRCULATING-TUMOR DNA PREDICTS RECURRENCE IN PATIENTS WITH HIGH-RISK EARLY BREAST CANCER

Van-Anh Nguyen Hoang<sup>1</sup>, Msc; Sao Trung Nguyen<sup>2</sup>, Md, Phd; Vu Nguyen Trieu<sup>3</sup>, Md; Duy Sinh Nguyen<sup>1</sup>, Md, Phd; Lan N Tu<sup>1</sup>, Phd

<sup>1</sup>Medical Genetics Institute, Ho Chi Minh city, Vietnam

<sup>2</sup>University of Medicine and Pharmacy, Ho Chi Minh city, Vietnam

<sup>3</sup>Thu Duc City Hospital, Ho Chi Minh city, Vietnam

### **INTRODUCTION**

Circulating tumor DNA (ctDNA) is a novel prognostic biomarker to predict recurrence in breast cancer (BC). Several sophisticated platforms to analyze ctDNA are available but the clinical implications of ctDNA monitoring at different stages of BC management are not well-defined.

### **MATERIALS & METHODS**

168 patients with early-stage BC were recruited. Serial blood samples were collected presurgery and at scheduled visits post-surgery. ctDNA testing was performed using our tumorinformed K-Track assay, which sequenced tumor tissues for 95 cancer-associated genes followed by bespoke multiplex PCR to track 1-9 mutations in the plasma.

### **RESULTS**

ctDNA was detected before surgery in 14.6%, 40.0%, 83.8%, and 80.0% of HR+ low-risk, HR+ high-risk, HR-HER2+, and HR-HER2- patients, respectively. Among all pre-treatment factors, detection of ctDNA before surgery reduced 24-month disease-free survival (DFS) by 5% in all stages. After a median 26.6-month follow-up, clinical recurrence was confirmed in 11.3% high-risk patients. At landmark time point, ctDNA was detected in 50.0% (5/10) of relapse cases. Landmark ctDNA clearance was associated with superior outcome, and ctDNA persistence after adjuvant therapy occurred in 45.5% (5/11) of stage-III patients. During surveillance, ctDNA detection had sensitivity and specificity to predict recurrence at 90.9% and 98.8%, respectively, and the median lead time of 9.7 months (up to 13.2 months). Patients with detected ctDNA had significantly shorter DFS compared to those with undetectable ctDNA (HR=137.9, p<0.001; 24-month DFS: 20.2% vs 98.8%).

### **DISCUSSION**

Our assay is streamlined but reliable and accurate to detect ctDNA in plasma compared to other platforms [1, 2]. ctDNA-guided escalation for adjuvant therapy in stage-III BC might be worth exploring in the future.

### **CONCLUSION**

ctDNA detection either before surgery, post surgery, or during surveillance could stratify patients who may benefit from therapeutic intervention or escalation.



- 1. Lipsyc-Sharf, M., et al., Circulating Tumor DNA and Late Recurrence in High-Risk Hormone Receptor-Positive, Human Epidermal Growth Factor Receptor 2-Negative Breast Cancer. J Clin Oncol, 2022. **40**(22): p. 2408-2419.
- 2. Coakley, M., et al., Comparison of Circulating Tumor DNA Assays for Molecular Residual Disease Detection in Early-Stage Triple-Negative Breast Cancer. Clin Cancer Res, 2024. **30**(4): p. 895-903.



# ONCOLOGISTS' EVALUATION OF THE FRAMEWORK OF STRATEGIES FOR MANAGING CHEMOTHERAPY-INDUCED NAUSEA AND VOMITING (CINV)

Nurul Suhaida Badarudin<sup>1</sup>, Dr. Noraida Mohamed Shah<sup>2</sup>, Prof. Dato' Dr. Fuad Ismail<sup>3</sup>, Dr. Farida Islahuddin<sup>2</sup>, Dr. Nurul Ain Mohd Tahir<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Hospital Ampang, Selangor, Malaysia

<sup>2</sup>Faculty of Pharmacy, Universiti Kebangsaan Malaysia

<sup>3</sup>Department of Radiotherapy & Oncology, Universiti Kebangsaan Malaysia Medical Centre, Malaysia

#### INTRODUCTION

Addressing the barriers that hinder effective control of chemotherapy-induced nausea and vomiting (CINV) is crucial for improving cancer patient care. The complexity of these challenges requires a systematic exploration. A framework of strategies is designed to address barriers to effective CINV control, offering a structured, coordinated, systematic, and focused approach to guide professionals in their analysis, understanding, and resolution.

#### **MATERIALS & METHODS**

A framework of strategies was formulated from past research with recommended 33 action strategies and grouped into six main strategies: 1) Physician Education and Awareness; 2) Patient Engagement and Education; 3) Inclusion of olanzapine as CINV prophylaxis; 4) Individualized CINV Prophylaxis; 5) Multi-Disciplinary Team Approach; and 6) Real-Time Monitoring and Intervention. The strategies were compiled into draft survey questions, which were reviewed via email by six independent reviewers for content validity. After validation using a 5-point fuzzy scale, the final survey was emailed to oncologists nationwide. Oncologists' consensus on these strategies was established using the Fuzzy Delphi Method (FDM). Oncologists were selected based on stringent criteria: at least a Master's in Oncology or equivalent and a minimum of 5 years of oncology experience.

#### **RESULTS & DISCUSSION**

The analysis revealed a consensus among experts, with 28 out of 33 action strategies accepted for the framework for effective CINV control in Malaysia. Health literacy and cultural sensitivity in patient education emerged as the top two crucial strategies. In addition, a ranking of priority was performed where the prioritization of action strategies indicated that updating pharmacological knowledge, incorporating a systematic history review tool and regimen evaluation, and using standardized electronic CINV assessments based on patient self-reporting were also essential. However, five strategies were not favored, including quality improvement initiatives, continuous monitoring and feedback, and the multidisciplinary and collaborative approach, which did not receive strong support.

# **CONCLUSION**

A revised framework with 28 action strategies was validated based on consensus from Malaysian oncologists. This framework marks a paradigm shift toward a more holistic and effective approach, advancing CINV control and enhancing patient care.



# SWALLOWING ASSESSMENT IN PATIENTS WITH ORAL TONGUE SQUAMOUS CELL CARCINOMA (OTSCC) TREATED WITH UPFRONT BRACHYTHERAPY VERSUS SURGERY

Dr Muhamad Yusri Musa<sup>1</sup>, Kai Ping Ong<sup>2</sup>, , Irfan Mohamad<sup>2</sup>, A. Gokulakumar<sup>3</sup>, Jasmin Jalil3, M Zahri<sup>3</sup>, M Fakhrurozi<sup>4</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Clinical Medicine, USM Bertam Medical Centre, Penang <sup>2</sup>Department of Otorhinolaryngology-Head & Neck Surgery, USM Kota Bharu, Kelantan

#### INTRODUCTION

This study aimed to analyze the differential impact of surgery and brachytherapy on swallowing outcomes among OTSCC patients. Our goal is to provide medical professionals with a nuanced understanding of the functional implications of these two primary treatment options.

# **MATERIALS & METHODS**

We conducted a cross-sectional study with 32 participants between June 2022 and October 2023. Twelve of these patients were treated with brachytherapy followed by Intensity Modulated Radiation Therapy (IMRT) technique for definitive management, and the remaining 20 underwent surgical procedures. Each participant had histopathological confirmation of OTSCC, imaging-confirmed complete response, and remained tumor-free for at least six months after post-treatment. The average duration for post-treatment follow-ups was 11.7 and 30 months, respectively. Detailed records were maintained regarding the different stages of the disease and the specific treatments each group received. Swallowing outcomes were assessed using three primary metrics: the swallowing capacity scale, the EAT-10 score, and the Penetration-Aspiration Scale (using Flexible Endoscopic Evaluation of Swallowing). The Mann-Whitney Test was employed for statistical analyses.

# RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

The swallowing capacity scale showed that patients in the brachytherapy group had a superior swallowing capacity, with a median score of 7, compared to the surgical group's median score of 4.5. This difference was statistically significant with a p-value of <0.001. In the EAT-10 score assessment, the brachytherapy group reported a better median score of 7, compared to the surgical group's median of 19.5, with a p-value of 0.035, indicating statistical significance. Similarly, for the Penetration Aspiration Scale using both liquid and semi-solid bolus, the brachytherapy group consistently outperformed with a median score of 1, compared to the surgical group's median score of 2. This result had a p-value of 0.022, confirming statistical significance.

### **CONCLUSION**

Our study underscores the advantages of brachytherapy over surgical treatments regarding swallowing function preservation in OTSCC patients. These findings emphasize the importance of considering functional outcomes and treatment options during the decision-making process for OTSCC.



# AVELUMAB FIRST-LINE MAINTENANCE FOR ADVANCED UROTHELIAL CARCINOMA: REAL-WORLD RESULTS FROM THE EARLY ACCESS PROGRAM IN MALAYSIA

Fuad Ismail<sup>1</sup>, MD; Mohamed Ibrahim Hj. Abdul Wahid<sup>2</sup>, MBBCH; Muthukkumaran Thiagarajan<sup>3</sup>, MD; Tan Ai Lian<sup>4</sup>, MD; Nellie Cheah Lay Chin<sup>5</sup>, MBBS; Lam Kai Seng<sup>6</sup>, MBBS; Doris Chow Sze Ying<sup>7</sup>, MD; Ang Soo Fan<sup>8</sup>, MBBS; Michelle Ng<sup>9</sup>; Hannah Loke<sup>10</sup>; John Low Seng Hooi<sup>11</sup>, MBBS

<sup>1</sup>Gleneagles Hospital Kuala Lumpur, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia; <sup>2</sup>Beacon Hospital, Selangor, Malaysia; <sup>3</sup>Hospital Kuala Lumpur, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia; <sup>4</sup>Hospital Pulau Pinang, George Town, Malaysia; <sup>5</sup>Loh Guan Lye Specialist Hospital, George Town, Malaysia; <sup>6</sup>Pantai Hospital Kuala Lumpur, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia; <sup>7</sup>Pantai Hospital Penang, Bayan Lepas, Malaysia; <sup>8</sup>Penang Adventist Hospital, George Town, Malaysia; <sup>9</sup>Merck Sdn Bhd, Petaling Jaya, Malaysia, an affiliate of Merck KGaA; <sup>10</sup>Merck Pte. Ltd., Singapore, an affiliate of Merck KGaA; <sup>11</sup>Sunway Medical Centre, Selangor, Malaysia

#### **BACKGROUND**

In the JAVELIN Bladder 100 phase 3 trial, avelumab first-line (1L) maintenance plus best supportive care (BSC) significantly prolonged overall survival and progression-free survival vs BSC alone in patients with locally advanced or metastatic urothelial carcinoma (la/mUC) that had not progressed following 1L platinum-based chemotherapy. In Malaysia, avelumab 1L maintenance treatment was available via an early access program (EAP). The EAP closed in January 2023, and avelumab became available commercially in July 2023. We report data from patients who received treatment in the EAP.

#### **METHODS**

Eligible patients had la/mUC and were progression free following 1L platinum-based chemotherapy. Patients received avelumab 800 mg (flat dose) or 10 mg/kg every 2 weeks (physician's choice) until progression or unacceptable toxicity. Data were collected retrospectively.

#### RESULTS

In total, 13 patients received avelumab 1L maintenance treatment via the EAP at 9 hospitals in Malaysia. Seven patients (53.8%) were female, and ECOG performance status prior to 1L chemotherapy was 0/1 in 11 (84.6%) and 2 in 2 (15.4%). Prior 1L chemotherapy was cisplatin based in 6 (46.2%) and carboplatin based in 7 (53.8%). Best response to 1L chemotherapy was complete response in 1 (7.7%), partial response in 7 (53.8%), and stable disease in 5 (38.5%). Avelumab dose was 800 mg in 11 (84.6%) and 10 mg/kg in 2 (15.4%). Median duration of avelumab treatment was 9 months, with 4 patients (30.8%) still on treatment at last assessment. Reasons for discontinuation were disease progression in 8 (61.5%) and patient withdrawal in 1 (7.7%). Adverse events occurred in 3 patients (23.1%) and were grade 2 in 1 (7.7%) and grade 1 in 2 (15.4%).



# **CONCLUSIONS**

Despite the small sample size, EAP results show the tolerability of avelumab 1L maintenance in real-world patients with la/mUC without progression following 1L platinum-based chemotherapy in Malaysia.

# **FUNDING SOURCE**

This study was sponsored by Merck Sdn Bhd, Petaling Jaya, Malaysia, an affiliate of Merck KGaA (CrossRef Funder ID: 10.13039/100009945). Medical writing support was provided by Sophie Saunders of Nucleus Global and was funded by Merck.

# **Author Disclosures:**

First and Last	COI
Name	
Fuad Bin Ismail	Nothing to disclose
Mohamed Ibrahim	Nothing to disclose
Bin Dato' Hj.	
Abdul Wahid	
Muthukkumaran	Novartis, Roche, Astra Zeneca, Merck, Boehringer Ingelheim, Ipsen,
A/L Thiagarajan	Eisai, Eli Lilly, Pfizer, TaiHo and Astellas
Tan Ai Lian	Nothing to disclose
Nellie Cheah Lay	Nothing to disclose
Chin	
Lam Kai Seng	Nothing to disclose
Doris Chow Sze	Nothing to disclose
Ying	
Ang Soo Fan	Nothing to disclose
	Employee of Merck Sdn. Bhd., Malaysia, an affiliate of Merck
Michelle Ng	KGaA
Hannah Loke	Employee of Merck Pte. Ltd., Singapore, an affiliate of Merck KGaA
John Low Seng	Nothing to disclose
Hooi	



# HRQOL WITH TEPOTINIB IN PATIENTS WITH *MET*EX14 SKIPPING NSCLC WITH BRAIN, LIVER, ADRENAL OR BONE METASTASES IN THE PHASE II VISION TRIAL

Dr Tho Lye Mun<sup>1</sup>, Niels Reinmuth<sup>2</sup>, Julien Mazieres<sup>3</sup>, Sanjay Popat<sup>4</sup>, Luis Paz-Ares<sup>5</sup>, Emma Hook<sup>6</sup>, Anthony Hatswell<sup>6</sup>, Soetkin Vlassak<sup>7</sup>, Andreas Johne<sup>8</sup>, Helene Vioix<sup>9</sup>, Paul Paik<sup>10</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Clinical Oncology, Beacon Hospital, Petaling Jaya, Selangor, Malaysia

<sup>2</sup>Asklepios Clinics Munich-Gauting, Department of Thoracic Oncology, Gauting, Germany

<sup>3</sup>CHU de Toulouse, Université Paul Sabatier, Toulouse, France

<sup>4</sup>The Royal Marsden Hospital, London, United Kingdom

<sup>5</sup>Hospital Universitario 12 de Octubre, Madrid, Spain

<sup>6</sup>Delta Hat, Nottingham, United Kingdom

<sup>7</sup>Merck N.V.-S.A., Overijse, Belgium, an affiliate of Merck KGaA

<sup>8</sup>Merck Healthcare KGaA, Darmstadt, Germany

<sup>9</sup>Global Evidence and Value Development, Merck Healthcare KGaA, Darmstadt, Germany

<sup>10</sup>Thoracic Oncology Service, Memorial Sloan-Kettering Cancer Center, New York, NY, USA;

Weill Cornell Medical College, New York, NY, United States of America

#### INTRODUCTION

Tepotinib, a highly selective MET inhibitor, showed robust and durable activity in patients with *MET*ex14 skipping NSCLC in the VISION trial (NCT02864992). Systemic and intracranial activity was seen in patients with brain metastases. Secondary endpoints in the overall population showed stability in overall HRQoL, dyspnea and chest pain, with clinically meaningful improvement in cough. We analyzed HRQoL in patients with brain, liver, adrenal, or bone metastases.

#### **METHODS**

Eligible patients (including patients with brain metastases if asymptomatic or neurologically stable on a stable steroid dose) received oral tepotinib 500 mg (450 mg active moiety) QD. HRQoL was assessed at baseline and during follow-up using EORTC QLQ-C30 GHS, EQ-5D-5L VAS, and EORTC QLQ-LC13 cough, dyspnea, and chest pain scores. Subgroup analyses evaluated patients with brain, liver, adrenal, or bone metastases at baseline per independent review (data cut-off: November 20, 2022). Mean change from baseline across all visits was evaluated by linear mixed model regression.

#### **RESULTS**

Of 313 enrolled patients, change from baseline in HRQoL was evaluable in 52 patients with brain, 56 with liver, 54 with adrenal, and 86 with bone metastases. At baseline, mean ± SE, EORTC QLQ-C30 GHS was worst in patients with bone metastases (49.90±2.03), followed by patients with adrenal (51.85±2.51), liver (58.33±2.77), or brain metastases (59.94±2.53). A similar pattern was observed for baseline EQ-5D-5L VAS (bone: 60.42±1.94; adrenal: 63.06±2.45; liver: 65.30±2.46; brain: 66.75±2.57). During tepotinib treatment, overall HRQoL remained stable in patients with brain, liver, adrenal, or bone metastases. Symptom scores in



these patients showed trends for improvement in cough, with stability in dyspnea and chest pain.

# **CONCLUSION**

In the VISION trial in *MET*ex14 skipping NSCLC, patients with brain, liver, adrenal, or bone metastases maintained overall HRQoL during tepotinib treatment, with trends for improvement in cough, consistent with results for the overall population.

"©2024 American Society of Clinical Oncology, Inc. Reused with permission. This abstract was accepted and previously presented at the 2024 ASCO Annual Meeting. All rights reserved."



# UPDATED RESULTS OF PHASE 3 GLOW STUDY EVALUATING ZOLBETUXIMAB + CAPOX IN CLDN18.2+ HER2- ADVANCED GASTRIC OR GASTROESOPHAGEAL JUNCTION ADENOCARCINOMA

Dr. Hwoei Fen Soo Hoo, MD<sup>1</sup>, Dr. Florian Lordick, MD, PhD<sup>2</sup>, Dr. Manish A. Shah, MD<sup>3</sup>, Dr. Kohei Shitara, MD<sup>4</sup>, Dr. Jaffer A. Ajani, MD<sup>5</sup>, Prof. Yung-Jue Bang, MD, PhD<sup>6</sup>, Dr. Peter Enzinger, MD<sup>7</sup>, Dr. David Ilson, MD, PhD<sup>8</sup>, Dr. Eric Van Cutsem, MD, PhD<sup>9</sup>, Dr. Javier Gallego Plazas, MD, PhD<sup>10</sup>, Dr. Jing Huang, MD<sup>11</sup>, Dr. Lin Shen, MD, PhD<sup>12</sup>, Dr. Sang Cheul Oh, MD, PhD<sup>13</sup>, Dr. Patrapim Sunpaweravong, MD, PhD<sup>14</sup>, Dr. Haci Mehmet Turk, MD<sup>15</sup>, Dr. Jung Wook Park, PhD<sup>16</sup>, Dr. Diarmuid Moran, PhD<sup>16</sup>, Dr. Pranob Bhattacharya, DrPH<sup>16</sup>, Dr. Ying Cao, PhD<sup>16</sup>, Prof. Rui-Hua Xu, MD, PhD<sup>17</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Oncology and Radiotherapy, Penang Hospital, Penang, Malaysia; <sup>2</sup>Department of Medicine and University Cancer Center Leipzig, University of Leipzig Medical Center, Leipzig, Germany; <sup>3</sup>Weill Cornell Medical College, New York City, NY, USA; <sup>4</sup>Department of Gastrointestinal Oncology, National Cancer Center Hospital East, Kashiwa City, Chiba, Japan; <sup>5</sup>The University of Texas, MD Anderson Cancer Center, Houston, TX, USA; <sup>6</sup>Department of Internal Medicine, Seoul National University College of Medicine, Seoul, Republic of Korea; <sup>7</sup>Center for Esophageal and Gastric Cancer, Dana-Farber Cancer Institute, Boston, MA, USA; 8Memorial Sloan Kettering Cancer Center, New York City, NY, USA; <sup>9</sup>Digestive Oncology, University Hospitals Gasthuisberg, Leuven, and KULeuven, Leuven, Belgium; <sup>10</sup>Department of Medical Oncology, Hospital General Universitario de Elche, Elche, Spain; <sup>11</sup>Department of Medical Oncology, National Cancer Center / National Clinical Research Center for Cancer / Cancer Hospital, Chinese Academy of Medical Sciences & Peking Union Medical College, Beijing, China; <sup>12</sup>Department of Gastrointestinal Oncology, Key Laboratory of Carcinogenesis and Translational Research (Ministry of Education/Beijing), Peking University Cancer Hospital and Institute, Beijing, China; <sup>13</sup>Department of Internal Medicine, Korea University Guro Hospital, Seoul, Republic of Korea; <sup>14</sup>Department of Internal Medicine, Faculty of Medicine, Prince of Songkla University, Songkhla, Thailand; <sup>15</sup>BezmialemVakif University, Faculty of Medicine, Department of Medical Oncology, Turkey; <sup>16</sup>Astellas Pharma Global Development, Inc., Northbrook, IL, USA; <sup>17</sup>Sun Yat-Sen University Cancer Center, State Key Laboratory of Oncology in South China, Collaborative Innovation Center for Cancer Medicine, Guangzhou, China

# **BACKGROUND**

The GLOW study showed significant improvement with first-line (1L) zolbetuximab + CAPOX vs placebo + CAPOX in PFS and OS in patients with CLDN18.2+, HER2-, locally advanced (LA) unresectable or metastatic gastric/gastroesophageal junction (mG/GEJ) adenocarcinoma. We present an updated analysis with 8.7 months additional follow-up.

# **METHODS**

Patients were randomly assigned 1:1 to zolbetuximab IV 800 mg/m<sup>2</sup> (cycle 1, day [D] 1) followed by 600 mg/m<sup>2</sup> (every 3 weeks) + CAPOX (oral capecitabine BID D1–14; oxaliplatin



IV D1) for eight 21-day cycles or placebo + CAPOX; patients without disease progression continued beyond cycle 8 with zolbetuximab or placebo, + capecitabine (investigator's discretion), until disease progression or discontinuation criteria were met. Primary endpoint was PFS per RECIST v1.1 by IRC; OS was a key secondary endpoint.

#### **RESULTS**

At data cutoff (June 29, 2023), 507 patients were assigned to zolbetuximab + CAPOX (n=254) or placebo + CAPOX (n=253). In zolbetuximab vs placebo arms, median follow-up was 17.8 vs 15.1 months for PFS and 26.1 vs 26.2 months for OS, respectively. Median PFS in zolbetuximab vs placebo arms was 8.3 vs 6.8 months (HR 0.68 [95% CI 0.55–0.85], P=0.0004). Median OS in zolbetuximab vs placebo arms was 14.3 vs 12.2 months (HR 0.77 [95% CI 0.62–0.95], P=0.0079); 24-month OS rate was 28.3% vs 18.8%. Most common TEAEs with zolbetuximab + CAPOX were nausea (zolbetuximab arm: 68.9% vs placebo arm: 50.2%), vomiting (66.1% vs 31.3%), and decreased appetite (41.3% vs 34.5%); incidences of serious TEAEs were similar between arms (48.0% vs 50.6%).

#### **CONCLUSION**

Zolbetuximab + CAPOX continued to demonstrate statistically significant improvement in PFS and OS compared with placebo + CAPOX, with no new safety signals, supporting zolbetuximab + CAPOX as a potential new option for 1L treatment of patients with CLDN18.2+, HER2-, LA unresectable or mG/GEJ adenocarcinoma.



35<sup>th</sup> Annual Scientific Congress of Malaysian Oncological Society *PP-03 A-0106* 

# PREVALENCE OF HER2-LOW BREAST CANCER PATIENTS IN SUBANG JAYA MEDICAL CENTRE (SJMC)

Yee Ling Sum<sup>1</sup>, Ning Yi Yap<sup>1</sup>, Nurul Aida Ariffen<sup>1</sup>, Nurul Shuhada Sukri<sup>1</sup>, Noor Aziedayati Sairan<sup>1</sup>, Pathmanathan Rajadurai<sup>1,4</sup>, Yoke Kqueen Cheah<sup>2,3</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Cytogenetics Services, Laboratory, Subang Jaya Medical Centre, Selangor, Malaysia.

<sup>2</sup>Department of Biomedical Sciences, Faculty of Medicine and Health Sciences, University Putra Malaysia, Selangor, Malaysia.

<sup>3</sup>UPM-MAKNA Cancer Research Laboratory, Institute of Bioscience, Universiti Putra Malaysia, Serdang, Selangor, Malaysia. <sup>4</sup>Jeffrey Cheah School of Medicine & Health Sciences, Monash University, Bandar Sunway, Selangor, Malaysia.

#### **INTRODUCTION**

A new subtype of breast cancer (BC) called HER2-low, identified by a HER2 score of 1+ by immunohistochemistry (IHC) or 2+ by IHC with negative HER2 amplification by in situ hybridization (ISH)<sup>1</sup> was recognized recently. Identifying HER2-low patients is crucial as they may be able to benefit from anti-HER2 antibody drug conjugate (ADC) approved for HER2-low unresectable or metastatic breast cancer<sup>1</sup>. The aim of this study is to determine the prevalence of HER2-low among BC patients referred to SJMC laboratory.

#### **MATERIALS & METHODS**

A retrospective observational study was performed using data from SJMC laboratory. BC patients with FISH HER2 and/or IHC performed in the year 2023 were analyzed and categorized into HER2-positive, HER2-negative and HER2-low.

#### RESULTS

A total of 1101 requests for FISH HER2 and/or IHC testing was received for primary, recurrent and metastatic BC. Based on the new definition, 32.6% of these patients were HER2-low. From the samples tested, 158 were triple-negative BC with 32.3% (n=51) of them being reclassified to HER2-low, hormone receptor-negative. FISH performed for IHC scored 2+ (n=365) revealed that 75.3% of initially HER2-negative patients were reclassified to HER2-low.

# **DISCUSSION**

A significant number of patients have been reclassified as HER2-low, potentially making them eligible for ADCs, depending on their clinical status and treatment history. Among the HER2-low patients identified, 32 were diagnosed with metastatic breast cancer, rendering them eligible for ADC treatment.

#### **CONCLUSION**

This study highlighted the importance of performing an initial IHC (to detect 1+) and reflex FISH testing for those scoring 2+ as many of them may be HER2-low and be able to benefit from ADCs.

#### REFERENCE

Modi, S., Jacot, W., Yamashita, T., Sohn, J., Vidal, M., Tokunaga, E., Tsurutani, J., Ueno, N. T., Prat, A., Chae, Y. S., Lee, K. S., Niikura, N., Park, Y. H., Xu, B., Wang, X., Gil-Gil, M., Li, W., Pierga, J., Im, S., . . . Cameron, D. A. (2022). Trastuzumab deruxtecan in previously treated HER2-Low advanced breast cancer. *New England Journal of Medicine*, 387(1), 9–20. https://doi.org/10.1056/nejmoa2203690



# BIOINFORMATICS ANALYSES TO ELUCIDATE METASTASIS-RELATED GENES IN METASTATIC NASOPHARYNGEAL CARCINOMA (NPC)

Ee Mun Loo<sup>1,2</sup>, Boon Shing Tan<sup>2</sup>, Wai Mun Leong<sup>2</sup>, Chee Onn Leong<sup>2,3,4</sup>, Chun Wai Mai<sup>1</sup>

#### **BACKGROUND**

Nasopharyngeal carcinoma (NPC) is a prevalent malignant tumour in Southeast Asia. The survival rate for NPC remains low due to the reduced efficacy of treatments as primary tumours progress to metastatic disease. Understanding the molecular mechanisms underlying NPC metastasis is crucial for improving diagnostic and therapeutic strategies.

# **AIMS**

This study aimed to identify significant genes that may serve as potential biomarkers for the progression of primary NPC tumours to metastatic disease using various bioinformatics analyses.

### **METHODS**

RNA sequencing data from paired primary and metastatic NPC tumours (HRA000035) were obtained from the Genome Sequence Archive (GSA). Differential expression gene (DEG) analysis was performed using the DESeq2 package in R. The identified DEGs were further analysed through Gene Ontology (GO) enrichment, Kyoto Encyclopedia of Genes and Genomes (KEGG) pathway analysis, and Gene Set Enrichment Analysis (GSEA). In addition, protein-protein interaction (PPI) networks were constructed using the STRING database and Ctyoscape.

#### **RESULTS**

DEG analysis identified 146 upregulated and 518 downregulated significant genes. Several enriched pathways were related to cilium movement, complement and coagulation cascades, PPAR signalling pathway, lipid metabolism, serine-type peptidase activity, and innate immune system. Twenty hub genes were identified from the PPI networks analysis.

### **CONCLUSION**

We identified the significant genes and pathways related to cancer metastasis from the paired primary and metastasis samples. However, further experiments are required to validate these findings and provide insights into the underlying mechanism of NPC metastasis. These findings can guide clinical research and the development of pharmaceutical targets for NPC treatment.



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Faculty of Pharmaceutical Sciences, UCSI, Cheras 56000 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> Advanced Genomics Laboratory, AGTC Genomics, Bukit Jalil 57000, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> Center for Cancer and Stem Cell Research, Institute for Research, Development and Innovation (IRDI), International Medical University, Bukit Jalil 57000, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> Bioinformatics and Data Center, AGTC Genomics, Bukit Jalil 57000, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.

35<sup>th</sup> Annual Scientific Congress of Malaysian Oncological Society *PP-05 A-0120* 

#### PATIENT SCALP COOLING EXPERIENCES

Tan King Mee<sup>1</sup>, Jasmine Lau<sup>1</sup>, Dr Kiley Loh<sup>2</sup>
<sup>1</sup>Can-Care Health Systems, Selangor, Malaysia
<sup>2</sup>Penang Adventist Hospital, Penang, Malaysia

#### INTRODUCTION

Chemotherapy-induced alopecia (CIA) is a distressing side effect for many cancer patients. Scalp cooling is a technique used to prevent hair loss during chemotherapy by reducing the temperature of the scalp, thereby minimizing the effect of chemotherapeutic agents on hair follicles. This case study examines the effectiveness of scalp cooling in patients undergoing weekly chemotherapy with Paclitaxel (Pacli) and Carboplatin (Carbo).

#### **REPORT**

8 patients undergoing weekly chemotherapy with Pacli and Carbo completed 18 sessions of scalp cooling. The assessment included hair retention outcomes, patient feedback, and photographic documentation (Patient 1 to 4) of scalp condition at various stages of treatment and post-treatment recovery.

Patient 1 & 2: Both patients reported not being successful in retaining hair, necessitating the use of headgear to cover hair loss, particularly at the crown. However, both experienced satisfactory and faster hair regrowth 12 to 15 weeks post-chemotherapy.

Patient 3: Similar to the first two patients, this patient also did not retain hair effectively during treatment and required headgear. Hair regrowth was observed to be satisfactory post-treatment with full hair growth 10 weeks post-chemotherapy.

Patient 4, 5, 6, 7 & 8: These patients reported successful hair retention throughout the treatment process, with minimal hair loss and no bold spot. Patient feedback indicated high satisfaction with the scalp cooling results.

#### **CONCLUSION**

Scalp cooling shows varying degrees of success in preventing CIA among patients undergoing chemotherapy with Pacli and Carbo. While some patients did not retain hair during treatment, all reported satisfactory faster hair regrowth post-chemotherapy. The differing outcomes highlight the need for personalized approaches and further research to enhance the effectiveness of scalp cooling techniques.

- 1. coldcap.com/committing-to-scalp-cooling
- 2. coldcap.com/scalp-cooling-outcomescalculator
- 3. https://www.breastcancer.org/treatment-side-effects/hair-loss/cold-caps-scalp-cooling



35<sup>th</sup> Annual Scientific Congress of Malaysian Oncological Society *PP-06 A-0122* 

# CYTOGENETICS ABNORMALITIES OBSERVED AMONG MULTIPLE MYELOMA PATIENTS IN MALAYSIA

Muhammad Nur Arif Bin Nor Azan, Michelle Marie Yap Hwei Ping, Shaznira Lee Ann Binti Rosmanizam, Chan Pei Zhi, Sayyidi Hamzi Abdul Raub, Prof. Dato Dr Sharifah Noor Akmal, Mohd Hareeff Bin Muhammed

Cytogenetics and Molecular Diagnostics Laboratory (CMDL), Reference Specialised Laboratory, Premier Integrated Labs Sdn. Bhd., Pantai Hospital Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

#### INTRODUCTION

Multiple Myeloma (MM) is a heterogeneous cancer of plasma cells in the bone marrow. Recent studies suggest MM initiates primarily via hyperdiploid or translocations of the immunoglobulin heavy chain gene (IGH) with other oncogenes<sup>1</sup> while other genetic mutations are classed as secondary events that occur during disease progression<sup>2</sup>. This study provides statistics on the cytogenetic abnormalities observed among MM patients in Malaysia, thus elucidating the population's susceptibility to specific genetic abnormalities in MM.

# **MATERIALS & METHODS**

Sixty-eight multiple myeloma cases were tested from January to December 2023. Bone marrow samples were taken from each patient and processed. The extracted cells were dropped on positively charged slides, and the standard Fluorescence in situ hybridization (FISH) procedure was performed. XL METASYSTEMS probes were used to investigate different gene loci. The abnormalities observed in each gene loci were tabulated and analyzed.

#### **RESULTS**

35 cases (51.4%) showed positive results for one or more genetic abnormalities, while the other 33 showed negative results for all 11 probes. Polysomy of chromosome 9, deletion 13q and gain/amp of 1q21 were the most prevalent abnormalities, each observed in 16 cases (46%). For rearrangement involving the IGH gene at chromosome 14, t(4;14) was the most common, with 6 cases (17%), while t(11;14) was the second most common, with 4 cases (11%). Secondary abnormalities were also observed, such as gain/amplification of 11q13 in 16 cases (46%).

# **DISCUSSION**

This study showed that polysomy of chromosome 9 and deletion 13q associated with standard-risk disease and gain/amp of 1q21 associated with high-risk disease are the most common genetic abnormalities among MM patients. For IGH translocations, only t(4;14) and t(11;14) were observed among patients.

#### **CONCLUSION**

As MM is a heterogeneous disease that results in different prognoses, the statistics in this study are paramount in understanding the genetic susceptibility in MM disease among Malaysian population.

- 1. Hanamura I. Multiple myeloma with high-risk cytogenetics and its treatment approach. Int J Hematol. 2022 Jun;115(6):762-777. doi: 10.1007/s12185-022-03353-5. Epub 2022 May 9. PMID: 35534749; PMCID: PMC9160142.
- 2. Castaneda O, Baz R. Multiple Myeloma Genomics A Concise Review. Acta Med Acad. 2019 Apr;48(1):57-67. doi: 10.5644/ama2006-124.242. PMID: 31264433.



# REAL-WORLD TREATMENT PATTERNS AND EFFECTIVENESS OF SUBSEQUENT TREATMENTS FOLLOWING FIRST-LINE (1L) BRIGATINIB FOR PATIENTS WITH ALK+ NSCLC

Angelo Delmonte<sup>1</sup>, Myung-Ju Ahn<sup>2</sup>, Sharmistha Ghosh<sup>3</sup>, Maximilian Hochmair<sup>4,5</sup>, Tsung-Ying Yang<sup>6</sup>, James Chih-Hsin Yang<sup>7</sup>, Ji-Youn Han<sup>8</sup>, Karin Holmskov Hansen<sup>9</sup>, Yanyu Wu<sup>10</sup>, Yin Wan<sup>10</sup>, Huamao Mark Lin<sup>10</sup>, Julian Kretz<sup>11</sup>, Bradley Hupf<sup>10</sup>, Eric N. Churchill<sup>13</sup>, Robert J. Fram<sup>10</sup>, Citadel Jungco Cabasag<sup>14</sup>, Vishal Goriya<sup>15</sup>, Yuzhe Zhao<sup>16</sup>, Maria Rosario García Campelo<sup>17</sup>, Ahmet Melih Kurec<sup>12</sup>

- 1. IRCCS Istituto Romagnolo per lo Studio dei Tumori "Dino Amadori" (IRST), Meldola, Forli - Cesena, Italy
- 2. Division of Hematology, Oncology Department of Medicine, Samsung Medical Center Sungkyunkwan University School of Medicine, Seoul, Republic of Korea
  - 3. Guy's and St Thomas' NHS Foundation Trust, London, England, United Kingdom
  - 4. Department of Respiratory and Critical Care Medicine, Klinik Floridsdorf, Vienna, Austria
    - 5. Karl Landsteiner Institute of Lung Research and Pulmonary Oncology, Vienna, Austria
  - 6. Division of Chest Medicine, Department of Internal Medicine, Taichung Veterans General Hospital, Taichung, Taiwan
- 7. National Taiwan University Hospital and National Taiwan University Cancer Center, No 57, Lane 155, Sec 3, Keelung Road, Taipei, Taiwan
  - 8. National Cancer Center, Goyang, Republic of Korea
  - 9. Odense University Hospital, J. B Winsløvsvej 2, indgang 140, 5000 Odense C. Denmark.

10. Takeda Development Center Americas, Inc., Lexington, MA, USA

- 11. Takeda Pharmaceuticals International AG, Glattpark-Opfikon (Zurich), Switzerland
  - 12. Takeda Pharmaceutical International Singapore Emerging Markets, Singapore
    - 13. Takeda Pharmaceuticals U.S.A. Inc., Lexington, MA, USA

14. IQVIA RDS France, Courbevoie, France

15. IQVIA RDS (India) Pvt Ltd, Thane Maharashtra, India

16. IQVIA RDS (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., Shanghai, China

17. Medical Oncology Department, University Hospital A Coruña, and Biomedical Research Institute (INIBIC, A Coruña), A Coruña, Spain

#### INTRODUCTION

Brigatinib, an ALK tyrosine kinase inhibitor (TKI), showed superior clinical efficacy in 1L for *ALK*+ NSCLC compared to crizotinib in the phase III ALTA-1L trial. There is a lack of data on real-world treatment patterns and outcomes post-1L brigatinib.

### **MATERIALS & METHODS**

This non-interventional, multicenter, retrospective chart review study included patients with ALK+ NSCLC previously enrolled in the brigatinib arm of ALTA-1L. Patients who



discontinued 1L brigatinib (index event) were followed from the last dose of brigatinib. Time to treatment discontinuation (TTD), progression-free survival (PFS) for the 2L therapy, time from randomization of ALTA-1L to the date of disease progression on 2L therapy or death (PFS2), and overall survival (OS) were estimated using Kaplan-Meier methods.

#### **RESULTS**

As of Oct 18, 2023, 48 patients (median age=58 years; male=45.8%; White=43.8%; Asian=54.2%) were enrolled with a median follow-up of 12.4 months. 40 (83.3%) had received subsequent systemic anticancer therapies. Of these, 30 (75%) had received 2L ALK TKIs: 16 (53%) had received lorlatinib, 8 (27%) had received alectinib, 6 (20%) had received crizotinib. Overall response rate and disease control rate for 2L ALK TKIs were 33.3% and 70.8%, respectively, and for 2L lorlatinib were 30.8% and 76.9%, respectively. Median PFS and PFS2 (95% CI) was 16.1 (4.4, NR) months and 51.6 (25.9, NR) months with estimated 24-month PFS and PFS2 rates of 47% (26.2, 65.3) and 78.4% (58.1, 89.7) for 2L ALK TKIs, while median PFS and PFS2 was 25.6 (3.8, NR) months and 74.7 (25.9, NR) months with estimated 24-month PFS and PFS2 rates of 53.4% (23.9, 76.0) and 86.7% (56.4, 96.5) for 2L lorlatinib.

# **CONCLUSION**

Most patients started another ALK TKI after discontinuing 1L brigatinib. ALK TKIs offered clinical benefit after 1L brigatinib, suggesting brigatinib is an effective 1L treatment choice followed by other ALK TKIs, including lorlatinib.

- 1. Barlesi F, et al. The Lancet.2009; 4(12): 1450-1454.
- 2. Solomon B, et al. J Thorac Oncol. 2009; 4(12): 1450-1454
- 3. Spagnuolo A, et al. Expert Opin Emerg Drugs.2018; 23(3): 231-241.
- 4. CamidgeDR et al. J ThoracOncol.2021;16(12): 2091-2108.



# SOFTWARE FOR AUTOMATED CALCULATION OF PTV MARGINS FROM CBCT-BASED IGRT PROTOCOLS

Hafiz Mohd Zin, Nur Aqila Mazlan, Auwal Abubakar, Nada Alia M. Zamri and Shazril Imran Shaukat

Advanced Medical and Dental Institute (AMDI), Universiti Sains Malaysia, Bertam, 13200, Kepala Batas, Penang, Malaysia

#### INTRODUCTION

Each radiotherapy center should develop site-specific Planning Target Volume (PTV) margins and Image-Guided Radiotherapy (IGRT) correction protocols to address institution-specific and treatment site specific geometric errors during treatment. This work developed a software for automatically extracting setup errors from Cone Beam Computed Tomography (CBCT)-based Image-Guided Intensity-Modulated Radiotherapy (IG-IMRT) system and then calculating the PTV margins.

#### **MATERIALS & METHODS**

An algorithm was developed using MATLAB to extract setup errors in three translational directions (x, y, and z) from CBCT data during treatment delivery. The software package of the algorithm then calculates population setup error and PTV margin based on the van Herk margin recipe and estimates these values for No Action Level (NAL) and extended No Action Level (eNAL) offline correction protocols.

#### **RESULTS**

The software was tested on various treatment sites including head and neck and breast cases treated with IG-IMRT. The results show that using eNAL, these margins can be reduced further compared to eNAL. The results were consistent with margins calculated using an Excel spreadsheet. The software provides weekly offline setup error correction values, reducing input data error risk observed in the spreadsheet method.

#### DISCUSSION

The software provides an efficient and accurate method for calculating setup error corrections and PTV margins, facilitating the development of institutional-based PTV margins and IGRT protocols. The automation reduces the risk of human error and the time required for manual data entry and calculations.

#### **CONCLUSION**

In conclusion, the software offers an automated method for optimizing and reducing PTV margins using logged setup errors from CBCT-based IGRT. This automation facilitates the development of institutional-based site-specific PTV margins and IGRT protocols, enhancing treatment precision and efficiency.

### REFERENCE

Abubakar A, Zamri NAM, Shaukat SI, Mohd Zin H. Automated algorithm for calculation of setup corrections and planning target volume margins for offline image-guided radiotherapy protocols. J Appl Clin Med Phys. 2021 Jul;22(7):137-146. doi: 10.1002/acm2.13291.



35<sup>th</sup> Annual Scientific Congress of Malaysian Oncological Society *PP-09 A-0140* 

# BEAMING MIRACLE – THE TRIUMPH OF RADIOTHERAPY IN BATTLING CONDYLOMA ACUMINATUM, A CASE REPORT

Dr. Wan Ping Ch'ng, Dr. Noor Nabila Binti Mohamad
Department of Oncology and Radiotherapy, Institute Kanser Negara (NCI), Putrajaya
Malaysia

#### **BACKGROUND**

Condyloma acuminatum (CA), predominantly associated with human papillomavirus (HPV) strains 6 and 11, presents a rare yet clinically significant challenge in oncology. Pathologically characterized by excessive squamous epithelial cell growth, CA often manifests as cauliflower-like lesions in the anogenital region, with infiltration into adjacent tissues. Despite various treatment modalities such as topical agents, cryotherapy, electrocautery and laser therapy, CA frequently exhibits resistance with high rates of recurrence. Here, we present a case of extensive CA in a Retro-viral Disease (RVD)positive patient, offering renewed optimism and therapeutic avenues for patients with refractory CA.

# **CASE REPORT (METHODS AND RESULTS)**

This is a 44-year-old gentleman with underlying RVD who presented with perineal warts since 2020. Despite receiving multiple topical medications and repeated cryotherapy, the lesions worsened and spread extensively, covering the entire genital area from the penis to the intergluteal fold. Biopsy revealed a diagnosis of Condyloma Acuminatum. These lesions are cosmetically disfiguring and brought him significant morbidity which includes limited mobility and frequent ward admissions due to infections and bleeding. Surgical removal deemed impractical due to extensive lesions. Consequently, he was referred to oncology team for consideration of radiotherapy. He then received radiotherapy to the lesions with a dose of 30Gy in 10 fractions over 2 weeks. Radiotherapy was given with 3D Conformal planning technique, 10 MV photon energy, anterior-posterior beam and bolus coverage over the treatment field. He tolerated the radiotherapy course with no toxicities. Six months post-radiotherapy, most of the lesions has subsided leaving a few residual lesions, largest being 4cm. His quality of life improved significantly, transitioning from bedbound to activities of daily living (ADL) independence, and reinstating his ability to engage in social and occupational pursuits.

# **DISCUSSION AND CONCLUSION**

Radiotherapy emerges as a promising salvage therapy for CA, exhibiting remarkable efficacy in this case. The significant improvement observed underscores its potential as a viable alternative when conventional treatments fail. However, additional research is needed to establish optimal radiotherapy techniques, dosages and fractionation protocols, aiming to maximize therapeutic efficacy while minimizing potential adverse effects, as current evidence remains inconclusive. Early multidisciplinary collaboration between oncologists and dermatologists can enhance patient care by facilitating tailored treatment plans for potentially complex cases. Despite its promise, careful patient selection and consideration of alternative treatment approaches remain crucial, given the risk of enhanced radiation-related complications, especially in RVD-positive patients. Moreover, clinicians must exercise caution to avoid overtreatment, considering the risk of secondary malignancies associated with radiotherapy in managing this benign condition.



# AMICABLE RESPONSE IN COMBINING SYSTEMIC THERAPIES AND SELECTIVE INTERNAL RADIATION THERAPY (SIRT) IN INOPERABLE PRIMARY AND SECONDARY LIVER TUMOURS: CASE SERIES

Boey Ching Yeen<sup>1</sup>, Audi Adawiah Binti Sulaiman Shah<sup>2</sup>, Melisa Lim Seer Yee<sup>3</sup>, Farahnaz Aslum Khan<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Nuclear Medicine Department, Hospital Kuala Lumpur <sup>2</sup>Radiotherapy and Oncology Department, Hospital Kuala Lumpur <sup>3</sup>Interventional Radiology Unit, Radiology Department, Hospital Kuala Lumpur

#### INTRODUCTION

Selective Internal Radiation Therapy (SIRT) is a form of localized radiation therapy utilizing radioactive-labelled (typically Yttrium-90, Y<sup>90</sup>) microspheres for the treatment of primary and secondary liver tumours. This treatment is delivered via an intra-arterial injection with resulting retention of the microspheres within the tumoral vasculature. Y<sup>90</sup> releases beta particles which results in tumoral necrosis, with additional immunomodulatory effect; resulting in a sustained response even beyond 6-months post-therapy. Tyrosine kinase inhibitors, TKIs (e.g. Lenvatinib) and selective cyclin-dependant kinase inhibitor (ribociclib) may work synergistically with radiation therapy to promote intrinsic and extrinsic apoptosis.

#### **REPORT**

We report cases of favourable biochemical and radiological response in patients who received a combination of systemic and SIRT therapies. A 63-years old male with hepatocellular carcinoma was referred for SIRT as the lesion was deemed unresectable due to inadequate liver reserve. He received 2.3GBq of Y<sup>90</sup> microspheres with planned dose of 200Gy to the tumour. Lenvatinib was started post-SIRT. Four months later, there was a remarkable reduction in tumour volume from 515cm<sup>3</sup> to 180cm<sup>3</sup>, making him eligible for surgical resection. Another patient with hepatocellular carcinoma, a 66-years old male with a tumour at segment IV and right portal vein thrombosis. He received 0.8GBq of Y<sup>90</sup> microspheres with planned 150Gy to the tumour and was started on Lenvatinib post-SIRT. Three months post-therapy, the tumour volume reduced from 81cm<sup>3</sup> to 19cm<sup>3</sup> with reduction in alpha fetoprotein (AFP) from 1126ng/ml to 58.7ng/ml. A 75-years old female with breast carcinoma and biopsy-proven liver metastases received 1.2GBq of Y<sup>90</sup> microspheres with planned 120Gy to the tumour and was subsequently started on Ribociclib. Pre-treatment FDG PET-CT showed an intense focus of FDG uptake in a segment VIII liver lesion. One-year post-treatment, there was marked reduction in metabolic size and activity of the lesion. None of these patients demonstrated significant adverse events, Common Terminology Criteria for Adverse Events (CTCAE) < 3.

#### **CONCLUSION**

In conclusion, these cases illustrate the potential role of combining systemic therapies with SIRT, which could be explored in future clinical trials.



- 1. Vilgrain V, Pereira H, Assenat E, et al; SARAH Trial Group. Efficacy and safety of selective internal radiotherapy with yttrium-90 resin microspheres compared with sorafenib in locally advanced and inoperable hepatocellular carcinoma (SARAH): an open-label randomised controlled phase 3 trial. Lancet Oncol. 2017;18(12):1624-1636.
- 2. Weng YS, Chiang IT, Tsai JJ, et al. Lenvatinib Synergistically Promotes Radiation Therapy in Hepatocellular Carcinoma by Inhibiting Src/STAT3/NF-κB-Mediated Epithelial-Mesenchymal Transition and Metastasis. Int J Radiat Oncol Biol Phys. 2023;115(3):719-732.



35<sup>th</sup> Annual Scientific Congress of Malaysian Oncological Society *PP-11 A-0160* 

# REAL-WORLD APPLICATION OF A MULTICANCER EARLY DETECTION TEST TO DETECT CANCERS LACKING RECOMMENDED SCREENINGS

Hanh Thi-Hue Nguyen<sup>1</sup>, Thanh Thi Nguyen<sup>1</sup>, Dang Luu Hong Nguyen<sup>1</sup>, Minh Ngoc Phan<sup>1</sup>, Linh Ba Tieu<sup>1</sup>, Sang Hung Tang<sup>1</sup>, Sinh Duy Nguyen<sup>1</sup>, Son Le Tran<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup> Medical Genetics Institute, Ho Chi Minh, Vietnam

#### INTRODUCTION

Early detection of cancer is crucial for improving patient prognosis and survival rates. However, aggressive cancers that lack established standard-of-care (SOC) screenings account for more than 60% of all cancer diagnoses and approximately 71% of cancer deaths, creating significant challenges in timely diagnosis and treatment. Our group has developed a Multi-Cancer Early Detection (MCED) test, known as SPOT-MAS, which is a multimodal assay profiling multiple methylation and fragmentomic signatures in plasma cell-free DNA to complement current single-cancer screening tests.

#### **MATERIALS & METHODS**

To validate the efficacy of the SPOT-MAS test, we conducted a prospective multi-center clinical study, named K-DETEK (ClinicalTrials.gov identifier: NCT05227261), on an intended use population of 9,057 asymptomatic participants.

#### **RESULTS**

Out of 9,024 eligible participants, 43 (0.48%) showed a positive cancer signal. Of those, 25 (58.1%) were diagnosed with cancer through standard imaging and biopsy tests. Among these 25 true positive cases, 7 (28%) were diagnosed with six cancer types lacking SOC screenings, including liver (n=1), myeloma (n=1), cholangiocarcinoma (n=1), jejunal mesenteric lymphoma (n=1), gastric cancer (n=2), and endometrial cancer (n=1). Five of these cases were diagnosed at early stages (stage I and II). Our findings suggest that an MCED test could enhance early detection of cancers lacking SOC screening, providing opportunities for more effective treatment.

#### **DISCUSSION**

Large-scale clinical studies in diverse populations are required to further provide evidence for the potential of the SPOT-MAS test in complementing existing single-cancer screening tests and assess the clinical benefits of this combination strategy.

#### **CONCLUSION**

To our knowledge, our study represents the most comprehensive and largest validation study in Asia supporting the utility of SPOT-MAS as a multi-cancer blood test for early cancer detection, particularly lacking cancer screening program.



# A CASE REPORT OF ESOPHAGEAL ALK-EXPRESSING INFLAMMATORY MYOFIBROBLASTIC TUMOUR (IMT) TREATED WITH CRIZOTINIB IN A PATIENT WITH A HISTORY OF MEDIASTINAL MIXED GERM CELL TUMOUR.

Krishnan Nilasha <sup>1</sup>, Chin Heng Fong <sup>1</sup>

Department of Oncology and Radiotherapy, Hospital Pulau Pinang, Penang, Malaysia

#### **BACKGROUND**

Inflammatory Myofibroblastic Tumour (IMT) is a rare soft tissue tumour of neoplastic origin with possible ALK gene expression, typically occurring in children and young adults with no well-defined risk factors. <sup>1,2</sup> Complete resection remains the treatment of choice for potential cure. <sup>1,2</sup> We present a case of unresectable IMT with background history of mediastinal germ cell tumour (GCT), treated successfully with an ALK inhibitor.

#### **CASE**

A 27-year-old male with histopathologically confirmed and treated mediastinal GCT in 2020, presented with progressive dysphagia and cough in March 2023. In 2020, he presented with raised AFP and BHCG, and a mediastinal mass measuring 10cm. He subsequently completed four cycles of BEP chemotherapy regime to achieve normalization of tumour markers and radiological partial response. He remained well until 2023 when a CT thorax revealed a large enhancing soft tissue mass in the oesophagus measuring 15.5cm, causing significant luminal obstruction and mass effect to the surrounding structures, and no recurrence of mediastinal mass. His AFP and BHCG in 2023 remained normal. Two biopsies of the esophageal mass confirmed ALK-expressing IMT. Patient was given trial of NSAID with Celebrex from April-May 2023 and subsequently started on ALK inhibitor from compassionate access, using Crizotinib 250mg BD from May 2023. He showed marked and immediate clinical improvement with no adverse reactions to treatment, allowing safe palliative radiotherapy to oesophageal mass in July 2023. CECT TAP after 10 months of Crizotinib showed partial response with shrinkage of oesophageal mass to 4.5cm. Patient is currently still on Crizotinib and is planned for reassessment imaging later with aim of definitive surgery if feasible.

# **CONCLUSION**

ALK-expressing IMT is a rare tumour without a standard systemic treatment, and no previously known correlation with GCT. This case illustrates the significant impact of personalized treatment based on molecular profile to improve survival and outcome.

- 1. Khalil S, Ghafoor T, Raja AKF. Inflammatory Myofibroblastic Tumor: A Rare Presentation and an Effective Treatment with Crizotinib. Case Reports in Oncological Medicine. 2020 Jul 9;2020:1–6.
- 2. Gleason BC, Hornick JL. Inflammatory myofibroblastic tumours: where are we now? Journal of Clinical Pathology. 2007 Oct 15;61(4):428–37.



# TOGETHER: POOLED REAL-WORLD DATASETS OF METEX14 SKIPPING NSCLC AND ADJUSTED COMPARISON OF UPFRONT (CHEMO) IMMUNOTHERAPY WITH TEPOTINIB FROM VISION

Dr Tho Lye Mun<sup>1</sup>, Petros Christopoulos<sup>2</sup>, Simon Ekman<sup>3</sup>, Florian Guisier<sup>4</sup>, Cheryl Ho<sup>5</sup>, Miriam Blasi<sup>6</sup>, Hans Brunnstromm<sup>7</sup>, Jelena Cvetkovic<sup>8</sup>, Daniel Kazdal<sup>8</sup>, Jonas Kuon<sup>9</sup>, Felix Haglund de Flon<sup>3</sup>, Albrecht Stenzinger<sup>8</sup>, Selina Wong<sup>5</sup>, Anthony Hatswell<sup>10</sup>, Thomas Mclean<sup>11</sup>, Suzanne Bergman<sup>12</sup>, Katrin Orlowski<sup>13</sup>, Helene Vioix<sup>14</sup>, Michael Thomas<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Clinical Oncology, Beacon Hospital, Petaling Jaya, Selangor, Malaysia

<sup>2</sup>Thoraxklinik and National Center for Tumor diseases, Heidelberg University Hospital;

Translational Lung Research Center Heidelberg (TLRC-H), The German Center for Lung Research (DZL), Heidelberg, Germany

<sup>3</sup>Karolinska University Hospital/Department of Oncology-Pathology, Karolinska Institutet, Solna, Sweden

<sup>4</sup>Univ Rouen Normandie, LITIS Lab QuantIF team EA4108, CHU Rouen, Department of Pneumology and Inserm CIC-CRB 1404, F-76000 Rouen, France

<sup>5</sup>Department of Medical Oncology, BC Cancer, Vancouver, Canada; University of British Columbia, Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada

<sup>6</sup>Department of Thoracic Oncology, Thoraxklinik and National Center for Tumor Diseases at Heidelberg University Hospital, Heidelberg, Germany

<sup>7</sup>Dept. of Pathology, Lund University/Skåne University Hospital, Lund, Sweden <sup>8</sup>Institute of Pathology, University Hospital Heidelberg, Heidelberg, Germany <sup>9</sup>Thoracic Clinic of Heidelberg University Hospital, Heidelberg, Germany 10Delta Hat Limited, Nottingham, UK

<sup>11</sup>Merck Serono Ltd., Feltham, UK, an affiliate of Merck KGaA <sup>12</sup>Merck AB, Solna, Sweden, an affiliate of Merck KGaA

<sup>13</sup>Merck Healthcare Germany GmbH, Weiterstadt, Germany, an affiliate of Merck KGaA <sup>14</sup>Global Evidence and Value Development, Merck Healthcare KGaA, Darmstadt, Germany

### INTRODUCTION

The TOGETHER study was designed for flexible pooling of *MET*ex14 skipping non-small cell lung cancer (NSCLC) patient datasets to characterize real-world (rw) outcomes before approval of MET inhibitors.

#### **METHODS**

Seven datasets were used to analyze rwPFS and rwOS in advanced NSCLC with *MET*ex14 skipping according to Kaplan-Meier. Indirect treatment comparisons (ITC) were performed with propensity score reweighting of patients who received 1L immunotherapy (IO) alone or with chemotherapy (chemo) to match the characteristics of 111 patients with positive tissue biopsies (T+) who received 1L tepotinib in the VISION study (NCT02864992; data cut: Nov 2022).



#### **RESULTS**

As of Jan 2023, TOGETHER included 309 patients (mean age 71.1 years, 48% male, 52% with smoking history), with 615 lines of therapy administered between 2004 and 2022. For 1L IO+chemo (n=26) median rwPFS was 5.7 months before and 6.9 months after weighting, compared to 15.9 months for 1L tepotinib (HR 0.52 [0.29, 0.93]; p=0.03). For 1L IO monotherapy (n=48), median rwPFS was 3.9 months before and 3.4 months after weighting compared to 15.9 months for 1L tepotinib (HR 0.37 [95% CI 0.24–0.58]; p<0.01). Although confounded by subsequent treatments, median OS was also longer for tepotinib compared to IO+chemo (29.7 months vs 22.1 months; HR 0.77; p=0.38) and IO monotherapy (29.7 months vs 18.9 months; HR 0.64; p=0.05). Other rw 1L treatments were chemo (n=128), median rwPFS 4.8 months and crizotinib (n=62) median rwPFS 7.4 months. Median rwPFS was shorter for 2L+ chemo (4.3 months, n=95) or 2L+ IO monotherapy (3.3 months, n=83), and longer for 2L+ crizotinib (8.1 months, n=68).

#### **CONCLUSIONS**

This large retrospective analysis shows poor rw outcomes for *MET*ex14 skipping NSCLC patients under standard treatments prior to the uptake of novel MET inhibitors. Matched ITC suggests longer PFS and OS with 1L tepotinib compared to 1L IO+chemo or IO monotherapy.

"Previously presented at ESMO 2023 Congress, "FPN (Final Publication Number): 1381P", "Petros Christopoulos et al." - Reused with permission"



# OPTIMIZING PROSTATE SBRT WITH RECTAL SPACER AND FIDUCIAL MARKER

Foo, Y.H.<sup>1</sup>, Syarifah N. S. A.<sup>1</sup>, Siti F. A. F.<sup>1</sup>, Tunisha N. D.<sup>1</sup> *Cancer Centre, Pantai Hospital Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia* 

#### INTRODUCTION

Stereotactic Body Radiation Therapy (SBRT) for prostate cancer is becoming more common because it is precise and effective. It is important to reduce radiation exposure to the rectum and to visualize the exact positioning of the prostate. This study investigates the optimization of prostate SBRT through the use of a rectal spacer and fiducial markers.

# **MATERIALS & METHODS**

A group of prostate cancer patients receiving SBRT was chosen for this study. Rectal spacers, Barrigel from Palette Life Sciences and Gold Anchor fiducial markers were placed in the prostate before simulation. Patients were setup using immobilization device including wingboard, vacuum bag (Klarity 100 x 70), and feet fixation. Treatment plan of 36.25Gy in 5 fractions was done by using Monaco 6.1.2. Doses to the rectum were optimized following RTOG 0938 [1]. CBCT image was acquired [2] and was verified using the Elekta Versa HD XVI version 5.0.4 system and HEXAPOD Evo system. Values of translational and rotational shift were recorded.

# **RESULTS**

Dose to the rectum showed significant difference between the group with rectal spacer and the group without.  $D_{1cc}$  had a p-value of 0.0395, whereas  $D_{3cc}$ ,  $D_{10\%}$ ,  $D_{20\%}$ ,  $D_{50\%}$  were 0.0275, 0.0349, 0.0168, and 0.0327 respectively. The translational and rotational discrepancy between group with fiducial markers and without showed significant difference with p-value of 0.0030 and 0.0216 respectively, indicating a significant improvement in accuracy with the markers.

### **DISCUSSION**

Rectal spacer greatly reduced the radiation dose to the rectum, with the data showing a significant decrease in all aspects. The use of fiducial markers helped to precisely align the prostate before treatment, in terms of the visualization of prostate. With the ease of fiducial marker, both the translational and rotational shift can be confidently applied.

#### **CONCLUSION**

The usage of rectal spacer and fiducial markers in prostate SBRT significantly reduces dose to the rectum and improves treatment precision.

- 1. Altundal, Y., Cifter, F., Mu, G., Lee, J., Wu, E. J., Yeung, V., & Katz, A. (2020). Prostate Stereotactic Body Radiation Therapy with halcyon 2.0: Treatment plans comparison based on RTOG 0938 Protocol. *Cureus*. https://doi.org/10.7759/cureus.11660
- Shi, W., Li, J. G., Zlotecki, R. A., Yeung, A., Newlin, H., Palta, J., Liu, C., Chvetsov, A. V., & Olivier, K. (2011). Evaluation of KV cone-beam CT performance for prostate IGRT. *American Journal of Clinical Oncology*, 34(1), 16–21. https://doi.org/10.1097/coc.0b013e3181d26b1a



# ENHANCING LUNG CANCER MUTATION DETECTION THROUGH COMBINED TISSUE AND CIRCULATING TUMOR DNA PROFILING

Ee Mun Loo<sup>1,2</sup>, Boon Shing Tan<sup>1</sup>, Hiu Ching Toh<sup>1</sup>, Anand Mohan<sup>1</sup>, Zhi Win Ng<sup>1,3</sup>, Chew Xin Yi<sup>1,4</sup>, Bee Yin Khor<sup>1</sup>, Kok Sin Teow<sup>1</sup>, Sudha Ashvinder<sup>1</sup>, Yu Sean Khoo<sup>1</sup>, Wai Mun Leong<sup>1</sup>, Chun Wai Mai<sup>2</sup>, Chee-Onn Leong<sup>1,3,5</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Advanced Genomics Laboratory, AGTC Genomics, Bukit Jalil 57000, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.

<sup>2</sup>Faculty of Pharmaceutical Sciences, UCSI, Cheras 56000 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia. <sup>3</sup>Center for Cancer and Stem Cell Research, Institute for Research, Development and Innovation (IRDI), International Medical University, Bukit Jalil 57000, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.

<sup>4</sup>School of Science, Monash University, Bandar Sunway 47500 Subang Jaya, Selangor, Malaysia.

#### INTRODUCTION

Tissue-based next-generation sequencing (NGS) is the standard for identifying somatic mutations in solid tumors that are actionable under the National Comprehensive Cancer Network guidelines. The diagnostic potential of circulating tumor DNA (ctDNA) sequencing is increasingly recognized, yet the comparative and combined clinical value of concurrent tissue and ctDNA profiling remains underexplored in lung cancer.

# **MATERIALS & METHODS**

A cohort study was conducted involving 52 patients with stage III and IV lung cancer. Patients underwent concurrent tissue and ctDNA sequencing from July 2023 to February 2024, using the Illumina TruSight Oncology 500 comprehensive gene profiling for tumor biopsy and the Illumina TruSight Oncology 500 ctDNA assay for ctDNA profiling. The primary measure was the concordance between tissue profiling vs ctDNA, and the detection rate of actionable variants uniquely identified by either ctDNA or tissue profiling.

#### **RESULTS**

Out of 52 patients (median age 62.4 years), actionable variants were detected in 50 patients (96.2%) by either method. Concordance between tissue and ctDNA profiles was observed in 41 cases (78.8%). In discordant cases, ctDNA profiling detected additional genomic alterations in 8 patients (15.4%)...

#### **CONCLUSION**

The findings suggest that ctDNA testing can identify additional actionable genomic alterations not detected by tissue-based NGS, highlighting its potential to complement traditional tissue profiling in the management of lung cancer especially in metastatic cases. This integration could significantly enhance the precision of mutation detection and treatment planning.



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup>Bioinformatics and Data Center, AGTC Genomics, Bukit Jalil 57000, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.

# TOTAL NEOADJUVANT THERAPY IN LOCALLY ADVANCED RECTAL CANCER: A MONO-INSTITUTIONAL RETROSPECTIVE STUDY

<sup>1</sup> Dr Suganeswaran Marimuthu; <sup>1</sup> Dr Angel Kwan Khor Nee; <sup>1</sup> Dr Chan Ming Jun <sup>1</sup> Radiotherapy and Oncology Unit, Hospital Raja Permaisuri Bainun

#### INTRODUCTION

Total neoadjuvant therapy (TNT) evolved as the new standard for treatment of locally advanced rectal cancer (LARC)<sup>1</sup>. We report our single institution experience of TNT, which is short course preoperative radiation followed by consolidation neoadjuvant chemotherapy (NACT) and subsequent rectal surgery as per RAPIDO trial<sup>2</sup>.

#### **MATERIALS & METHODS**

We retrospectively analyzed the results of patients with LARC treated with TNT from a single institution. Patients with LARC (cT4-T2 and/or cN0-2 and/or threatened circumferential resection margin (CRM)) were recruited. Pathological response was assessed using the Tumor Regression Grading (TRG) scale.

# **RESULTS**

A total of 27 patients with median age of 60 years diagnosed from November 2021 to June 2023 initiated TNT were analyzed, which 22 patients (81.5%) completed TNT, 5 patients (18.5%) did not complete due to disease progression (60%), deteriorated performance status (20%) and surgical complication (20%). Pathological complete response rate(pCR) was 5%(n=1) TRG-0(Complete regression), 9%(n=2) TRG-1(Moderate Response), 50%(n=11) TRG-2(Minimal Response) and 36%(n=8) TRG-3(Poor to No response). 40.9%(n=9) completed TNT per schedule while 59.1%(n=13) had treatment schedule delay due to NACT toxicity. Mean NACT was 17.2 weeks compared total planned 18 weeks- NACT (6 CAPOX/9 FOLFOX). Significant toxicity like hepatoxicity (19%), thrombocytopenia (19%) and neurotoxicity (15%) accounts to be the highest. After median follow up of 8.5months (range:2-18 month), 23%(n=5) progressed with metastatic disease, which 2 patients TRG-3 and 3 patients TRG-2.

#### **DISCUSSION**

TNT was demonstrated to improve pCR and disease-free survival (DFS) with tolerable toxicities<sup>3</sup>, however proportion of patient in our institution demonstrates lower pCR rates than reported studies<sup>4</sup>, with significant toxicities and early disease progression.

#### **CONCLUSION**

Despite worldwide data supports towards TNT as a new standard of care for rectal cancer however optimal pre-operative treatment of LARC still debatable. Further Asian studies reporting real- world data are needed.



- 1. Liu S, Jiang T, Xiao L, Yang S, Liu Q, Gao Y, et al. Total Neoadjuvant Therapy (TNT) versus Standard Neoadjuvant Chemoradiotherapy for Locally Advanced Rectal Cancer: A Systematic Review and Meta-Analysis. The Oncologist. 2021 Jun 7;26(9).
- 2. Bahadoer RR, Dijkstra EA, Etten B van, Marijnen CAM, Putter H, Kranenbarg EMK, et al. Short-course radiotherapy followed by chemotherapy before total mesorectal excision (TME) versus preoperative chemoradiotherapy, TME, and optional adjuvant chemotherapy in locally advanced rectal cancer (RAPIDO): a randomised, open-label, phase 3 trial. The Lancet Oncology. 2021 Jan 1;22(1):29–42.
- 3. Jia AY, Narang A, Safar B, Zaheer A, Murphy A, Azad NS, et al. Sequential Short-Course Radiation Therapy and Chemotherapy in The Neoadjuvant Treatment of Rectal Adenocarcinoma. Radiation Oncology. 2019 Aug 19;14(1).
- 4. Wang M, Yong Xiang Gwee, Lin Z, Wei Peng Yong, Sundar R, Hon Lyn Tan, et al. Total neoadjuvant therapy (TNT) for locally advanced rectal cancer (LARC): Real-world experience from a tertiary Asian cancer center. Journal of clinical oncology. 2024 Jan 20;42(3 suppl):39–9.



35<sup>th</sup> Annual Scientific Congress of Malaysian Oncological Society *PD-05 A-0082* 

# PNEUMONITIS CHRONICLES: UNRAVELING DOCETAXEL'S VEILED IMPACT-A CASE REPORT

Cheng Kai Jie<sup>1</sup>, Ngu Ming Ruey<sup>2</sup>

1,2Department of Radiotherapy, Oncology and Palliative Care
Sarawak General Hospital

#### INTRODUCTION

Docetaxel, a commonly used chemotherapeutic agent, has been associated with various complications, among which pneumonitis is rare but potentially life-threatening. Risk factors include high cumulative dose (100mg/m²), weekly regimen, co-administration of gemcitabine or radiation and pre-existing lung disease. This case report delves into a low-risk patient who developed pneumonitis following docetaxel administration, highlighting the clinical presentation, diagnostic challenges, and management strategies to mitigate this complication.

#### **REPORT**

A 68-year-old female, non-smoker, no prior lung disease, with early breast cancer presented with cough and fever 9 days after cycle-2 adjuvant docetaxel of 75mg/m², 3-weekly schedule. Initial physical examination was unremarkable. Infiltrative changes seen over right lower zone on Chest X-ray. Initial laboratory tests were inconclusive, including mildly raised procalcitonin.

She was given antibiotics for community-acquired pneumonia. She was comfortable under room air during Day 1 admission, however, desaturated rapidly during Day 2, requiring High Flow Nasal Cannula (HFNC). Computed Tomography Pulmonary Angiography (CTPA) showed diffuse ground glass opacities involving both lungs associated with inter-septal thickening with no evidence of embolism.

Case was referred to respiratory team, initially offered bronchoscopy for further work-out, however, aborted, in view of patient's high oxygen requirement.

Infective causes were ruled out with negative culture, mycoplasma serology and viral panel. Given the clinical presentation, negative infective work-up and CT findings, a diagnosis of docetaxel-induced pneumonitis was made and started on oral prednisolone 1mg/kg/day. Her disease responded swiftly and able to wean off oxygen after 1 week of steroid therapy.

Steroid was tapered off uneventfully over 1 month. A follow-up HRCT 1 month post completion of steroid therapy showed complete resolution of previous changes.

#### **CONCLUSION**

Docetaxel-induced pneumonitis, while rare, can lead to life-threatening event. This case underscores the importance of maintaining high index of suspicion among patients who present with respiratory symptoms after administration of docetaxel as prompt recognition and timely initiation of corticosteroid treatment lead to favourable outcome.



- 1. Ho, M., & Mackey, J. (2014). Presentation and management of docetaxel-related adverse effects in patients with breast cancer. *Cancer Management and Research*, 253. https://doi.org/10.2147/cmar.s40601
- 2. Harvey, V., Mouridsen, H., Semiglazov, V., Jakobsen, E., Voznyi, E., Robinson, B. A., Groult, V., Murawsky, M., & Cold, S. (2006). Phase III trial comparing three doses of Docetaxel for Second-Line treatment of advanced breast cancer. *Journal of Clinical Oncology*, 24(31), 4963–4970. https://doi.org/10.1200/jco.2005.05.0294
- 3. Onishi, H., Kuriyama, K., Yamaguchi, M., Komiyama, T., Tanaka, S., Araki, T., Nishikawa, K., & Ishihara, H. (2003). Concurrent two-dimensional radiotherapy and weekly docetaxel in the treatment of stage III non-small cell lung cancer: a good local response but no good survival due to radiation pneumonitis. *Lung Cancer*, 40(1), 79–84. https://doi.org/10.1016/s0169-5002(02)00532-9



35<sup>th</sup> Annual Scientific Congress of Malaysian Oncological Society *PD-06 A-0083* 

# COLLABORATION BETWEEN SARAWAK GENERAL HOSPITAL (SGH), UNIMAS AND AMERICAN SOCIETY OF CLINICAL ONCOLOGY- INTERNATIONAL CANCER CORPS (ASCO-ICC): SARAWAK'S BEACON OF HOPE IN CANCER

Cheng Kai Jie<sup>1</sup>, Lim Yueh Ni<sup>1</sup>

 $^{1}$ Department of Oncology, Radiotherapy and Palliative Care, Sarawak General Hospital

#### INTRODUCTION

Sarawak, like many regions worldwide, grapples with the complexities of providing comprehensive and equitable cancer care services to its diverse population spread across urban centres and rural hinterlands. This report aims to provide an overview of activities undertaken by Sarawak General Hospital, UNIMAS in collaboration with ASCO-ICC, highlighting its significance in driving the progress within cancer care delivery service.

#### **METHODOLOGY**

Several key initiatives were carried out via the collaboration:

Educational Programs via e-platforms

The team had organised multidisciplinary meetings to discuss adult and paediatric neuro-oncology cases with interesting topics delivered by key speakers on a monthly basis. It was followed by Neuro-Oncology Multidisciplinary Team (Neuro-Onco MDT) which served as a platform for local teams to discuss complex cases with relevant experts. Sarawak-ASCO Palliative Care eCource (APCeC) was rolled out yearly since 2021.

#### Scientific Conference

To improves access to equitable healthcare, 8<sup>th</sup> Malaysian Breast & Endocrine Surgery Course 2023 (MBESC 2023) was organised in Sarawak. Multidisciplinary approach to cancer cases was highlighted via the conference with involvement of healthcare personnel from tertiary centre, but also district areas.

### On-site Visit

Several site visits were organised by ASCO team to further consolidate the knowledge imparted via e-platform, covering neuro-oncology and palliative cases, Tumour Board Mentor Workshop and Sarawak Train the Trainer Workshop.

#### **OUTCOME**

Through the key initiatives, we achieved several milestones, including yearly increasing number of participants since APCeC 2021 and it has led to subsequent Train the Trainer eCourse and establishment of Palliative Care Link Nurse in Sarawak General Hospital as a result of an on-site advocacy program by ASCO nurses. We have observed increment in number of participants in Neuro-Onco MDT across various disciplines and usage of Stereotactic Radiosurgery/ Stereotactic Radiotherapy (SRS/SRT). 98% of respondents were reported to make a practice change as a result from MBSESC. As inspired from ASCO's emphasis on MDT, we have established similar platforms, including Lung, Colorectal, Hepatobiliary and Gynae-Oncology MDT with participations from healthcare personnel across Sarawak.



#### **CONCLUSION**

The impactful collaboration between Sarawak General Hospital, UNIMAS and ASCO-ICC has redefined cancer care services in Sarawak.

- 1. Foy, M. (2021, October 27). Malaysia's Sarawak General Hospital Selected for ASCO's International Cancer Corps Program [Review of Malaysia's Sarawak General Hospital Selected for ASCO's International Cancer Corps Program]. ASCO Daily News; American Society of Clinical Oncology. https://dailynews.ascopubs.org/do/malaysia-s-sarawak-general-hospital-selected-asco-s-international-cancer-corps-program
- 2. Wong, Y. Y., Chiew, A. Z. J., Eaton, V., Ferris, F. D., Kremzier, M., Lim, B. L., Ling, W. H. Y., Said, A., Sarchet, V., Tiong, T. H., Voon, P. J., & Choo, Y. L. (2023). International Collaboration on Palliative Care Development Between ASCO and the Land of Hornbills. *JCO Global Oncology*, 9. https://doi.org/10.1200/go.22.00351
- 3. Lim, F. (2024, February 27). Supporting Multidisciplinary Cancer Care in Malaysia: My Experience as an ASCO Faculty Volunteer. *ASCO Connection*. Retrieved May 13, 2024, from https://connection.asco.org/blogs/supporting-multidisciplinary-cancer-care-malaysia-my-experience-asco-faculty-volunteer



# PREVALENCE OF *MET* EXON 14 SKIPPING ALTERATIONS IN NON-SMALL CELL LUNG CANCER: A MOLECULAR APPROACH USING NEXT GENERATION SEQUENCING

Bee Suan Tay<sup>1</sup>, Ning Yi Yap<sup>1</sup>, Che Zairieha Che Zainudin<sup>1</sup>, Nur Lynna Jeffry<sup>1</sup>, Yoke Kqueen Cheah<sup>2,3</sup>, Pathmanathan Rajadurai<sup>1,4</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Molecular Diagnostic Services, Laboratory, Subang Jaya Medical Centre, Selangor, Malaysia

<sup>2</sup>Department of Biomedical Sciences, Faculty of Medicine and Health Sciences, University Putra Malaysia, Selangor, Malaysia

<sup>3</sup>UPM-MAKNA Cancer Research Laboratory, Institute of Bioscience, Universiti Putra Malaysia, Serdang, Selangor, Malaysia.

<sup>4</sup>Jeffrey Cheah School of Medicine & Health Sciences, Monash University, Bandar Sunway, Selangor, Malaysia

# **INTRODUCTION**

Aberrant activation of *MET* triggers a constitutive activation of downstream signaling involved in tumorigenesis. *MET* alterations including *MET* exon 14 skipping (*MET*ex14), define a unique molecular subtype of non-small cell lung cancer (NSCLC) which confers sensitivity to *MET* tyrosine kinase inhibitors (TKIs). Given the rarity of *MET*ex14 in NSCLC, this study aims to determine the frequency by retrospectively analyzing pooled data from Malaysian patients.

#### MATERIALS AND METHODS

A total of 1527 formalin-fixed paraffin-embedded (FFPE) tumor tissues from NSCLC patients (January 2022-March 2024) across different hospitals in Malaysia were sent to Subang Jaya Medical Centre for molecular testing using broad panel DNA/RNA-based NGS covering 50 cancer-related genes.

#### **RESULTS**

METex14 was identified in 30 samples which accounted for 2.0% (30/1527) of all NSCLC patients. Of the 30 patients, 76.7% (23/30) had adenocarcinoma, 13.3% (4/30) had adenosquamous carcinoma, 6.7% (2/30) had squamous cell carcinoma, and 3.3% (1/30) had sarcomatoid carcinoma. The median age of the METex14 patients was 72 years, and 46.7% were women. Oncogenic driver genes such as EGFR, KRAS, and ROS1 were not found to be co-mutated with METex14. Co-mutations with TP53 were observed in 3 patients (10.9%), PIK3CA in 2 patients (6.89%) and ERBB2 amplification in 1 patient (3.4%). With NGS panel that covers exon 14 and the surrounding region, the detection rate was 1.3% for DNA and 2.0% for RNA.

#### **DISCUSSION**

The prevalence of *MET*ex14 in our patient cohort is 2.0%. Notably, *MET*ex14 alterations did not co-occur with other common oncogenic drivers, indicating their role as an independent



driver in NSCLC. RNA-based NGS outperforms DNA-based methods for detecting *MET*ex14, therefore parallel testing is recommended for optimal detection.

# **CONCLUSION**

METex14 represents a distinct subset of NSCLC, predominantly found in patients with adenocarcinoma.

The results emphasize the need for DNA and RNA-based NGS for accurate detection of *MET*ex14 alterations.



# MOLECULAR PROFILE OF PATIENTS WITH ADVANCED NSCLC IN SARAWAK, MALAYSIA

Seng Wee Cheo<sup>1</sup>, Jenny Kha Mieng Chong<sup>1</sup>, Elsie Sie Hui Pui<sup>1</sup>, Yi Leen Chan<sup>1</sup>, Suan Yin Lim<sup>1</sup>, Nur Qistina Nabilah<sup>1</sup>, Choon Seong Ang<sup>1</sup>, Qin Jian Low<sup>1</sup>, Pei Jye Voon<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Radiotherapy, Oncology and Palliative Care, Sarawak General Hospital, Sarawak.

Keywords: non-small cell lung cancer, molecular profile

#### INTRODUCTION

In recent years, there has been greater understanding of lung cancer and lead to a shift in classification of non-small cell lung cancer (NSCLC) according to their molecular subtypes<sup>1,2</sup>. In this study, we sought to describe the molecular profile of advanced NSCLC in Sarawak.

#### **MATERIALS & METHODS**

This retrospective study examined data of patients with advanced NSCLC diagnosed between year 2017-2022 in Sarawak. Data on clinical characteristics, molecular profile, pathological features were collected. Analysis was done by SPSS version 22.

#### **RESULTS**

401/585 lung cancers were advanced NSCLC. NSCLC was more common in male (53%) than female (47%). The median age of our cohort was 65 years (30-91). 51.4% patients were never smoker and 48.6% were ex/current smoker. Majority (97.3%) had de novo metastatic disease. The most common histology was adenocarcinoma (85.8%) followed by squamous cell carcinoma (10.2%). Majority (90.5%, 363/401) had molecular testing done by single gene testing only (90.9%) and 8.8% had NGS testing. The molecular profile of our patients were as follows: EGFR mutation [exon 18 G719X (n=5, 1.4%), exon19 deletion (n=97, 26.7%), exon 21 L858R (n=85, 23.4%), exon 20ins (n=5, 1.4%), other EGFR mutations (n=10, 2.8%], ALK (n=27, 7.4%), ROS1 (n=1, 0.3%), MET exon 14 skipping (n=4, 1.1%), BRAF V600E (n=1, 0.3%), HER2 (n=1, 0.3%), KRAS G12C mutations (n=2, 0.6%). 103 (28%) patients did not have further molecular testing by NGS after negative initial testing.

#### **DISCUSSION**

Our study of 401 NSCLC described the molecular profile of our patients in Malaysia, with EGFR being the most common driver mutation. There remains a significant number of patients who did not have NGS after negative initial testing.

#### **CONCLUSION**

The molecular profile of our patients is consistent with other Asian data with slightly more ALK positive patients. This analysis provide insight into molecular profile of our patients with advanced NSCLC.



- 1. Zappa C, Mousa SA. Non-small cell lung cancer: current treatment and future advances. Transl Lung Cancer Res 2016;5(3):288-300. doi: 10.21037/tlcr.2016.06.07
- 2. Niemira M, Collin F, Szalkowska A, Bielska A, Chwialkowska K, Reszec J, Niklinski J, Kwasniewski M, Kretowski A. Molecular Signature of Subtypes of Non-Small-Cell Lung Cancer by Large-Scale Transcriptional Profiling: Identification of Key Modules and Genes by Weighted Gene Co-Expression Network Analysis (WGCNA). Cancers (Basel). 2019 Dec 21;12(1):37. doi: 10.3390/cancers12010037. PMID: 31877723; PMCID: PMC7017323.



35<sup>th</sup> Annual Scientific Congress of Malaysian Oncological Society *PD-09 A-0090* 

# PREVALENCE OF HER2-LOW IN HER2 EQUIVOCAL ON IMMUNOHISTOCHEMISTRY (IHC)

Michelle Marie Yap Hwei Ping, Muhammad Nur Arif Bin Nor Azan, Shaznira Lee Ann Binti Rosmanizam, Chan Pei Zhi, Sayyidi Hamzi Abdul Raub, Prof. Dato Dr Sharifah Noor Akmal, Mohd Hareeff Bin Muhammed.

Cytogenetic and Molecular Diagnostics Laboratory, Reference Specialised Laboratory, Premier Integrated Labs Sdn. Bhd., Pantai Hospital Kuala Lumpur, 59100 Bangsar, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.

# **INTRODUCTION**

Breast cancer is the most common cause of cancer death among females worldwide. The human epidermal growth factor receptor 2 (HER2) or HER2/neu is an oncogene involved in cell proliferation, migration and adhesion, signaling the pathogenesis of breast cancer. HER2-targeted drugs such as Herceptin<sup>TM</sup> (trastuzumab), PERJETA® (pertuzumab) and KADCYLA® (adotrastuzumab emtansine) are beneficial for HER2-positive breast cancer patients who will inhibit cell signaling pathways. Enhertu (fam-trastuzumab-deruxtecan-nxki) is used to treat HER2-Low breast cancers with IHC scores of 1+ or 2+ without amplification. HER2 is determined by immunohistochemistry (IHC) for protein overexpression and fluorescence in situ hybridisation (FISH) for gene amplification. HER2 status was identified according to the 2018 American Society of Clinical Oncology/ College of American Pathologists (ASCO/CAP) guidelines. In this study, we compare the prevalence of HER2-Low in HER2 equivocal on IHC.

# **METHODS**

A total of 877 breast cancer cases were received from January 2023 to December 2023 in <u>Premier Integrated Laboratory</u>. These samples were from various labs and hospitals across Malaysia, were analyzed by IHC assays followed by FISH. Ventana BenchMark ULTRA autostainer and the Ventana Ultra View universal DAB detection kit was used to perform IHC staining. A dual-probe FISH test called PathVysion HER2 DNA probe kit was used on the same specimen for HER2 IHC equivocal (score 2+) cases.

#### **RESULTS**

Out of the 877 samples analyzed, 566 samples were reported as IHC 2+, 100 samples were IHC 1+ and 211 samples were IHC 3+. From the 566 IHC 2+ samples, 134 (23.67%) cases showed HER2/neu amplification in FISH, whereas 432 (76.33%) cases were non-amplified. These 432 cases were reported as HER2-Low, defined by IHC 2+ with a negative HER2 FISH result.

### **CONCLUSION**

IHC followed by FISH are the gold standard tests for determining HER2/neu status in breast cancer patients. Any patient with HER2/neu IHC equivocal needs to be confirmed by FISH before proceeding with HER2 inhibitor treatment, such as HerceptinTM therapy. If the FISH



results are negative for HER2 IHC equivocal, this is considered HER2-Low. Significantly, Enhertu has shown a promising objective response in HER2-Low breast cancer patients.

- 1. Tasmiyah Siddiqui, Payal Rani, Tayyaba Ashraf, Aayat Ellahi, Enhertu (Fam-trastuzumab-deruxtecan-nxki) Revolutionizing treatment paradigm for HER2-Low breast cancer, Annals of Medicine and Surgery, Volume 82, 2022, 104665, ISSN 2049-0801, https://doi.org/10.1016/j.amsu.2022.104665
- 2. Sui, W., Ou, M., Chen, J. et al. Comparison of immunohistochemistry (IHC) and fluorescence in situ hybridization (FISH) assessment for Her-2 status in breast cancer. World J Surg Onc 7, 83 (2009). https://doi.org/10.1186/14777819-7-83
- 3. Leo Lin, Deepika Sirohi, Joshua F Coleman, H Evin Gulbahce, American Society of Clinical Oncology/College of American Pathologists 2018 Focused Update of Breast Cancer HER2 FISH Testing GuidelinesResults From a National Reference Laboratory, American Journal of Clinical Pathology, Volume 152, Issue 4, October 2019, Pages 479–485, https://doi.org/10.1093/ajcp/aqz061
- 4. Caterina Marchiò, Laura Annaratone, Ana Marques, Laura Casorzo, Enrico Berrino, Anna Sapino, Evolving concepts in HER2 evaluation in breast cancer: Heterogeneity, HER2-low carcinomas and beyond, Seminars in Cancer Biology, Volume 72, 2021, Pages 123-135, ISSN 1044-579X, https://doi.org/10.1016/j.semcancer.2020.02.016
- 5. Patil Okaly, Geeta Vikram; Panwar, Dipti; Lingappa, Kavitha Bidadli; Kumari, Prasanna1; Anand, Abhishek2; Kumar, Prashantha; Chikkalingaiah, Manju Hosur; Kumar, Rekha Vijay. FISH and HER2/neu equivocal immunohistochemistry in breast carcinoma. Indian Journal of Cancer 56(2):p 119-123, Apr–Jun 2019. | DOI: 10.4103/ijc.IJC\_333\_18
- 6. Kong, H., Bai, Q., Li, A. et al. Characteristics of HER2-negative breast cancers with FISH-equivocal status according to 2018 ASCO/CAP guideline. Diagn Pathol 17, 5 (2022). https://doi.org/10.1186/s13000-021-01187-z
- 7. Thanasan S, Sukhakul K, Chitpakdee S, Kitkumthorn N. Diagnostic Accuracy of Immunohistochemistry for HER2-Positive Breast Cancer. Asian Pac J Cancer Prev. 2023 Dec 1;24(12):4321-4327. doi: 10.31557/APJCP.2023.24.12.4321. PMID: 38156869; PMCID: PMC10909106.



# MANAGEMENT OF NAUSEA AND VOMITING WITH ZOLBETUXIMAB + CHEMOTHERAPY IN CLDN18.2+ HER2- ADVANCED GASTRIC OR GASTROESOPHAGEAL JUNCTION ADENOCARCINOMA

Dr. Hwoei Fen Soo Hoo, MD<sup>1</sup>, Dr. Kohei Shitara, MD<sup>2</sup>, Dr. Rupesh Pophale, MD<sup>3</sup>, Dr. Maria Matsangou, MD<sup>3</sup>, Dr. Jung Wook Park, PhD<sup>3</sup>, Dr. Mok Oh, PharmD, PhD<sup>3</sup>, Dr. Pranob Bhattacharya, DrPH<sup>3</sup>, Dr. Radhika Ranganath, MS, MD<sup>3</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Oncology and Radiotherapy, Penang Hospital, Penang, Malaysia; <sup>2</sup>Department of Gastrointestinal Oncology, National Cancer Center Hospital East, Kashiwa City, Chiba, Japan; <sup>3</sup>Astellas Pharma Global Development, Inc., Northbrook, IL, USA.

#### **BACKGROUND**

SPOTLIGHT (NCT03504397) and GLOW (NCT03653507) showed significant improvement in PFS and OS using first-line (1L) zolbetuximab + chemotherapy vs placebo + chemotherapy in patients with CLDN18.2+, HER2-, locally advanced unresectable or metastatic gastric/gastroesophageal junction adenocarcinoma. Nausea/vomiting were the most common treatment-emergent adverse events (TEAEs) reported with zolbetuximab. We report an analysis of the incidence and management of nausea/vomiting in SPOTLIGHT and GLOW.

#### **METHODS**

Patients were randomized 1:1 to zolbetuximab + mFOLFOX6 vs placebo + mFOLFOX6 (SPOTLIGHT; n=565) or zolbetuximab + CAPOX vs placebo + CAPOX (GLOW; n=507). Neurokinin-1 receptor blockers, selective serotonin receptor blockers, and other prophylactic antiemetic regimens were recommended to prevent and mitigate nausea/vomiting per institutional care and guidelines.

#### **RESULTS**

279 patients in SPOTLIGHT and 253 patients in GLOW received zolbetuximab + chemotherapy. In SPOTLIGHT and GLOW combined, nausea occurred in 58% vs 18% of patients, and vomiting occurred in 43% vs 15% of patients in first vs second zolbetuximab infusions; lower incidences of nausea/vomiting were observed thereafter. During first zolbetuximab infusion, first episode of nausea/vomiting occurred within 1 hour (median, 48.0 min in SPOTLIGHT, 56.5 min in GLOW). Various antiemetic combinations were used. The 96 patients in SPOTLIGHT and 52 patients in GLOW who had infusion modifications in cycle 1 due to TEAEs had numerically higher infusion rates than patients without infusion modifications; 85% of these modifications in SPOTLIGHT and 79% in GLOW were due to nausea/vomiting. Zolbetuximab was discontinued within first 9 weeks in 11 and 7 patients in SPOTLIGHT and 6 and 4 patients in GLOW due to nausea or vomiting, respectively.

# **CONCLUSIONS**

In SPOTLIGHT and GLOW, slower infusion rate and use of antiemetic combinations may have helped to mitigate nausea/vomiting. These strategies will be important to support continued treatment and allow patients to achieve maximum clinical benefit with zolbetuximab + chemotherapy.



35<sup>th</sup> Annual Scientific Congress of Malaysian Oncological Society *PD-11 A-0096* 

# CLINICOPATHOLOGICAL FEATURES AND TREATMENT OF TESTICULAR GERM CELL TUMOUR IN SARAWAK

Poh Lee Chow<sup>1</sup>, Chan Teng Chong<sup>1</sup>, Seng Wee Cheo<sup>1</sup>, Qin Jian Low<sup>1</sup>, Pei Jye Voon<sup>1</sup>, Choon Seong Ang<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Radiotherapy, Oncology and Palliative Care, Sarawak General Hospital, Kuching, Sarawak

#### INTRODUCTION

Testicular germ cell tumour (TGCT) is an uncommon cancer, constituting only about 1-3% of cancers in males. There is limited data available on this cancer in Malaysia. Sarawak General Hospital (SGH) is the only public oncology referral centre in Sarawak and in this study, we report the clinicopathological features and treatment of TGCT patients under our follow up.

### **MATERIALS & METHODS**

This is a single-centre, retrospective, observational study enrolling all clinic patients with diagnosis of TGCT between 1st January 2014 to 31st December 2023. Medical notes of the patients were retrieved and relevant data were collected using a standardized case report form.

#### RESULTS

A total of 82 patients were included in this study. Only 39 patients (47.6%) were from Kuching while others from Sibu (n=16, 19.5%) and Miri (n=14, 17.1%). The median age at diagnosis were 29.0 years old (range 17-73). Majority of patients had clinical findings on testicular examination at presentation (n=55, 67.1%). Almost all cases had histological diagnosis (n=79, 96.3%) and non-seminoma subtype (n=43, 52.4%) were more common than seminoma (n=36, 43.9%). In terms of staging, half were Stage I (n=41, 50%) at presentation. Interestingly, chemotherapy was the most common adjuvant strategy in both Stage I seminoma and non seminoma. For advanced TGCT with intermediate and poor risk, 4 cycles of Bleomycin, Etoposide and Cisplatin (BEP) was most commonly used but for patients with lung/mediastinal involvement, Etoposide, Ifosphamide and Cisplatin (VIP) was preferred instead.

### **DISCUSSION**

Majority of our patients have logistics obstacles for active surveillance hence adjuvant chemotherapy in early TGCT was preferred. The limitation of this study is that we only enrolling patients under our clinic follow up with significant selection bias.

### **CONCLUSION**

A prospective data collection is indicated to provide more data for this rare but important cancer.

- 1. Sung H, Ferlay J, Siegel RL et al. Global cancer statistics 2020: GLOBOCAN estimates of incidence and mortality worldwide for 36 cancers in 185 countries. CA Cancer J Clin. 2021,71:209-49
- 2. IARC, Estimated age-standardized incidence rates (World) in 2020, worldwide, all ages: 2020
- 3. J. Oldenburg, D. M. Berney, C. Bokemeyer et al. Testicular seminoma and non-seminoma: ESMO-EURACAN Clinical Practice Guideline for diagnosis, treatment and follow-up. Ann Oncol. 2022 (33).



# LEFT BREAST DEEP INSPIRATION BREATH-HOLD RADIOTHERAPY (DIBHRT) IMPLEMENTATION IN MALAYSIA

Nur Aqila Mazlan, Auwal AbuBakar, Mohammed Zakir Kassim, Shazril Imran Shaukat. Jasmin Jalil, Gokula Kumar Appalanaido, Hafiz Mohd Zain, Rozilawati Ahmad. *Advanced Medical and Dental Institute, Universiti Sains Malaysia, Bertam, Penang.* 

#### INTRODUCTION

Deep inspiration breath-hold radiotherapy (DIBH-RT) technique for left breast cancer patient has been introduced to reduce dose to the heart. This study aims to assess implementation of DIBH-RT in Malaysia.

#### **MATERIALS & METHODS**

Protocol for implementation of voluntary-DIBH (vDIBH) in left breast radiotherapy has been developed in Advanced Medical and Dental Institute (AMDI), Universiti Sains Malaysia. Left breast patient that is able to breath-hold for at least 30 seconds is considered. The breath-hold level is monitored using skin-marks and lasers which are observed on CCTV from the control room. Treatment verification is done using cone-beam computed tomography (CBCT). Planning target volume (PTV) margin was computed based on Van Herk's margin recipe. Questionnaire with both multiple-choice and open-ended questions which focus on the methods of DIBH application and clinical application of surface-guided systems has been designed and will be distributed online to each radiotherapy centres in Malaysia.

### **RESULTS**

Assessment on accuracy of vDIBH technique was successfully implemented on 13 left breast patients. PTV margin that would be required using skin-laser monitoring technique is 7.77 mm, 10.85 mm, and 10.93 mm in the x, y, and z axes, respectively. From the survey questionnaire, we would be able to identify current practice of DIBH-RT in Malaysia and acquire data on numbers of centres that implemented DIBH technique for left breast cancer patients.

### **DISCUSSION**

The PTV margin computed is smaller than 20 mm margin which is recommended for breast radiotherapy. Skin-laser monitoring in vDIBH technique is radiation-free, easy to implement, and cost-effective. DIBH-RT implemented in different centres can be compared. Skin-laser monitoring for vDIBH can be implemented in centres without special motion monitoring device or surface-guided system.

# **CONCLUSION**

The vDIBH skin-laser monitoring protocol developed can be recommended to centres with limited access to DIBH assisting devices to improve left breast radiotherapy in Malaysia.

#### REFERENCE

Abubakar, A., Shaukat, S. I., Karim, N. K. A., Kassim, M. Z., Lim, S. Y., Appalanaido, G. K., & Zin, H. M. (2023). Accuracy of a time-of-flight (ToF) imaging system for monitoring deep-inspiration breath-hold radiotherapy (DIBH-RT) for left breast cancer patients. Physical and Engineering Sciences in Medicine, 46(1), 339–352. https://doi.org/10.1007/s13246-023-01227-6



35<sup>th</sup> Annual Scientific Congress of Malaysian Oncological Society *PD-13 A-0107* 

# ISLAND HOSPITAL'S EXPERIENCE IN THE USE OF ULTRASOUND FOR PRE-RADIOTHERAPY ASSESSMENT OF RECTAL CONDITION

Neelwana Binti Jaimin, Mohd Zaki Bin Yusof, Syahida Nafisyah binti Abd Hadi, Ooi Gim Chee

Island Hospital, Penang, Malaysia

#### INTRODUCTION

Intensity-Modulated Radiotherapy (IMRT, VMAT or SBRT) to the pelvic region often involves dose modulation at/near bladder and rectum. Island Hospital's bladder and rectal protocols are to ensure their consistent size and condition. We employ the use of Ultrasound for pre-treatment assessments of both bladder and rectum. This study focuses on our experience in rectal assessment.

#### **MATERIALS & METHODS**

24 patients were assessed in this study. All patients were on bladder and rectal protocols where 500mL of water to be drank within 5minutes and hold for 30-45minutes, and customized-diet preparations before and throughout the course of treatment. The baseline bladder and rectal conditions were taken with Ultrasound within 5minutes from satisfactory CT-Simulation. Pretreatment assessment of the rectal condition was compared with the baseline and quantified.

#### RESULTS

Standardized method of estimating rectal diameter using Ultrasound was established, and the measurement is compared against CT-Sim and image-guidance system (CBCT). The rectal area is identified on the Ultrasound via visualization of halfmoon-hyperechoic or circumferential-hypoechoic areas. High acoustic-shadow area represents hard stool retention and estimation via Ultrasound may not be proper. The deviation of Ultrasound-estimated diameter compared against the CT images (CT Sim and CBCT) is 4.18±2.65mm.

### **DISCUSSION**

Identification of rectal areas with Ultrasound for measurements using halfmoon-hyperechoic or circumferential-hypoechoic were effective and consistent. The deviation of Ultrasound-estimated diameter measurements is below 5mm, it was useful to assess daily rectal condition.

#### **CONCLUSION**

The use of Ultrasound as pre-treatment assessment tool for rectal condition is effective.

#### REFERENCE

Matsumoto, Masaru, Noboru Misawa, Momoko Tsuda, Noriaki Manabe, Takaomi Kessoku, Nao Tamai, Atsuo Kawamoto et al. "Expert consensus document: diagnosis for chronic constipation with faecal retention in the rectum using ultrasonography." Diagnostics 12, no. 2 (2022): 300.

Vanhauwaert, Erika, Christophe Matthys, Lies Verdonck, and Vicky De Preter. "Low-residue and low-fiber diets in gastrointestinal disease management." Advances in Nutrition 6, no. 6 (2015): 820-827.

Barrett, Jacqueline S. "How to institute the low-FODMAP diet." Journal of gastroenterology and hepatology 32 (2017): 8-10.



# LEFT-SIDED BREAST CANCER IRRADIATION WITH VOLUNTARY DEEP INSPIRATION BREATH-HOLD (NON-COMPUTER CONTROLLED)

Mohd. Rizq Raymond Abdullah

Radiotherapy & Oncology Department, Hospital Kuala Lumpur, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

#### INTRODUCTION

The purpose is to examine the feasibility of voluntary deep inspiration breath-hold (DIBH) of left-sided breast radiotherapy using simple breath-hold technique (non-computer controlled). Post-operative radiotherapy for breast cancer can increase cardiac disease in a dose-dependent manner but reduction of dose to heart and left anterior descending artery (LAD) can be achieved by using "Deep inspiration breath-hold" (DIBH) technique (1). With the lack of advanced devices such as the SDX and ABC (Active Breathing Control) used in DIBH technique, voluntary deep inspiration breath hold using simple breath-hold technique is an alternative. This technique requires the patient to hold their breath at a predetermined specific point, and radiation therapist at the same time enabling the treatment beam when predetermined point accomplished.

#### REPORT

Five patients planned for left-sided breast radiotherapy have been evaluated and selected to be irradiated using voluntary DIBH in Radiotherapy and Oncology Department, Hospital Kuala Lumpur. Patients are given time to practice how to take deep breaths and hold for 20 seconds for each session. Predetermined points will be recorded during three phase CT-simulation scan including normal, deep inspiration and expiration scan. Patients are treated with planned tangential radiotherapy (3D-CRT) with each tangential field divided into two segments. Treatment plan for normal breathing and DIBH are produced to compare mean heart dose. The treatment beam can be stopped by radiation therapist when specified point of breath hold did not meet. A recycle modified portable standing laser is added into the treatment room that is equipped with intercom and camera.

# **CONCLUSION**

Average time taken for DIBH treatment compared to normal breathing is only three minutes more. Mean heart dose was significantly reduced by DIBH. The added cost of using the simple breath-hold technique (non-computer controlled) is zero and an effective alternative for budget limited center.

#### REFERENCE

(1) Knöchelmann, A. C., Ceylan, N., & Bremer, M. (2022). Left-sided Breast Cancer Irradiation with Deep Inspiration Breath-hold: Changes in Heart and Lung Dose in Two Periods. In vivo (Athens, Greece), 36(1), 314–324. https://doi.org/10.21873/invivo.12704



# EXPLORING WILLINGNESS TO PAY OUT-OF-POCKET FOR GENETIC TESTING AMONG OVARIAN CANCER PATIENTS IN MALAYSIA, A MIDDLE-INCOME COUNTRY IN ASIA

Heamanthaa Padmanabhan<sup>1,2</sup>, Ka Keat Lim<sup>3</sup>, Nur Tiara Hassan<sup>1,2</sup>, Nor Syuhada Ahmad Bashah<sup>2</sup>, Yong-Quan Lee<sup>1,2</sup>, Joanna Lim<sup>4</sup>, Ik Hui Teo<sup>7</sup>, Yogeeta Gunasagran<sup>7</sup>, Rubandra Kumaar Kalimuthu<sup>7</sup>, Jamil Omar<sup>8</sup>, Mohd Norazam Mohd Abas<sup>8</sup>, Vickneswaren Thever Ramasamy<sup>9</sup>, Chee Meng Yong<sup>9</sup>, Mohamad Faiz Mohamed Jamli<sup>10</sup>, Wee Wee Sim<sup>11</sup>, Ahmad Muzamir Ahmad Mustafa<sup>12</sup>, Nor Huda Mat Ali<sup>12</sup>, Ismail Aliyas<sup>13</sup>, Keng Joo Lim<sup>14</sup>, Meow Keong Thong<sup>15,16</sup>, Yin Ling Woo<sup>7</sup>, Asrul Akmal Shafie<sup>6</sup>, Soo-Hwang Teo<sup>5</sup>, Sook-Yee Yoon<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup> Genetic, CRMY Technologies Sdn Bhd, Selangor, Malaysia

<sup>2</sup> Genetic Counselling Unit, Cancer Research Malaysia, Selangor, Malaysia

<sup>3</sup>Department of Population Health Sciences, School of Life Course & Population Sciences, Faculty of Life Sciences & Medicine, King's College London, London, United Kingdom.

<sup>4</sup>Core Laboratory Unit, Cancer Research Malaysia, Selangor, Malaysia

<sup>5</sup>Cancer Research Malaysia, Selangor, Malaysia

<sup>6</sup>School of Pharmaceutical Sciences, Universiti Sains Malaysia, Penang, Malaysia

<sup>7</sup>Department of Gynaeoncology, University Malaya Medical Centre, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

<sup>8</sup>Department of Gynaeoncology, National Cancer Institute, Putrajaya, Malaysia

<sup>9</sup>Department of Gynaeoncology, Hospital Ampang, Selangor, Malaysia

<sup>10</sup>Department of Gynaeoncology, Hospital Tuanku Jaafar Seremban, Negeri Sembilan,

Malaysia

<sup>11</sup>Department of Gynaeoncology, Hospital Umum Sarawak, Kuching, Sarawak, Malaysia <sup>12</sup>Department of Gynaeoncology, Hospital Tengku Ampuan Afzan, Kuantan, Pahang, Malaysia

<sup>13</sup>Department of Gynaecology, Hospital Sultanah Bahiyah, Alor Setar, Kedah, Malaysia
 <sup>14</sup>Department of Gynaecology, KPJ Johor Specialist Hospital, Johor, Malaysia
 <sup>15</sup>Department of Paediatrics, Genetic Medicine Unit, University Malaya Medical Centre, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

<sup>16</sup>Universiti Tunku Abdul Rahman, M. Kandiah Faculty of Medicine and Health Sciences, Kajang, Selangor, Malaysia

# **INTRODUCTION**

We previously demonstrated that mainstreaming genetic counselling for ovarian cancer patients in Malaysia, increased uptake of genetic testing to 80% when the test was available for free. However, in practice, genetic tests are unlikely to be provided for free. In this study, we explored the willingness to pay (WTP) for BRCA genetic testing among ovarian cancer patients in Malaysia.

# **MATERIALS & METHODS**

In this multi-center study, ovarian cancer patients who have not received prior genetic counselling or testing were administered questionnaires on WTP (a contingent valuation exercise), and facilitators and barriers to genetic counselling, and followed up for at least 6



months. We estimated the WTP value and explored factors associated with willingness to pay using logistic regression.

#### RESULTS

Of 100 sequential patients recruited, 58% stated WTP for BRCA genetic testing at median of MYR1000 (IQR= MYR1125). Older participants were less likely to be willing to pay. Reasons for unwillingness to pay included affordability (71%), belief that it should be paid by government or insurance (19%) and preference not to know their genetic status (14%). At the end of follow-up (mean  $5\pm17$  months), 17% took up testing at full price (~MYR1095).

#### **DISCUSSION**

Given the current cost of genetic testing and that around 50% of participants were willing to pay at least MYR500, a subsidy of MYR2000 per patient is required. With 800 new ovarian cancer cases annually and about 90% of eligible patients for testing, this translates to a total subsidy equivalent to the cost of treating four ovarian cancer patients.

#### **CONCLUSION**

In this exploratory study, stated WTP for BRCA genetic testing was high but only at a reduced price, and at follow-up, only a minority of patients paid the full price. A co-payment framework or subsidy scheme may be needed to reduce the significant cost barriers to genetic testing in Malaysia.

- 1. Yoon SY, Wong SW, Lim J, Ahmad S, Mariapun S, Padmanabhan H, et al. Oncologist-led BRCA counselling improves access to cancer genetic testing in middle-income Asian country, with no significant impact on psychosocial outcomes. J Med Genet. 2022;59(3):220-9
- 2. Adejumo PO, Aniagwu TIG, Awolude OA, Adedokun B, Kochheiser M, Sowunmi A, et al. Cancer Genetic Services in a Low- to Middle-Income Country: Cross-Sectional Survey Assessing Willingness to Undergo and Pay for Germline Genetic Testing. JCO Glob Oncol. 2023;9:e2100140.
- 3. Aizuddin AN, Ramdzan AR, Syed Omar SA, Mahmud Z, Latiff ZA, Amat S, et al. Genetic Testing for Cancer Risk: Is the Community Willing to Pay for It? Int J Environ Res Public Health. 2021;18(16).



# HIGH PREVALENT OF HRD STATUS IN OVARIAN CANCER

Nurina Afifah Saiful<sup>1</sup>, Nenny Noorina Saaid<sup>1</sup>, Azlah Kamilah Azhari<sup>1</sup>, Nur Izzlyana Ismail<sup>1</sup>, Lokzhashininimisha Pulandran<sup>1</sup>, Nur Adlina Zainal Abidin<sup>1</sup>, Ruhil Nadirah Che Omar<sup>1</sup>, Sayyidi Hamzi Abdul Raub<sup>1</sup>, Dato' Dr Sharifah Noor Akmal Syed Hussain<sup>1</sup>, Mohd Hareeff Muhammed<sup>1</sup>

Cytogenetic and Molecular Diagnostic Laboratory (CMDL), Reference Specialised Laboratory,

Premier Integrated Labs Sdn. Bhd., Pantai Hospital Kuala Lumpur, 59100 Bangsar, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

#### INTRODUCTION

Homologous Recombination Deficiency (HRD) is involved in the tumorigenesis and progression of high-grade serous ovarian cancer (HGSOC) in predicting responses to platinum-based chemotherapy and poly (ADP-ribose) polymerase (PARP) inhibitors. HRD-positive status is defined through a deleterious or suspected deleterious BRCA mutation and/or genomic instability known as Genomic Scar Scoring (GSS). This study aimed to determine the prevalence of BRCA status and GSS in HGSOC patients at <u>Premier Integrated Labs Sdn Bhd</u> using next-generation sequencing technology.

# **MATERIALS & METHODS**

Ninety-three cases of formalin-fixed paraffin-embedded (FFPE) tissue samples were collected from patients with confirmed diagnoses of HGSOC Stage III and IV from January 2022 to December 2023 for HRD testing. The patients ranged in age from 33 to 77 years; the majority were Chinese, followed by Malay and Indian. DNA extraction was performed using the GeneRead FFPE kit by Qiagen, followed by library preparation according to the manufacturer's instructions (Amoy Diagnostics, China) and sequenced on the NextSeq550 platform (Illumina). The results were analysed using AmoyDx NGS Data Analysis System (ANDAS) version 1.1.1.

# **RESULTS**

We found that 75% (70/93) of the cases were HRD-positive. Of 70 cases, 52 (74%) were GSS ≥50 only without any BRCA mutation, while 18 (26%) were positive BRCA mutation and GSS ≥50. Sixteen (23%) cases were positive for BRCA1, and 2 cases (3%) were BRCA2. 73% (73/93) of cases were in Stage III HGSOC patients, and 27% (25/93) were in Stage IV. Somatic BRCA1 mutation is the most common mutation detected in HGSOC.

# **CONCLUSION**

The prevalence of HRD status in HGSOC is notably higher compared to other histology subtypes in ovarian cancer. Maintenance Olaparib and Bevacizumab significantly improved progression-free survival in patients with advanced HGSOC undergoing complete or partial first-line conventional therapy. Hence, HRD status in HGSOC using NGS technology is important for selecting patients who benefit from PARP inhibitors.



- 1. Banerjee, S., Gonzalez-Martin, A., Harter, P., Lorusso, D., Moore, K. N., Oaknin, A., & Ray-Coquard, I. (2020). First-line PARP inhibitors in ovarian cancer: summary of an ESMO Open Cancer Horizons round-table discussion. *ESMO Open*, 5(6), e001110. https://doi.org/10.1136/esmoopen-2020-001110
- 2. Ray-Coquard, I., Pautier, P., Pignata, S., Pérol, D., González-Martín, A., Berger, R., Fujiwara, K., Vergote, I., Colombo, N., Mäenpää, J., Selle, F., Sehouli, J., Lorusso, D., Alía, E. M. G., Reinthaller, A., Nagao, S., Lefeuvre-Plesse, C., Canzler, U., Scambia, G., Harter, P. (2019). Olaparib plus Bevacizumab as First-Line Maintenance in Ovarian Cancer. New England Journal of Medicine/the New England Journal of Medicine, 381(25), 2416–2428. https://doi.org/10.1056/nejmoa1911361
- 3. Takaya, H., Nakai, H., Takamatsu, S., Mandai, M., & Matsumura, N. (2020). Homologous recombination deficiency status-based classification of high-grade serous ovarian carcinoma. Scientific Reports, 10(1). https://doi.org/10.1038/s41598-020-59671-3



# CLINICAL CHARACTERISTICS, MOLECULAR PROFILE AND TREATMENT OF EPIDERMAL GROWTH FACTOR RECEPTOR (EGFR) MUTATED NON-SMALL CELL LUNG CANCER IN SARAWAK

Seng Wee Cheo<sup>1</sup>, Jenny Kha Mieng Chong<sup>1</sup>, Elsie Sie Hui Pui<sup>1</sup>, Yi Leen Chan<sup>1</sup>, Suan Yin Lim<sup>1</sup>, Nur Qistina Nabilah<sup>1</sup>, Choon Seong Ang<sup>1</sup>, Qin Jian Low<sup>1</sup>, Chan Sing Chai<sup>2</sup>, Sze Shyang Kho<sup>2</sup>, Siew Teck Tie<sup>2</sup>, Pei Jye Voon<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Radiotherapy, Oncology and Palliative Care, Sarawak General Hospital, Sarawak

Keywords: epidermal growth factor receptor, non-small cell lung cancer, treatment, molecular profile

#### INTRODUCTION

EGFR mutations are the most common oncogenic drivers in non-small-cell lung cancer (NSCLC)<sup>1</sup>. The prognosis of EGFR positive (EGFR+) NSCLC has largely improved with tyrosine kinase inhibitor (TKI)<sup>2</sup>. In this study, we evaluated the characteristics and treatment of EGFR+ NSCLC in Sarawak.

#### **MATERIALS & METHODS**

This retrospective study examined data of EGFR+ NSCLC diagnosed between year 2017-2023 in Sarawak. Data on clinical characteristics and treatment were collected and analysed.

#### **RESULTS**

Among 522 NSCLC patients, 221 (54%) were EGFR+, being more common in female (60%) than male (40%) and never smoker (69.7%). The median age was 65 year (36-91). The stage at diagnosis were: stage I (8.1%), II (1.8%), III (3.2%) and IV (86.9%). 26.5% patients had brain metastasis at presentation. 99% had adenocarcinoma and 1% had squamous cell carcinoma. The detected mutation are: EGFR exon18 G617X (n=5, 2.3%), EGFR exon 19del (n=101, 45.7%), exon 21 L858R (n=93, 42.1%), exon20ins (n=7, 3.2%), compound mutation (n=11, 5%), others EGFR mutation (n=4, 1.8%). Treatment received in first line are as follows: gefitinib/erlotinib (n=142, 69.3%), afatinib (n=11, 5.4%), dacomitinib (n=3, 1.5%), Osimertinib (n=20, 9.8%), platinum based chemotherapy (n=12, 5.9%), clinical trial (n=8, 3.9%), best supportive care/defaulted (n=6, 2.9%), others (n=3, 1.5%). Second line treatment as follows: Osimertinib (n=12, 23%), platinum based chemotherapy (n=22, 42.3%), BSC/defaulted (n=15, 28.8%), other TKI (n=3, 5.8%). 33.3% patients had T790M mutation on progression upon 1st generation TKI.

# **DISCUSSION**

Our analysis provided real world data on EGFR+ lung cancer in local setting. 90% of EGFR+ lung cancer able to gain access to TKI and 23% patients received Osimertinib in the second line setting.



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>Respiratory Unit, Department of Medicine, Sarawak General Hospital, Sarawak.

#### **CONCLUSION**

EGFR+ lung cancer is the most common oncogene driven lung cancer with prevalence of 50% among NSCLC. Our study showed that access to first generation TKI was high but limited for 3<sup>rd</sup> generation TKI.

- 1. O'Leary C, Gasper H, Sahin KB, Tang M, Kulasinghe A, Adams MN, Richard DJ, O'Byrne KJ. Epidermal Growth Factor Receptor (EGFR)-Mutated Non-Small-Cell Lung Cancer (NSCLC). Pharmaceuticals (Basel). 2020 Sep 25;13(10):273. doi: 10.3390/ph13100273. PMID: 32992872; PMCID: PMC7600164.
- 2. Shimamura SS, Shukuya T, Asao T, Hayakawa D, Kurokawa K, Xu S, Miura K, Mitsuishi Y, Tajima K, Shibayama R, Shimada N, Takahashi F, Takahashi K. Survival past five years with advanced, EGFR-mutated or ALK-rearranged non-small cell lung cancer-is there a "tail plateau" in the survival curve of these patients? BMC Cancer. 2022 Mar 25;22(1):323. doi: 10.1186/s12885-022-09421-7. PMID: 35337281; PMCID: PMC8953392.



# IS BREAST CANCER ASSOCIATED WITH GERMLINE MSH6 MUTATION: A CASE REPORT

Vivian Yi-Mun Lee<sup>1,2</sup>, Joanna Mei-Ch'wan Lim<sup>1,2</sup>, Puteri Hidayatul Izzati Mohd Ghazali<sup>1,2</sup>, Sook-Yee Yoon<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup> Genetix, Crmy Technologies Sdn Bhd, Selangor, Malaysia <sup>2</sup> Genetic Counselling Unit, Cancer Research Malaysia, Selangor, Malaysia

#### INTRODUCTION

Some genes such as BRCA1, BRCA2, ATM, CHEK2, and PALB2 have been well established to be associated with breast cancer risk and are included in breast cancer genetic testing panels. However, this case report demonstrates an unexpected finding of MSH6 germline pathogenic variant in a breast cancer patient. MSH6 is associated with autosomal dominant Lynch syndrome which is associated with colorectal cancers but the association with breast cancer risk is still not well defined. This case report demonstrates the challenges in the counselling of a breast cancer patient with a MSH6 pathogenic variant.

#### **REPORT**

A 46-year-old female patient diagnosed with Invasive ductal carcinoma (IDC) at 46 years old. Family history includes a sister with ovarian cancer at 44 years old, a sister with triple-negative breast cancer (TNBC) and ovarian cancer at 51 years old, and mother with uterine or ovarian cancer and colon cancer. Pre-test genetic counselling was conducted in detail and a multi-gene panel of 19 genes was offered which included breast and gynae cancers guidelines-based panel. She was found to have a pathogenic variant in MSH6 gene and a variant of uncertain significance in RAD51C gene. During the post-test genetic counselling, there was in depth discussion about the possible risks of Lynch Syndrome cancers such as ovaries, uterus, and colon. The session was challenging as the patient was expecting a result that may have helped in her breast cancer treatment and surgical choice. The patient was referred to the gynecologist for risk management after completing her treatment and surgery for breast cancer.

#### **CONCLUSION:**

This case demonstrates the need for detailed pre-test genetic counselling when using panel genetic testing for breast cancer to manage the expectations for the patient on the possible outcome and future risks of cancer.

#### REFERENCES

1. Dorling, L., Carvalho, S., Allen, J., González-Neira, A., Luccarini, C., Wahlström, C., Pooley, K. A., Parsons, M. T., Fortuno, C., Wang, Q., Bolla, M. K., Dennis, J., Keeman, R., Alonso, M. R., Álvarez, N., Herraez, B., Fernandez, V., Núñez-Torres, R., Osorio, A., & Valcich, J. (2021). Breast Cancer Risk Genes — Association Analysis in More than 113,000 Women. *New England Journal of Medicine*, 384(5), 428–439. https://doi.org/10.1056/nejmoa1913948



- Roberts, M. E., Jackson, S. A., Susswein, L. R., Zeinomar, N., Ma, X., Marshall, M. L., Stettner, A. R., Milewski, B., Xu, Z., Solomon, B. D., Terry, M. B., Hruska, K. S., Klein, R. T., & Chung, W. K. (2018). MSH6 and PMS2 germ-line pathogenic variants implicated in Lynch syndrome are associated with breast cancer. Genetics in Medicine, 20(10), 1167– 1174. https://doi.org/10.1038/gim.2017.254
- 3. Sheehan, M., Heald, B., Yanda, C., Kelly, E. D., Grobmyer, S., Eng, C., Kalady, M., & Pederson, H. (2020). Investigating the Link between Lynch Syndrome and Breast Cancer. *European Journal of Breast Health*, *16*(2), 106–109. https://doi.org/10.5152/ejbh.2020.5198



# PREVALENCE OF PIK3CA GENE MUTATIONS IN ADVANCED METASTATIC BREAST CANCER IN SOLID TUMOUR AND LIQUID BIOPSY

Azlah Kamilah Azhari, Nenny Noorina Saaid, Lokzhashininimisha Pulandran, Ruhil Nadirah Che Omar, Nur Adlina Zainal Abidin, Nurina Afifah Saiful, Manisah Ayub, Izzlyana Ismail, Usha Nanthini Ganesan, Nur Aina Najwa, Fatin Hilyani Mohamad, Sayyidi Hamzi Abdul Raub, Dato' Dr Sharifah Noor Akmal, Mohd Hareeff Muhammed Cytogenetics and Molecular Diagnostics Laboratory (CMDL), Reference Specialised Laboratory, Premier Integrated Labs Sdn. Bhd., Pantai Hospital Kuala Lumpur, 59100 Bangsar, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.

#### INTRODUCTION

Breast cancer remains the first rank cancer in women worldwide and the most common cancer among women in Malaysia. The HR+/HER2- advanced or metastatic breast cancer (mBC) harboured the most significantly mutated genes, with the most frequent being the PIK3CA gene. Alpelisib; a PI3K inhibitor demonstrates a clinically meaningful benefit in treating mBC patient. This study aimed to determine the prevalence of PIK3CA gene mutations in the HR+/HER2- mBC subgroup in Premier Integrated Labs Sdn. Bhd\_from solid tumour (ST) and liquid biopsy (LB).

#### **MATERIALS & METHODS**

63 cases of formalin-fixed paraffin-embedded (FFPE) tissue samples and 92 plasma cases from patients diagnosed with advanced mBC were collected from January to December 2023 for PIK3CA gene mutation testing. DNA from FFPE and plasma was extracted using the DNA Sample Preparation Kit, Roche, and the QIAamp Circulating Nucleic Acid Kit, Qiagen, respectively. Real-time polymerase chain reaction (qPCR) was done using Cobas z 480, Roche for FFPE, and Rotor-Gene Q (RGQ) for plasma according to the manufacturer's instructions (Roche, USA, and Qiagen, Germany). The results were analysed by using respective platform analysers.

#### RESULTS

Of 63 FFPE tissue samples, 28 (44.4%) were positive for PIK3CA and 42 (26.5%) were positive in liquid biopsy. The most common mutations were E545A^D^G^K (16.2%), H1047^L^R^Y (8.4%), N345K (1.3%) and C420R (1.3%) in FFPE tissue and plasma. Out of 155 cases, 5 (3.2%) had both FFPE and plasma. Only 1 case was positive for PIK3CA mutation detected in FFPE, not in plasma. Four out of five cases (80%) were negative for PIK3CA mutation that correlates for both tissue and plasma.

### **CONCLUSION**

In conclusion, the prevalence of PIK3CA mutations in advanced mBC is higher among the HR+/HER2- subgroup and may respond well to PI3K inhibitors. LB can be an alternative or complement for cases with insufficient tissue biopsy.



#### REFERENCE

- 1. Cancer Genome Atlas Network. Comprehensive molecular portraits of human breast tumours. Nature. 2012 Oct 4;490(7418):61-70. doi: 10.1038/nature11412. Epub 2012 Sep 23. PMID: 23000897; PMCID: PMC3465532.
- 2. Anderson EJ, Mollon LE, Dean JL, Warholak TL, Aizer A, Platt EA, Tang DH, Davis LE. A Systematic Review of the Prevalence and Diagnostic Workup of PIK3CA Mutations in HR+/HER2- Metastatic Breast Cancer. Int J Breast Cancer. 2020 Jun 20;2020:3759179. doi: 10.1155/2020/3759179. PMID: 32637176; PMCID: PMC7322582.
- 3. Sisodiya S, Kasherwal V, Khan A, Roy B, Goel A, Kumar S, Arif N, Tanwar P, Hussain S. Liquid Biopsies: Emerging role and clinical applications in solid tumours. Transl Oncol. 2023 Sep;35:101716. doi: 10.1016/j.tranon.2023.101716. Epub 2023 Jun 14. PMID: 37327582; PMCID: PMC10285278.
- 4. Nakai M, Yamada T, Sekiya K, Sato A, Hankyo M, Kuriyama S, Takahashi G, Kurita T, Yanagihara K, Yoshida H, Ohashi R, Takei H. Use of Liquid Biopsy to Detect PIK3CA Mutation in Metastatic Breast Cancer. J Nippon Med Sch. 2022 Mar 11;89(1):66-71. doi: 10.1272/jnms.JNMS.2022 89-107. Epub 2021 Mar 9. PMID: 33692304.
- 5. Bray, F., Laversanne, M., Sung, H., Ferlay, J., Siegel, R. L., Soerjomataram, I., & Jemal, A. (2024). Global cancer statistics 2022: GLOBOCAN estimates of incidence and mortality worldwide for 36 cancers in 185 countries. *CA: a cancer journal for clinicians*, 74(3), 229–263. https://doi.org/10.3322/caac.21834
- 6. FDA approves first PI3K inhibitor for breast cancer FDA. May 24, 2019.

#### **KEYWORDS**

PIK3CA, Advanced metastatic breast cancer, Solid tumour, Liquid biopsy



# CLINICAL CHARACTERISTICS AND TREATMENT OF EARLY LUNG CANCER IN SARAWAK, MALAYSIA

Yi Leen Chan<sup>1</sup>, Jenny Kha Mieng Chong<sup>1</sup>, Elsie Sie Hui Pui<sup>1</sup>, Suan Yin Lim<sup>1</sup>, Nur Qistina Nabilah<sup>1</sup>, Choon Seong Ang<sup>1</sup>, Qin Jian Low<sup>1</sup>, Seng Wee Cheo<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Radiotherapy, Oncology and Palliative Care, Sarawak General Hospital, Sarawak.

Keywords: early lung cancer, treatment, clinical characteristics

#### INTRODUCTION

Lung cancer is one of the most common cancers in Malaysia<sup>1</sup>. Majority of lung cancers were diagnosed at advanced stage<sup>2</sup>. In this study, we aimed to evaluate the clinical characteristics and treatment of patients with early lung cancer in Sarawak.

### **MATERIALS & METHODS**

This retrospective study examined data of patients with early lung cancer diagnosed between year 2017-2023 in Sarawak. Data on clinical characteristics, pathological features, molecular profiles and treatment were collected. Analysis was done by SPSS version 22.

#### RESULTS

Among 581 lung cancers patients, 63 (10.8%) had early lung cancer. It is almost evenly distributed between male (50.8%) and female (49.2%). The median age was 67 years (21-85). 33 patients were Chinese, 9 were Iban, 10 were Bidayuh and remaining were of other ethnicities. 50.8% were ex/active smoker, 46% were never smokers. Adenocarcinoma (76.2%) is the most common histology followed by squamous cell (6.3%) and small cell carcinoma (6.3%). 42 patients had molecular testing done [single gene (n=41), NGS (n=1)]. Mutations were detected in EGFR exon 19del (n=6, 14.3%), exon 21 L858R (n=10, 23.8%), other EGFR exons (n=4, 9.5%), ALK (n=1, 2.38%). In term of definitive treatment, majority had surgery (85.6%), followed by radiotherapy (6.5%). 46% patients required adjuvant chemotherapy and 1.6% patient had adjuvant osimertinib. 10 (15.9%) patients relapsed to develop stage III/IV disease during their follow up.

### **DISCUSSION**

Our study highlighted that only small percentage of lung cancer patients were diagnosed at early stage. It is crucial to diagnose lung cancer early as these patients will benefit from aggressive curative treatment.

#### **CONCLUSION**

Early lung cancer remains unique population of patients. More works are needed to diagnose lung cancer at earlier stage as early stage is associated with better outcome. The molecular profile of our early lung cancer cohort was consistent with reported data.

- 1. Kan CS, Chan KM. A Review of Lung Cancer Research in Malaysia. Med J Malaysia. 2016 Jun;71(Suppl 1):70-78. PMID: 27801389.
- 2. Rajadurai P, How SH, Liam CK, Sachithanandan A, Soon SY, Tho LM. Lung Cancer in Malaysia. J Thorac Oncol. 2020 Mar;15(3):317-323. doi: 10.1016/j.jtho.2019.10.021. PMID: 32093853.



# CHEMOTHERAPY: THE UNLIKELY HERO IN OVERCOMING HCC RESISTANCE. A CASE REPORT.

Nurfarhana Abbas<sup>1</sup>, Noor Nabila Mohamad<sup>1</sup> *Institut Kanser Negara* 

#### **BACKGROUND**

Hepatocellular carcinoma (HCC) is the most common primary malignancy in the liver. Despite promising clinical trial results, it is crucial to acknowledge that these findings may not always directly translate into substantial enhancements in real-world clinical settings. Here, we present a case of advanced HCC where chemotherapy was administered as third-line treatment following lack of response to Lenvatinib and Atezolizumab-Bevacizumab combinations.

#### **CASE REPORT**

This is a 61-year-old woman, presented with incidental finding of elevated Alpha Fetoprotein (AFP) reaching 7914.4IU/ml. Computed Tomography (CT) thorax, abdomen and pelvis revealed multiple arterial enhancing liver lesions, indicative of HCC. At diagnosis, she was classified as Child-Pugh A and BCLC stage B. She received Transarterial chemoembolization (TACE) followed by Lenvatinib. However, after 3 cycles of Lenvatinib, her AFP persistently increased, leading to a switch to Atezolizumab-Bevacizumab. Despite 3 cycles, AFP level further soared to 9350IU/ml and complained of worsening abdominal discomfort. Hence, she was counselled for FOLFOX chemotherapy and completed 12 cycles with minimal toxicities. Symptomatically, her abdominal discomfort improved significantly and her performance status returned to baseline. AFP levels improved to 10.3IU/ml after 12th cycle. Radiologically, there was a significant decrease in the dimensions of liver lesions, with the largest decreasing from 8cm to achieving complete resolution. Currently, she is well six months post-treatment completion, her condition remains stable, marking her longest period without relapse since diagnosis.

#### **CONCLUSION**

Managing HCC can be complex, especially when standard treatments prove ineffective. Patient's initial sequence of management is consistent with current guidelines for HCC. However, patient's lack of response reiterates that a single template is inadequate in the realm of oncology. The shift to FOLFOX chemotherapy post-prior treatment failure, highlights the need of flexibility in patient care. Essentially, this and showcases the importance of personalized approach to optimize patient outcome.

- JosepM. Llovet, M.D., Sergio Ricci, M.D., Vincenzo Mazzaferro, M.D., Philip Hilgard, M.D., Edward Gane, Sorafenib in Advanced Hepatocellular Carcinoma, N Engl J Med 2008;359:378-390
- 2. Songporn Oranratnachai, Sasivimol Rattanasiri, Ekaphop Sirachainan, Amarit Tansawet, Nilubol Raunroadroong, Gareth J. McKay, John Attia, Ammarin Thakkinstian, Treatment outcomes of advanced hepatocellular carcinoma in real-life practice: Chemotherapy versus multikinase inhibitors, 09 September 2022



# SHINING LIGHT ON A DARK DIAGNOSIS: EDP-MITOTANE'S PROMISE ADRENOCORTICAL CARCINOMA. A CASE REPORT

Nurfarhana Abbas<sup>1</sup>, Noor Nabila Mohamed<sup>1</sup> *Institut Kanser Negara* 

#### **BACKGROUND**

Adrenocortical carcinoma (ACC) is rare yet aggressive malignancy. Surgical resection remains the cornerstone of curative treatment. Mitotane is the only approved systemic therapy for ACC, used in adjuvant and advanced disease. Mitotane, with etoposide, doxorubicin, cisplatin (EDP) combination, known for its significant toxicity with limited supporting evidence. Given these complexities, we present a compelling case of ACC treated with EDP-Mitotane combination.

#### CASE REPORT

This is a 31-year-old lady, presented with abdominal bloatedness in 2022. Computed Tomography (CT) thorax, abdomen and pelvis showed left adrenal mass of 30cm width, with subcentimeter liver nodules. Following this, she underwent left adrenalectomy, confirming the diagnosis of low-grade ACC. Post-operatively, she commenced adjuvant therapy with Mitotane 1g BD. Positron emission tomography (PET) scan after 4 months revealed multiple new liver lesions, largest being 2.2cm. Multidisciplinary team (MDT) discussion led to a decision for Selective Internal Radiation Therapy (SIRT) to liver lesions. However, subsequent CT Liver 4 phase showed further disease progression in the liver and new lung lesions, accompanied with grade 1 diarrhea and abdominal discomfort. Another MDT discussion led to initiation of EDP-Mitotane in view of radiological and clinical progression. Till date, patient tolerated full dose of EDP, with Mitotane gradually increased from 2g to 6g daily by Cycle 4. Interim CT demonstrated no local recurrence and stable disease elsewhere.

#### DISCUSSION AND CONCLUSION

The landscape of ACC, marked by its unfavorable prognosis and high risk of recurrence. Despite suboptimal evidence for therapeutic approaches, Mitotane-EDP combination represents a ray of optimism in the management of ACC. Multidisciplinary collaboration remains crucial in navigating treatment regimen and enhancing patient outcome. In conclusion, ongoing exploration of emerging therapies and the necessity for precision medicine strategies, including molecular profiling, will play a pivotal role in future management of advanced ACC.

### REFERENCES

1. M. Fassnacht1,2, G. Assie3,4, E. Baudin5, G. Eisenhofer6, C. de la Fouchardiere7, H. R. Haak8,9,10,R. de Krijger11,12, F. Porpiglia13,14, M. Terzolo15 & Emp; A. Berruti16, on behalf of the ESMO Guidelines Committee, Adrenocortical carcinomas and malignant phaeochromocytomas: ESMOeEURACAN Clinical Practice Guidelines for diagnosis, treatment and follow-up, https://doi.org/10.1016/j.annonc.2020.08.2099, Volume 31 - Issue 11 – 2020



- 2. Yadav R, Dassi V, Kumar A. Adrenocortical carcinoma with inferior vena cava thrombus: renal preserving surgery. Indian J Urol. 2016;32(2):161–3. https://doi.org/10.4103/0970-1591.174782.
- 3. Fassnacht M, Dekkers OM, Else T, Baudin E, Berruti A, de Krijger R, Haak HR, Mihai R, Assie G, Terzolo M. European Society of Endocrinology Clinical Practice Guidelines on the management of adrenocortical carcinoma in adults, in collaboration with the European Network for the Study of Adrenal Tumors. Eur J Endocrinol. 2018;179(4):G1–46. https://doi.org/10.1530/EJE-18-0608.



# K-TRACK<sup>TM</sup>: A STREAMLINED PERSONALIZED ASSAY TO DETECT MOLECULAR RESIDUAL DISEASE IN SOLID TUMORS

Van-Anh Nguyen Hoang<sup>1</sup>, MSc; Ngoc Nguyen<sup>1</sup>, BSc; Tu Nguyen<sup>1</sup>, MSc; Duy Sinh Nguyen<sup>1</sup>, MD, PhD; Lan N Tu<sup>1</sup>, PhD

<sup>1</sup>Medical Genetics Institute, Ho Chi Minh city, Vietnam

#### INTRODUCTION

Circulating tumor DNA (ctDNA) has emerged as a promising biomarker to monitor molecular residual disease (MRD) in solid tumors after curative-intent treatment. However, clinical validation data of ctDNA monitoring is lacking in Southeast Asian patients.

#### **MATERIALS & METHODS**

This prospective multi-center study enrolled 534 patients with colorectal (115), liver (60), lung (86), ovarian (17), breast cancer (162) and gastric cancer (94), respectively, who were eligible for curative-intent surgery. Genomic DNA extracted from tumor tissue and paired white blood cells was subjected to massive parallel sequencing of 150 cancer-related genes. A propietary algorithm ranked the top somatic mutations unique to each patient, which were then used to detect ctDNA in serial plasma samples.

#### **RESULTS**

The pre-operative detection rate of ctDNA was 91%, 97%, 62%, 65%, 57% and 46% for colorectal, liver, lung, ovarian, high-risk breast cancer and gastric cancer respectively; the specificity was >99% as ctDNA was not detected in the plasma from healthy donors. Our analysis after 24-month follow-up demonstrated that 86.2% (56/65) of patients with recurrence and/or metastasis had ctDNA detected in their post-operative plasma, while 98.2% (269/274) of patients with no recurrence had negative ctDNA results. On average, ctDNA detection was 5 months (up to 14.4 months) earlier than clinical diagnosis by imaging or pathology. Post-operative ctDNA was also found as an independent prognostic factor for disease-free survival in multiple types of cancer (p<0.001).

#### **DISCUSSION**

K-Track<sup>™</sup> assay demonstrated clinical utility of ctDNA monitoring after definitive therapy with high sensitivity and specificity comparable to other platforms [1].

#### **CONCLUSION**

Longitudinal ctDNA monitoring could predict disease-free survival and enable early relapse detection in multiple types of cancer. Our simplified and cost-effective approach enables MRD monitoring to be more accessible in routine clinical practice in developing countries.

### REFERENCES

1. Moding EJ, Nabet BY, Alizadeh AA, Diehn M. Detecting Liquid Remnants of Solid Tumors: Circulating Tumor DNA Minimal Residual Disease. Cancer Discov 2021; 11: 2968-2986.



#### A RARE CASE OF CRIBRIFORM-MORULAR THYROID CARCINOMA

Fatin NR, Karthikeashvaren S Department of General Surgery, Hospital Seberang Jaya, Penang, Malaysia

#### INTRODUCTION

Cribriform-Morular Thyroid Carcinoma (CMTC) is a rare type of thyroid carcinoma with uncertain histogenesis. It is strongly associated with familial adenomatous polyposis (FAP), an autosomal dominant inherited disorder which predispose individuals to the development of polyps in the colon but may also occur sporadically. Owing to the rarity of CMTC, there are limited number of case reports especially in Malaysia. The objective of this research is to report a rare form of thyroid malignancy to add to the existing literature and to guide further management of such rare case.

#### CASE REPORT

We present a case of a 21 years old female patient presented with enlarging goiter, with solitary thyroid nodule who after left hemithyroidectomy was found to have cribriform-morular thyroid carcinoma with no history of FAP. Initial ultrasound revealed a TIRADS 4 solitary left thyroid nodule measuring 3.1x 3.8x 5.7cm. FNAC taken prior to surgery showed benign follicular nodule. Patient then underwent endoscopic left hemithyroidectomy via breast, axillary and shoulder approach. Post operative histopathology reported as cribriform-morular thyroid carcinoma. In view of strong relation of CMTC with familial adenomatous polyposis (FAP), patient was scheduled for surveillance colonoscopy and esophagus gastroduodenoscopy (OGDS) which came out as normal. Genetic testing was not done for this patient however it is recommended.

#### DISCUSSION

Cribriform-morular thyroid carcinoma is a rare type of thyroid cancer with unique clinical, pathological and morphological features. Goiter can be a first presentation of FAP. Upon diagnosis of CMTC, patients should be screened for colonic polyposis and counselled for genetic testing.

# **CONCLUSION**

The prognosis is usually favorable with low recurrence rate. Completion of thyroidectomy for CMTC still remains a conundrum however long term follow up is still warranted.

# **KEYWORDS**

cribriform-morular thyroid carcinoma, familial adenomatous polyposis



# UNMET SUPPORTIVE CARE NEEDS IN WOMEN WITH ADVANCED BREAST CANCER IN A MALAYSIAN SETTING

Harenthri Devy Alagir Rajah<sup>1</sup>, Yee Yin Hoo<sup>1</sup>, Nur Fadhlina Abdul Satar<sup>2</sup>, Muthukkumaran Thiagarajan<sup>3</sup>, Cheng Har Yip<sup>4</sup>, Noelle Wong<sup>5</sup>, Nirmala Bhoo-Pathy<sup>1</sup>

1 Department of Social and Preventive Medicine, Faculty of Medicine UM, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

2 Department of Clinical Oncology, Faculty of Medicine UM, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia 3 Department of Oncology, Hospital Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia 4 Department of Surgery, Subang Jaya Medical Center, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia 5 Novartis Oncology, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

#### **INTRODUCTION**

Women with advanced breast cancer (ABC) often feel secluded from global breast cancer movements due to the predominant focus on early detection and survivorship, limited representation in advocacy, different medical and emotional needs, and stigma surrounding their condition. We sought to identify the most prevalent unmet supportive care need among women with ABC and the associated factors in a Malaysian setting.

#### **MATERIALS&METHODS**

This cross-sectional analysis utilized data of 350 women either newly diagnosed or with recurrent ABC (stage IIIB, IIIC, IV) from 2022-2024 in Hospital Kuala Lumpur (Ministry of Health [MOH]), University Malaya Medical Centre (academic) and Subang Jaya Medical Centre (private). Data on supportive care needs were collected via a locally developed and validated tool via face-to-face interviews. Multivariable logistic regression was employed.

#### **RESULTS**

Of the five domains (emotional, hospital appointment, information, personal care and health, social and intimate relationship), unmet information needs were highest (overall: 76%) including understanding doctor's communication (73.1%), being well-informed of treatment options and test results (67.6%), receiving written information (61.1%), and information on complementary medicine (60.6%). Multivariable analysis revealed that ethnicity and type of hospital were significantly associated with information needs, after adjusting for sociodemographic and clinical factors. The Chinese were less likely to have information needs (odd ratios (OR):0.52[95%CI 0.28-0.97]) compared to their Malay counterparts. Patients (OR:0.21[95%CI:0.09-0.49]) treated the MOH and private hospitals (OR:0.09[95%CI:0.02-0.32]) were also significantly less likely to report information needs compared to those managed in the academic hospital.

# **DISCUSSION**

Unmet informational needs are prevalent among three-quarters of women with ABC, with significant ethnic and institutional disparities. Addressing these needs with culturally sensitive communication should not require excessive resources and remains feasible in our setting.



#### **CONCLUSION**

Collaboration among healthcare institutions, policymakers, and civil societies can effectively meet informational needs, enhancing the wellbeing of women with ABC.

- 1. Arnold M, Morgan E, Rumgay H, et al. Current and future burden of breast cancer: Global statistics for 2020 and 2040. Breast. 2022 Dec;66:15-23. doi: 10.1016/j.breast.2022.08.010. Epub 2022 Sep 2. PMID: 36084384; PMCID: PMC9465273.
- 2. Report highlights inequalities and hidden suffering among people living with breast cancer https://www.cam.ac.uk/stories/lancet-breast-cancer-commission
- 3. Kong YC, Danaee M, Kaur R, et al. Development and Validation of a Dual-Language (English and Malay) Needs Assessment Tool for Breast Cancer (NeAT-BC). Diagnostics (Basel). 2023 Jan 9;13(2):241. doi: 10.3390/diagnostics13020241.



35<sup>th</sup> Annual Scientific Congress of Malaysian Oncological Society *PD-26 A-0161* 

# ADULT NEPHROBLASTOMA (WILMS' TUMOUR): A CASE REPORT

Dr Dorothy Linda Savarimuthu, Dr Angel Kwan Khor Nee, Dr Chan Ming Jun, Dr Lavannia Rajaratenam

Hospital Raja Permaisuri Bainun (HRPB), Perak, Malaysia

# **INTRODUCTION**

Nephroblastoma (Wilms' tumor) is one of the most common childhood solid malignant neoplasms. Adult nephroblastoma is extremely rare and accounts for <1% of all renal tumours<sup>1</sup>. Due to the scarcity of adult cases, there are no standard treatments available. Adult Wilms' tumor poses a challenge in preoperative diagnosis due to its radiological mimicry of renal cell carcinoma (RCC). Mostly diagnosed unexpectedly post-nephrectomy for presumed RCC. We reported a case of adult nephroblastoma.

#### **REPORT**

A 46-year-old lady presented with right flank pain in October 2022 and detected a huge right renal mass in ultrasound. CT renal showed a large lobulated, heterogenous enhancing mass at the right kidney. There were no secondaries detected after complete staging.

She underwent an open right radical nephrectomy on 3/2/23. Histopathological examination revealed a unifocal tumour with a pseudocapsule confined to the kidney. Microscopically, cells exhibited a triphasic pattern, predominantly epithelial cells with some blastermal cells and stromal components. No sinus vessels were involved with clear margins. Immunohistochemically positive for WT1, PAX8, BRAF, and CD56 but negative for CK7, CK20, LCA, AMACR, EMA, chromogranin, and synaptophysin, suggesting epithelial predominant nephroblastoma.

She completed the adjuvant chemotherapy EE-4A regimen, which consists of 18 weeks of vincristine and dactinomycin, according to the National Wilms' Tumor Study Group (NWTS)/Children Oncology Group (COG) protocol, in September 2023. Treatment toxicity included reversible Grade 3 acute kidney injury and Grade 1 peripheral neuropathy. She is currently in remission up to date with surveillance imaging.

### **CONCLUSION**

Most advanced stages at diagnosis are due to rarity of the adult nephroblastoma, unlike low stage with good prognosis in our case. Oncologic prognosis in adults is usually worse than in children, with poorer treatment tolerability. Stage-appropriate multimodality treatment approaches in adult nephroblastoma extrapolated from the National Wilms' Tumor Study Group (NWTS)/Children Oncology Group (COG) protocol are recommended<sup>2,3</sup>.

# **REFERENCES**

- 1. Szychot E, Apps J, Pritchard-Jones K. Wilms' tumor: biology, diagnosis and treatment. Transl Pediatr. 2014 Jan;3(1):12-24.
- 2. Segers H, van den Heuvel-Eibrink MM, Pritchard-Jones K et al. Management of adults with Wilms' tumor: recommendations based on international consensus. Expert Rev Anticancer Ther. 2011 Jul;11(7):1105-13.
- 3. Kalapurakal JA, Nan B, Norkool P et al. Treatment outcomes in adults with favourable histologic type Wilms tumor-an update from the National Wilms Tumor Study Group. Int J Radiat Oncol Biol Phys. 2004 Dec 1;60(5):1379

#### **KEYWORDS**

Nephroblastoma, Wilms' Tumor, Chemotherapy, Adult



35<sup>th</sup> Annual Scientific Congress of Malaysian Oncological Society *PD-27 A-0167* 

# IMPACT OF A DIGITAL EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM ON NURSES' KNOWLEDGE AND ATTITUDES TOWARD PAIN ASSESSMENT AND MANAGEMENT IN A MALAYSIAN ONCOLOGY HOSPITAL

Dr Sim Lan Koon, Nor Amirah Zamri, Puay Kuan Teh, Jessica Tan Beacon Hospital, Petaling Jaya, Malaysia

#### INTRODUCTION

Prevalence of pain is high in cancer patients and nurses have a pivotal role in influencing patients' pain experience (Mejin et al., 2019). Digital technology can be a useful modality in education but its effectiveness in healthcare education is equivocal.

#### **MATERIALS & METHODS**

This quasi-experimental study, with one group pre-test and post-test design, evaluated Malaysian nurses' knowledge and attitudes toward pain assessment and pain management using the 'Knowledge and Attitudes Survey Regarding Pain'(KASRP) questionnaires before, immediately after, and five months after a digital educational program. Paired data was collected and the Wilcoxon Signed Rank Test was used to measure the differences in scores.

#### RESULTS

The knowledge and attitudes towards pain assessment and pain management of the 69 nurses before implementation of the digital educational program were poor with the average score of  $51\%\pm12.37$  in the KASRP. Following the educational intervention, the mean total score was  $59.73\%\pm16.44$  (p<0.001). Five months after the educational program, the mean total score was  $60.18\%\pm15.04$  (p<0.001).

### **DISCUSSION**

Similar to the study done by Yaakup, Tan & Shah (2014), the level of knowledge and attitudes towards pain assessment and pain management among nursing staff in this study, before the educational intervention was poor. However, the accessibility and flexibility of the digital program has facilitated continuous learning and significantly improved the nurses' knowledge and attitude towards pain. This indicated that digital learning can be an efficient modality in delivering continuing education and training for nursing professionals.

#### **CONCLUSION**

This study demonstrated that although Malaysian nurses' knowledge and attitudes toward pain assessment and pain management is poor, a digital educational intervention can be an efficient way to improve that. However, in order to have continuous improvement in the nurses' knowledge and attitudes, further refresher courses on the topic is needed.



- 1. Mejin, M., Keowmani, T., Rahman, S. A., Liew, J., Lai, J., Chua, M., & Wan, I. C. (2019). Prevalence of pain and treatment outcomes among cancer patients in a Malaysian palliative care unit, Pharmacy practice, 17(1), 1397. https://doi.org/10.18549/PharmPract.2019.1.1397
- 2. Yaakup, H., Eng, T. C., & Shah, S. A. (2014). Does clinical experience help oncology nursing staff to deal with patient pain better than nurses from other disciplines? Knowledge and attitudes survey amongst nurses in a tertiary care in Malaysia. *Asian Pacific journal of cancer prevention:* APJCP, 15(12), 4885–4891. https://doi.org/10.7314/apjcp.2014.15.12.4885



35<sup>th</sup> Annual Scientific Congress of Malaysian Oncological Society *PD-28 A-0169* 

# ERYTHROCYTOSIS: A RARE BUT DISTINCTIVE COMPLICATIONS IN HEPATOCELLULAR CARCINOMA PATIENTS TREATED WITH LENVATINIB.

Johnson Hd, Ratnavelu K Columbia Asia Bukit Rimau

# INTRODUCTION

Lenvatinib is an oral multikinase inhibitor that targets pathogenic angiogenesis and tumour proliferation which now has FDA approval for usage in solid tumours comprising of thyroid, renal cell and hepatocellular carcinoma [1]. The common adverse effects of Lenvatinib that has been reported in various clinical trials inclusive of pivotal hepatocellular carcinoma (HCC) trial does not entail erythrocytosis; a rare occurrence that imposes thromboembolic risk seen in other common anti-angiogeneic drugs [2]. However, a retrospective cohort study of 23 patients with advanced HCC that has been treated with Lenvatinib has reported frequent and specific erythrocytosis irrespective of Lenvatinib dose in this group of patients [3]. Ironically, this phenomenon is only observed in HCC patients receiving Lenvatinib and not in other tumour groups like thyroid or renal cell carcinoma having treated with same drug [3,4].

#### REPORT

This case reports explores an insidious occurrence of erythrocytosis in a 61 years old ,newly diagnosed HCC BCLC B with a baseline Child Pugh Score of 6 upon initiation of Lenvatinib. He was initially started on Lenvatinib 12mg OD dose after which he developed Grade 2 diorrhea whereby his Lenvatinib dose was reduced to 8mg OD within three weeks of treatment. He presented with a flushed facies , intermittent headache and fatigue at week eight which set off clinical workup that revealed erythrocytosis. His haemoglobin (Hb) levels were at 18.8g/dl, packed cell volume (PCV) of 62% and erythrocyte sedimentation rate (ESR) of 9mm/hr. Upon retrospective review, it was noted that his Hb levels and PCV were steadily increasing paired a steady decline in his ESR despite being asymptomatic clinically. Medical team expertise were sought in deciding need for thrombolysis, thromboprophylaxis as well as venesection as indicated. His blood parameters returns to baseline with temporary withdrawal of lenvatinib which further supported our clinical diagnosis.

#### **CONCLUSION**

In conclusion, erythrocytosis a potentially rare but distinctive complication in hcc patients receiving lenvatinib that warrants high clinical suspicion and close clinical monitoring in this group of patients.

- 1. Kudo M, Finn RS, Qin S, Han KH, Ikeda K, Piscaglia F, Baron A, Park JW, Han G, Jassem J, Blanc JF. Lenvatinib versus sorafenib in first-line treatment of patients with unresectable hepatocellular carcinoma: a randomised phase 3 non-inferiority trial. The Lancet. 2018 Mar 24;391(10126):1163-73.
- 2. Tohyama O, Matsui J, Kodama K, Hata-Sugi N, Kimura T, Okamoto K, Minoshima Y, Iwata M, Funahashi Y. Antitumor activity of lenvatinib (e7080): an angiogenesis inhibitor



- that targets multiple receptor tyrosine kinases in preclinical human thyroid cancer models. Journal of thyroid research. 2014;2014(1):638747.
- 3. Legros L, Pascale A, Guettier C, Eftekhari P, Merabet YB, Stang M, Bossevot R, Goldschmidt E, Ulusakarya A, Morisset S, Lewin M. Progressive erythrocytosis under lenvatinib treatment in patients with advanced hepatocellular carcinoma. Cancer Chemotherapy and Pharmacology. 2023 Apr;91(4):337-
- 4. Kaur J, Tuler S, Dasanu CA. Sustained erythrocytosis due to the use of Lenvatinib. Journal of Oncology Pharmacy Practice. 2022 Mar;28(2):475-8.



# COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS OF SYSTEMATIC AND RANDOM ERRORS IN TUMOR LOCALIZATION FOR HEAD AND NECK CANCER IMRT

Zul Iskandar Johari<sup>1,2</sup>, Nor Aniza Azmi<sup>1</sup>, Nur Fa'izah Ab Muin<sup>3</sup>, Rukiah A Latiff<sup>1</sup>,
Muhammad Safwan Ahmad Fadzil<sup>1</sup>, Rosmizan Ahmad Razali<sup>3</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Centre for Diagnostic, Therapeutic, and Investigative Studies (CODTIS), Faculty of Health
Sciences, Universiti Kebangsaan Malaysia, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

<sup>2</sup>Medical Radiation Surveillance Division, Ministry of Health Malaysia, Putrajaya, Malaysia

<sup>3</sup>Radiotherapy and Oncology Department, Hospital Canselor Tuanku Muhriz, Cheras, Kuala
Lumpur, Malaysia

#### INTRODUCTION

Head and neck cancers (HNC) often require precise radiotherapy due to the complexity of the anatomical structures involved. Accurate tumor localization is crucial to minimize damage to healthy tissues and improve treatment outcomes. This study aims to compare systematic errors (consistent, reproducible deviations) and random errors (unpredictable deviations) in tumor location during Intensity-Modulated Radiation Therapy (IMRT) for head and neck cancer.

### **MATERIALS & METHODS**

A retrospective analysis was conducted on the IMRT treatment plans of 50 patients with HNC. Systematic errors were assessed using initial setup deviations recorded during image-guided radiotherapy (IGRT) sessions. Random errors were evaluated by analyzing daily positional variations from the mean setup position. Data was analyzed using statistical software to quantify the magnitude of systematic and random errors.

### **RESULTS**

The mean systematic error in tumor localization was found to be 2.5 mm ( $\pm 11.0$  mm). The mean random error was recorded as 1.6 mm ( $\pm 0.9$  mm). Systematic errors were more prevalent in the anterior-posterior direction, while random errors were more evenly distributed across all axes. The frequency and magnitude of errors were influenced by tumor site and patient-specific factors.

# **DISCUSSION**

Systematic errors primarily resulted from consistent setup inaccuracies and patient movement patterns. Random errors were influenced by day-to-day variations in patient positioning and anatomical changes during treatment. Understanding these errors allows for better planning and adaptive strategies to mitigate their impact. The study highlights the need for robust IGRT protocols and adaptive radiotherapy approaches to address both types of errors.

### **CONCLUSION**

Both systematic and random errors significantly impact tumor localization in head and neck IMRT. Accurate initial setup and continuous monitoring are essential to reduce these errors. Future research should focus on advanced imaging techniques and adaptive radiotherapy to further minimize errors and enhance treatment precision. This structured comparison provides



valuable insights into the nature and management of localization errors, ultimately aiming to improve therapeutic outcomes for head and neck cancer patients.

#### REFERENCE

- 1. Abubakar, A., Zamri, N. A. M., Shaukat, S. I., & Mohd Zin, H. (2021). Automated algorithm for calculation of setup corrections and planning target volume margins for offline image-guided radiotherapy protocols. Journal of Applied Clinical Medical Physics, 22(7), 137–146.
- 2. Jain, V., Soni, T. P., Singh, D. K., Patni, N., Jakhotia, N., Gupta, A. K., ... & Singhal, H. (2023). A prospective study to assess and quantify the setup errors with cone-beam computed tomography in head-and-neck cancer image-guided radiotherapy treatment. Journal of Cancer Research and Therapeutics, 19(3), 783-787.

#### **KEYWORDS**

Systematic Error; Random Error; Intensity-Modulated Radiation Therapy; Head and Neck Cancer; Patient Positioning Setup



#### CASE REPORT: ADRENOCORTICAL CARCINOMA IN TWO YEARS OLD GIRL

Andi Cahyadi<sup>1</sup>, Nur Rochmah<sup>2</sup>, Mia Ratwita Andarsini<sup>1</sup>, Muhammad Faizi<sup>2</sup>, I Dewa Gede Ugrasena<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Hematology Oncology Division, Department of Child Health, Faculty of Medicine, Universitas Airlangga/Dr. Soetomo General Academic Hospital, Surabaya, Indonesia <sup>2</sup>Endocrinology Division, Department of Child Health, Faculty of Medicine, Universitas Airlangga/Dr. Soetomo General Academic Hospital, Surabaya, Indonesia

# **INTRODUCTION**

Pediatric adrenocortical carcinoma (ACC), originating from the adrenal cortex is a rare and aggressive cancer. The tumor causes endocrine disturbances and occasionally an abdominal mass. The ACC will cause endocrine disturbances, such as virilization alone or in combination with hypercortisolism, hyperestrogenism, and isolated Cushing syndrome. Diagnosis involves a combination of imaging studies, hormone levels, and histopathology. Because of its rarity, especially in pediatric patients, we report a case of adrenocortical carcinoma in an earlier age of a girl.

#### **REPORT**

A 2-year-old girl presented with clitoromegaly. Pubic and axillary hair had appeared in the last one-year-old. The mother also complained of acne and excessive sweating since the age of 6 months. She was growing tall rapidly (>95% percentile CDC 2000, BMI 15.5). The pubertal status was Tanner Stage A2M1P2 and Prader 1. The AFP, beta-HCG, LDH, NSE, 17-OHP, electrolyte, and morning cortisol were normal. The DHEA increases reaching >1500 mcg/dL. The ultrasonography revealed a solid mass on the posterior inferior of the left kidney. A solid suprarenal mass bordered with the left kidney and normal right adrenal was found on the abdominal CT scan. Core biopsy was inconclusive for rhabdomyosarcoma, Wilms tumor, and adrenal tumor. She was treated with hydrocortisone by an endocrinologist. After seven months, the multidisciplinary collaboration between pediatric oncologists, surgeons, endocrinologists, pathologists, and radiologists decided on tumor excision to obtain accurate histopathology samples. Immunohistochemistry concluded adrenocortical carcinoma. The pediatric oncologist gave chemotherapy with cisplatin, etoposide, and doxorubicin in eight cycles, without Mitotane (unavailable in our hospital). The prognosis may be better for younger age, the localized tumor, and small size (<10 cm). The DHEA fell to 15 mcg/dL after surgery. The pubic hair, axillary hair, acne, and perspiration were gradually disappearing.

#### **CONCLUSION**

Proper and rapid diagnosis is important for better management of pediatric adrenocortical carcinoma.

#### REFERENCE

1. Lam AK. Adrenocortical Carcinoma: Updates of Clinical and Pathological Features after Renewed World Health Organisation Classification and Pathology Staging. Biomedicines.



- 2021 Feb 10;9(2):175. doi: 10.3390/biomedicines9020175. PMID: 33578929; PMCID: PMC7916702.
- 2. Ilanchezhian M, Varghese DG, Glod JW, Reilly KM, Widemann BC, Pommier Y, Kaplan RN, Del Rivero J. Pediatric adrenocortical carcinoma. Front Endocrinol (Lausanne). 2022 Oct 31;13:961650. doi: 10.3389/fendo.2022.961650. PMID: 36387865; PMCID: PMC9659577.
- 3. Sandru F, Petca RC, Carsote M, Petca A, Dumitrascu MC, Ghemigian A. Adrenocortical carcinoma: Pediatric aspects (Review). Exp Ther Med. 2022 Apr;23(4):287. doi: 10.3892/etm.2022.11216. Epub 2022 Feb 16. PMID: 35317446; PMCID: PMC8908472.
- 4. Zagojska E, Malka M, Gorecka A, Ben-Skowronek I. Case Report: Adrenocortical carcinoma in children-symptoms, diagnosis, and treatment. Front Endocrinol (Lausanne). 2023 Nov 21;14:1216501. doi: 10.3389/fendo.2023.1216501. PMID: 38075063; PMCID: PMC10702754.
- 5. Gupta N, Rivera M, Novotny P, Rodriguez V, Bancos I, Lteif A. Adrenocortical Carcinoma in Children: A Clinicopathological Analysis of 41 Patients at the Mayo Clinic from 1950 to 2017. Horm Res Paediatr. 2018;90(1):8-18. doi: 10.1159/000488855. Epub 2018 May 25. PMID: 29804118.



#### A CASE OF EXTRANEURAL METASTASES IN ANAPLASTIC EPENDYMOMA

Dr S.B Harjun, DR Ngu

Radiotherapy, Oncology and Palliative Department Sarawak General Hospital

#### INTRODUCTION

Ependymomas are rare glial tumours that typically arise from the central nervous system. Recurrences usually occur at the primary site or spinal cord, with extraneural metastases being uncommon.

#### **METHOD**

A case report of anaplastic ependymoma metastasizing to the cervical lymph node and scalp.

#### RESULTS

A 32-year-old woman was initially diagnosed with grade 2 right parietal ependymoma in 2009. She had local recurrence in 2013 which she had tumour resection followed by adjuvant radiotherapy 54Gy/30#/6weeks. She subsequently had local recurrence in 2017 and 2020 which tumour resection was histologically confirm to be grade 2 ependymoma. In 2023, there was local recurrence involving the scalp. Due to the extent of surgery, she was given 3 cycles of neoadjuvant chemotherapy but CT scan shows progressive disease. She eventually underwent tumour excision with extensive scalp removal and flap covering. HPE showed malignant transformation to anaplastic ependymoma. Due to nature of disease she was counselled for reirradiation to tumour bed and planned for 60Gy/30#/6weeks. During mid-course of radiotherapy noted she had enlarged right cervical lymph node which biopsy confirmed to be metastatic anaplastic ependymoma. CT restaging confirmed multiple right cervical lymphadenopathy with no other distant metastases. She began concurrent treatment with temozolomide and completed it in February 2024 after soughting expert opinion from neurooncologist subspecialty and MDT (ASCO neuroMDT). NGS was also sent for further tumour profiling. She continues with adjuvant systemic temozolomide therapy.

# **CONCLUSION**

Anaplastic Ependymoma with extraneural metastases is exceedingly rare. Transformation from grade 2 to anaplastic ependymoma is possible. Due to the uncommon nature of such metastases and the absence of standardized treatment protocols, this patient was managed with salvage chemotherapy to control her disease. NGS is also an important tool in rare tumour potentially providing guided targeted therapy options.



35<sup>th</sup> Annual Scientific Congress of Malaysian Oncological Society *EP-02 A-0011* 

# UPDATED PATIENT-LEVEL NETWORK META-ANALYSIS OF FIRST-LINE SYSTEMIC THERAPIES FOR ADVANCED HEPATOCELLULAR CARCINOMA

Qin Jian Low, Seng Wee Cheo, Choon Seong Ang, 'Izzati Binti Wan Maharuddin, Chan Teng Chong, Ming Ruey Ngu, Jie Yi Eng, Yusra Binti Hadi, Hadi Bin Ab. Jalil, Fook Yew Heng, Yueh Ni Lim, Pei Jye Voon

Department of Radiotherapy, Oncology, Palliative Care, Hospital Umum Sarawak, Malaysia

#### **ABSTRACT INFORMATION**

Patient-Level Network Meta-Analysis

#### **BACKGROUND**

The field of aHCC continued to evolve with the publications of LEAP-002, IMbrave 150, RATIONALE-301, CARES-310, Checkmate 459, ORIENT-32, HIMALAYA and COSMIC-312 prompting a re-evaluation of the current evidence and necessitating an analysis of relative treatment efficacy within individual subgroups. The objective of this systemic review and patient-level network meta-analysis (NMA) was to evaluate the assortment of first line systemic therapy for advanced HCC (aHCC), harnessing the ability of new method termed Kaplan Meier (KM) subtraction to obtain patient level information.

#### **METHODOLOGY**

A comprehensive systemic literature search was conducted on PubMed, EMBASE, Scopus and the Cochrane Controlled Register of Trials for phase III randomized controlled trials investigating first-line systemic immunotherapy (IO) combination therapies for aHCC. Kaplan-Meier curves for overall survival (OS) and progression-free survival (PFS) was graphically reconstructed to retrieve individual patient-level data. Data were summarized as hazard ratios (HR) with 95% confidence intervals. Two reviewers independently assessed eligibility and quality of studies using a modified version of Detsky Quality Scale. We applied KMsubstraction in R to obtain individual patient level data from the trials for subsequent metanalysis.

# **RESULTS**

Eight trials (LEAP-002, IMbrave 150, RATIONALE-301, CARES-310, Checkmate 459, ORIENT-32, HIMALAYA, COSMIC-312) representing 5834 patients were included in the final analysis. KM analysis showed overall survival benefit of IO based combination therapy over single agent TKI. Sub-group analysis showed MVI/EHS, BCLC C and hepatitis B favored IO based combinations over TKI alone. There is a survival benefit with IO-IO combination regimen in non-viral aHCC.

#### **CONCLUSION**

Our robust individual patient data NMAs supports IO combination regimen as first line therapy and results from subgroup analysis may guide personalization according to baseline characteristics.

### **KEYWORDS**

Hepatocellular carcinoma, Immunotherapy, Meta-analysis.



35<sup>th</sup> Annual Scientific Congress of Malaysian Oncological Society *EP-03 A-0012* 

# ASSESSING THE OVERALL EFFECTIVENESS OF MOUTHWASHES IN REDUCING ORAL MUCOSITIS PAIN DURING CHEMORADIOTHERAPY IN NASOPHARYNGEAL CARCINOMA PATIENTS

Rhubain Mageswaran<sup>1</sup>, Zen Yang Ang<sup>1,2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Pharmacy, Kuala Lumpur Hospital, Jalan Pahang, Pekeliling, 53000 Kuala Lumpur, Wilayah Persekutuan Kuala Lumpur.

<sup>2</sup>Institute for Health Systems Research, National Institutes of Health, Block B2, No. 1, Jalan Setia Murni U13/52, Seksyen U13, Setia Alam, 40170 Shah Alam, Selangor.

#### INTRODUCTION

This longitudinal study evaluated the overall efficacy of mouthwashes in mucositis-related pain in nasopharyngeal carcinoma (NPC) patients undergoing concurrent chemoradiotherapy (CCRT).

#### **MATERIALS & METHODS**

A longitudinal study enrolled 79 NPC patients receiving CCRT. Patients were interviewed three times in the 3<sup>rd</sup>, 5<sup>th</sup> and 7<sup>th</sup> weeks of treatment for pain scores before and after using each of the prescribed mouthwashes, which could include lidocaine, benzydamine, aspirin, sodium bicarbonate, Oral7®, Magic and nystatin mouthwashes. Pain score reduction was calculated.

# **RESULTS**

Fifty-nine participants completed three interviews, in which 490 instances of mouthwash use were observed throughout the treatment. The median pain score reduction for lidocaine (112 observations) was 2 (IQR, 3), while for the Magic mouthwash, 12 observations), the median pain score reduction was 1.5 (IQR, 1). The pain score reduction of these 2 mouthwashes was significantly higher than benzydamine, aspirin, sodium bicarbonate, Oral7®, and nystatin.

# **DISCUSSION**

Our study findings regarding the cumulative reduction in total pain scores suggest that lidocaine mouthwash is the most consistently effective option, followed by Magic mouthwash. Despite the constant evolution of various factors such as chemoradiotherapy type, treatment interruptions, mucositis grade, immune function, side effects, dysphagia, mucosal healing rate, trismus, and others, these mouthwashes demonstrate effectiveness<sup>1</sup>. However, our results suggested that a combination mouthwash containing a local anaesthetic with a secondary component such as an antihistamine or anti-inflammatory agent, while beneficial, was less potent compared to a higher dose of local anaesthetic alone<sup>2</sup>. Users of benzydamine mouthwash reported increased pain, possibly due to the alcohol content in the formulation causing mucosal irritation<sup>3</sup>.

#### **CONCLUSION**

The preferred overall choice was lignocaine mouthwash, followed by Magic mouthwash for treating mucositis pain in NPC patients receiving CCRT.



- 1. Elad S, Cheng KKF, Lalla RV, et al. (2020) MASCC/ISOO clinical practice guidelines for the management of mucositis secondary to cancer therapy. Cancer. 126(19):4423-31. https://doi.org/10.1002/cncr.33100. Accessed 4 October 2020
- 2. Li K, Ren X, Xie R (2023) Radiation-induced mucositis: A retrospective study of dexamethasone-lidocaine-vitamin B12 mouth rinse versus compound chlorhexidine mouthwash in nasopharyngeal carcinoma. Heliyon. 9(5):e15955. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.heliyon.2023.e15955. Accessed 4 October 2023.
- 3. BC Cancer (2019) Symptom Management Guidelines: ORAL MUCOSITIS [online]. British Columbia Provincial Health Services Authority. http://www.bccancer.bc.ca/nursing-site/Documents/12.%20Oral%20Mucositis.pdf. Accessed 4 October 2023.



## SUCCESFUL IVF PREGNANCY FOLLOWING RADICAL TRACHELECTOMY FOR EARLY CERVICAL CANCER. A CASE REPORT

Dr Badrul Zaman Muda<sup>1</sup>. Dr Jamil Omar<sup>2</sup>. Dr Fabian<sup>3</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Regency Specialist Hospital, Johor.

<sup>2</sup> National Cancer Institute, Putrajaya.

<sup>3</sup>TMC Fertility Centre, Johor.

#### INTRODUCTION

Surgically treated early cervical cancer disease normally renders women infertile, having the uterus cervix and vaginal cuff removed. In carefully selected women, uterine preservation and potential pregnancy can be considered in very early cervical cancer disease. We report a successful IVF pregnancy post radical trachelectomy surgery for stage 1B1 (FIGO 2018) cancer cervix.

#### **REPORT**

This 35 years old lady ,married for 9 years, was diagnosed of cervical carcinoma stage 1B1, ,post cervical polyp removal during ovum retrieval of IVF treatment (March 2023) .MRI pelvis, CT scan Thorax Abdomen Pelvis revealed a localized stage 1B1 disease.Treatment option of radical trachelectomy and pelvic node dissection was councelled, agreed upon and performed .After 6 months post surgery and 2 consequitive normal cervical smears review, the couple conceived following IVF treatment of single embryo transfer transvaginal approach (November 2023),Her current pregnancy is at 20 weeks gestation at the time of submission of this case report. She is currently on hormonal progesterone support and with a due delivery date on 18 August 2024.

#### **CONCLUSION**

Fertility sparing surgery by trained gynaeoncologists, strict patient selection criteria and access to assisted conception can allow and improve chances of conception in couples with early cervical cancer.

- 1. Covens A, Shaw P, Murphy J, DePetrillo D, Lickrish G, Laframboise S, Rosen B. Is radical trachelectomy a safe alternative to radical hysterectomy for patients with stage IA-B carcinoma of the cervix? Cancer. 1999;86(11):2273-2279.
- 2. Shepherd JH, Spencer C, Herod J, Ind TE. Radical vaginal trachelectomy as a fertility-sparing procedure in women with early-stage cervical cancer-cumulative pregnancy rate in a series of 123 women. BJOG. 2006;113(6):719-724.
- 3. John H. Shepherd, Cervical Cancer. Best practise & research clinical obstetrics and gynaecology. 2012; 26:293- 309. 16. Xu L, Sun FQ, Wang ZH. Radical trachelectomy versus radical hysterectomy for the treatment of early cervical cancer: a systematic review. Acta Obstet Gynecol Scand.
- 4. Royal College of Obstetricians and Gynaecologists, scientific impact paper No.35, Fertility sparing treatments in gynaecological cancers, 2013.
- 5. Machida H, Iwata T, Okugawa K, et al. Fertility-sparing trachelectomy for early-stage cervical cancer: A proposal of an ideal candidate. Gynecol Oncol 2020; 156:341.



#### THE IMPACT OF CHEMOTHERAPY COMPLETION AND RELATIVE DRUG INTENSITY ON OVERALL SURVIVAL OF BREAST, COLORECTAL AND LUNG CANCER PATIENTS

Gobi Hariyanayagam Gunasekaran <sup>1</sup>, Wan Mohd Akmal Bin Wan Sabri<sup>1</sup>, Khavisha Selvarajoo<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Oncology Pharmacy, Hospital Seri Manjung, Perak. <sup>2</sup>Surgical Department, Hospital Seri Manjung, Perak.

#### INTRODUCTION

The chemotherapy treatment for solid cancer is often disrupted by premature discontinuation or prolonging the treatment interval to complete the regimen[1]. Relative drug intensity (RDI; delivered total dose compared to standard protocol) is a method to evaluate the impact of the dosing on treatment outcome. This study aims to investigate the prevalence of chemotherapy completion and the effects of RDI >85% on overall survival in breast, colorectal, and lung cancer patients.

#### **MATERIALS & METHODS**

A retrospective cohort study was conducted among patients who received chemotherapy between Jan 2011 and Dec 2022 at Seri Manjung Hospital, Perak. The duration from the date of the first cycle until June 31, 2023, was analyzed as the survival function using Kaplan-Meier with a log-rank test, while Cox proportional hazard regression was used to adjust the hazard risk (AHR) with stratification for cancer type.

#### **RESULTS**

426 cancer patients (Breast: 273, Colorectal: 123, Lung: 30) were evaluated. The chemotherapy completion rate, RDI > 85%, and overall survival were as follows: [ (Breast: 79.5%, 56.8%, 66.7%), (Colorectal: 40.7%, 7.3%, 45.5%), (Lung: 23.3%, 16.7%, 13.3%)]. The survival function for patients with RDI > 85% for breast, colorectal, and lung cancer was 65.4%, p<.001, 88.9% p=.05, and 40.0%, p=.15, respectively. When RDI >85% was compared to RDI <85%, RDI> 85% lowered the risk of death by 0.82 times (AHR 0.82, 95% CI 0.47 -1.43; P=0.49) for breast cancer, by 0.33 times (AHR 0.33, 95% CI 0.04-2.5; P=.28) for colorectal cancer and was incomputable for lung cancer.

#### **DISCUSSION**

Dose delays and reduced RDI were common [2]. While RDI >85% correlated with higher overall survival, the impact of other variables, such as cancer stage and modality, plays a more significant risk in survival outcome.

#### **CONCLUSION**

These findings can be used to characterize the impact of chemotherapy dose modification tactics on mortality as well as identify possible risk factors.



#### **KEYWORDS**

Relative drug intensity, breast, colorectal, lung, cancer, overall survival

- 1. Gunasekaran, G. H., Hassali, M. A. B. A., Sabri, W. M. A. B. W., & Rahman, M. T. B. (2020). Impact of chemotherapy schedule modification on breast cancer patients: a single-centre retrospective study. *International journal of clinical pharmacy*, 42(2), 642-651.
- 2. Denduluri, N., Lyman, G. H., Wang, Y., Morrow, P. K., Barron, R., Patt, D., & Crawford, J. (2018). Chemotherapy dose intensity and overall survival among patients with advanced breast or ovarian cancer. *Clinical breast cancer*, 18(5), 380-386.



35<sup>th</sup> Annual Scientific Congress of Malaysian Oncological Society *EP-06 A-0018* 

### FACTORS INFLUENCING RESILIENCE IN PATIENTS WITH TERMINAL ILLNESSES: A CROSS SECTIONAL STUDY

Wan Jun Ng<sup>1</sup>, Nadirah Sulaiman<sup>2</sup>, Siti Hamidah Abdullah<sup>1</sup>, Amirul Syafiz Abdul Rahman<sup>1</sup> Queen Elizabeth Hospital, Kota Kinabalu, Malaysia

#### INTRODUCTION

Patients with advanced cancer or chronic organ failures often have "total pain" where physical decline can accentuate psycho-existential distress. Resilience is crucial in helping these patients to cope with adversity, but limited information is known about factors influencing it. This study aimed to explore physical, psycho-social and spiritual factors influencing resilience in patients with terminal illnesses

#### **METHODOLOGY**

This was a cross-sectional study on 64 patients admitted to palliative care unit, Queen Elizabeth Hospital from May 2023 to February 2024. Data were collected using a demographic data collection form, Integrated Palliative Outcome Scale (IPOS), FACIT-Spiritual Well-Being (FACIT-Sp-12), Big Five Personality Inventory-10 (BFI-10), Brief Resilient Coping Scale, Brief-COPE. Factors influencing resilience were analyzed using SPSS.

#### **RESULTS**

Majority of patients had advanced cancer (86%) while 14% had chronic organ failures. The mean Brief Resilience Scale was 14.81 (SD 2.65), with one third reported low resilience (score < 14). Coping strategies that had significant positive correlation with resilience include positive reframing (r=0.47, p<0.001), acceptance (r=0.30, p=0.02), religion (r=0.32, p=0.01) and active coping (r=0.54, p<0.001). Spiritual well being (r=0.48, p<0.001) was also associated with greater resilience. Denial (r=-0.34, p=0.01), behavioral disengagement (r=-0.40, p=0.001) and self-blame (r=-0.38, p=0.002) showed significant negative correlation with resilience. Impact of physical symptom burden on resilience did not reach statistical significance (p=0.06).

#### DISCUSSION/CONCLUSION

Coping styles and spiritual well being had significant influence on patient resilience in facing terminal illnesses. Spiritual care support and development of adaptive coping skills can help build resilience in this group of patients.



### SEVERE HYPERSENSITIVITY REACTION TO INTRAVENOUS ETOPOSIDE: A CASE REPORT

Elaine Kan<sup>1</sup>, Annandakumar Balakrishnan<sup>2</sup>, Vaishnavi Jeyasingam<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Pharmacy, Hospital Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.

<sup>2</sup>Department of Radiotherapy and Oncology, Hospital Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.

#### INTRODUCTION

Hypersensitivity reaction (HSR) to intravenous Etoposide is a rare but life-threatening adverse drug reaction (ADR). However, in germ cell tumour patients whom Etoposide-containing regimens are given with curative intent, omitting Etoposide may compromise treatment efficacy. We report the successful use of Etoposide Phosphate as a substitute for a patient who developed severe HSR to intravenous Etoposide.

#### REPORT

A 48-year old man with mediastinal seminoma and underlying end-stage renal disease (ESRD) was admitted for Cycle 1 Carboplatin/Etoposide (CBDCA+ETP).<sup>1</sup> Within minutes of Etoposide infusion, he developed shortness of breath, hypotension, tachycardia and dyspnoea. His symptoms resolved after administration of intravenous Chlorpheniramine, Hydrocortisone and supplemental oxygen. The patient was not rechallenged due to the life-threatening HSR. Although HSR to intravenous Etoposide is rare (1–3%), it may be severe and reactions usually occur within 10 minutes.<sup>2</sup> A suggested hypothesis for Etoposide-induced HSR is the vehicle to dissolve Etoposide (polysorbate 80 and benzyl alcohol) may be responsible.<sup>3</sup> Etoposide Phosphate is a water soluble prodrug of Etoposide that contains neither polysorbate 80 nor benzyl alcohol, and was designed to obviate HSR associated with intravenous Etoposide.<sup>4</sup> It has been successfully used in patients with previous HSR towards intravenous Etoposide, without allergic sequalae.<sup>5</sup> Since Etoposide Phosphate is not registered in Malaysia, its procurement requires an import permit. The patient subsequently received an equivalent dose of Etoposide Phosphate to the CBDCA+ETP regime. He tolerated the infusion well, did not exhibit any HSR and has been ongoing further cycles of CBDCA+ETP uneventfully.

#### **CONCLUSION**

This case highlights the experience of HSR to intravenous Etoposide which is a rare but potentially severe ADR. It presents a therapeutic challenge, particularly in cancer patients with ESRD, due to the complexities involved in selecting chemotherapeutic agents in this patient population. To avoid adverse sequelae, substitution with Etoposide Phosphate may be considered over a rechallenge.

#### REFERENCE

1. Pedrazzoli P, Silvestris N, Santoro A, Secondino S, Brunetti O, Longo V, Mancini E, Mariucci S, Rampino T, Delfanti S, Brugnatelli S, Cinieri S. Management of patients with end-stage renal disease undergoing chemotherapy: recommendations of the Associazione Italiana di Oncologia Medica (AIOM) and the Società Italiana di Nefrologia (SIN). ESMO Open. 2017 Jul 19;2(3):e000167.



- 2. Lazović B, Milenković V, Delić M, Mazić S, Jeremic K, Hrgović Z. Hypersensitivity to Etoposide in case of metastatic gestational choriocarcinoma. Case Rep Oncol. 2013 Sep 26;6(3):490-2.
- 3. Weiss RB (1996) Hypersensitivity reactions. In The Chemotherapy Source Book. Perry MC (ed) 2nd edn, pp 613 634 Baltimore: Williams & Wilkins
- 4. Schacter L (1996) Etoposide phosphate: What, why, where and how? Semin Oncol 23 (Suppl 13): 1-7
- 5. Siderov J, Prasad P, De Boer R, Desai J. Safe administration of etoposide phosphate after hypersensitivity reaction to intravenous etoposide. Br J Cancer. 2002 Jan 7;86(1):12-3

#### **KEYWORDS**

etoposide, etoposide phosphate, hypersensitivity, adverse drug reaction, end-stage renal disease



#### ASSESSING MOTION OF LUNG TUMOURS PTV DURING STEREOTACTIC BODY RADIOTHERAPY (SBRT): UTILIZING FOUR DIMENSIONAL COMPUTED TOMOGRAPHY (4DCT) AND THREE DIMENSIONAL COMPUTED TOMOGRAPHY (3DCT) IMAGING

How Chin Yee, Nurhaziqah Binti Roslan, Satishkumar A/L Sendisa Sagaram, Dr Fabian Lee Wei Luen, Meelashini A/P Letchumanan, Muhammad Taufiq Bin Azman, Chuah Kai Wei Adventist Oncology Centre

#### **INTRODUCTION & PURPOSE**

The study investigates the differences in evaluating tumour motion during Stereotactic Body Radiation Therapy (SBRT) using 4DCT and 3DCT image registration techniques. It aims to assess the precision of tumour motion tracking and how each modality accounts for variations induced by respiratory factors. Initial 4DCT scans evaluate intra-fractional changes in the PTV centroid and boundary, while post-treatment 3D CBCT scans assess inter-fractional set-up displacement.

#### **METHOD & MATERIAL**

Data were gathered from lung cancer patients undergoing SBRT between 2020 and 2023. Verification images were collected, and table shift details for lateral, longitudinal, and vertical motion were extracted for both imaging techniques. The numerical values of each shift were analysed.

#### **RESULTS**

The analysis reveals a maximum difference of  $0.7 \pm 0.5$  cm in image verification accuracy between 3DCT and 4DCT for patients before and after treatment. This indicates consistent precision across both techniques throughout the treatment process.

#### **DISCUSSION & CONCLUSION**

Results highlight 4DCT's high accuracy, particularly for tumours affected by respiratory motion, facilitating organ at risk (OAR) avoidance. Dual verification is typically used for aligning bony structures and tumours, more suitable for cases with minimal respiratory variability. Since tumour localization is influenced by respiratory motion, 4DCT effectively captures dynamic changes during the respiratory cycle. This suggests its superiority in accurately assessing tumour motion and optimizing treatment delivery during SBRT.

- 1. Harada, K., Katoh, N., Suzuki, R., Ito, Y. M., Shimizu, S., Onimaru, R., Inoue, T., Miyamoto, N., & Shirato, H. (2016, February 2). Evaluation of the motion of lung tumors during stereotactic body radiation therapy (SBRT) with four-dimensional computed tomography (4DCT) using real-time tumor-tracking radiotherapy system (RTRT). Physica Medica. https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S1120179715010145
- 2. Li, Y., Ma, J., Chen, X., Tang, F., & Zhang, X. (2016, November 15). Evaluation of the motion of lung tumors during stereotactic body radiation therapy (SBRT) with four-dimensional computed tomography (4DCT) using real-time tumor-tracking radiotherapy system (RTRT). Biomed central. https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S1120179715010145



## DOSIMETRIC STUDY ON THE EFFECT OF DENTAL IMPLANT IN EXTERNAL BEAM RADIOTHERAPY OF SALIVARY GLAND CANCER USING GEANT4 MONTE CARLO SIMULATION

Azizah NB<sup>1</sup>, Nurul Ab. Aziz Hashikin<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Cancer Centre, Sri Kota Specialist Medical Centre, Klang, Selangor, Malaysia

<sup>2</sup>School of Physics, Universiti Sains Malaysia, Penang, Malaysia

#### INTRODUCTION

The majority of patients with head and neck cancer, notably oral, nasal, and paranasal malignancies, are 50 years of age or older, a group most likely to have a dental implant or prosthesis. Dental implants are often made of high-density materials like metal, ceramic, or polymer materials. The aim of this study was to evaluate the discrepancies in dosimetric effect of the dental implants on the 6 MV external beam radiotherapy for salivary gland cancer by using Geant4 Monte Carlo Simulation.

#### **MATERIALS & METHODS**

The simulation was conducted using MIRD5 adult male anthropomorphic phantom, readily available in the GEANT4 Monte Carlo package, and a few additional structures were incorporated, such as dental implants, the parotid gland as an irradiated organ, and OARs (brain, brain stem, eyes, eye lens, optic nerve, optic chiasm, submandibular and sublingual glands, tongue, upper and lower jaw, and thyroid). Cylindrical implants measuring 4 mm in diameter and 5 mm in length were inserted into both upper and lower jaw varies by three different parameters: 1) Material of implant (Amalgam, Gold, and Titanium), 2) Number of implant (no implant, single implant, multiple implants, full-mouth implant), and 3) Position of implant (right, left and front of jaw). The absorbed dose to the implant, parotid gland and OARs were recorded.

#### **RESULTS**

The results showed that the absorbed dose to the upper and lower jaw as well as tongue, submandibular and sublingual glands significantly increases when dental implants are present. Also, absorbed dose to these OARs were affected by the type of materials, number, and placement of dental implants.

#### **DISCUSSION**

High density materials of pure titanium, gold, and amalgam implants were employed in this study. Due to these chemical and physical properties, the OARs on the scatter side of the interfaces with the presence of implants exceeds the dose to OARs without the implant resulting from the scattering cascade of secondary electrons from the high-density material.

#### **CONCLUSION**

In conclusion, high-density dental implants are shown to cause an increase in the absorbed dose to OARs due to Compton scattering, therefore, adjustments to the prescribed dose should be considered for patients with dental implants.



- 1. Akyol, O., Dirican, B., Toklu, T., Eren, H., & Olgar, T. (2019). Investigating the effect of dental implant materials with different densities on radiotherapy dose distribution using Monte-Carlo simulation and pencil beam convolution algorithm. Dentomaxillofacial Radiology, 48(4), 2–9. https://doi.org/10.1259/dmfr.20180267.
- 2. Al-Johany, S. S., Al Amri, M. D., Alsaeed, S., & Alalola, B. (2017). Dental Implant Length and Diameter: A Proposed Classification Scheme. Journal of Prosthodontics, 26(3), 252–260. https://doi.org/10.1111/jopr.12517.
- 3. Azzi, A., Ryangga, D., & Pawiro, S. A. (2021). Comparison of air-gaps effect in a small cavity on dose calculation for 6 mv linac. Journal of Biomedical Physics and Engineering, 11(1), 17–28. https://doi.org/10.31661/jbpe.v0i0.2004-1096.
- 4. Malkapur, S. M., & Narasimhan, M. C. (2019). Virgin and waste polymer incorporated concrete mixes for enhanced neutron radiation shielding characteristics. In Use of Recycled Plastics in Eco-efficient Concrete. https://doi.org/10.1016/b978-0-08-102676-2.00010-4
- 5. Ozen, J., Dirican, B., Oysul, K., Beyzadeoglu, M., Ucok, O., & Beydemir, B. (2005). Dosimetric evaluation of the effect of dental implants in head and neck radiotherapy. Oral Surgery, Oral Medicine, Oral Pathology, Oral Radiology and Endodontology, 99(6), 743–747. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.tripleo.2004.11.048.
- 6. Thomson, D. J., Slevin, N. J., & Mendenhall, W. M. (2016). Indications for Salivary Gland Radiotherapy. Advances in Oto-Rhino-Laryngology, 78, 141–147. https://doi.org/10.1159/000442134
- 7. Yin, S., Wang, H., Li, A., Ma, Z., & He, Y. (2022). Study on Radiation Shielding Properties of New Barium-Doped Zinc Tellurite Glass. Materials, 15(6), 1–11. https://doi.org/10.3390/ma15062117



35<sup>th</sup> Annual Scientific Congress of Malaysian Oncological Society *EP-10 A-0023* 

## RELIABILITY AND VALIDITY OF THE MALAY VERSION OF CAREGIVER QUALITY OF LIFE INDEX-CANCER (CQOLC) SCALE IN MALAYSIAN CANCER CAREGIVERS

Aisyah Ali<sup>1</sup>, Ruzaini Zulhusni Puslan<sup>1</sup>, Hui Li Lim<sup>1</sup>, Nurul Huda Razali<sup>1</sup>, Chun Sen Lim<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Clinical Research Centre, Hospital Sultan Ismail, Johor, Malaysia

<sup>2</sup>Oncology Department, Sultan Ismail Hospital

#### INTRODUCTION

The caregivers of cancer patients suffer from psychological distress which ultimately affects their Quality of Life (QOL) with increasing burden of treatment over the cancer patients<sup>1</sup>. There is no disease-specific instrument to measure the quality of life of cancer caregivers in Malaysia. We aimed to validate the Malay version of the Caregiver Quality of Life Index-Cancer (Malay-CQOLC) scale in Malaysian Cancer Caregivers.

#### **MATERIALS & METHODS**

This is a cross-sectional study performed from September 2022 to April 2024. A total of 310 cancer caregivers from cancer centre in Johor participated in the study. The Malay-CQOLC scale has 35 items consist of 4 domains namely burden, positive adaptation, disruptiveness and financial concern. All socio-demographic data and QOL profile were evaluated descriptively. Internal consistency and construct validity was determined by cronbach's alpha and principle axis factoring extraction test respectively.

#### RESULTS

Majority of the participants were female (62.8%), married (68.3%), and Malay (70.6%) with a mean age of 40.0 ( $\pm$  12.63). The mean caregiver QOL score was 59.32 ( $\pm$ 20.96), with a higher score indicating worse QOL. Internal consistency (Cronbach's alpha) of the total and domain scores ranged from 0.80 to 0.91 indicates a good reliability of the instrument. EFA using different factor extraction methods yielded 2 models. There are 4 factors in Model 1 and 8 factors in Model 2 with KMO value of 0.898 and significant Bartlett's test of Sphericity (p<0.001) respectively. The factor loading for Model 1 and Model 2 ranged from 0.343 to 0.847 indicates acceptable items of the instrument.

#### DISCUSSION

Majority of the items were very close to the original English model. It showed good internal consistency and construct validity for all domains.

#### **CONCLUSION**

The Malay-CQOLC scale was found to be a valid and reliable instrument to be used for Malaysian cancer caregivers.

#### REFERENCE

1.Hodges LJ, Humphris GM, Macfarlane G. A meta-analytic investigation of the relationship between the psychological distress of cancer patients and their carers. Social Science & Medicine. 2005 Jan;60(1):1–12



35<sup>th</sup> Annual Scientific Congress of Malaysian Oncological Society *EP-11 A-0025* 

# KNOWLEDGE LEVEL ON ESOPHAGUS CANCER AMONG HEALTHCARE WORKERS IN RADIOTHERAPY AND ONCOLOGY DEPARTMENT AT INSTITUT KANSER NEGARA, PUTRAJAYA

Abdillah TAT<sup>1</sup> & Mat Nawi RI<sup>2</sup>

1.Institut Kanser Negara, Putrajaya

2.Institut Latihan Kementerian Kesihatan Malaysia Sg Buloh.

#### INTRODUCTION

Cancer that originates in the oesophagus, a long, hollow tube that joins the throat and stomach, is known as esophageal cancer. usually starts in the cells lining the esophageal wall. Anywhere along the oesophagus may see its development (Mayo Clinic, 2022). Because of its tremendous aggressiveness and low survival rate, esophageal carcinoma (ESC) is one of the deadliest and least investigated tumors globally. In Malaysia, esophageal cancer (ECA) is a significant cancer. The study's objective is to ascertain the level of knowledge on esophageal cancer among medical professionals working at the Institut Kanser Negara, Putrajaya's Radiotherapy and Oncology Department.

#### **MATERIALS & METHODS**

The subjects of a cross-sectional study were healthcare personnel employed by Institut Kanser Negara, Putrajaya, in the Linac 1 and 2 Novalis, Tomotherapy, Manual Planning, CT Simulator 1 and 2, Data Process, Contour Room, TPS room, Radiotherapy Office, Radiotherapy Clinic, and HDR departments. Self-administration linked demographic data and information about esophageal cancer were employed in the data gathering process. The study was completed in four months.

#### **RESULTS**

A rate of 86.91% of respondents. The findings indicated that 82.8% of the healthcare personnel possessed sufficient expertise. Given that the p-value is less than 0.05, statistical analysis demonstrated a relationship between the position of healthcare workers and their level of knowledge regarding esophageal cancer.

#### **DISCUSSION**

In general, healthcare professionals are sufficiently knowledgeable about esophageal cancer. To help raise awareness of esophageal cancer and the value of early detection screening, they must, nevertheless, get a deeper understanding of the disease.

#### **CONCLUSION**

Given the low survival rate of esophageal cancer in the first line of treatment, healthcare professionals should arm themselves with enough knowledge to ensure that it is kept up to date and updated through ongoing education.

- 1. Ab Hamid, S. A., Adnan, W. N. A. W., & Norsa'adah Bachok, S. M. (2020). A Descriptive Study on Oesophageal Cancer in Hospital Universiti Sains Malaysia. Asian Journal of Medicine and Health Sciences Vol., 3(1), 45.
- 2. Balochistan, Q., Nasim, A., Riaz, S., & Zarak, M. S. (2018). Assessment of knowledge and awareness of esophagus cancer among science students in university of. https://doi.org/10.5281/zenodo.1146972



#### LONG-TERM RESPONDERS TO DUAL ANTI-HER2 THERAPY IN HER2-POSITIVE METASTATIC BREAST CANCER: CASE REPORTS

Siow Chia Tay<sup>1</sup>, Vaishnavi Jeyasingam<sup>2</sup>, Paik Ling Chuah<sup>1</sup>, Elaine Kan<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Pharmacy, Hospital Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.

<sup>2</sup>Department of Oncology and Radiotherapy, Hospital Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.

#### INTRODUCTION

Recombinant anti-HER2 antibodies, trastuzumab and pertuzumab significantly improve progression-free survival in HER2-positive metastatic breast cancer (MBC) patients. Long-term responders (LTRs) are patients who remain progression-free for at least 35 months while receiving anti-HER2 therapy. We report two cases of LTRs in hormone receptor-negative, HER2-positive MBC patients with no reported cardiotoxicity.

#### **REPORT**

In 2016, a 29-year-old lady with right breast carcinoma and liver metastasis underwent palliative systemic therapy with docetaxel, pertuzumab and trastuzumab. She achieved a remarkable response with six-years disease progression-free before developing brain metastasis in 2022. Following excision of her brain metastasis and whole brain radiotherapy, she continued dual anti-HER2 therapy (109 cycles thus far) and has had no intra or extracranial disease progression to date. The patient's cardiac function remained good on surveillance echocardiograms. The second patient is a 47-year-old lady, diagnosed with MBC (lung, bone metastasis) in 2016. Following six cycles of docetaxel and dual anti-HER2 therapy, she underwent a toilet mastectomy. She demonstrated long-term response to anti-HER2 therapy for six years before developing brain metastasis in 2022. Following tumour debulking and focal radiotherapy, she continued the dual anti-HER 2 therapy (111 cycles to date). She continued to have stable disease with a well-preserved performance status and cardiac function.

Anti-HER2 therapies effectively control extracranial disease but due to the limited blood-brain barrier permeability of these antibodies, it is possible for patients to develop brain metastasis while on this therapy.<sup>3</sup> Although intracranial disease may have developed, current guidelines recommend the continuation of anti-HER2 therapy as long as extracranial disease is well-controlled.<sup>4</sup> Prolonged anti-HER2 therapy beyond 24 months was not associated with significant reduction in left ventricular ejection fraction.<sup>5</sup>

#### **CONCLUSION**

Durable long-term response can be achieved in HER2-positive MBC even among patients who develop brain metastasis while on therapy, with local therapy for the brain and continuation of dual anti-HER2 therapy.

#### REFERENCES

1. Baselga J, Cortés J, Kim SB, Im SA, Hegg R, Im YH, et al. Pertuzumab plus trastuzumab plus docetaxel for metastatic breast cancer. N Engl J Med. 2012;366(2):109-19.



- 2. Swain SM, Miles D, Kim SB, Im YH, Im SA, Semiglazov V, et al. Pertuzumab, trastuzumab, and docetaxel for HER2-positive metastatic breast cancer (CLEOPATRA): end-of-study results from a double-blind, randomised, placebo-controlled, phase 3 study. Lancet Oncol. 2020;21(4):519-30.
- 3. Willett A, Wilkinson JB, Shah C, Mehta MP. Management of solitary and multiple brain metastases from breast cancer. Indian J Med Paediatr Oncol. 2015;36(2):87-93.
- 4. Ramakrishna N, Anders CK, Lin NU, Morikawa A, Temin S, Chandarlapaty S, et al. Management of Advanced Human Epidermal Growth Factor Receptor 2–Positive Breast Cancer and Brain Metastases: ASCO Guideline Update. Journal of Clinical Oncology. 2022;40(23):2636-55.
- 5. Bao KKH, Chan JC, Sutanto L, Chan JG, Cheung KM, Yiu HH. Cardiac function of long-responders to dual anti-HER2 antibodies amongst patients with HER2 positive advanced breast cancer. Journal of Clinical Oncology. 2023;41(16\_suppl):1043.



## MULTINATIONAL SURVEY STUDY ASSESSING GENETIC TESTING AND COUNSELLING AMONG PATIENTS WITH BREAST CANCER [MAGENTA]

Ranjit Kaur<sup>1,2,3</sup>, Sarah Powell\*<sup>4</sup>, Marta Artigas†, Irina Borovova‡<sup>5</sup>, Poorva Gadiya§<sup>6</sup>, Alice Hsu||, Lisa Kidd\*<sup>7</sup>, Denise Rosenfeld#, Mai Mohamed Saeed\*\*, Evelin Scarelli††<sup>8</sup>, Magdy Waheeb Youssef<sup>9</sup>

1 Consultant, Breast Cancer Welfare Association Malaysia, Selangor, Malaysia
2 Board Member, Reach to Recovery International, Towson, Maryland, USA
3 Board Member, Advanced Breast Cancer Global Alliance, Lisbon, Portugal
4 Pink Hope, Narrabeen, New South Wales, Australia
5 Russian Association of Oncology Patients "ZDRAVSTVUY!", Russia
6 Nag Foundation, Pune, India
7 Victorian Department of Education, Beaconsfield Primary School, Victoria, Australia
8 OncoGuia Institute, São Paulo, Brazil
9 Medical Affairs, AstraZeneca International, Egypt

¶Patient author, Malaysia
\*Patient author, Australia
†Patient author, Argentina
‡Patient author, Russia
§Patient author, India
||Patient author, Taiwan
#Patient author, Mexico
\*\*Patient author, Egypt
††Patient author, Brazil

#### INTRODUCTION

Despite genetic testing (GT) and counselling (GC) being key in breast cancer (BC) risk assessment, fewer than one-third of patients (pts) with BC undergo GT. GC uptake rates are low even among pts undergoing GT. A global survey was conducted among pts with BC to identify the gaps in the GT and GC experience and to propose strategies to fill them.

#### **MATERIALS & METHODS**

A steering committee comprising of pts and pt advocates co-developed a 38-question survey, which was offered to pts in 9 countries, including Malaysia. The questions pathway was dependent on response to prior questions. Chi-square test was used to assess significance between responses, if applicable.

#### RESULTS

The final analysis set (FAS) included responses from 1176 respondents with >90% completion rate of survey questions. In the FAS, 737 (63%) respondents reported having undergone GT. Most respondents in the FAS (71%) rated their awareness level of GT/GC (before BC diagnosis) as between 'very low' to 'moderate'. 72% of the pts who did not undergo GT shared their main reason was because they were not offered GT. Pts who underwent GT were more



willing (74%) to endorse GT for all eligible pts before starting treatment than pts who did not undergo GT (64%). Among pts undergoing GT, 616 respondents responded to the question enquiring on the resources available to them to guide their GT experience, beyond their oncologist. These were the genetic counsellor (48%), pt support groups (38%) and websites (35%).

#### **CONCLUSION**

There are critical gaps in awareness, value, and access of GT among pts and the public, with notable variance between the tested and the non-tested populations. Most pts with BC are not offered GC, which significantly correlates with GT uptake. Strategic action is needed to overcome the barriers to GT and GC to improve the pt experience.

- National Comprehensive Cancer Network. NCCN Clinical Practice Guidelines in Oncology (NCCN Guidelines®). Genetic/Familial High-Risk Assessment: Breast, Ovarian, and Pancreatic. Version 3. 13 February 2023. Available at: https://www.nccn.org/professionals/physician\_gls/pdf/genetics\_bop.pdf. Accessed 19 April 2023.
- 2. Kurian AW, et al. J Clin Oncol. 2019;37(15):1305–1315.
- 3. Reid S, et al. Breast Cancer Res Treat. 2022;191(3):491-500.



35<sup>th</sup> Annual Scientific Congress of Malaysian Oncological Society *EP-14 A-0030* 

# IMPLEMENTATION FEASIBILITY OF CANCER INFORMATION PLATFORM (NEED'S HERO PLATFORM) AT UNIVERSITY MALAYA MEDICAL CENTRE (UMMC)

Rozita Abdul Malik<sup>1\*</sup>, Nisha Mohd Shariff<sup>2</sup>, Wan Zamaniah Wan Ishak<sup>1</sup>, Toh Yok Yong<sup>2</sup>, Colston Bowler<sup>3</sup>, Po-Hsuan Cameron Chen<sup>3</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Clinical Oncology Unit, Faculty of Medicine, University of Malaya, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia. <sup>2</sup>Department of Clinical Oncology, University Malaya Medical Centre, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia. <sup>3</sup>Need Inc., Santa Monica, California, USA

#### INTRODUCTION

Cancer treatments have evolved rapidly for the past few decades with increasing information and complexity (1). Cancer guidelines play a crucial role in enabling oncologists to form comprehensive management plans tailored for each patient. Need is a global technology company that developed a cancer information platform, "Need's Hero Platform" (NHP) combining artificial intelligence (AI) technology with a network of global subspecialists to empower oncologists to deliver personalized guideline-based treatment. We aim to assess the feasibility of implementing NHP at UMMC.

#### MATERIALS AND METHODS

Twenty retrospective cases of patients under active treatment were recruited from the Clinical Oncology Clinic, UMMC over a period of two months. Patients' deidentified medical records, laboratory data, pathology slides, and radiologic images were collected, digitized, and uploaded to NHP. The data was analysed on NHP by a combination of a global team of cancer subspecialists and AI systems. NHP surfaced treatment science information back to the treating oncologists after the analysis.

#### RESULTS

15 metastatic and five non-metastatic cancer patients of various sites were recruited from 14 December 2023 until 28 February 2024. Patient's medical histories, pathology slides, and radiology images were uploaded to NHP and subsequently analysed. Guideline-based pathology reviews, radiology reviews, and treatment science information were successfully generated for the 20 cases. Treating oncologists were notified once the information was available on NHP and could be reviewed for any discordance, where they had the ability to interact with Need's clinical team.

#### **DISCUSSION AND CONCLUSION**

This study successfully demonstrated the feasibility of using NHP to systematically generate and surface treatment science information for the physicians at UMMC. The impact of this platform in facilitating oncologists in delivering guideline-based treatment will need further assessment. Administrative error assessment, rates of utilisation by oncologists, discordance between primary and secondary reviews, and consistency between Need's treatment science information and the treating oncologist's plan will be prospectively studied.

#### REFERENCE

1. Paulina K, Alison A, Erica JD, Lauren MT, Ileana MB, Misaal P, et al. The growing role of precision and personalised medicine for cancer treatment. Technology (Singap World Sci). 2018 Sep-Dec; 6(3-4): 79–100.



## A CASE REPORT: METASTATIC BREAST CANCER EMULATING OF A PRIMARY GASTRIC LINITIS PLASTICA IN A PATIENT WITH PECTUS EXCAVATUM

Xue Ru Ting<sup>1</sup>, Ying Ying Sum<sup>1</sup>, Cheen Leng Lee<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Radiotherapy and Oncology, Penang General Hospital, Malaysia

#### INTRODUCTION

Breast carcinoma ranks as the most prevalent cancer among females both globally (15.3%) and in Malaysia (23.6%). Typically the primary sites of metastasis of breast carcinoma include bone, lung, and liver. Gastric metastasis is relatively uncommon, Bunting et al. reported that the frequency of detection of gastric metastases during life was only 6%. Notably, invasive lobular carcinoma exhibits a higher incidence rate of gastric metastasis compared to invasive ductal carcinoma and its variable as linitis plastica. This case highlights the diagnostic complexities encountered in a case of breast carcinoma presented with gastric symptoms in a patient with pectus excavatum.

#### **CASE REPORT**

48 years old premenopausal female, presented with epigastric pain for 2 months and abdominal bloatedness associated with reduced oral intake. Physical examination showed pectus excavatum with less-dense breast tissue and a well-circumscribed 1x1cm firm lump over the upper inner quadrant of left breast. Abdominal findings were insignificant. She underwent esophagogastroduodenoscopy which revealed linitis plastica with thickened stomach mucosa. Biopsy from stomach confirmed metastatic carcinoma from breast as confirmed by immunohistochemistry stained positive for cytokeratin 7, GATA-3, Oestrogen and Progesterone receptor, negative for HER2 and PAX8. Ultrasound of breast revealed simple left breast cyst. Mammogram was unable to be performed due to the structural deformity of severe pectus excavatum. Computed tomography of the thorax and abdomen demonstrated bone and peritoneal metastasis stage 4 disease. She was offered palliative chemotherapy FEC regimen. Unfortunately, she succumbed to her disease 2 months from diagnosis.

#### **DISCUSSION & CONCLUSION**

Pectus excavatum complicates the diagnosis of breast carcinoma, as the condition precludes the effective use of mammography. In such instances, MRI breast emerges as a superior diagnostic tool in patients with structural deformity.<sup>4</sup> Hematogenous spread of lobular breast carcinoma commonly presents as gastric linitis plastica. Endoscopy should be considered as a surveillance in lobular breast carcinoma. Treatment options such as chemotherapy, endocrine therapy, or a combination of both have the potential to extend survival by 2 to 3 years.<sup>5</sup>

#### REFERENCE

1. Ferlay J, Ervik M, Lam F, Laversanne M, Colombet M, Mery L, Piñeros M, Znaor A, Soerjomataram I, Bray F (2024). Global Cancer Observatory: Cancer Today. Lyon, France: International Agency for Research on Cancer. Available from: https://gco.iarc.who.int/today, accessed (29 APRIL 2024)



- 2. Bunting, J. S., Hemsted, E. H., & Kremer, J. K. (1976). The pattern of spread and survival in 596 cases of breast cancer related to clinical staging and histological grade. Clinical radiology, 27(1), 9–15. https://doi.org/10.1016/s0009-9260(76)80004-9
- 3. Taal, B.G., Peterse, H. and Boot, H. (2000), Clinical presentation, endoscopic features, and treatment of gastric metastases from breast carcinoma. Cancer, 89: 2214-2221. https://doi.org/10.1002/1097-0142(20001201)89:11<2214::AID-CNCR9>3.0.CO;2-DKim, D. H.,
- 4. Radhakrishna, S., Agarwal, S., Parikh, P. M., Kaur, K., Panwar, S., Sharma, S., Dey, A., Saxena, K. K., Chandra, M., & Sud, S. (2018). Role of magnetic resonance imaging in breast cancer management. South Asian journal of cancer, 7(2), 69–71. https://doi.org/10.4103/sajc.sajc 104 18
- 5. Taal, B. G., den Hartog Jager, F. C., Steinmetz, R., & Peterse, H. (1992). The spectrum of gastrointestinal metastases of breast carcinoma: II. The colon and rectum. Gastrointestinal endoscopy, 38(2), 136–141. https://doi.org/10.1016/s0016-5107(92)70378-2



### A RARE MALIGNANCY OF BREAST CARCINOMA METASTASIS TO COLON A CASE REPORT

Dr Anthony KT Lim, Dr Selina Sze MT, Dr Tun Mohd Azlan Mohamed Nor Department of Radiotherapy and Oncology, Sabah Women and Children Hospital, Sabah, Malaysia.

#### **INTRODUCTION**

Breast cancer metastasis to the colon is a relatively rare occurrence but can happen. When breast cancer spreads to other parts of the body, it's typically through the lymphatic system or the bloodstream. The most common sites for breast cancer metastasis include the bones, lungs, liver, and brain, but metastasis to the colon can occur, albeit less frequently.

#### **REPORT**

We report a case of a 61 years-old female presented with 10 years history of left breast lump. Mammogram showed hypoechoeic mass lesion of the left breast of BIRADS 5 and the biopsy confirmed invasive carcinoma hormone negative and HER2 positive. CT scan confirmed ill defined left breast mass at lower quadrant with multiple left axillary lymph nodes and distant cervical nodes metastases. She received 6 cycles of palliative chemotherapy Paclitaxel. CT reassessment showed response with smaller primary tumor, ipsilateral left axillary lymph nodes and bilateral cervical lymph nodes metastases. Then, she underwent left mastectomy and axillary clearance, followed by adjuvant radiotherapy to the left chest wall, left axilla and left supraclavicular fossa with total dose 40 Gy/15 fractions. However, she developed local recurrence and symptoms of intestinal obstruction. CT reassessment showed progression of disease with local recurrence of the left chest wall, new right breast enhancing lesion, worsening nodal, brain metastases and small bowel obstruction due to long segment bowel thickening involving the ascending colon, caecum and terminal ileum. She underwent ileostomy and the biopsy confirmed of metastatic carcinoma of breast origin.

#### **CONCLUSION**

GI metastases from breast carcinoma are very rare and uncommon. It is important to monitor signs and should always consider the possibility of a metastatic disease process whenever a patient presents with GI symptoms.

- 1. Kazim Uygun, Zafer Kocak, Semsi Altaner, Irfan Cicin, Fusun Tokatli, Cem Uzal Colonic Metastasis from Carcinoma of the Breast that Mimics a Primary Intestinal Cancer, Yonsei Med J. 2006 Aug 31; 47(4): 578–582. Published online 2006 Aug 31.
- 2. Yokota T, Kunii Y, Kagami M, Yamada Y, Takahashi M, Kikuchi S, et al. Metastatic breast carcinoma masquerading as primary colon cancer. *Am J Gastroenterol*. 2000;95:3014–3016.
- 3. Koutsomanis D, Renier JF, Ollivier R, Moran A, el-Haite AA. Colonic metastasis of breast carcinoma. *Hepatogastroenterology*. 2000;47:681–682.



#### HOPE? WHEN ALL IS LOST FOR YOUNG AND AGGRESSIVE MALIGNANCY

Yvonne Jee Yih Huan, Hadi Ab Jalil

Department of Radiotherapy and Oncology, Hospital Umum Sarawak, Sarawak, Malaysia

#### INTRODUCTION

Anaplastic thyroid carcinoma is a highly aggressive malignant tumour. It undoubtedly carries the poorest prognosis. However with the advancement of understanding in the genetic and molecular pathogenesis of anaplastic thyroid carcinoma, we were able to use better treatment to achieve a better response. We reported a case of metastatic anaplastic thyroid carcinoma and aims to highlight the implication of managing anaplastic thyroid carcinoma based on tumour agnostic.

#### **REPORT**

A 50 year old Chinese lady presented with rapidly enlarging painless anterior neck swelling. Initial staging was reported as localised disease and she had total thyroidectomy with bilateral lymph node neck dissection done. The histopathology was reported as thyroid anaplastic carcinoma with margin involved which then she received radiotherapy to neck 60Gy in 30 fractions. Three months post radiotherapy, she complained of neck swelling whereby imaging with PET CT demonstrated local recurrence and metastases to distant lymph nodes and lung. Next generation sequencing was sent which included BRAF V600E, PD-L1, RAS, RET and PI3KCA. All biomarkers were negative except for PD-L1 in which the TPS scored more than 90%. She was then commenced on immune checkpoint inhibitor IV Pembrolizumab 200mg every 3 weeks initially but reduced to 100mg every 3 weeks after 5 months due to financial constraint. Serial radiological assessment shows partial response initially and subsequently stable disease. To date she had received a total of treatment for 15 months with no severe adverse effect. Clinically she is ECOG 0 and tolerating treatment well.

#### **CONCLUSION**

This case shows favourable treatment outcomes when the choice of therapeutic regimen was guided by tumour mutational analysis. Oncology management should reflect our understanding in tumour biology and as such cancer should be treated based on pathogenesis. Tumour agnostic is the way to go for the 21<sup>st</sup> century.

- 1. Limaiem, F. (2023a) Anaplastic Thyroid Cancer, StatPearls https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/books/NBK538179/
- 2. Anastasios Maniakas, M. (2020) Overall survival in patients with anaplastic thyroid carcinoma, 2000-2019, JAMA Oncology. https://jamanetwork.com/journals/jamaoncology/fullarticle/2769127
- 3. De Leo, S., Trevisan, M. and Fugazzola, L. (2020) Recent advances in the management of Anaplastic Thyroid Cancer, Thyroid research.: https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC7684758



35<sup>th</sup> Annual Scientific Congress of Malaysian Oncological Society *EP-18 A-0037* 

### EVALUATING TREATMENT ACCURACY: AN ANALYSIS OF EPID-BASED IN VIVO DOSIMETRY IMPLEMENTATION AT GLENEAGLES HOSPITAL PENANG

Noor Naslinda Noor Rizan<sup>1</sup>, Yuan Xin Teo<sup>1</sup>, Nur Afiqah Aimi Ibrahim<sup>1</sup>, Mohd Fadli Sepian<sup>1</sup> Radiotherapy Department, Gleneagles Hospital Penang, Malaysia

#### INTRODUCTION

Dosimetric verification is an important component in radiotherapy treatment process but has remained a challenge due to difficulty to precisely record dose received by patients<sup>1,2</sup>. This study investigates the implementation of Electronic Portal Imaging Device (EPID)-based in-vivo dosimetry software for dose verification in Gleneagles Hospital Penang. The research focuses on evaluating the effectiveness of this method in assessing the dose accuracy on patients during treatment and its ability to identify potential treatment variation.

#### **MATERIALS & METHODS**

106 IMRT and VMAT deliveries on patients were captured using an EPID mounted on Elekta VersaHD LINAC in Gleneagles Hospital Penang. These images were then converted to dose value using EPIgray<sup>TM</sup> software (DOSIsoft, France) calibrated to convert image intensity value to radiation dose. The delivered doses were then compared to the planned dose from treatment planning system (TPS). Dose verification was performed at least once during the treatment course for each patient. We analysed the results from a cohort of 60 patients undergoing radiotherapy for various anatomical sites and reviewed its practicality in determining dose and patient anatomy changes during treatment.

#### RESULTS

87% of treatment delivery recorded less than 5% dose deviation from planned dose which was considered acceptable. Out of the 13% failed result, 6% were from flattening filter free delivery (FFF) and 7% was because of patient morphological changes.

#### **DISCUSSION**

The result suggests utilizing EPID which is already integrated into LINAC cuts short the preparation time for dose verification on patients and allows for a more in-depth analysis of patient changes during radiotherapy course. However further investigation is needed for the FFF beam modelling and analysis.

#### **CONCLUSION**

EPID based in-vivo dose verification offers advantages in terms of functionality. It provides ease of use and comprehensive perspective of the actual dose distribution during treatment ultimately improving treatment safety.

- 1. Celi S, Costa E, Wessels C, Mazal A, Fourquet A and Francois P. EPID Based in vivo dosimetry system: Clinical experience and results. *Journal of Applied Clinical Physics*, 2016;17(3):262-276
- 2. Md Radzi Y, Abdul Rahman A, Noor Rizan N.N, Oskhahar N, and Abd Latif N. F. F, "Characterization of a commercial EPID-based in-vivo dosimetry and its feasibility and implementation for treatment verification in Malaysia," *Polish Journal of Medical Physics and Engineering*, 2022; 28(4) 215–221



# A CASE REPORT OF FAVOURABLE RESPONSE TOWARDS EVEROLIMUS IN TREATING TSC2-MUTATED MALIGNANT RENAL EPITHELIAL ANGIOMYOLIPOMA (EAML)

Xue Ling Lim<sup>1</sup>, Md Najmi Md Nasir<sup>2</sup>, Soo Bin Lim<sup>3</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Oncology and Radiotherapy, Penang General Hospital, Malaysia

<sup>2</sup>Department of Pathology, Penang General Hospital, Malaysia

<sup>3</sup>Department of Pharmacy, Penang General Hospital, Malaysia

#### INTRODUCTION

Angiomyolipoma (AML) is one of the perivascular epithelioid cell neoplasms (PEComas) and epithelioid angiomyolipoma (EAML), is one of its rare subtypes with potential malignancy, local recurrences, nodal and distant metastases, often associated with tuberous sclerosis (TS) diagnosis.

#### **REPORT**

Current case reports a 36 years old Malay man who initially presented with fever and left flank pain for a month. Initial computed tomography (CT) revealed a large well-defined lesion at the left kidney upper pole, measuring 9.2x6.7x8.5cm, with mild enhancement on the arterial and portovenous phases, without fat component. Laparoscopic left nephrectomy was done and the histopathological examination (HPE) confirmed diagnosis of malignant renal EAML with more than 70% atypical cells, more than 2 mitotic figures/hpf, presence of necrosis and lymphovascular invasion and Gerota's fascia involvement. Immunohistochemical (IHC) staining positive for CD-68, CD10, Vimentin, Melan A and HMB-45 also favours the diagnosis of EAML, while the renal cell carcinoma panel IHCs which include EMA, CKAE1/3, Pax8, Napsin A, CAIX, TFE3 and S100 are negative. Distant metastases to the liver and lungs were discovered 8 months post-op. TSC2 mutation was revealed from next generation sequencing. Pazopanib was stopped due to poor tolerance and ineffective clinically as the patient continued having tumour fever despite antibiotic treatment. Favourable response was observed clinically (fever subsided) and radiologically (reduction in size and numbers of lung lesions and almost 50% reduction in total volume of liver metastasis) after 2 months of initiation of mTOR inhibitor, everolimus. In anticipation of disease progression based on the literatures, we aim to discuss the role of local therapy including surgery in patients who have responded to everolimus.

#### **CONCLUSION**

Due to the rare diagnosis and limited case reports regarding the successful use of everolimus in EAML treatment, we aim to share the favourable result achieved with everolimus.

#### REFERENCE

1. Bissler, J. J., Kingswood, J. C., Radzikowska, E., Zonnenberg, B. A., Frost, M., Belousova, E., ... & Budde, K. (2013). Everolimus for angiomyolipoma associated with tuberous sclerosis complex or sporadic lymphangioleiomyomatosis (EXIST-2): a multicentre, randomised, double-blind, placebo-controlled trial. *The Lancet*, *381*(9869), 817-824.



- 2. Bissler, J. J., Kingswood, J. C., Radzikowska, E., Zonnenberg, B. A., Belousova, E., Frost, M. D., ... & Budde, K. (2017). Everolimus long-term use in patients with tuberous sclerosis complex: Four-year update of the EXIST-2 study. *PloS one*, *12*(8), e0180939.
- 3. Hatano, T., & Egawa, S. (2020). Renal angiomyolipoma with tuberous sclerosis complex: How it differs from sporadic angiomyolipoma in both management and care. *Asian journal of surgery*, *43*(10), 967-972.



## EXPLORING THE ROLES OF MITOCHONDRIAL-ASSOCIATED MICRORNAS OF HEAD AND NECK CANCER STEM CELLS IN DRUG RESISTANCE AND TUMOR RECURRENCE

Xiaoning Zhu<sup>1</sup>, Sethu Thakachy Subha<sup>2</sup>, Voon Hoong Fong<sup>2</sup>, Wee Lin Tan<sup>1</sup>, Yoke Kqueen Cheah<sup>1,3</sup>\*

- 1 Department of Biomedical Science, Universiti Putra Malaysia, Serdang, Selangor, Malaysia.
- 2 Department of Otorhinolaryngology, Universiti Putra Malaysia, Serdang, Selangor, Malaysia.
- 3 UPM-MAKNA Cancer Research Laboratory, Institute of Bioscience, Universiti Putra Malaysia, Serdang, Selangor, Malaysia.

#### INTRODUCTION

Head and neck cancer (HNC) is one of the most common cancers worldwide. The primary clinical issues in HNC are drug resistance and tumor recurrence attributed to the presence of cancer stem cells (CSCs). Dysfunction of mitochondria may prevent CSCs from apoptosis. MicroRNAs have been reported to be a potential target for diagnosis and treatment strategy in many cancers, including HNC.

#### **MATERIALS & METHODS**

This study used public databases such as the MitoCarta3.0 database, the Cancer Genome Atlas (TCGA) database, and Enrichr website tools for the bioinformatics analysis. The COREMINE and the ONCO.IO website tools were chosen for data mining analysis. RT-qPCR test was used to identify the expression of Let-7c-5p.

#### **RESULTS**

Eighteen mitochondrial-associated miRNAs of head and neck cancer stem cells were predicted, where let-7c-5p is associated with drug resistance and tumor recurrence. Meanwhile, the low expression of Let-7c-5p in head and neck cancer stem cells was verified by RT-qPCR. Let-7c-5p and its target genes have an interaction network to participate in the cancer biological process, whereas let-7c-5p may mainly target KRAS and BCL2L1 to regulate mitophagy and apoptosis pathways for preserving cancer stem cells alive.

#### **DISCUSSION**

Let-7c-5p would regulate the genes involved in the EMT and drug transport process to preserve the stemness and drug resistance feature of CSCs. This would regulate CSC apoptosis by suppressing the DNA damage process, which is the reason for the HNC recurrence. Let-7c-5p and its target genes involved in the pathways related to the cancer stem cell and mitochondria were included, such as signaling pathways regulating pluripotency of stem cells, cell cycle, mitophagy, and central carbon metabolism in cancer.



#### **CONCLUSION**

Let-7c-5p may specifically target KRAS and BCL2L1 to regulate mitophagy and apoptosis pathways for preserving cancer stem cells alive. Drug resistance and tumor recurrence in HNC may be addressed creatively by the let-7c-5p-based therapy approach.

- 1. Ebrahimie, E., Rahimirad, S., Tahsili, M., & Mohammadi-Dehcheshmeh, M. (2021). Alternative RNA splicing in stem cells and cancer stem cells: Importance of transcript-based expression analysis. World Journal of Stem Cells, 13(10), 1394–1416.
- 2. Lo, Y.-L., Wang, C.-S., Chen, Y.-C., Wang, T.-Y., Chang, Y.-H., Chen, C.-J., & Yang, C.-P. (2020). Mitochondrion-Directed Nanoparticles Loaded with a Natural Compound and a microRNA for Promoting Cancer Cell Death via the Modulation of Tumor Metabolism and Mitochondrial Dynamics. Pharmaceutics, 12(8), 756.



35<sup>th</sup> Annual Scientific Congress of Malaysian Oncological Society *EP-21 A-0042* 

## REAL-WORLD OUTCOMES OF NEXT GENERATION SEQUENCING TESTING IN PATIENTS WITH CANCER: AN OBSERVATIONAL STUDY ON THE IMPACT OF SELECTION BASED ON CLINICAL JUDGEMENT

Qin Jian Low, Seng Wee Cheo, Choon Seong Ang, 'Izzati Binti Wan Maharuddin, Chan Teng Chong, Ming Ruey Ngu, Jie Yi Eng, Yusra Binti Hadi, Hadi Bin Ab. Jalil, Fook Yew Heng, Yueh Ni Lim, Pei Jye Voon.

Department of Radiotherapy, Oncology, Palliative Care, Hospital Umum Sarawak, Malaysia.

#### INTRODUCTION

Next Generation Sequencing (NGS) assays are increasingly used in advanced cancers to guide precision medicine. NGS allows thousands of genes to be sequenced at the same time at a relatively low cost. The aim is to select treatment according to the genomic alterations detected in the tumor, applying so-called precision medicine.

#### **MATERIALS & METHODS**

In an observational study of 25 patients with cancer having self-funded NGS test (from June 2023 to May 2024) at Sarawak Cancer Centre, we evaluated whether the NGS result would add value to treatment decision and outcomes.

#### **RESULTS**

In the 25 cases that were successfully profiled, 20 patients had advanced lung adenocarcinoma, 1 patient had advanced squamous cell lung cancer, 1 patient with intra-hepatic cholangiocarcinoma, 1 advanced pancreas cancer, 1 thymic cancer and 1 patient with advanced chromophobe renal cell carcinoma. Ten patients had druggable alterations. Among the 10 patients, 8 had received genomic-informed drug. Five patients were enrolled into clinical trials because of the genomic information. All 25 cases had their profiling performed upfront upon diagnosis.

#### **DISCUSSION**

NGS tests can provide valuable information about tumor genomic profiles and these data can guide 'personalized' treatment and determine eligibility for clinical trials enrollment.

#### **CONCLUSION**

Our data showed that upfront full molecular profiling provides evidence of benefit for clinical judgement and appropriate treatment selection in patients with advanced cancer which can translate into better outcomes.

#### REFERENCE

Sele F., Remon J., Mateo J. et al. Recommendations for the use of next-generation sequencing (NGS) for patients with metastatic cancers: a report from the ESMO Precision Medicine Working Group. Ann Oncol. 2020; 31: 1491-1505



### RADIOTHERAPY POSITIONING REPRODUCIBILITY OF TATTOO-LESS PATIENT FOR PELVIS REGION

Nur Ruzainah Gafoor, Mohd Taufiq Rashidi, Nur Ainaa Natasha Mohamad Adnan Gleneagles Hospital Penang, Penang, Malaysia

#### INTRODUCTION

Tattoos are routinely used as a reliable landmark for patient positioning in radiotherapy. However, as tattoos cause discomfort to patients for various reasons, an alternative way to replace the use of these tattoos is investigated. In this study, a new positioning technique mainly in the pelvic region was developed without using tattoos and the reproducibility of the setup was tested.

#### **MATERIALS & METHODS**

20 patients were stimulated with tattoos and another 20 patients without any tattoos. During treatment positioning, the patient was aligned to room lasers using their permanent tattoos for a tattoo-based setup and the measured origin level taken from reliable bony and body landmarks for a tattoo-less-based setup. Both groups received image verification (XVI) before treatment execution. The offset shifts for each patient were recorded and the reproducibility (offset shifts  $\leq 0.54$  cm) was statistically analyzed.

#### **RESULTS**

Chi-square analysis showed that there was no association between setups (tattoo and tattooless) and reproducibility (p=0.26). Additionally, chi-square analysis performed to each offset shift's directions (lateral, longitudinal, and vertical) also perceived no association between setups (tattoo and tattoo-less) and the magnitude of offset shifts for lateral (X) (p=0.15), longitudinal (Y) (p=1.0) and vertical (Z) (p=1.0). Lastly, t-test analysis showed that only in the lateral (X) direction, there was a significant difference (p=0.01).

#### **DISCUSSION**

Both chi square analysis results agreed with most of published studies on translational shift. There was a significant difference in lateral (X) direction due to the movement subject to changes in patient's weight and volume of bladder and bowel. The results suggested for further improvement in anterior-posterior (AP) setup accuracy.

#### **CONCLUSION**

Both potential methods (tattoo-based setup and tattoo-less-based setup) showed a general equivalence and were reproducible. A significant difference in lateral (X) direction showed in the t-test was unavoidable and improvement measures must be taken. Future studies are recommended.



- 1. Elsner, K., Francis, K., & Roderick, S. 2014. Quality Improvement Process to Assess Tattoo Alignment, Set-up Accuracy and Isocenter Reproducibility in Pelvic Radiotherapy Patients. *J Med Radiat Sci.* 61(4):246-252.
- 2. Stanley, D.N., McConnell, K.A., Kirby, N., Gutierrez, A.N., Papanikolau, N., & Rasmussen, K. 2017. Comparison of Initial Patient Setup Accuracy between Surface Imaging and Three Point Localization: A Retrospective Analysis. *J Appl Clin Med Phys.* 18(6): 58-61.



## IS BEARING MY OWN CHILD A DREAM IMPOSSIBLE TO FULFILL? PREGNANCY IN METASTATIC HORMONE RECEPTOR POSITIVE BREAST CANCER

Tan, KY<sup>1</sup>; Nik Eezamuddeen, Marfu'ah<sup>2</sup>; Ahmad, Mohd Faizal<sup>3</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Master of Clinical Oncology, University Malaya

<sup>2</sup>Department of Radiotherapy & Oncology, Hospital Canselor Tuanku Muhriz (HCTM) UKM

<sup>3</sup>Department of Obstetric and Gynaecology, HCTM UKM

#### INTRODUCTION

More than 80% of breast cancer is diagnosed in women of child-bearing age, 50% and more were diagnosed with hormone receptor positive disease. The POSITIVE trial has showed that withholding treatment during adjuvant hormonal therapy for pregnancy does not negatively impact survival. However we have limited data on the sequencing strategy in metastatic disease. We presented a case of hormone receptor positive breast cancer, whom the patient has diminished chance to conceive as her disease recurred with nodal metastasis.

#### **CASE REPORT**

We reported a 36 years old lady diagnosed with localized left breast carcinoma, ER/PR positive, HER2 negative. She was diagnosed after her engagement. She proceeded with radical surgery in May 2019, pathological staging pT2 N0. The patient received adjuvant radiotherapy to the chest wall, and was on adjuvant tamoxifen planned for 5 years. She was married after radiotherapy, and has plans to conceive after the completion of treatment. Unfortunately, her disease recurred at fourth year of tamoxifen (April 2023) where she presented with a palpable left supraclavicular node. Excision biopsy confirmed a metastatic carcinoma of breast origin, ER 80%, PR 20%, HER 2 negative. PET scan showed no other distant metastasis. After surgical assessment, the recurred nodes were deemed non-resectable. We have offered second line treatment with the need for ovarian-suppression. However the patient has showed resistance towards the plan and delayed her treatment for 5 months. At this juncture, the disease has spread to bones and progressed in the cervical nodes. She was again offered options of ovarian-suppression, aromatase inhibitor (AI) with or without CDK4/6 inhibitor. After multiple discussions, she finally agreed to receive aromatase inhibitor and medical ovarian-suppression in September 2023.

#### **DISCUSSION**

Generally, it is still not recommended for patient with metastatic disease to stop her treatment for conception. Our patient is in her child-bearing age when diagnosed with hormone receptor positive metastatic breast cancer with limited disease burden. The POSITIVE trial sheds some light upon pursuing pregnancy after cancer diagnosis, interrupting therapy rather than cessation of therapy. In the trial, patients are allowed an interruption of treatment up to 2 years to attempt pregnancy, conception and delivery. The trial has showed that interruption of hormonal therapy in adjuvant setting is possible without affecting the survival of the patients. However, we do not have any data at the moment to support this application in metastatic setting, mostly due to the risk of disease progression during the washout period and subsequent pregnancy.



Furthermore, it is still a challenge in fertility preservation and planning in women with breast cancer in child-bearing age.

#### REFERENCE

Partridge AH, Niman SM, Ruggeri M, Peccatori FA, Azim HA, Colleoni M, et al. Interrupting Endocrine Therapy to Attempt Pregnancy after Breast Cancer (POSITIVE). The New England Journal of Medicine [Internet]. 2023 May 4;388(18):1645–56. Available from: https://doi.org/10.1056/nejmoa2212856



## COMPLETE REMISSION OF ADVANCED LOW-GRADE ENDOMETRIAL STROMAL SARCOMA AFTER ENDOCRINE THERAPY: A CASE REPORT

Intissar Jamaludin<sup>1</sup>, Rizma Mohd Zaid<sup>2</sup>
Radiotherapy & Oncology Department, Institut Kanser Negara, 62250, W.P. Putrajaya,
Malaysia

#### **INTRODUCTION**

Low-grade endometrial stromal sarcoma (ESS) is rare and account for 2%-4% of all uterine sarcoma and 0.2% of all uterine tumours. Majority tend to be slow growing and indolent in nature. There is an atypical presentation in which rapid progression of the disease. In this situation, histopathological analysis is crucial to differentiate it from high-grade ESS in order to determine the prognosis and optimal treatment strategy.

#### REPORT

A 42-year old lady had been investigated for multiple episodes of symptomatic anaemia due to uterine fibroid. Pipelle sampling showed no hyperplasia or malignancy. Laparoscopic hysterectomy and bilateral salpingectomy were performed and multiple uterine fibroids were seen intraoperatively. Pathological examination revealed tumour cells invading into the myometrium up to serosa. Mitosis was rarely seen. Immunohistochemistry (IHC) study showed positive staining for CD10 and negative for SMA, Desmin and Caldesmon. The final histopathological analysis was consistent with low grade ESS. Computed tomography (CT) post hysterectomy revealed multiple enlarged pelvic nodes, largest measuring 1.5 x 1.4 cm. Laparoscopic converted laparotomy, bilateral oophorectomy, omentectomy and tumour debulking was performed. Multiple nodules on peritoneum, colon, mesentery and appendix with multiple enlarged pelvic nodes, largest 2 x 3 cm were discovered. IHC showed diffuse ER and CD10 staining. Despite its rapid progression, the tumour was lacking of typical high-grade features microscopically, therefore it was concluded to be low-grade ESS. Oral Megestrol acetate 160 mg per day was prescribed. CT scan was performed after 4 months, revealed complete remission with no recurrence.

#### **CONCLUSION**

We report a case of rapidly progressing low-grade ESS treated with first line endocrine therapy in which demonstrated a complete remission. Multi-analysis from a large group of patients is needed to emphasize the role of endocrine therapy in low-grade ESS.

- 1. Libertini M, Hallin M, Thway K, Noujaim J, Benson C, van der Graaf W, Jones RL. Gynecological Sarcomas: Molecular Characteristics, Behavior, and Histology-Driven Therapy. Int J Surg Pathol. 2021 Feb;29(1):4-20. doi: 10.1177/1066896920958120. Epub 2020 Sep 10. PMID: 32909482.
- 2. Jain R, Batra S, Ahmad A, Elahi AA, Gupta M, Saith P. Low grade endometrial stromal sarcoma: a case report. Iran J Med Sci. 2015 Jan;40(1):81-4. PMID: 25648534; PMCID: PMC4300487.



- 3. Lim MC, Lee S, Seo SS. Megestrol acetate therapy for advanced low-grade endometrial stromal sarcoma. Onkologie. 2010;33(5):260-2. doi: 10.1159/000305661. Epub 2010 Apr 21. PMID: 20502061.
- 4. Hamza Hafiani, Nawal Bouknani, Kenza Oqbani, Amal Rami,Low-grade endometrial stromal sarcoma, a rare uterine tumor: Case report,Radiology Case Reports,Volume 19, Issue 5,2024, Pages 1823-1826,ISSN 1930-0433,https://doi.org/10.1016/j.radcr.2024.01.075.



## EFFICACY COMPARISON OF LOW VS. HIGH-DOSE RADIO-IODINE ABLATION IN LOW-TO-INTERMEDIATE RISK DIFFERENTIATED THYROID CANCER: A FIVE-YEAR DUAL-CENTER RETROSPECTIVE STUDY IN MALAYSIA

Seng Yeong Gan<sup>1</sup>, Mohd Fazrin Mohd Rohani<sup>2</sup>, Nashrulhaq Tagiling<sup>3</sup>, Maya Mazuwin Yahya<sup>1, 4</sup>, Norazlina Mat Nawi<sup>3, 5</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Surgery, School of Medical Sciences, Universiti Sains Malaysia Health Campus, 16150 Kota Bharu, Kelantan, Malaysia

<sup>2</sup>Department of Nuclear Medicine, Hospital Kuala Lumpur, 50300 Kampung Baru, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

 <sup>3</sup>Department of Nuclear Medicine, Radiotherapy & Oncology, School of Medical Sciences, Universiti Sains Malaysia Health Campus, 16150 Kota Bharu, Kelantan, Malaysia
 <sup>4</sup>Department of Surgery, Hospital Universiti Sains Malaysia, 16150 Kota Bharu, Kelantan, Malaysia

<sup>5</sup>Department of Nuclear Medicine, Radiotherapy & Oncology, Hospital Universiti Sains Malaysia, 16150 Kota Bharu, Kelantan, Malaysia

#### INTRODUCTION

Differentiated thyroid carcinoma (DTC) is the most common endocrine malignancy, often necessitating radioactive iodine (RAI) ablation post-total thyroidectomy. While RAI offers significant benefits, the optimal dose remains a subject of debate. This study aims to evaluate the effectiveness of low-dose (30 mCi) versus high-dose (100 mCi) RAI protocols in patients with low- and intermediate-risk DTC, assessed through stimulated thyroglobulin (sTg) levels and whole-body iodine scan (WBIS) outcomes.

#### **MATERIALS & METHODS**

A retrospective review of patient data from two Malaysian nuclear medicine centers was conducted over five years (2017-2021), with low-dose RAI administered at Hospital USM and high-dose at Hospital Kuala Lumpur. DTC risk stratification followed the American Thyroid Association (ATA) guidelines. Demographic data, DTC histology, sTg levels, and WBIS findings were analyzed. RAI ablation success (remission) was defined as sTg <1 ng/mL and a negative WBIS report.

#### **RESULTS**

A total of 227 patients were included: 114 received low-dose RAI (mean age: 42.65 years, 84.2% female, 88.6% papillary, 71.1% low-risk DTC) and 113 received high-dose RAI (mean age: 44.96 years, 84.1% female, 80.5% papillary, 67.3% low-risk DTC) (all p>0.05). Although more patients achieved successful ablation with low-dose RAI, the difference was not statistically significant compared to high-dose RAI (64.9% vs. 52.2%; p=0.052). Multivariate logistic regression identified intermediate-risk DTC and pre-RAI sTg levels as significant independent predictors of non-remission.



#### DISCUSSION

Increased RAI doses are associated to higher healthcare costs and patient burden, as well as a greater risk of secondary malignancies. The ATA guidelines advocate for the minimal effective RAI dosage and support low-dose RAI for low- to intermediate-risk patients.

#### **CONCLUSION**

In patients with low- and intermediate-risk DTC, a low-dose RAI of 30 mCi is comparably effective to 100 mCi for thyroid remnant ablation.

- 1. Yasmin T, Adnan S, Younis MN, et al. Comparing High and Low-Dose Radio-Iodine Therapy in Thyroid Remnant Ablation Among Intermediate and Low-Risk Papillary Thyroid Carcinoma Patients—Single Centre Experience. Dose-Response 2021; 19. DOI: 10.1177/15593258211062775.
- Haugen BR, Alexander EK, Bible KC, et al. 2015 American Thyroid Association Management Guidelines for Adult Patients with Thyroid Nodules and Differentiated Thyroid Cancer: The American Thyroid Association Guidelines Task Force on Thyroid Nodules and Differentiated Thyroid Cancer. Thyroid 2016; 26: 1-133. DOI: 10.1089/thy.2015.0020.



35<sup>th</sup> Annual Scientific Congress of Malaysian Oncological Society *EP-26 A-0048* 

### UNVEILING THE HIDDEN COST OF CANCER: INSIGHTS INTO TRANSPORTATION AND NUTRITIONAL SUPPLEMENT EXPENSES

Farhana Aminuddin<sup>1</sup>, Nor Zam Azihan Mohd Hassan<sup>1</sup>, Mohd Shaiful Jefri<sup>1</sup>, Mohd Shahri Bahari<sup>1</sup>, Nur Amalina Zaimi<sup>1</sup>, Sivaraj Raman<sup>1</sup>, Marhaini Mostapha<sup>1</sup>, And Yui Ping Tan<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Centre of Health Economics Research, Institute for Health Systems Research, National Institutes of Health (NIH), Ministry of Health Malaysia

#### INTRODUCTION

Cancer not only exacts a physical and emotional toll but also imposes a significant financial burden on patients and their families. Despite being frequently overlooked, transportation and nutritional supplement expenses substantially contribute to the out-of-pocket (OOP) burden, particularly for those in lower-income brackets. This study aims to analyse the non-medical expenses incurred by cancer patients, specifically targeting transportation and nutritional supplement expenses.

#### **METHODS**

This cross-sectional study was conducted at six cancer referral hospitals between June and October 2022. Data were collected through face-to-face interviews with cancer patients from the lower-income demographic. The information gathered encompassed demographic profiles and OOP non-medical expenses. These hidden costs include transportation (including fuel, tolls, parking and fares), meals, lodging, nutritional supplements, childcare, and alternative treatments. Costs in Ringgit Malaysia were estimated using the average cost (± standard deviation) per patient per year.

#### **RESULTS**

This study revealed that among the 430 cancer patients surveyed, with a mean age of 59.8 years, annual OOP expenses on non-medical items were reported at RM3,797.28 (±3,788.04), constituting 29.4% of the annual total OOP costs. Transportation costs, averaging RM1,707.94 (±1,933.74) annually and nutritional supplement costs, averaging RM1,582.12 (±2,862.41) annually, were the most significant contributors. These costs comprised 45.0% and 41.7% of the total annual non-medical costs, respectively. The travel burden was found to be greatest for patients from East Malaysia, with an average travel distance three times that of patients from West Malaysia. Moreover, 57.7% of participants reported incurring expenses for nutritional supplements, with 44.0% indicating that these supplements were not prescribed by their doctors.

#### **DISCUSSION**

This study highlights the significant financial burden that non-medical OOP expenses impose on cancer patients. Individuals living farther from the treatment site may experience a higher burden in accessing cancer treatment. Continued efforts should be made to reduce the disparities in accessing care. Nutritional supplements, mainly fortified milk, further increase their cancer-related expenses.

#### **CONCLUSION**

These findings suggest a need for financial support policies, improved local healthcare access, and better regulation and guidance on the use of nutritional supplements to alleviate financial strain on lower income cancer patients.



### A CASE REPORT OF PARAURETHRAL EWING SARCOMA WITH UNDERLYING LEFT MEDIASTINAL DESMOID FIBROMATOSIS

Dr. Anne-Marie Thomas, Dr Sandya Subramaniam Department of Radiotherapy & Oncology, Hospital Kuala Lumpur, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

#### INTRODUCTION

Ewing sarcoma, an aggressive tumor, predominantly affects children and young adults. The types of Ewing sarcoma are 'classic' Ewing sarcoma of bone, extra-skeletal Ewing sarcoma, malignant small cell tumor of the chest wall (Askin tumor), and soft tissue-based primitive neuroectodermal tumors.

#### **MATERIALS & METHODS**

A 27-year old Malay lady was diagnosed with left mediastinal desmoid fibromatosis for which she underwent left posterolateral thoracotomy and tumour debulking on 28/2/2018 and tumour embolization on 11/10/2018. She had 6 cycles of IV doxorubicin followed by radiotherapy to the lung mass. She presented with difficulty in passing urine in August 2022. She was diagnosed with paraurethral Ewing sarcoma in January 2023 and underwent AEWS 50031 protocol chemotherapy and radiotherapy to the mass with weekly IV cisplatin as she declined surgery. Her PET CT scan 25/4/24 showed no scan evidence of FDG-avid local recurrence, nodal or distant metastasis.

#### **RESULTS**

Treatment with AEWS 50031 chemotherapy protocol followed by radiotherapy to the tumour yielded a complete clinical response.

#### **DISCUSSION**

Ewing sarcomas involving female genital tract are rare tumors. A multi-modality approach to treatment care would be beneficial.

#### **CONCLUSION**

Chemotherapy followed by radiotherapy should be considered an option of treatment.

- 1. Five rare cases of Ewing sarcoma, including with epithelial differentiation, involving the female genital tract, displaying EWSR1 rearrangement: Diagnostic challenge and treatment implications" Annals of Diagnostic Pathology Volume 41, August 2019, Pages 1-7
- 2. The Ewing's Sarcoma Family of Tumors of Urinary Bladder: A Case Report and Review of the Literature" Balkan Medical Journal Volume 33, July 2016, Pages 462-266



#### ANTHRACYCLINE INDUCED HEART FAILURE – A CASE REPORT

Dr. Nurul Faizdzrin binti Hamdan, Dr. Cheo Seng Wee Radiotherapy, Oncology and Palliative Unit, Sarawak General Hospital, Sarawak, Malaysia

#### INTRODUCTION

Breast cancer is the most diagnosed cancer among woman worldwide. It is often treated with multimodality which include chemotherapy, surgery, and radiotherapy. Anthracycline and trastuzumab are common systemic therapies used in treatment of breast cancers. Cardiotoxicities are well known adverse events from these anti-cancer therapies. Here, we illustrated a case of heart failure secondary to doxorubicin.

#### **METHOD**

Case report

#### CASE PRESENTATION

A 54-year-old lady with no comorbid initially presented with painless right breast lump. Triple assessment confirmed the diagnosis of right breast invasive carcinoma (ER 5%, PR negative, HER2 positive (3+)). She underwent upfront surgery and pathological assessment confirmed stage II (pT2N0) right breast invasive carcinoma and left breast DCIS. She was recommended for adjuvant chemotherapy with doxorubicin/cyclophosphamide followed by taxanes, radiotherapy, endocrine therapy, and adjuvant trastuzumab for 1 year. Pre-chemotherapy echocardiography was normal with ejection fraction (EF) of 76.3%. Patient was treated with standard adjuvant chemotherapy with 4 cycles of Doxorubicin-Cyclophosphamide and docetaxel/trastuzumab uneventfully. Her treatment was then followed by adjuvant radiotherapy, endocrine therapy and trastuzumab. Post cycle 5 of trastuzumab, patient complained of shortness of breath. Treatment was halt and investigations were carried out to ascertain the cause of dyspnea. Echocardiography showed EF of 28.4%. Her trastuzumab was hold off and cardiology team was consulted. Cardiology team started her on heart failure medications and monitor her heart with serial echocardiography and pro-bun level. Despite 4 months of optimal medical therapy, ejection fraction never normalised. She was concluded to have anthracycline induced heart failure as there was no complete recovery of EF. Her anti HER2 was permanently discontinued due to poor EF. She remains well since then.

#### **CONCLUSION**

This case highlighted the importance of recognising drug induced heart failure. Anthracycline is an uncommon yet important cause of heart failure. Understanding different etiology of heart failure will be crucial in management of cancer patients requiring systemic therapy.



### UNDERSTANDING THE SIGNIFICANCE OF COMPLEMENTARY AND ALTERNATIVE MEDICINE FOR BREAST CANCER SURVIVORS

Auf Ali<sup>1</sup>, Khadijah Padzil<sup>1</sup> School of Pharmacy KPJU, Negeri Sembilan, Malaysia

#### INTRODUCTION

As conventional treatments dominate cancer care, integrating CAM practices has sparked considerable interest and debate. This research, through literature review and qualitative analysis, illuminates the diverse CAM modalities embraced by breast cancer survivors, exploring their efficacy, motivations, and challenges in achieving holistic well-being. The study examines CAM's pivotal role in augmenting conventional treatments, managing symptoms, and enhancing quality of life, while also investigating the socio-cultural factors influencing CAM adoption and adherence among breast cancer survivors.

#### **MATERIALS & METHODS**

Reviewing literature on MEDLINE and CINAHL Plus, keywords 'breast cancer survivorship', AND 'herbal medicine' OR 'traditional medicine' OR 'complementary medicine' OR 'CAM' were used to yield 202 results. PRISMA method were used to screen the results that resulted in 56 papers valid for this systematic review.

#### **RESULTS**

Meditation emerged as the most preferred form of CAM, followed by nutritional support and exercise. Meditation was further categorised into prayers, as practised by Muslims and Christians. Patients improved their diets by reducing sugar and carbohydrate intake while increasing natural protein consumption.

#### **DISCUSSION**

Women generally showed good awareness of breast cancer and its screening methods, particularly breast self-examination, though their in-depth knowledge was superficial. CAM was preferred by some due to fear of conventional treatment, offering a less intrusive alternative. CAM practices, transcending specific religions and cultures, include scientifically based methods like nutritional supplements and exercises. The research highlights CAM's significant impact on breast cancer treatment by alleviating patient stress.

#### **CONCLUSION**

This study amplifies breast cancer survivors' voices, contributing to the discourse on integrating CAM within mainstream oncology. It advocates for a comprehensive, inclusive cancer care approach, prioritising individual preferences and holistic well-being, while investigating socio-cultural factors influencing CAM adoption, offering insights for healthcare providers and policymakers.



- 1. Chui, P. L., Abdullah, K. L., Wong, L. P., & Taib, N. A. (2015). *Quality of Life in CAM and Non-CAM Users among Breast Cancer Patients during Chemotherapy in Malaysia*. 1–17. https://doi.org/10.1371/journal.pone.0139952
- Greenlee, H., Balneaves, L. G., Carlson, L. E., Cohen, M., Deng, G., Hershman, D., Mumber, M., Perlmutter, J., Seely, D., Sen, A., Zick, S. M., & Tripathy, D. (2014). Clinical practice guidelines on the use of integrative therapies as supportive care in patients treated for breast cancer. *Journal of the National Cancer Institute - Monographs*, 2014(50), 346– 358. https://doi.org/10.1093/jncimonographs/lgu041
- 3. Johnson, S. B., Park, H. S., Gross, C. P., & Yu, J. B. (2018). Complementary Medicine, Refusal of Conventional Cancer Therapy, and Survival among Patients with Curable Cancers. *JAMA Oncology*, 4(10), 1375–1381. https://doi.org/10.1001/jamaoncol.2018.2487
- 4. Lyman, G. H., Greenlee, H., Bohlke, K., Bao, T., DeMichele, A. M., Deng, G. E., Fouladbakhsh, J. M., Gil, B., Hershman, D. L., Mansfield, S., Mussallem, D. M., Mustian, K. M., Price, E., Rafte, S., & Cohen, L. (2018). Integrative therapies during and after breast cancer treatment: ASCO endorsement of the SIO clinical practice guideline. *Journal of Clinical Oncology*, 36(25), 2647–2655. https://doi.org/10.1200/JCO.2018.79.2721
- 5. Muhamad, M., Merriam, S., & Suhami, N. (2012). Why Breast Cancer Patients Seek Traditional Healers. 2012. https://doi.org/10.1155/2012/689168
- 6. Zulkipli, A. F., Islam, T., Mohd Taib, N. A., Dahlui, M., Bhoo-Pathy, N., Al-Sadat, N., Abdul Majid, H., & Hussain, S. (2018). Use of Complementary and Alternative Medicine Among Newly Diagnosed Breast Cancer Patients in Malaysia: An Early Report From the MyBCC Study. *Integrative Cancer Therapies*, 17(2), 312–321. https://doi.org/10.1177/1534735417745248



### TREATMENT RELATED POSTERIOR REVERSIBLE ENCEPHALOPATHY SYNDROME IN CANCER PATIENTS

Soo Hoo Hwoei Fen<sup>1</sup>, Lai Fong Ming<sup>2</sup>, Mohd Supion Bin Hj Dimin<sup>2</sup>, Tan Kenny<sup>2</sup>, Lim Chong Hong<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Oncology, Radiotherapy and Palliative Care, Hospital Pulau Pinang, Malaysia

<sup>2</sup> Loh Guan Lye Specialists' Centre, Penang, Malaysia

#### INTRODUCTION

Posterior reversible encephalopathy syndrome (PRES) usually presents with acute or subacute onset of various neurological symptoms, changes in cognition and consciousness. Diagnosis is based on high clinical suspicion and confirmation with MRI as imaging of choice. Common neuroimaging findings are focal regions of vasogenic oedema, typically in the watershed distribution.

#### **REPORT**

Case Report 1

76y.o. lady with metastatic hepatocellular carcinoma was started Lenvatinib in Feb 2024. In view of good tolerance and response, dose of Lenvatinib was slowly increased to 800mg Od. Two weeks later, patient's blood pressure increased to 160/90mmHg. Concurrently she developed unexplained forgetfulness, disorientation of place and time. Symptoms persisted and worsened within few days. PRES is suspected and confirmed with MRI imaging. Lenvatinib was tapered down to 400mg Od with resolution of neurological signs within 48 hours.

#### Case Report 2

54 y.o. lady, diagnosed metastatic rectosigmoid colon carcinoma, was treated with Oxaliplatin + Capecitabine. 24 hours after cycle 1, she developed severe headache following toilet straining. BP was 220/120mmHg. First CT Brain was normal. However she developed acute onset left sided hemianopia within the next 12hours. An urgent MRI brain revealed left parietal occipital region hemorrhage with edema. Conservative medical management was provided and she was discharged 5 days later with improving clinical symptoms and imaging. 20minutes after completing infusion of cycle 2 oxaliplatin, she developed recurrent severe headache with grade 3 hypertension. An urgent CT brain showed subtle frontal region subarachnoid hemorrhage while MRI brain showed hyperintense signal in frontal region with subtle intracortical hemorrhage, previous hemorrhage area was stable. PRES was confirmed and Oxaliplatin permanently discontinued. She recovered with no sequela.

#### **CONCLUSION**

PRES related to oxaliplatin is rare with 10 reported cases worldwide. We reported a unique case of PRES which was complicated with intracranial bleed. With new neurological symptoms during cancer treatment, PRES should be suspected and confirmation through MRI. PRES is often reversible with early recognition and removal of causative agent.



- 1. FEMIA, G., HARDY, T.A., SPIES, J.M. and HORVATH, L.G. (2012), Posterior reversible encephalopathy syndrome following chemotherapy with oxaliplatin and a fluoropyrimidine: A case report and literature review. Asia-Pacific Journal of Clinical Oncology, 8: 115-122.
- 2. Hefzy HM, Bartynski WS, Boardman JF. Hemorrhage in posterior reversible encephalopathy syndrome: imaging and clinical features. AJNR Am J Neuroradiol. 2009 Aug;30(7):1371-9.
- 3. Osawa Y, Gozawa R, Koyama K, Nakayama T, Sagoh T, Sunaga H. Posterior Reversible Encephalopathy Syndrome after Lenvatinib Therapy in a Patient with Anaplastic Thyroid Carcinoma. Intern Med. 2018 Apr 1;57(7):1015-1019.
- 4. Takinami M, Yokota T. Rechallenge with Lenvatinib after Refractoriness to Initial Lenvatinib Followed by Sorafenib in a Patient with Metastatic Papillary Thyroid Carcinoma. Case Rep Oncol. 2020 May 12;13(2):522-527.



### EFFECTIVENESS OF PRE-TREATMENT EDUCATION FOR NEWLY DIAGNOSED CANCER PATIENTS: A RETROSPECTIVE ANALYSIS

Tan Yu Chin

Cancer Centre, Sunway Medical Centre, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

#### INTRODUCTION

Patients with newly diagnosed cancer experience heightened physical and psychological stressors as they prepare to start treatment. Pre-treatment education provides a structured understanding of their treatment plans, potentially reducing anxiety and improving outcomes. This study aims to assess the effectiveness of pre-treatment education at Cancer Centre.

#### **REPORT**

A retrospective analysis study was conducted on a cohort of 163 cancer patients who were scheduled to receive systemic treatment. At the current study setting, a cancer educator will be notified when a patient is about to start treatment and a pre-treatment education is provided based on the oncologist's treatment plan. However, several challenges impacted the effectiveness of this education. These included a shortage of cancer educators, educators without oncology-specific expertise, missed notifications of new cases, lack of follow-up during ongoing treatment, and educators being unaware of changes in treatment plans. The findings suggest that these factors significantly hinder the effectiveness of pre-treatment education. Additionally, many patients had previously received incorrect information, particularly regarding chemotherapy side effects, which affected their willingness to continue treatment. To address these issues, several strategies are recommended: recruiting additional clinical coordinators with oncology experience, forming a dedicated team of cancer educators for continuous case follow-up, and establishing a communication system to ensure timely notifications of new cases and treatment plan changes among oncology nurses and cancer educators.

#### **CONCLUSIONS**

Pre-treatment education is crucial for helping cancer patients navigate their treatment journey by providing essential information that can reduce fear and stress. Continuous follow-up with patients is also recommended to maintain ongoing support and care. Implementing these strategies could enhance the effectiveness of pre-treatment education, ultimately improving patient outcomes, increasing their confidence in the treatment process, and ensuring their commitment to completing their prescribed therapies.

- 1. Kean, C, C, Iverson, L, & Boylan, A, (2016.). Evaluation of a Chemotherapy and Medication Education Process for Patients Starting Cancer Treatment. Oncology nursing society. https://cjon.ons.org/cjon/20/4/evaluation-chemotherapy-and-medication-education-process-patients-starting-cancer
- 2. Li S, Li L, Shi X, Wang M, Song X, Cui F, (2021.). Personalized Prechemotherapy Education Reduces Peri-Chemotherapy Anxiety in Colorectal Cancer Patients. https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC8110412/



### PREVALENCE OF HOMOLOGOUS RECOMBINATION DEFICIENCY IN MALAYSIAN TRIPLE-NEGATIVE BREAST CANCER PATIENTS

Siti Norhidayu Hasan<sup>1</sup>, Zi-Ching Tan<sup>1</sup>, Cheng Har Yip<sup>2</sup>, Pathmanathan Rajadurai<sup>2</sup>, Lai-Meng Looi<sup>3</sup>, Nur Aishah Mohd Taib<sup>3</sup>, Ho Gwo Fuang<sup>3</sup>, Mastura MD Yusof <sup>4</sup>, Lim Chun Sen<sup>5</sup>, Kua Voon Fong<sup>6</sup>, Bawani Selvam<sup>1</sup>, Pei-Sze Ng<sup>1</sup>, Muhammad Mamduh Ahmad Zabidi<sup>1</sup>, Jie Ying Teo<sup>1</sup>, Chye Wei Ying<sup>3</sup>, Nurhasanah Abdul Rahman<sup>4</sup>, Aisyah Ali<sup>5</sup>, Kiew May Chee<sup>6</sup>, Oscar M. Rueda<sup>7</sup>, Carlos Caldas<sup>7,8</sup>, Suet-Feung Chin<sup>7</sup>, Joanna Lim<sup>1</sup>, Soo-Hwang Teo<sup>1</sup>, Jia-Wern Pan<sup>1</sup>. 

<sup>1</sup>Cancer Research Malaysia, Selangor, Malaysia. <sup>2</sup>Subang Jaya Medical Centre, Selangor, Malaysia. <sup>3</sup>Faculty of Medicine, University Malaya, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia. <sup>4</sup>Pantai Hospital Kuala Lumpur, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia. <sup>5</sup>Hospital Sultan Ismail, Johor Bahru, Malaysia. <sup>6</sup>Beacon International Medical Centre, Selangor, Malaysia. <sup>7</sup>Cancer Research UK, Cambridge, United Kingdom. <sup>8</sup>Cambridge University Hospital NHS Foundation Trust, Cambridge, United Kingdom

#### **INTRODUCTION**

Triple-negative breast cancer (TNBC) is a subtype of breast cancer with limited treatment options and poor prognosis [1]. Homologous Recombination Deficiency (HRD) is a biomarker for DNA repair deficiencies, where patients with HRD tumors have shown increased sensitivity to specific therapies, such as platinum-based chemotherapies and PARP inhibitors [2,3]. Though it presents a potential target for therapy, its prevalence in Malaysian TNBC patients is not well understood.

#### **MATERIALS & METHODS**

We used a gene-expression based method to determine the HRD status by analyzing RNA extracted from formalin-fixed, paraffin-embedded (FFPE) tumor samples of TNBC patients. The study included 173 TNBC patients recruited from a hospital-based cohort of breast cancer patients and investigator-initiated clinical trial.

#### RESULTS

Out of the 173 TNBC samples tested, 62% showed the presence of HRD. This prevalence falls within the range reported in the literature, which suggests that 40-70% of TNBC cases exhibit HRD [4].

#### **DISCUSSION**

The finding that 62% of Malaysian TNBC patients exhibit HRD highlights the relevance of HRD as a significant feature in this population. This aligns with global data, indicating that a significant proportion of TNBC patients could benefit from therapies targeting DNA repair mechanisms. The results suggest that routine HRD testing in clinical practice could help personalize treatment strategies, particularly in identifying patients for platinum-based chemotherapies and PARP inhibitors, thus potentially improving prognosis for TNBC patients in Malaysia.



#### **CONCLUSION**

This study reveals a significant prevalence of HRD among TNBC patients in Malaysia, suggesting that integrating HRD status assessment into standard care could enhance personalized treatment approaches and improve outcomes for TNBC patients in Malaysia. Identifying patients with HRD may help tailor therapies, particularly with options like platinum-based chemotherapies and PARP inhibitors.

- 1. Zagami, P. & Carey, L.A. npj Breast Cancer; 95 (2022)
- 2. Eikesdal et al. Ann Oncol. 2021;32(2):240-249
- 3. Telli et al. Clin Cancer Res. 2016;22(15):3764-3773
- 4. Ali et al. Genes. 2024; 15(2):162



### TRIPLE NEGATIVE INTERNAL MAMMARY LYMPH NODE RECURRENCE IN BRCA MUTANT ER POSITIVE EARLY BREAST CANCER

Dr. Fong Pey Shan, MD<sup>1</sup>, Dr. Angel Kwan Khor Nee, MD<sup>1</sup>, Dr. Chan Ming Jun, MD<sup>1</sup> *IRadiotherapy and Oncology Unit, Hospital Raja Permaisuri Bainun, Perak, Malaysia* 

#### INTRODUCTION

Isolated internal mammary lymph node (IMLN) recurrence after primary breast cancer treatment is rare, with incidence rates of 0.2–1.5%<sup>1,2</sup>. As IMLN irradiation has demonstrated improvement in overall survival and the risk of distant recurrence, the National Comprehensive Cancer Network panel recommends using radiation therapy if possible and considering systemic therapy<sup>3</sup>. However, the decision to treat locoregional recurrence is challenging in consideration of the risk of cardiac and pulmonary toxicities due to any prior radiation to the area<sup>4,5</sup>. On the contrary, a study that suggested 59% of the 3-year survival rate favours the surgical treatment of IMN recurrences<sup>6</sup>. There was no standard salvage strategy for IMLN recurrence until now.

#### **REPORT**

A 43-year-old premenopausal lady was diagnosed with BRCA1 mutated, ER positive and HER2 negative left invasive breast carcinoma with TNM staging of pT2N1a(2/16)M0 post left modified radical mastectomy and axillary clearance. She completed sequential 5-Fluorouracil, Epirubicin and Cyclophosphamide and Docetaxel adjuvant chemotherapy for 6 cycles, radiotherapy to the left chest wall and supraclavicular fossa 40 Grays in 15 fractions in November 2022, and on-going hormonal therapy, including Letrozole and Goserelin injection. Radiological surveillance in June 2023 revealed isolated left IMLN recurrence. IMLN irradiation is not feasible due to prior radiation and potential cardiac toxicity. Multidisciplinary approach with left IMLN resection, which revealed tumour biology transformation to triple negative, followed by 6 cycles of adjuvant paclitaxel carboplatin chemotherapy. Adjuvant PARP inhibitor is not amenable due to the cost. She is currently 1 year disease-free with close radiological surveillance and scheduled for prophylactic right mastectomy and bilateral salpingo-oophorectomy.

#### **CONCLUSION**

ILMN irradiation should be individualized after considering the prior therapy and potential cardio-pulmonary safety interaction with systemic therapy. Multidisciplinary approach of surgery followed by systemic therapy could be the treatment of choice for isolated IMLN recurrence.

#### REFERENCES

1. Urano M, Denewar FA, Murai T, Mizutani M, Kitase M, Ohashi K, et al. Internal mammary lymph node metastases in breast cancer: what should radiologists know? Jpn J Radiol. 2018 Nov;36(11):629-640.



- 2. Wang W, Qiu P, Li J. Internal mammary lymph node metastasis in breast cancer patients based on anatomical imaging and functional imaging. Breast Cancer. 2022 Nov;29(6):933-944.
- 3. Gradishar WJ, Anderson BO, Balassanian R, Blair SL, Burstein HJ, Cyr A, et al. NCCN guidelines insights: breast cancer, version 1.2017. J Natl Compr Canc Netw. 2017;15:433–51.
- 4. Yang K, Kim H, Choi DH et al. Optimal radiotherapy for patients with internal mammary lymph node metastasis from breast cancer. Radiat Oncol. 2020 Mar 3;15(1):16.
- 5. Cong BB, Cao XS, Cao L et al. Internal mammary lymph nodes radiotherapy of breast cancer in the era of individualized medicine. Oncotarget. 2017 Aug 11;8(46):81583-81590.
- Van Geel AN, Wouters MW, van der Pol C, Schmitz PIM, Lans T. Chest wall resection for internal mammary lymph node metastases of breast cancer. The Breast. 2009 Apr;18(2):94–9. Farber EM, Nall ML. The natural history of psoriasis in 5,600 patients. Dermatologica. 1974;148(1):1-18.



### LENVATINIB FOR TREATMENT OF UNRESECTABLE HEPATOCELLULAR CARCINOMA: EXPERIENCE IN A SINGLE INSTITUTION IN MALAYSIA

Dr. Fong Pey Shan, MD<sup>1</sup>, Dr. Angel Kwan Khor Nee, MD<sup>1</sup>, Dr. Chan Ming Jun, MD<sup>1</sup> Radiotherapy and Oncology Unit, Hospital Raja Permaisuri Bainun, Perak, Malaysia

#### INTRODUCTION

Hepatocellular carcinoma (HCC) is the eighth most common cancer in Malaysia and sixth in males<sup>1</sup>. It is the second leading cause of malignancy related mortality globally<sup>2</sup>. Lenvatinib is an oral multikinase inhibitor registered to treat advanced or unresectable HCC<sup>3,4</sup>. We aim to share our institutional experience with Lenvatinib.

#### **MATERIALS & METHODS**

A retrospective study was conducted on 12 patients treated with Lenvatinib for advanced HCC from July 2022 to April 2024 in our institution. Baseline demographic data, tumour characteristics, Lenvatinib dosing, and adverse events (AEs) causing interruption or discontinuation were collected.

#### RESULTS

The patients were predominantly male (75%), with a median age of 62 years. All patients had BCLC stage C with ECOG 0 or 1. 75% (n=9) have extrahepatic metastasis, while 25% (n=3) have multifocal intra-hepatic lesions. The median duration of treatment was 62 days (IQR 43-120.25 days). Treatment initiated doses were 10mg daily (16.7%), 8mg daily (33.3%), 8mg alternate day (16.7%) and 4mg daily (33.3%). Therapy had been permanently ceased in 41.6% (n=5) due to intolerance with a 1.5-month median treatment time (range 0.1-2 months), where 3 patients are Child-Pugh B8 while the other 2 are Child-Pugh A6. The most common adverse events are grade 3 fatigue (33%), grade 3 anorexia (25%), and grade 3 diarrhea (16.7%). 58.3% (n=7) who remained on therapy were Child-Pugh A with a median treatment duration of 3 months (range 1-13 months). 50% (n=6) treatment interruption and 25% (n=3) dose reduction were due to thrombocytopenia, alanine aminotransferase raised, vomiting, diarrhea, hand-foot syndrome, and mucositis.

#### **CONCLUSION**

Despite Lenvatinib showing favorable efficacy and safety in multiple trials, more than half of the patients in our center experienced at least one AE that caused an interruption in treatment; 41.6% had discontinuation. Its toxicity remains a challenge for us in terms of management in real-world practice.

- 1. Azizah AM et al. Malaysia national cancer registry report (MNCR) 2012-2016. Putrajaya: National Cancer Institute, Ministry of Health. 2019 June:1–100
- 2. Villanueva A. Hepatocellular Carcinoma. N Engl J Med. 2019 Apr 11;380(15):1450-1462.
- 3. Patwala K, Prince DS, Celermajer Y et al. Lenvatinib for the treatment of hepatocellular carcinoma-a real-world multicenter Australian cohort study. Hepatol Int.2022 Oct;16(5):1170-1178.
- 4. Kudo M, Finn RS, Qin S et al. Lenvatinib versus sorafenib in first-line treatment of patients with unresectable hepatocellular carcinoma: a randomized phase 3 non-inferiority trial. Lancet. 2018 Mar 24;391(10126):1163-1173.



### ALK FUSION IN MALAYSIAN NON-SMALL CELL LUNG CANCER: A REAL-WORLD ANALYSIS USING NEXT GENERATION SEQUENCING DATA

Ning Yi Yap<sup>1</sup>, Jayalakshmi Pailoor<sup>1</sup>, Bee Suan Tay<sup>1</sup>, Che Zairieha Che Zainudin<sup>1</sup>, Pathmanathan Rajadurai<sup>1,2</sup>

- 1. Molecular Diagnostic Services, Laboratory, Subang Jaya Medical Centre, Selangor, Malaysia
- 2. Jeffrey Cheah School of Medicine & Health Sciences, Monash University, Bandar Sunway, Selangor, Malaysia

#### **INTRODUCTION**

Anaplastic lymphoma kinase (ALK) fusion is the second most common driver gene alteration among non-small cell lung cancer (NSCLC) patients. However, the patient and clinical profile of ALK fusion positive NSCLC has not been well described in Malaysia. This analysis investigated the prevalence and characteristics of NSCLC patients with ALK fusion, who underwent next generation sequencing (NGS) testing.

#### **MATERIALS & METHODS**

NGS results of NSCLC samples received between October 2019 and December 2022 at Subang Jaya Medical Centre were evaluated. Descriptive and statistical analyses were performed.

#### **RESULTS**

A total of 1373 cases were included in the analysis, of which 85 harboured ALK gene alterations; fusions (n=81, 5.9%), single nucleotide variants (SNV) (2, 0.1%), fusion and SNV (1, 0.1%) and amplification (1, 0.1%). The ALK fusion partners were EML4 (n=76), KIF5B (1), HIP1 (1), STRN (1), MYO5C (1) and VCL (1). EML4::ALK variants detected were v3a/b (n=34), v1 (27), v2 (11) and v5 (1). TP53 was the most common co-mutation for ALK fusion tumours (n=10). Patients with ALK fusion were significantly younger (mean age 56.5 vs 63.3 years, p<0.001) and tended to be female (64.6% vs 46.3%, p=0.001) compared to those without ALK alterations. Moreover, there was a difference in the prevalence of ALK fusion among the ethnicities (p=0.006); Indians (13.2%), Malays (10%), Chinese (4.9%) and others (6%). Patients with ALK fusion were also more likely to be never-smokers (85.7% vs 62.1%, p<0.001) compared to those without ALK alterations.

#### **DISCUSSION**

Some studies have shown that the *EML4::ALK* v3a/b variant could potentially lead to poorer ALK tyrosine kinase inhibitor response and survival outcomes. Additionally, *TP53* co-mutation may have an unfavourable effect on these outcomes.

#### **CONCLUSION**

Future analysis with follow up data may elucidate the effects of ethnicity and the *EML4::ALK* v3a/b variant on the survival outcomes of Malaysian *ALK* fusion positive NSCLC patients.

#### REFERENCE

Zhang SS *et al.* (2021), Going beneath the tip of the iceberg. Identifying and understanding EML4-ALK variants and TP53 mutations to optimize treatment of ALK fusion positive (ALK+) NSCLC, Lung Cancer 158:126-136.



### RETROSPECTIVE ANALYSIS OF MOLECULAR PROFILE IN LUNG CANCER PATIENTS: A SINGLE-CENTER STUDY IN A PRIVATE HOSPITAL SETTING

Pei Yun Tan<sup>1</sup>, Azura Rozila Ahmad<sup>2</sup>, Lye Mun Tho<sup>2</sup>, Bao Jing Chen<sup>1</sup>, Dato Mohammed Ibrahim Wahid<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Clinical Research Department, Beacon Hospital, Selangor, Malaysia <sup>2</sup>Department of Oncology, Beacon Hospital, Selangor, Malaysia

#### INTRODUCTION

Lung cancer ranks among the prevalent cancers in Malaysia, constituting around 10% of all malignancies. This study offer insights of molecular characteristics of lung cancer patients in a hospital Malaysia.

#### **OBJECTIVE**

To analyze the clinical characteristics of new lung cancer patients and results of lung cancer profiling within a single-center setting.

#### **METHODOLOGY**

Data of newly diagnosed lung cancer patients in <u>Beacon Hospital</u> from January 2021 to December 2023, including demographics and molecular profiles were collected manually and analyzed using descriptive statistics.

#### **RESULTS**

During the study period, 729 lung cancer patients with the median age of 65 were diagnosed. 57.7% were male and remainder were female. 398 of 729 underwent PDL-1 testing, with 160 of 571 testing PDL-1<1%, 152 of 571 testing PDL-1 between 1% to 49%, and 86 of 571 testing PDL-1>50%. Most patients 582 of 729 underwent lung cancer profiling, with 253 of 582 testing positive for EGFR mutation. Among these, 160 of 253 had EGFR exon 19 deletion or exon 21 L858R mutation and 23 of 253 had EGFR exon 20 insertion. 35 of 582 tested positive for ALK mutation while 15 of 582 had MET mutation with 4 cases of METex14 skipping mutation. 28 of 582 had KRAS mutation with 6 cases of KRAS G12C mutation, 8 of 582 had HER2+ mutation and 4 of 582 had RET mutation. There were 12 of 582 had ROS1 mutation and also 11 of 582 had BRAF mutation with 3 had BRAF V600E mutation.

#### **CONCLUSIONS**

In conclusion, analyzing 729 patients from 2021 to 2023 showed a male predominance. More than half of the patients had molecular testing, reveal 75.3% actionable targets which help in guiding treatment options, emphasizing personalized lung cancer care's importance.

- 1. Rajadurai, P., How, S. H., Liam, C. K., Sachithanandan, A., Soon, S. Y., & Tho, L. M. (2020). Lung cancer in Malaysia. *Journal of Thoracic Oncology*, 15(3), 317–323. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jtho.2019.10.021
- 2. Ferreira, C. G., Reis, M. X., & Veloso, G. V. (2023). Editorial: Molecular genetic testing and emerging targeted therapies for non-small cell lung cancer. *Frontiers in oncology*, *13*, 1308525. https://doi.org/10.3389/fonc.2023.1308525



### LINAC-BASED SBRT FOR LOCALIZED PROSTATE CANCER PATIENTS: A RETROSPECTIVE, SINGLE CENTRE STUDY

Teo Kok Phin, Dr John Low Seng Hooi, Mohamad Afandi bin Azman Sunway Medical Centre, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

#### INTRODUCTION

In recent years, cancer centers worldwide have increasingly adopted stereotactic body radiation therapy (SBRT) as a cutting-edge technique for treating prostate cancer. SBRT delivers higher single-dose fractions, offering advantages such as reduced treatment time and minimized toxicity and late effects for patients. However, the efficacy of SBRT in treating localized prostate cancer remains a compelling research question.

#### **MATERIALS & METHODS**

In this retrospective study, only patients who maintained consistent follow-up at our center were selected. Five localized prostate cancer patients with varying Gleason scores (2 low, 2 intermediate, and 1 high risk) who received linear accelerator (LINAC)-based SBRT treatment between 2019 and 2023 were analyzed. These patients were treated using a prescription dose of 36.25 Gy delivered in five fractions. Each fraction was administered within 72 to 96 hours gap as suggested in the Radiation Therapy Oncology Group (RTOG) protocol-0938. All patients were implanted with gold fiducial markers before treatment. After completing treatment, the patients were followed up for an average of 21.8 months, ranging from 6 to 48 months. We analyzed their mean follow-up PSA levels and compared them to the Phoenix definition to assess the risk of biochemical recurrence.

#### **RESULTS**

The average pre-treatment prostate-specific antigen (PSA) level across all patients was 11.306 ng/ml, ranging from 2.31 to 16 ng/ml. Remarkably, the mean follow-up PSA level for these five patients was 0.161 ng/ml, ranging from 0.018 to 0.554 ng/ml, which was lower than the biochemical recurrence threshold (PSA nadir + 2 ng/ml).

#### **DISCUSSION**

The prescribed dose regimen of 36.25 Gy in five fractions effectively reduces PSA levels to a safe range, thus preventing biochemical recurrence in these patients. The insertion of gold fiducial markers aids in improving the dose distribution precision in planning target volume, providing a superior advantage in treatment planning.

#### **CONCLUSION**

In conclusion, the LINAC-based SBRT treatment technique is well-suited for localized prostate cancer patients across low, intermediate, and high-risk categories.



- Schröder, C., Mose, L., Mathier, E., Zwahlen, D. R., Aebersold, D. M., Förster, R., & Shelan, M. (2023, December 12). Five fractions versus seven fractions SBRT for intermediate- and high-risk prostate cancer: A propensity score matched pair analysis. MDPI. https://www.mdpi.com/2072-6694/15/24/5815#:~:text=In%20conclusion%2C%20SBRT%20regimens%20using,and%20the%20larger%20PTV%20margins.
- 2. Galienne, M., Risbourg, S., Lacornerie, T., Taillez, A., Lartigau, E., Barthoulot, M., & Pasquier, D. (2024). Extreme hypofractionated stereotactic radiotherapy for localized prostate Cancer: Efficacy and late urinary toxicity according to transurethral resection of the prostate history. *Clinical and translational radiation oncology*, 46, 100779. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ctro.2024.100779
- 3. Pei Yuin, J. L., Jia Shin, J. T., Jing, C. B., Mun, T. L., Balasubramaniam, M. A., & Ibrahim Wahid, D. M. (2023). Retrospective Analysis of Clinical Outcomes of Stereotactic Body Radiation Therapy for Localized Prostate Cancer at an Asian Cancer Specialist Centre. *Asian Pacific journal of cancer prevention: APJCP*, 24(2), 545–550. https://doi.org/10.31557/APJCP.2023.24.2.545



### NURSING OBSERVATION FOR BLADDER AND RECTUM TOXICITY FOR RADICAL PROSTATE RADIOTHERAPY WITHIN THE TREATMENT DAY

Norsaleen Syazwana Binti Mohd Sabri, Mohammad Rais Bin Sarbini, Gan Chee Shan Cancer Centre, Sunway Medical Centre, Malaysia

#### INTRODUCTION

Radical prostate radiotherapy is a common treatment for prostate cancer, but it can result in gastrointestinal and genitourinary toxicity, impacting patient comfort and treatment adherence. Understanding the acute effects of these organ within the treatment day can aid in better patient management and care.

#### **MATERIALS AND METHODS**

This observational study was conducted in a Radiotherapy Department of a Private Hospital. A group of 30 patients with dose of 60Gy at 20 fraction Radical Prostate Radiotherapy was monitored between year 2023-2024. Nursing staff recorded symptoms related to bladder and rectum including diarrhoea, constipation, urinary incontinence and urinary urgency at weekly basis or upon patient complaint during the treatment period. Symptoms severity was assessed using a standardized grading scale follow the National Cancer Institute (NCI).

#### **RESULTS**

The findings indicate that both bladder and rectum presented G1 constipation and diarrhea at second weeks of treatment. However, symptoms of diarrhea worsen in the fourth week of the treatment, 4 out of 30 patients need treatment to reduce the symptoms. 20% of this group of patient experience G1 urinary incontinence and urinary urgency in week three and worsened in week four. Symptoms were pronounced to Oncologist and treatment such as loperamide to reduce the frequency of diarrhea and anticholigenic to reduce the overactive bladder immediately and shows some reduction during the treatment period.

#### **CONCLUSION**

Based on the finding of this study, diarrhea and urinary frequency being the highest group of toxicities. Continue nursing observation and timely management of these symptoms are crucial for improving patient comfort and compliance with the treatment as well as optimize patient outcomes and quality of life.

- 1. Hasterok, M. et al. (2023) Rectum and bladder toxicity in postoperative prostate bed irradiation: Dose-volume parameters analysis, Cancers. Available at: https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC10670737/ (Accessed: 25 May 2024).
- 2. Gill, S. *et al.* (2011) 'Acute toxicity in prostate cancer patients treated with and without image-guided radiotherapy', *Radiation Oncology*, 6(1). doi:10.1186/1748-717x-6-145.



### GENETIC TESTING IN AN ENDOMETRIAL CANCER PATIENT IDENTIFIES RELATIVES AT RISK OF LYNCH SYNDROME – A CASE STUDY

Yong Quan Lee<sup>1,2</sup>, Heamanthaa Padmanabhan<sup>1,2</sup>, Daphne Shin-Chi Lee<sup>1,2</sup>, Joanna Lim<sup>1,3</sup>,

Chee Meng Yong<sup>4</sup>, Sook-Yee Yoon<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup> Genetix, CRMY Technologies Sdn Bhd, Selangor, Malaysia

<sup>2</sup> Genetic Counselling Unit, Cancer Research Malaysia, Selangor, Malaysia

<sup>3</sup> Core Laboratory Unit, Cancer Research Malaysia, Selangor, Malaysia

<sup>4</sup> Department of Gynaecological Oncology, Hospital Ampang, Selangor, Malaysia

#### **BACKGROUND**

Approximately 3% of endometrial cancers are attributed to Lynch syndrome. Individuals with Lynch syndrome are at a higher risk of developing a range of cancers, with the risk for colorectal, endometrial, and ovarian cancer being the most significant. Endometrial cancer patients with high-risk features such as young age of diagnosis, family history of Lynch syndrome-associated cancers, and/or mismatch repair deficiency should be referred for genetic counselling.

#### **CASE**

A 48 years-old female was diagnosed with Grade 2 endometrial adenocarcinoma, stage 1A. Extra fascial hysterectomy and bilateral salpingo-oophorectomy was performed. Subsequent mismatch repair immunohistochemistry (MMR IHC) demonstrated loss of *MSH2* and *MSH6* expression in the tumour tissue, confirming mismatch repair deficiency. A strong maternal family history of colorectal and pancreatic cancer was also reported. The patient was referred for genetic counselling by her gynaeoncologist due to a suspicion of Lynch syndrome.

#### **DISCUSSION**

Genetic testing revealed a germline MSH2 pathogenic variant, confirming the diagnosis of Lynch syndrome. The patient was subsequently referred to a gastroenterologist for intensive colorectal screening. Good intra-familial communication about genetic test results also facilitated cascade testing among family members, up to third-degree relatives. Specifically, testing for the familial MSH2 variant was performed in the patient's children, siblings, and maternal relatives. This provided opportunities to systematically identify unaffected carriers, for whom risk management strategies such as regular colonoscopy and risk-reducing hysterectomy and salpingo-oophorectomy were put in place. Conversely, it also alleviated the risk of relatives who do not carry the familial variant.

#### **CONCLUSION**

Endometrial cancer patients who fulfill genetic testing criteria should be referred for genetic counselling. Apart from providing clinical utility to the index patient, ascertaining a pathogenic or likely pathogenic variant also helps identify at-risk family members through cascade testing, which subsequently creates an avenue for appropriate risk management.



### ASSESSING THE ACCURACY OF CIRCULATING TUMOR DNA FOR EARLY MULTI-CANCER DETECTION IN THE ASIAN POPULATION

Anand Mohan<sup>1</sup>, Boon Shing Tan<sup>1</sup>, Hiu Ching Toh<sup>1</sup>, Ee Mun Loo<sup>1,2</sup>, Zhi Win Ng<sup>1,3</sup>, Chew Xin Yi<sup>1,4</sup>, Bee Yin Khor<sup>1</sup>, Kok Sin Teow<sup>1</sup>, Sudha Ashvinder<sup>1</sup>, Yu Sean Khoo<sup>1</sup>, Wai Mun Leong<sup>1,4</sup>, Chun Wai Mai<sup>2</sup>, Chee-Onn Leong<sup>1,3,5</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Advanced Genomics Laboratory, AGTC Genomics, Bukit Jalil 57000, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.

<sup>2</sup>Faculty of Pharmaceutical Sciences, UCSI, Cheras 56000 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia. <sup>3</sup>Center for Cancer and Stem Cell Research, Institute for Research, Development and Innovation (IRDI), International Medical University, Bukit Jalil 57000, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.

<sup>4</sup>School of Science, Monash University, Bandar Sunway 47500 Subang Jaya, Selangor, Malaysia.

#### **INTRODUCTION**

Multi-cancer early detection (MCED) tests, particularly those based on circulating tumor DNA (ctDNA), are emerging as transformative tools in oncology. These tests have the potential to enhance cancer survival rates significantly by enabling earlier and more accurate detection across various cancer stages.

#### **MATERIALS & METHODS**

A case-control study was conducted involving 2,352 Asian patients presenting with either benign conditions or cancers at stages I-IV. The study encompassed 11 cancer types. Each participant was screened using a ctDNA-based MCED test, and the results were analyzed to determine the test's sensitivity and specificity across various cancer stages.

#### **RESULTS**

The ctDNA-based MCED test demonstrated an average sensitivity of 62.2% for stage I, 74.8% for stage II, 95.6% for stage III, and 98.7% for stage IV cancers. The test also demonstrated high specificity with rates of 95.1% for stage I, 96.2% for stage II, 98.2% for stage III, and 98.8% for stage IV cancers.

#### **CONCLUSION**

The high sensitivity and specificity of the ctDNA-based MCED test across all cancer stages highlight its potential as a reliable and accurate method for early cancer detection. The non-invasive nature and the ability of liquid biopsies to provide real-time monitoring of tumor dynamics further enhance their utility in clinical practice. These findings underscore the significant potential of ctDNA-based liquid biopsies in revolutionizing the field of MCED, emphasizing the need for ongoing research and development.



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup>Bioinformatics and Data Center, AGTC Genomics, Bukit Jalil 57000, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.

### CHARACTERIZING CANCER-SUSCEPTIBILITY GENOMIC VARIANTS IN THE MALAYSIAN POPULATION

Hiu Ching Toh<sup>1</sup>, Jia Wen On<sup>1</sup>, Boon Shing Tan<sup>1</sup>, Ee Mun Loo<sup>1,2</sup>, Anand Mohan<sup>1</sup>, Zhi Win Ng<sup>1,3</sup>, Chew Xin Yi<sup>1,4</sup>, Bee Yin Khor<sup>1</sup>, Kok Sin Teow<sup>1</sup>, Sudha Ashvinder<sup>1</sup>, Yu Sean Khoo<sup>1</sup>, Wai Mun Leong<sup>1,4</sup>, Chun Wai Mai<sup>2</sup>, Chee-Onn Leong<sup>1,3,5</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Advanced Genomics Laboratory, AGTC Genomics, Bukit Jalil 57000, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.

<sup>2</sup>Faculty of Pharmaceutical Sciences, UCSI, Cheras 56000 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia. <sup>3</sup>Center for Cancer and Stem Cell Research, Institute for Research, Development and Innovation (IRDI), International Medical University, Bukit Jalil 57000, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.

<sup>4</sup>School of Science, Monash University, Bandar Sunway 47500 Subang Jaya, Selangor, Malaysia.

#### INTRODUCTION

Asian populations are notably underrepresented in genomic research, which is crucial for understanding genetic predispositions to various diseases, including cancer. This study focuses on the analysis of clinically significant cancer-driving genetic variants in the Malaysian population.

#### **MATERIALS & METHODS**

Whole genome sequencing was performed on 564 genomes from the Malaysian population. The analysis focused on identifying germline mutations that are pathogenic or likely pathogenic and are known to drive cancer development.

#### **RESULTS**

Approximately 2.6% of the sampled population carried at least one pathogenic or likely pathogenic germline mutation associated with increased cancer risk. The most frequently observed cancer-related germline variants were in the APC, ATM, BARD1, BRCA1, BRCA2, BRIP1, CHEK2, ERCC6, MSH6, PALB2, PMS2, RAD51C, RAD51D, and TSC2 genes. The carrier frequency of these cancer-related variants was found to be comparable to that of genes associated with lipid disorders and cardiovascular diseases.

#### **CONCLUSION**

This study provides crucial insights into the genetic landscape of cancer susceptibility within the Malaysian population, highlighting the prevalence of significant cancer-related genetic variants. The findings underscore the need for targeted genetic screening and personalized preventive strategies in healthcare, particularly in populations that are currently underrepresented in genomic research. This could enhance the early detection and management of cancer in the Malaysian population, potentially improving patient outcomes.



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup>Bioinformatics and Data Center, AGTC Genomics, Bukit Jalil 57000, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.

### FALSE ALARM: A FALSE POSITIVE CASE IN BONE SCINTIGRAPHY IN OSTEOSARCOMA

Sheila Shazlina Kemis<sup>1,2</sup>, Lee Yeong Fong<sup>1</sup>, Ng Chen Siew<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup> Department of Nuclear Medicine, Hospital Sultanah Aminah, Johor Bahru Malaysia.

<sup>2</sup> Advance Medical and Dental Institute, Universiti Sains Malaysia.

#### INTRODUCTION

Osteosarcoma, a primary malignant bone tumor, requires accurate diagnostic and staging to guide treatment and evaluate prognosis. Fluorodeoxyglucose Positron Emission Tomography-Computed Tomography (<sup>18</sup>F-FDG PET-CT) and bone scintigraphy are two prominent imaging modalities with its own distinct advantages and limitations. We present a false positive case, which shows uptake at the bone scintigraphy but no uptake at the <sup>18</sup>F-FDG PET-CT, which was histopathological examination (HPE) proven negative for malignancy.

#### **REPORT**

A 14-year-old girl with osteosarcoma of the right tibia with lung metastasis. Baseline preoperative bone scintigraphy showed primary malignancy at the right tibia with no distant bone metastasis. She proceeded for en-bloc resection of the right distal femur and proximal tibia reconstruction with interlocking nail femur with bilateral thoracotomy and nodulectomy. After completion of chemotherapy, repeated bone scintigraphy showed no evidence of bone metastasis. However, <sup>18</sup>F-FDG PET-CT showed suspicious FDG avid uptake at the left sacral ala adjacent to the left sacroiliac joint. She was sent again for bone scintigraphy for evaluation of the left sacral ala lesion. However, a new abnormal osteoblastic activity was noted at the right 6<sup>th</sup> rib, which was not seen in the <sup>18</sup>F-FDG PET-CT. She was proceeded for 6th rib resection. HPE of the right 6<sup>th</sup> rib shows no tumor involvement and no evidence of malignancy.

#### **CONCLUSION**

While both <sup>18</sup>F-FDG PET-CT and bone scintigraphy play crucial roles in diagnosing and managing osteosarcoma, <sup>18</sup>F-FDG PET-CT offers a more detailed and comprehensive evaluation, particularly for staging and monitoring therapeutic response. Studies showed that <sup>18</sup>F-FDG PET-CT showed higher sensitivity and specificity in comparison to bone scintigraphy for diagnosing osseous metastases in pediatric patients with osteosarcoma. Nevertheless, bone scintigraphy continues to be a vital, accessible, and cost-effective modality for assessing bone involvement. Clinical needs, resource availability, and specific patient factors should guide the choice of imaging technique.

- 1. Hurley C, McCarville MB, Shulkin BL, et al. Comparison of 18F-FDG-PET-CT and Bone Scintigraphy for Evaluation of Osseous Metastases in Newly Diagnosed and Recurrent Osteosarcoma. Pediatr Blood Cancer. 2016;63(8):1381-1386. doi:10.1002/PBC.26014
- 2. Vadera S, Gaillard F. Osteosarcoma. Radiopaedia.org. Published online May 2, 2008. doi:10.53347/RID-1170



- 3. Rathore R, Van Tine BA, Rodriguez R. Clinical Medicine Pathogenesis and Current Treatment of Osteosarcoma: Perspectives for Future Therapies. J Clin Med. Published online 2021. doi:10.3390/jcm10061182
- 4. Nguyen JC, Baghdadi S, Pogoriler J, Guariento A, Rajapakse CS, Arkader A. Pediatric Osteosarcoma: Correlation of Imaging Findings with Histopathologic Features, Treatment, and Outcome. Radiographics. 2022;42(4):1196-1213. doi:10.1148/RG.210171/ASSET/IMAGES/LARGE/RG.210171.FIG16.JPEG
- 5. Hurley C, McCarville MB, Shulkin BL, et al. Comparison of (18) F-FDG-PET-CT and Bone Scintigraphy for Evaluation of Osseous Metastases in Newly Diagnosed and Recurrent Osteosarcoma. Pediatr Blood Cancer. 2016;63(8):1381-1386. doi:10.1002/PBC.26014



### INVASIVE LOBULAR BREAST CANCER WITH METASTASES TO GATROINTESTINAL TRACT AND SKELETAL MUSCLES: A CASE REPORT

I N Minggu, N K Abd Ghafar Sabah Women and Children Hospital Sabah, Malaysia

#### INTRODUCTION

Invasive lobular carcinoma is the second most common histologic form of breast cancer, representing 5% to 15% of all invasive breast cancers. Unlike invasive ductal carcinoma, infiltrating lobular cancer (ILC) has tendency to metastasise to uncommon sites. Here, we report a case of ILC with metastases to gastrointestinal (GI) tract, skeletal muscles and bone.

#### **CASE REPORT**

A 38-year-old female was diagnosed with stage 3 invasive lobular breast cancer in 2017, with extensive axillary nodal disease, hormone receptor positive HER2 negative. She underwent left mastectomy and axillary clearance followed by adjuvant chemotherapy, radiotherapy and letrozole plus ovarian suppression. Her Ca15-3 reading increased significantly in 2021. FDG PET/CT showed uptake in the vertebrae and right axillary node. Biopsy from the node did not show malignant cells. However, serial Ca15-3 reading showed significant increment and decision made to treat as recurrent disease. Hormone therapy was switched to exemestane. In 2022, she complained of odynophagia and oesophagogastroduodenoscopy (OGDS) showed narrowing of gastroesophageal junction, with gastritis. Pylorus was normal. Computed tomography (CT) images showed upper and mid thoracic oesophageal dilatation with tapering at the distal segment. She was initially treated as achalasia cardia type 1 based on the barium swallow result. Trial of botulinum toxin injection gave little improvement. Her symptoms improved significantly with docetaxel chemotherapy, together with biochemical and radiological improvement. While on fulvestrant in September 2023, she complained of stiffness of bilateral lower limbs. A repeat CT scan showed extensive intramuscular metastatic deposits in the bilateral psoas, iliacus and bilateral gluteus maximus. Further treatment with gemcitabine and carboplatin followed by fulvestrant and ribociclib combination did not manage to give good control. In March this year, she developed gastric outlet obstruction (GOO). A repeat OGDS showed pyloric stenosis. She eventually succumbed to her disease three weeks after this admission.

#### **CONCLUSION**

This case highlights the unique presentation of a patient with metastatic ILC. Clinicians should have a high index of suspicion when dealing with unusual presentations in order for the appropriate treatment to be given.

- 1. Yicong Liang, A case of rare gastric metastasis of invasive lobular carcinoma of the breast: Journal of Surgical Case Reports, Volume 2023, Issue 3, March 2023, rjad142.
- 2. Chia-Jung Hsu, Single external oblique muscle metastasis of breast invasive lobular carcinoma: a case report, Ther Radiol Oncol 2018;2:22.
- 3. Hossameldin Abdallah, Metastatic Breast Lobular Carcinoma to Unusual Sites: A Report of Three Cases and Review of Literature, J Med Cases. 2020;11(9):292-295.



### THREE-YEARS LUNG CANCER SURVIVAL RATE IN BEACON HOSPITAL, MALAYSIA

Ummi Wahidah Azlan<sup>1</sup>, Mohamed Ibrahim A Wahid<sup>1</sup>, Tho Lye Mun<sup>1</sup>, Chen Bao Jing<sup>1</sup>

Beacon Hospital Sdn Bhd, Petaling Jaya, Malaysia

#### INTRODUCTION

Lung cancer remains one of the leading causes of cancer-related mortality worldwide, presenting a significant healthcare challenge. Understanding the survival rates of lung cancer patients is paramount for guiding treatment strategies and improving patient outcomes. Therefore, this study aims to explore the survival rates of lung cancer patients over three years focusing on a cohort treated at a hospital in Malaysia.

#### **METHODS**

The retrospective analysis of lung cancer patients treated in Beacon Hospital that was diagnosed between 1<sup>st</sup> January 2019 and 31<sup>st</sup> December 2020. The overall survival rate was measured using Kaplan-Meier analysis and significance between subgroups using the log-rank test.

#### **RESULT**

A total of 175 patients were eligible for study inclusion. Most patients (76%) presented with stage IV lung cancer and 56% were aged between 40 and 65 years. Male patients accounted for 60.6% of the total number of patients. By the end of the follow-up period, 49 patients (28%) had deceased, 49 patients (28%) were in active follow-up, 18 patients (10.3%) were discharged for palliative or hospice care, 31 patients (17.7%) were transferred and 28 patients (16%) were lost to follow-up. The overall three-year survival rate for the patients is 64.4% with mean follow-up of 2.2 years. The survival rate did not differ significantly between diagnosis stage and age group. However, female patients (75%) have significantly higher survival rate than male patients (56.6%) with p=0.025.

#### DISCUSSION AND CONCLUSION

The survival rate of this cohort was relatively higher than the reported national average for lung cancer, which is approximately 35.5% and 11% for 1-year and 5-year rate respectively. The notable three-year survival rate among lung cancer patients in this cohort likely stems from advancements in treatment and comprehensive care. However, the effect of censoring should also be considered. Therefore, further investigation is necessary to uncover factors driving this outcome.

#### REFERENCE

1. Rajadurai P, How SH, Liam CK, Sachithanandan A, Soon SY, Tho LM. Lung Cancer in Malaysia. J Thorac Oncol. 2020 Mar;15(3):317-323. doi: 10.1016/j.jtho.2019.10.021.



35<sup>th</sup> Annual Scientific Congress of Malaysian Oncological Society *EP-45 A-0076* 

# SEMI QUANTITATIVE ANALYSIS USING MAXIMUM STANDARDIZED UPTAKE VALUE SINGLE-PHOTON EMISSION COMPUTED TOMOGRAPHY/COMPUTED TOMOGRAPHY FOR MONITORING RESPONSE OF THERAPY IN PROSTATE CANCER PATIENTS

Norhanan Abdullah, Norazlina Mat Nawi

Department of Nuclear Medicine, Radiotherapy & Oncology, USM Kubang Kerian, Malaysia

#### INTRODUCTION

Qualitative interpretation is being used in bone scan in the assessment of treatment response. The aim of this study is to investigate potential role of semi quantitative analysis using SUVmax SPECT in the follow up of prostate cancer patients with bone metastases.

#### **MATERIALS & METHODS**

34 patients diagnosed with prostate carcinoma was selected for <sup>99m</sup>Tc-MDP SPECT/CT bone scan. The imaging protocol which adhered to our institutional standard guidelines was followed. Semi-quantitative analysis using SUVmax were performed by ROI drawn manually on the SPECT/CT image.

#### **RESULTS**

Out of the 122 metastatic bone lesions, a total of 42 lesions were found in 9 patients who had not received treatment prior to bone scan while another 80 lesions were identified in 14 patients who had received therapy before bone scintigraphy. The mean SUVmax of metastastic bone lesions in patient with no treatment was  $38.17 \pm 26.48$  while the value of SUVmax for bone lesions with treatment was lower at  $35.83 \pm 24.07$ . SUVmax of the bone lesion in the vertebrae showed significant reduction of more than 50% and correlates with the decline in both serum PSA and ALP from 133.3 ng/ml to 0.1 ng/ml and from 173 U/L to 83 U/L respectively.

#### **DISCUSSION**

In this study, out of the 23 patients with spine metastases, 14 patients were given treatment prior to bone scan which includes hormonal, radiotherapy, chemotherapy and immunotherapy. The mechanism of action of each therapy and its effect on bone may vary and thus can give rise to a variation of SUVmax. This study however found no significant difference in SUVmax of metastatic lesions between patients who are with and without treatment for prostate cancer.

#### **CONCLUSION**

A significant reduction of SUVmax in the vertebrae lesions were shown after completed treatment with chemotherapy and immunotherapy. Semi-quantitative analysis using SUVmax SPECT/CT holds promise as an objective parameter in measuring response to treatment on bone scan.

- 1. Blake GM, Frost ML, Fogelman I. Quantitative Radionuclide Studies of Bone. J Nucl Med. 2009;50(11):1747–50
- 2. Parker C, Gillessen S, Heidenreich A, Horwich A. Cancer of the prostate: ESMO Clinical Practice Guidelines for diagnosis, treatment and follow-up† C. Ann Oncol. 2015;26:v69–77.
- 3. O'Sullivan GJ, L CF, G CC. Imaging of bone metastasis: An update. World J Radiol. 2015;7(8):202–11



### APPLICATION OF SUVmean AND SUVmax IN SPECT/CT OF THE NORMAL SPINE IN BONE SCANS OF BREAST CANCER PATIENTS

Ilyana Ab Aziz<sup>1</sup>, Dr. Norazlina Mat Nawi<sup>2</sup>
Department of Nuclear Medicine, School of Medical Sciences, Universiti Sains Malaysia
(Health Campus), Kubang Kerian, Malaysia

#### INTRODUCTION

Quantitative bone SPECT/CT proves valuable for disease follow-up and inter-patient comparison. Among bone metastatic malignant lesions, the spine stands out as the most commonly invaded site. However, studies with a substantial sample size focusing on all segments of normal cervical, thoracic, and lumbar vertebrae are rarely documented. This study aimed to perform quantitative measurement based on the standardized uptake value (SUV) of bone scan of breast cancer patients in the normal spine using a single-photon emission tomography (SPECT)/computed tomography (CT) scanner.

#### **MATERIALS & METHODS**

This retrospective study was conducted on 28 female patients diagnosed with breast cancer who underwent SPECT-CT bone scans using 99mTc–MDP. The SUV mean (SUVmean) and SUV maximum (SUVmax) values for 338 normal spine at the cervical, thoracic and lumbar levels were calculated based on the patients' body weight (BW), body surface area (BSA), and lean body mass (LBM). Furthermore, the correlation coefficients between the SUVs and age, weight, and height was assessed and a receiver operating characteristic (ROC) curve analysis was then performed to determine the diagnostic accuracy of both SUVs in discerning DJD from normal vertebrae.

#### **RESULTS**

The mean±standard deviations of the BW SUVmean and SUVmax was 4.369±1.402 and 7.119±2.386, respectively. Meanwhile, the BSA SUVmean and SUVmax values were 1.212±0.337, and 1.976±0.594, respectively, and the LBM SUVmean and SUVmax values were 3.131±0.875 and 5.104±1.529, rspectively. All SUVs were found to show a very weak, negative correlation and no significant correlation with age. Meanwhile, there was a significant, weak, and positive correlation between the BW SUV mean (r=0.180, p<0.05) and SUVmax (r=0.172, p<0.05) with weight. Negative correlation between the BW SUVmean (r=-0.221, p<0.05) and SUVmax (r=-0.164, p<0.05) with height. There was a significant, very weak, and negative correlation between the BSA SUV mean (r=-0.164, p<0.05) and SUVmax (r=-0.118, p<0.05) with weight. Same to height, there was a significant, weak, and negative correlation between the BSA SUV mean (r=-0.255, p<0.05) and SUVmax (r=-0.194, p<0.05). For LBM, SUVmean and SUV max have significant, weak and negative correlation with weight and height. In addition, based on the ROC curve, no optimal cutoff value was found to differentiate DJD from normal spine.



#### **DISCUSSION**

From these results, the calculated mean values for the BW SUVmean and SUVmax were found to be higher compared with those of the BSA and LBM.

#### **CONCLUSION**

In this study, the SUV of 99mTc-MDP was successfully determined using SPECT/CT. This research provides an approach that could potentially aid in the clinical quantification of radionuclide uptake in normal vertebrae for the management of breast cancer patients.

#### REFERENCE

Wang R, Duan X, Shen C, et al. A retrospective study of SPECT/CT scans using SUV measurement of the normal pelvis with Tc-99m methylene diphosphonate. J Xray Sci Technol. 2018;26:895–908.



35<sup>th</sup> Annual Scientific Congress of Malaysian Oncological Society *EP-47 A-0078* 

#### A RARE CASE OF NUTM1-REARRANGED PERITONEAL NEOPLASM

Dr Chua Ker Hooi<sup>2</sup>,MD, Dr Nurul Huda Razali<sup>2</sup>,Mb Bch Bao, Dr Chen May Feng<sup>1</sup>,MD

<sup>1</sup>Oncology Department, Hospital Sultan Ismail Johor Bahru

<sup>2</sup>Clinical Research Centre, Hospital Sultan Ismail, Johor Bahru

Keywords: NUTM1-rearranged neoplasm, MGA-NUTM1 fusion, spindle cell sarcoma, imatinib

#### INTRODUCTION

We reported a case of left intra-abdominal mass which histomorphologically diagnosed as poorly differentiated spindle cell malignancy and genetically consistent with NUTM1-rearranged sarcoma. This initial diagnosis was provided by pathologist expert from Vancouver General Hospital using Nanostring exon imbalance sarcoma fusion assay. In addition, The Arriba and STAR Fusion analysis (Next generation sequencing, NGS) by Japan's Atlas Report MasterKey Asia Study detected fusion involving exon 21 of the MGA gene to exon 3 of the NUTM1gene, confirmed this tumour as a novel MGA-NUTM1 fusion sarcoma.

NUTM1-rearranged neoplasm exhibit characteristic of clinically aggressive tumour and limited respond to conventional therapies. Due to its rarity, there is a lack of understanding on effective treatment strategies, particularly in resource-constrained regions.

#### CASE REPORT

17 years old Malay gentleman presented to hospital with acute abdominal pain for 1 weeks. CT-scan showed a large intraperitoneal mass, largest diameter measuring 21cm with multiple liver metastases. Patient underwent exploratory laparotomy and excision of intraperitoneal tumour. Histopathological examination (HPE) concluded as spindle cell sarcoma of peritoneum, at least intermediate grade. The immunohistochemistry profile show positivity for CD99, GLUT1, H3K27e, p16, BCL2, and CyclinD1. NGS and fusion assay gave the genetic diagnosis of NUTM1-rearranged sarcoma.

Patient was started on palliative chemotherapy using doxorubicin and ifosfamide. Unfortunately, interim CT scan done after 4 cycles of chemotherapy demonstrated disease progression. There was no suitable clinical trial available in Malaysia. Clinician prescribed Imatinib 400mg daily dose to patient. CT-scan showed liver metastases was stable for 1 year and patient experienced grade 1 nausea. Latest CT-scan after 12 months of imatinib showed progression in liver metastases.

#### **CONCLUSION**

At present, there are no targeted therapy for metastatic NUTM1-rearranged neoplasms and more specifically for MGA-NUTM1 fusion subtype. We used imatinib after failure of chemotherapy and it helps patient to achieve disease control for 1 year.



- 1. French CA, Kutok JL, Faquin WC, Toretsky JA, Antonescu CR, Griffin CA, Nose V, Var gas SO, Moschovi M, Tzortzatou-Stathopoulou F, et al. 2004. Midline carcinoma of children and young adults with NUT rearrangement. J Clin Oncol 22: 4135–4139.
- 2. Todd M. Stevens et al., NUTM1-rearranged neoplasia: a multi-institution experience yields novel fusion partners and expands the histologic spectrum, Modern Pathology, Volume 32, Issue 6, June 2019, Pages 764-773
- 3. Diolaiti et al., A recurrent novel MGA-NUTM1 fusion identifies a new subtype of high-grade spindle cell sarcoma, 2018 Cold Spring Harb Mol Case Study 4:a003194



### MULTIMODALITY TREATMENT APPROACH IN A PATIENT WITH METASTATIC COLON ADENOCARCINOMA

Flora Li Tze Chong, Shazwani Shabudin *Hospital Wanita dan Kanak-Kanak Sabah* 

#### INTRODUCTION

Multimodality treatment including systemic therapy, cytoreductive surgery (CRS) and hyperthermic intraperitoneal chemotherapy (HIPEC) is a feasible and effective treatment approach for selected patients with metastatic colorectal cancer. We present a case of a 28-year-old female with Krukenberg tumour from recurrent colon adenocarcinoma.

#### **REPORT**

The patient underwent laparoscopic left hemicolectomy and omentectomy in September 2021 for a pT4aN2aM1c splenic flexure adenocarcinoma, with an omental deposit that was surgically excised. Tumour is microsatellite stable, and RAS mutations were not detected. She did not receive systemic therapy post-operatively due to personal reason. Computed tomography (CT) scan in September 2022 showed bilateral solid ovarian masses and a left perinephric collection. There was no mass at the anastomotic site, however biopsy from the site showed adenocarcinoma suggesting a local recurrence as well. CEA and Ca125 were raised. FOLFIRI and cetuximab was given prior to surgery, with good biochemical and radiological response. Pre-operative PET-CT scan showed only a low FDG-avidity at the bilateral adnexal masses. Selective peritonectomy, extrafascial hysterectomy with bilateral salpingo-oophorectomy (EHBSO), left ureterectomy and nephrectomy, plus HIPEC with mitomycin C was performed in September 2023, without complications. Metastatic disease was detected in the right and left ovaries, as well as the left ureter. Post-operatively, the patient received maintenance therapy with capecitabine and cetuximab from October 2023 till now. She remains well and active. Tumour markers have normalised since surgery.

#### **CONCLUSION**

In addition to systemic therapy, CRS and HIPEC can be performed in selected patients with metastatic colorectal cancer. Multidisciplinary team discussion and pre-operative work up are crucial. While the aim of multimodality approach is to maximize treatment options, careful selection of cases is essential to achieve the best results in terms of survival outcome and patients' quality of life.

- 1. Cytoreductive surgery and HIPEC in a 14 years old patient with peritoneal recurrence of adenocarcinoma of the right colon, L. Sorrentino et al, Int J Surg Case Rep 2019;57:118-121.
- 2. Treatment for Peritoneal Metastasis of Patients with Colorectal Cancer, J.K. Young et al, Ann Coloproctol 2021;37(6):425-433.
- 3. Treatment of Metastatic Colorectal Cancer: ASCO Guideline, Van K. Morris et al, JCO, Vol 41, No. 3.



### DABRAFENIB AND TRAMETINIB IN BRAF V600E MUTANT METASTATIC NSCLC

Dr Kai Lee Low, Prof Dr Lye Mun Tho
Department of Clinical Oncology, Beacon Hospital, Petaling Jaya, Selangor, Malaysia

#### INTRODUCTION

BRAF mutations have been reported in 1-5% of NSCLC. This mutation results in the activation of the mitogen-activated protein kinase (MAPK) pathway and may promote tumour cell growth and proliferation. Mutant BRAF proteins signal through mitogen-activated extracellular signal regulated kinase 1 and 2 (MEK1 and MEK2), stimulating cell growth. Dabrafenib, a BRAF kinase inhibitor, inhibits the MAPK pathway in BRAF mutated cells, leading to regression and decreased proliferation of the cells. Trametinib, a MEK inhibitor, inhibits growth of BRAF V600E mutant cells.

#### **OBJECTIVE**

To describe a case of BRAF V600E mutated metastatic NSCLC treated with Dabrafenib in combination with Trametinib.

#### CASE REPORT

A 75-year-old lady presented with 2 months history of cough and back pain which caused her to be wheelchair dependent. PET CT revealed a right lung lower lobe mass measuring 3.5x 1.4cm with multiple bone metastasis. Right lung biopsy confirmed the diagnosis of lung adenocarcinoma with BRAF V600E mutation. Baseline cancer markers were elevated, CA 19.9 was 51235 and CEA was 423. Patient received radiotherapy to thoracic and lumbar spine for pain relief. Following radiotherapy, she started on Dabrafenib and Trametinib. PET CT 2 months and 8 months post treatment both showed complete metabolic response to treatment. Cancer markers normalized after 6 months of treatment, CA 19.9 was 24 and CEA was 2.9. Clinically her cough and back pain resolved after 3 months of treatment. ECOG performance status improves from 3 to 0. Treatment is well tolerated with no toxicities reported.

#### **CONCLUSION**

Dabrafenib and Trametinib have shown good radiological, clinical, and biochemical responses and a manageable toxicity profile in patients with BRAF V600E mutant metastatic NSCLC.



### INCENTIVES FOR CHILDREN RECEIVING RADIOTHERAPY: SHARING OF EXPERIENCE FROM HWKKS

Bryan Yen Pei Lee, Flora Li Tze Chong Hospital Wanita dan Kanak-Kanak Sabah

#### INTRODUCTION

Treatment with radiotherapy can cause anxiety and distress for paediatric patients and their families. There is often a need for sedation or general anaesthesia for radiotherapy simulation and daily treatment. Radiotherapy centres worldwide have adopted various methods and strategies to alleviate the negative psychological impacts and improve the experience of paediatric patients and their caregivers. However, various obstacles impede the implementation of such strategies. One example is the lack of resources in many centres that primarily treat adult patients and may not prioritize paediatric patient experience, particularly when the paediatric patient volume is low. This is more prominent in low to middle-income countries like Malaysia.

#### **REPORT**

We describe our experience in providing radiotherapy services to paediatric patients in Hospital Wanita dan Kanak-Kanak Sabah, which is a regional cancer centre providing both adult and paediatric oncology and radiotherapy services in the state of Sabah in East Malaysia, and our efforts in improving the paediatric experience during radiotherapy. A total of 118 children aged between 22 months to 14 years old underwent radiotherapy at the Radiotherapy and Oncology Department from 2017 to 2023. The most common diagnoses are acute lymphoblastic leukemia (ALL), nasopharyngeal carcinoma (NPC), and central nervous system (CNS) tumours. Strategies used include beam direction shall (BDS) mask acclimation, and tour of the CT simulator and LINAC areas prior to simulation and treatment. All children completing radiotherapy are also given incentives in the form of toys and certificates of completion, as part of our effort to improve the paediatric radiotherapy experience.

#### **CONCLUSION**

Incentives are amongst the many strategies that can be used to improve the paediatric experience during radiotherapy. The use of various strategies in the radiotherapy unit aims to alleviate patient and caregiver anxiety, and is a continuous effort to provide and foster a paediatric-friendly environment and overall better paediatric radiotherapy experience.

- 1. The global burden of childhood and adolescent cancer in 2017: An analysis of the Global Burden of Disease Study 2017. (2019). The Lancet. Oncology, 20(9), 1211–1225. https://doi.org/10.1016/S1470-2045(19)30339-0.
- 2. Azizah, A., Hashimah, B., Nirmal, K., Siti Zubaidah, A., Puteri, N., Nabihah, A., ... & Azlina, A. A. (2019). Malaysia National cancer registry report (MNCR). National Cancer Institute, Ministry of Health: Putrajaya, Malaysia.



- 3. Jacques, A., et al (2014). Thinking Differently About the Kids: An Innovative Approach to Improve Care Provided to Pediatric Patients Undergoing External Beam Radiation Therapy. Journal of Medical Imaging and Radiation Sciences, 45(3), 269–275. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jmir.2013.12.009.
- 4. Holt, D. E., et al (2021). Improving the Pediatric Patient Experience During Radiation Therapy A Children's Oncology Group Study. International Journal of Radiation Oncology, Biology, Physics, 109(2), 505–514. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ijrobp.2020.09.002.



35<sup>th</sup> Annual Scientific Congress of Malaysian Oncological Society *EP-51 A-0084* 

# NEOADJUVANT PERTUZUMAB AND TRASTUZUMAB IN THE TREATMENT OF HER2 POSITIVE BREAST CANCER IN PUBLIC CANCER CENTER: CHALLENGES AND EXPERIENCES

Dr. Fukaihah Zakiah Binti Zainal, MD<sup>1</sup>, Dr Chan Ming Jun, MD1, Dr. Angel Kwan Khor Nee, MD<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Radiotherapy and Oncology Unit, Hospital Raja Permaisuri Bainun, Ipoh, Perak, Malaysia

#### INTRODUCTION

Pertuzumab and trastuzumab plus standard neoadjuvant chemotherapy have been shown to improve the pathological complete response (pCR) rate to 46-58% with acceptable toxicities in locally advanced HER2-positive breast cancer<sup>1</sup>, which pCR has a better long term outcome<sup>2,3</sup>. However, pertuzumab is not readily available in public hospital as it has not been listed into Ministry of Health Medicines Formulary (MOHMF) yet. We would like to share the challenges and experiences of using neoadjuvant pertuzumab and trastuzumab.

#### **METHODS & MATERIALS**

We retrospectively analyzed the results of HER2-positive breast cancer patients treated with neoadjuvant pertuzumab and trastuzumab in combination with chemotherapy from January 2022 to December 2023.

#### **RESULTS**

Number of total neoadjuvant chemotherapy patients for HER2+ are twenty-one. Only nine patients had neoadjuvant pertuzumab and trastuzumab with a median age of 56 years. For disease burden, 33% (n=3) was T3, while 56% (n=5) was T4, and 89% (n=8) were nodal positive. 22% (n=2) patients' hormone receptors were positive. All patients had 3 cycles neoadjuvant anthracycline followed by 3 cycles taxane plus pertuzumab and trastuzumab. 89% (n=8) underwent surgery with 89% overall response rate, 22% (n=2) achieved pCR, while 67% (n=6) had partial response of more than 75% reduction in tumor size. One patient progressed during the treatment. The adverse events noted were bone pain (n=2), diarrhea (n=1), and left ventricular systolic dysfunction (n=1) but complete cardiac recovery followed.

#### **DISCUSSION**

Challenges faced included baseline ECHO schedule; treatment funding; medication storage and tracking; paperwork, including supporting letters and medication special approval applications etc. Multidisciplinary teamwork and coordination are remarkably important.

#### **CONCLUSION**

Neoadjuvant pertuzumab and trastuzumab exhibit remarkable effectiveness and safety, with manageable adverse effects. The drug's accessibility and cost restrict the number of patients who can benefit from this medication. With the hard work of multidisciplinary teams, we can make a change for public patients.



- 1. Kei Ishii, Nao Morii, Hiroyasu Yamashiro. Pertuzumab in The Treatment of HER2-positive Breast Cancer: An Evidence-based Review of Its Safety, Efficacy, and Place in Therapy 2023
- 2. Kristine R. Broglio, MS; Melanie Quintana, PhD; Margaret Foster, MS Association of Pathologic Complete Response to Neoadjuvant Therapy in HER2-Positive Breast Cancer With Long-Term Outcomes A Meta-Analysis. *JAMA Oncol.* 2016;2(6):751-760.
- 3. Cortazar P, Zhang L, Untch M et al. Pathological complete response and long-term clinical benefit in breast cancer: the CTNeoBC pooled analysis. Lancet. 2014 Jul 12;384(9938):164-72.



35<sup>th</sup> Annual Scientific Congress of Malaysian Oncological Society *EP-52 A-0086* 

# REBUNG TRAIN-THE-TRAINER COMMUNITY NURSES COMPETENCY PROGRAM IN CANCER SCREENING AND NAVIGATION FOR EARLY DIAGNOSIS OF CANCER

Ping Lei Chui<sup>a\*</sup>, Nur Aishah Mohd Taib<sup>b</sup>, Suhaida Musthaffa<sup>c</sup>, Corrine Ellsworth-Beaumont<sup>d</sup>

<sup>a</sup> Department of Nursing Science, Universiti Malaya, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

<sup>b</sup> Department of Surgery, Universiti Malaya, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

<sup>C</sup> Department of Nursing, Universiti Malaya Medical Centre, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

<sup>d</sup> Know Your Lemons® Foundation

\*E-mail: chuipinglei@um.edu.my

#### **INTRODUCTION**

Malaysia faces the challenge of diagnosing cancer at significantly more advanced stages, resulting in lower survival rates. Addressing this issue requires a crucial cancer-control strategy focused on the early detection of both symptomatic and asymptomatic individuals. In this context, nurses emerge as pivotal figures, capable of enhancing cancer screening uptake and guiding patients through the complex cancer care journey to ensure prompt diagnosis.

#### **REPORT**

The REBUNG (Reducing Barriers in Cancer Early Diagnosis In The Urban B40 Group) is an implementation science project that pilots an ecosystem that maps care facilities, enhance cancer health promotion and care pathways for the underserved urban community. Hence, the REBUNG Train-The-Trainer Community Nurses Competency Program for Cancer has been devised to enhance nurses' knowledge and skills, aiming to augment their expertise in cancer risk assessment, symptom recognition, performing clinical breast examination, and assisting in the navigation of cancer care pathways. The program consists of 3 modules: an online Global Breast Educator course in collaboration with the Know Your Lemons Foundation; two weeks of clinical competency attachment in the hospital; and an online leadership and training skill-sharing session.

#### **CONCLUSION**

A group of 14 nurses from diverse clinical settings around Petaling Jaya completed the program. They have been entrusted as key individuals to establish a hub with a broader community reach, dedicated to facilitating optimal care pathways for the early diagnosis of cancer. The Train-The-Trainer Community Nurses Competency Program represents an innovative approach to enhancing the competencies of community nurses. By leveraging a peer-based training model, the program fosters a culture of continuous learning, knowledge sharing, and skill development.



### A CASE OF PROSTATE GERM CELL TUMOUR: A CASE REPORT

Dr Cea Yin Ooi, Dr Sandya Subramaniam Hospital Kuala Lumpur, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

#### **BACKGROUND**

Primary Extragonodal Germ Cell Tumours (EGGCTs) that originate from the prostate are extremely rare and easily misdiagnosed<sup>1</sup>.

#### **CASE REPORT**

A 37-year-old gentleman presented with acute urinary retention. An ultrasound showed prostatomegaly with thickened bladder wall. His PSA level was 0.9ug/L. Transurethral resection of prostate was done and HPE was reported as prostate adenocarcinoma with neuroendocrine differentiation, Gleason score 4+3(7). PSMA/PET scan revealed no distant metastasis. MRI Prostate showed cT3bN0M0 and he was referred for robotic prostatectomy. Due to a high index of suspicion in view of his age, his histopathological specimen was sent for a second opinion to a histopathologist highly specialized in germ cell tumours. She then reported a mixed germ cell tumour with components of Yolk sac(80%), Teratoma(15%) and Seminoma(5%). AFP was 386ng/mL, BHCG was 0.8mIU/mL, LDH was 152U/L.

Prior to initiation of chemotherapy, a repeat CT scan showed small lung and liver lesions, suggestive of metastasis or infection. He completed a total of 4 cycles of Bleomycin + Etoposide + Cisplatin and CT post chemotherapy showed partial response. AFP was 5.8ng/mL, BHCG was <0.2mIU/mL, LDH was 260U/L.

Radical prostatectomy was done revealing residual mature teratoma.

#### **DISCUSSION**

Primary EGGCTs are uncommon, with most originating from the midline of the body. More than 60% are seminomas arising from the mediastinum or retroperitoneum. Mixed EGGCTs of prostate are rare, with only four published cases<sup>2-5</sup>.

In this case, we highlight the challenges of making an accurate diagnosis. Initially, the patient was diagnosed as prostate adenocarcinoma, and a relook histology revealed Primary Mixed EGGCTs. Tumour markers were raised, however definite diagnosis was established by histopathological evaluation only. Missing or delaying a diagnosis of EGGCT will delay or inhibit the initiation of systemic therapy which may be a lifesaving treatment.

#### REFERENCES

1. Cao ZL, Lian BJ, Chen WY, Fang XD, Jin HY, Zhang K, Qi XP. Diagnosis and treatment of primary seminoma of the prostate: A case report and review of literature. World J Clin Cases. 2023 Apr 6;11(10):2267-2275. doi: 10.12998/wjcc.v11.i10.2267. PMID: 37122514; PMCID: PMC10131029.



- 2. Antunes HP, Almeida R, Sousa V, Figueiredo A. Mixed extragonadal germ cell tumour of the prostate. BMJ Case Rep. 2018 Jul 10;2018:bcr2017223603. doi: 10.1136/bcr-2017-223603. PMID: 29991542; PMCID: PMC6047698.
- 3. Namiki K, Tsuchiya A, Noda K, et al.. Extragonadal germ cell tumor of the prostate associated with Klinefelter's syndrome. *Int J Urol* 1999;6:158–61. 10.1046/j.1442-2042.1999.06314.x
- 4. Han G, Miura K, Takayama T, et al.. Primary prostatic endodermal sinus tumor (yolk sac tumor) combined with a small focal seminoma. *Am J Surg Pathol* 2003;27:554–9. 10.1097/00000478-200304000-00018
- 5. Liu SG, Lei B, Li XN, Chen XD, Wang S, Zheng L, Zhu HL, Lin PX, Shen H. Mixed extragonadal germ cell tumour arising from the prostate: a rare combination. Asian J Androl 21 February 2014. doi: 10.4103/1008-682X.122871
- 6. International Germ Cell Cancer Collaborative Group. International Germ Cell Consensus Classification: a prognostic factor- based staging system for metastatic germ cell cancers. *J Clin Oncol.* 1997 Feb. 15(2):594-603.



# CENTRE EXPERIENCES ON THE ABDOMINAL COMPRESSION TECHNIQUE IN SBRT LIVER

Goh Jun Yan, Mak Kar Zin Sunway Medical Centre, Subang Jaya, Selangor, Malaysia.

#### INTRODUCTION

To evaluate the effectiveness of abdominal compression (AC) in liver stereotactic body radiotherapy (SBRT) by examining couch shifts detected through cone-beam computed tomography (CBCT) performed before treatment.

# **MATERIALS & METHODS**

A retrospective analysis was conducted on previous liver SBRT cases treated at Sunway Medical Centre which included 15 patients across 87 fractions. Couch shifts in vertical, longitudinal, and lateral directions during the first time CBCT for each fraction were recorded and analyzed.

#### **RESULTS**

The analysis revealed that 61% of the fractions required a vertical couch shift of less than 0.3cm, whereas 40% for longitudinal and 79% for lateral couch shifts. Despite these outcomes, outliers were noted. Planning target volume margin(mPTV) based on the first time CBCT variation are 0.6cm (vertical), 1.1cm (longitudinal) and 0.5cm (lateral). Reposition was required for the value that exceeded 0.5cm.

#### **DISCUSSION**

Contributing factors of the results include cooperation of patient, patient conditions, the inherent limitations of the AC technique, the challenges in tumor identification through CBCT and outcome variations in using surface-guided radiation therapy(SGRT) for patient positioning. From the margin results, it showed that increment of margin needed if the first CBCT used for treatment, but there will be overdose to normal liver tissue. Improvements can be made by enhancing patienteducation, improving AC device maintenance, optimizing CBCT imaging protocols and SGRT could improve overall treatment accuracy.

#### **CONCLUSION**

It is insufficient with AC setup as indicated by most patients requiring minimal couch shifts, inconsistency position of gel-like liver and the limitation of the AC. Use of AC technique for SBRT required a standard protocol to ensure efficiency in patient positioning and treatment.

#### REFERENCE

Yu, N., Magnelli, A., LaHurd, D., Mastroianni, A., Murray, E., Close, M., Hugebeck, B., Suh, J. H., & Xia, P.(2022, May4). *Using a daily monitoring system to reduce treatment position overriderates in external beam radiation therapy*. Journal of applied clinical medical physics.



# FINAL OVERALL SURVIVAL IN PHASE 3 SPOTLIGHT: ZOLBETUXIMAB + mFOLFOX6 IN CLDN18.2+ HER2- ADVANCED GASTRIC/GASTROESOPHAGEAL JUNCTION ADENOCARCINOMA

Dr. Kohei Shitara, MD¹, Dr. Eric Van Cutsem, MD, PhD², Dr. Florian Lordick, MD, PhD³, Dr. Peter Enzinger, MD⁴, Dr. David Ilson, MD, PhD⁵, Dr. Manish A. Shah, MD⁶, Prof. Rui-Hua Xu, MD, PhD³, Dr. Sara Lonardi, MD⁶, Prof. Kensei Yamaguchi, MD⁶, Dr. Yi-Ping Hung, MD, PhD¹⁰, Dr. Bozena Kukielka-Budny, MD, PhD¹¹, Dr. Pranob Bhattacharya, DrPH¹², Dr. Maria Matsangou, MD¹², Dr. Ran Li, PhD¹², Dr. Diarmuid Moran, PhD¹², Dr. Radhika Ranganath, MS, MD¹², Dr. Rupesh Pophale, MD¹², Dr. Jaffer A. Ajani, MD¹³ Department of Gastrointestinal Oncology, National Cancer Center Hospital East, Kashiwa City, Chiba, Japan;

<sup>2</sup>Digestive Oncology, University Hospitals Gasthuisberg, Leuven, and KULeuven, Leuven, Belgium;

<sup>3</sup>Department of Medicine and University Cancer Center Leipzig, University of Leipzig Medical Center, Leipzig, Germany;

<sup>4</sup>Center for Esophageal and Gastric Cancer, Dana-Farber Cancer Institute, Boston, MA, USA:

Memorial Sloan Kettering Cancer Center, New York City, NY, USA;
 Weill Cornell Medical College, New York City, NY, USA;
 Sun Yat-Sen University Cancer Center, Guangzhou, China;
 Istituto Oncologico Veneto IOV-IRCCS, Padova, Italy;

<sup>9</sup>Department of Gastroenterological Chemotherapy, Cancer Institute Hospital of the Japanese Foundation for Cancer Research, Tokyo, Japan;

<sup>10</sup>Center for Immuno-Oncology, Department of Oncology, Taipei Veterans General Hospital, Taipei, Taiwan;

<sup>11</sup>Center of Oncology of the Lublin Region St Jana z Dukli, Lublin, Poland; <sup>12</sup>Astellas Pharma Global Development, Inc., Northbrook, IL, USA; <sup>13</sup>The University of Texas, MD Anderson Cancer Center, Houston, TX, USA

#### **BACKGROUND**

SPOTLIGHT showed significant improvements in PFS/OS with first-line (1L) zolbetuximab + mFOLFOX6 vs placebo + mFOLFOX6 in patients with CLDN18.2+, HER2-, locally advanced (LA) unresectable or metastatic gastric/gastroesophageal junction (mG/GEJ) adenocarcinoma. We present the prespecified final OS analysis.

#### **METHODS**

Patients were randomized 1:1 to zolbetuximab IV 800 mg/m² (C1D1) followed by 600 mg/m² (every 3 weeks) + mFOLFOX6 IV (D1, D15, D29) for four 42-day cycles or placebo + mFOLFOX6; patients without PD continued with zolbetuximab or placebo, + folinic acid and 5-FU (investigator's discretion), until PD or discontinuation criteria were met. Primary endpoint was PFS per RECIST v1.1 by IRC. OS was key secondary endpoint; additional secondary endpoints were ORR and safety. Ad hoc analyses examined PFS/OS in per-protocol set (PPS; patients adherent to protocol) and TTP by BOR.



#### **RESULTS**

At data cutoff (September 8, 2023), 565 patients were assigned to zolbetuximab (n=283) or placebo (n=282) arms. In zolbetuximab vs placebo arms, median follow up was 18.0 vs 17.9 months (PFS) and 33.3 vs 31.4 months (OS). Median PFS (11.0 vs 8.9 months; HR, 0.73 [95% CI, 0.59–0.91]; P=0.0024) and OS (18.2 vs 15.6 months; 0.78 [0.64–0.95]; P=0.0075) were significantly longer in zolbetuximab vs placebo arms. Separation of PFS/OS curves occurred earlier in PPS (excluded most early withdrawals) vs ITT population. ORR was similar in zolbetuximab vs placebo arms in ITT (48.1% vs 47.5%) and patients with measurable lesions (61.1% vs 62.4%) – TTP for patients with BOR of CR/PR was numerically longer in zolbetuximab vs placebo arms. Safety/tolerability were maintained (no new findings).

#### **CONCLUSIONS**

Zolbetuximab + mFOLFOX6 continued to demonstrate significant improvement in PFS/OS vs placebo + mFOLFOX6, with no new safety signals—supporting zolbetuximab + mFOLFOX6 as a new option for 1L treatment of patients with CLDN18.2+, HER2-, LA unresectable or mG/GEJ adenocarcinoma.

#### **KEYWORDS**

zolbetuximab, CLDN18.2, gastric or gastroesophageal junction adenocarcinoma



# GHOST CELL ODONTOGENIC CARCINOMA ARISING FROM RECURRENT DENTINOGENIC GHOST CELL TUMOR

Dr Sabrini Abbas, Dr Najihah Abu Bakar Radiotherapy and Oncology Unit, Hospital Kuala Lumpur, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

#### INTRODUCTION

Ghost cell odontogenic carcinoma is defined as a malignant odontogenic epithelial tumor thought to arise from calcifying cystic odontogenic tumor, a dentinogenic ghost cell tumor, or both (1). It is a rare malignancy with incidence of 0.23% of all odontogenic tumors with only about 50 cases documented to date (2)(3). We report a unique case of a ghost cell odontogenic carcinoma of maxilla arising from recurrent dentinogenic ghost cell tumor.

#### CASE REPORT

A 34 year-old male presented with 3 months history of painless swelling with bleeding over left upper gingival in July 2023. Punch biopsy revealed dentinogenic ghost cell tumour with evidence of malignancy changes. Total resection of tumor was advised but he refused and only agreed for enucleation. He was closely monitored and unfortunately presented 6 months later with swelling over left cheek which grew rapidly. Rebiopsy was done and HPE reported similar finding. CECT Head and Neck revealed recurrence with locally aggressive tumour at the left maxilla with extension into left maxillary sinus. He underwent left total maxillectomy and left supraomohyoid neck dissection. HPE reported as Ghost Cell Odontogenic Carcinoma, Ki-67 proliferative index of 70-80% with lymphovascular invasion. He then received adjuvant radiotherapy to fasciocervical 60 Gy/30#/6 weeks and is currently closely monitored and planned for reconstructive surgery later.

#### **CONCLUSION**

Radical surgical resection is the primary modality for dentinogenic ghost cell tumour as 53% reported to have recurrence after enucleation (4,5). Close monitoring is vital due to the potential aggressive malignant transformation. Wide surgical excision with clean margins is the treatment of choice although its combination with adjuvant radiotherapy, with or without chemotherapy, remains controversial in ghost cell odontogenic carcinoma (6). Further additional studies are needed for us to understand the nature as the detailed pathology and treatment remains inconclusive.

- 1. Qin Y, Lu Y, Zheng L, & Liu H. (2018). Ghost cell odontogenic carcinoma with suspected cholesterol granuloma of the maxillary sinus in a patient treated with combined modality therapy. *Medicine*, 97(7), e9816. DOI: 10.1097/MD.0000000000009816
- 2. Hu S, Yang J, Zhang H, Chen J, Li X, Liu F, & WangB. (2024). Challenging pitfalls in frozen section pathology: a case of mandible ghost cell odontogenic carcinoma and the literature review. BMC Oral Health, 24(1). DOI: 10.1186/s12903-024-04190-0
- 3. Ghita I, Nagai MY, Lubek JE, Stashek KM, Basile JR, Price JB, Papadimitriou JC, Dyalram D, & Younis RH. (2022). Ghost cell odontogenic carcinoma arising in a previous calcifying



- odontogenic cyst: A case report and Review of literature. Head and Neck Pathology, 16(3), 828–835. DOI: 10.1007/s12105-022-01445-6
- 4. Toyodome S, Wakasa T, Hirose K, Iwamoto N, Suzuki S, Nemoto N, Toyosawa S, Nagata T, (2023). Dentinogenic ghost cell tumor treated with a combination of marsupialization and radical resection: a case report and review of the literature. Journal of Medical Case Reports, 17(1). DOI: 10.1186/s13256-023-03861-w
- 5. Jia MQ, Jun J, Wang L, Zou HX (2019). Ghost cell odontogenic carcinoma of the jaws: Report of two cases and a literature review. World Journal of Clinical Cases, 7(3), 357–365. DOI: 10.12998/wjcc.v7.i3.357
- 6. Martos-Fernández M, Alberola-Ferranti M, Hueto-Madrid JA, & Bescós-Atín C. (2014). Ghost cell odontogenic carcinoma: A rare case report and review of literature. Journal of Clinical and Experimental Dentistry, e602–e606. DOI: 10.4317/jced.51809



# LUNG CANCER IN SARAWAK, MALAYSIA

Seng Wee Cheo<sup>1</sup>, Jenny Kha Mieng Chong<sup>1</sup>, Elsie Sie Hui Pui<sup>1</sup>, Yi Leen Chan<sup>1</sup>, Suan Yin Lim<sup>1</sup>, Nur Qistina Nabilah<sup>1</sup>, Choon Seong Ang<sup>1</sup>, Qin Jian Low<sup>1</sup>, Pei Jye Voon<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Radiotherapy, Oncology and Palliative Care, Sarawak General Hospital, Sarawak

#### INTRODUCTION

Lung cancer is one of the most common cancers in Malaysia, accounting for 10% of all cancers<sup>1</sup>. Lung cancer can be subdivided into non-small cell lung cancer (NSCLC) and small cell lung cancer. Majority of lung cancer in Malaysia were diagnosed at late stage. In this study, we aimed to evaluate the clinical characteristics of patients with lung cancer in Sarawak.

#### **MATERIALS & METHODS**

This retrospective study evaluated the data of patients with lung cancer diagnosed between year 2017-2023 in Sarawak. Demographic data, clinical characteristics and pathological features were collected. Analysis was done by SPSS version 22.

#### RESULTS

582 patients were diagnosed to have lung cancer. It is more common in male (57%) than female (43%). The median age was 65 year (21-91). 225 patients were Chinese, 141 were Iban, 114 were Malay and remaining were of other ethnicities. 50.8% were ex/active smoker, 44.9% were never smokers. Adenocarcinoma (73.1%) was the most common histology followed by squamous cell (10.7%), small cell carcinoma (9.8%) and adenoasquamous carcinoma (1.7%). The stage at diagnosis were as follows: stage I (6.5%), II (4.3%), III (13.4%) and IV (75.7%). Among NSCLC, 65% has oncogene driven NSCLC with EGFR mutation being the most common driver mutations. In term of staging investigation, 96% had CT scan as initial staging investigation and only 27% had PET CT scan done. 22% patients had brain imaging done at diagnosis.

#### **DISCUSSION**

Our study provided real world data on lung cancer in Malaysia. Majority was diagnosed at advanced stage, adenocarcinoma in histology and EGFR mutation was present in 65% of patients with NSCLC.

#### **CONCLUSION**

In Sarawak, majority of our patients presented with advanced stage at diagnosis. This analysis provides an overview of clinical characteristics of lung cancer patients in Sarawak, Malaysia.

### REFERENCE

- 1. Rajadurai P, How SH, Liam CK, Sachithanandan A, Soon SY, Tho LM. Lung Cancer in Malaysia. J Thorac Oncol. 2020 Mar;15(3):317-323. doi: 10.1016/j.jtho.2019.10.021. PMID: 32093853.
- 2. Oser MG, Niederst MJ, Sequist LV, Engelman JA. Transformation from non-small-cell lung cancer to small-cell lung cancer: molecular drivers and cells of origin. Lancet Oncol. 2015 Apr;16(4):e165-72. doi: 10.1016/S1470-2045(14)71180-5. PMID: 25846096; PMCID: PMC4470698.

#### **KEYWORDS**

Lung cancer, Sarawak



35<sup>th</sup> Annual Scientific Congress of Malaysian Oncological Society *EP-58 A-0097* 

# KNOWLEDGE, ATTITUDE AND PRACTICE OF FOOD SAFETY AMONG CANCER PATIENTS RECEIVING CHEMOTHERAPY AT A TEACHING HOSPITAL

Dr Nor Aziyan Yahaya, Hoh Wan Qi Universiti Malaya, Faculty of Medicine, Department of Nursing Science, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

### INTRODUCTION

Cancer patients receiving chemotherapy are at a higher risk of developing foodborne infections due to the suppressed bone marrow. Therefore, it is crucial for them to follow the food safety guidelines while preparing food at home.

#### **MATERIALS & METHODS**

This study was a cross-sectional study using a quantitative research method. A convenience sample of 325 cancer patients from Universiti Malaya Medical Centre (UMMC) were recruited to participate in the study. They were asked to complete an online questionnaire which required about 5 to 10 minutes to complete.

#### **RESULTS**

The overall findings indicated that the participants had moderate knowledge, positive attitudes and good practice in food safety. They lacked knowledge regarding food storage at the right temperature and the risk of washing raw meat before cooking.

#### **DISCUSSION**

Age and gender were found to be associated with knowledge; gender and marital status influenced attitude, whereas age, gender, employment status and food preparation at home affected practice. Pearson's correlation test showed that food safety knowledge, attitude, and practice were correlated to each other.

#### **CONCLUSION**

The findings highlight the need to provide additional health education on food safety to reduce the risk of foodborne infections among cancer patients.

#### REFERENCE

Corso, C. D., De Oliveira, N. M. T., & Maria-Ferreira, D. (2021). Susceptibility to SARS-CoV-2 infection in patients undergoing chemotherapy and radiation therapy. *Journal of Infection and Public Health*, 14(6), 766–771. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jiph.2021.03.008



# BARRIERS AND CHALLENGES OF MULTIDISCIPLINARY TEAM MEETINGS SCOPING REVIEW – UPDATES ON TRANSLATION OF RESEARCH FINDINGS

Nicholas Law<sup>1</sup>, Wei Hong Lai<sup>2</sup>, Shirley Siang Ning Tan<sup>2</sup>,
Foo Chuan Jie<sup>1</sup>, Daniel Lee,<sup>1</sup> Voon Pei Jye<sup>1</sup>
Department of Radiotherapy, Oncology and Palliative Care, Sarawak General Hospital,
Kuching

Clinical Research Centre, Sarawak General Hospital, Kuching

# INTRODUCTION

Multidisciplinary Teams (MDTs) are vital to oncology care, providing comprehensive and coordinated care for cancer patients. The advent of precision medicine and cancer genomics has added complexities, emphasising the need for effective multidisciplinary collaboration. Previous scoping review using Arksey and O'Malley's framework identified common barriers such as resource limitations (time and finances), interpersonal issues, lack of clinical information, non-attendance of key personnel, and neglect of patient preferences. New challenges include integrating non-traditional specialties, incorporating clinical trials, and addressing technological gaps. Hence, this study aims to evaluate the translation of scoping review findings within Sarawak General Hospital (SGH).

# **MATERIALS & METHODS**

This is a cross-sectional study evaluating the translation of scoping review findings in MDTs conducted within SGH from October 2023 to May 2024.

#### RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

SGH hosts seven MDTs, including a recently added monthly neuro-oncology MDT with invited experts from the American Society of Clinical Oncology. Early notification and global expert input have improved participation and mitigated interpersonal challenges and bias in oncology management. In addition, high volume MDTs such as Colorectal and gynaecology MDTs prioritise complex cases and ensure early communication of MDT dates. All team members are expected to attend and actively participate. Teleconferencing and hybrid MDTs facilitate participation from external teams, benefiting patients by saving time and resources through virtual collective decision-making. However, the full potential of next-generation sequencing remains untapped in the public setting, and there is no centralized clinical trials database.

### **CONCLUSION**

This study shows that a modified local approach towards setting up MDTs can be sustainable and that all participants generally benefit from a multidisciplinary approach, in particular, developing professional respect and awareness of other disciplines scope of work. However, the improvement of MDT is an ongoing effort.



# COST-EFFECTIVE SAMPLING KIT FOR MICROBIOME RESEARCH IN LOW RESOURCE SETTINGS

Audrey Weng Yan Lee<sup>1</sup>, Li-Fang Yeo<sup>1</sup>, Wan Zamaniah Wan Ishak<sup>2</sup>, Chin Heng Fong<sup>3</sup>, Suganiya Rama Rao<sup>2</sup>, Nur Adilah Abdul Aziz<sup>3</sup>, Jia Wern Pan<sup>1</sup>, Joanna Mei Ch'wan Lim<sup>1</sup>, Sok Ching Cheong<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Cancer Research Malaysia, Selangor, Malaysia. <sup>2</sup>Clinical Oncology Unit, Faculty of Medicine, University of Malaya, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia. <sup>3</sup>Department of Radiotherapy and Oncology, Hospital Pulau Pinang, Penang, Malaysia.

#### INTRODUCTION

Immune checkpoint inhibitors were approved for treatment of advanced and metastatic head and neck squamous cell carcinoma (HNSCC) post KEYNOTE-48, with improved response rates from 23% to 43% when used with chemotherapy [1, 2]. The reason for non-responsiveness in the remaining 57% of patients remained undetermined. Recent studies suggest the microbiome may be involved [3]. However, commercial sampling kits from the West, touted as the gold standard, make microbiome research prohibitively costly and less accessible to researchers in low resource settings. It is crucial to identify cost-effective alternatives.

# **MATERIALS & METHODS**

We developed a cost-effective kit using nucleic acid preservation buffer and phosphate buffered saline in place of commercial proprietary buffers for collecting stool and oral fluid [4]. The kit was internally validated through DNA quality and microbial diversity using Nanodrop and 16S sequencing respectively. We also evaluated the kit's use by HNSCC patients in an investigator-initiated clinical trial in Malaysia.

### **RESULTS**

Internal validation yielded high quality DNA ( $A^{260/280} = 1.87 - 1.90$ ). 16S sequencing revealed no bacterial overgrowth across sample types, indicating effective microbiome preservation. For the clinical trial samples, use of the kit yielded 39 stool and 51 oral fluid samples. DNA yield of 38/39 stool and 42/51 oral fluid samples fulfilled minimum requirements for downstream sequencing ( $\geq 10 \text{ng/}\mu\text{L}$ ;  $A^{260/280} = 1.8 - 2.0$ ).  $A^{260/280}$  indicated high DNA purity in both sample types.

#### DISCUSSION

While reputable commercial kits cost up to 25USD each, our kit is estimated to cost only 2USD and can be prepared from common laboratory chemicals. Our kit fulfills the purpose of commercial kits by yielding high quality DNA of decent concentration, meeting downstream sequencing requirements.

#### **CONCLUSION**

We hope that improved sample collection affordability will increase the representation of patients from low resource settings in microbiome research, enabling them to potentially



benefit from future medical advancements leveraging the microbiome to enhance treatment response.

- 1. Burtness, B. et al. The Lancet 2019; 394(10212): 1915-1928.
- 2. Harrington, K.J. et al. Journal of Clinical Oncology 2023; 41(4): 790-802.
- 3. Preissner, S. et al. Cancers 2023; 1(8), 2342.
- 4. Camacho-Sanchez, M. et al. Molecular Ecology Resources 2013; 13(4): 663-73.



#### THE DILEMMA OF A SMALL ROUND CELL TUMOUR

Nur Nadya Mohamad Nasip<sup>1</sup>, Nahjatul Kursyiah Abd Ghafar<sup>1</sup>, Noorjehan Omar<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Radiotherapy & Oncology Department, Hospital Wanita & Kanak-Kanak Sabah, Kota

Kinabalu, Sabah.

<sup>2</sup>Surgical Pathology Unit, Hospital Sultan Idris Shah, Serdang, Kajang, Selangor.

#### INTRODUCTION

Desmoplastic small round cell tumour (DSRCT) is an extremely rare, aggressive sarcoma affecting young males in the second or third decade of life. It originates from the serosal surface of the abdominal cavity and often presents as a widespread abdominopelvic mass with nonspecific gastrointestinal symptoms. DSRCT can easily be misdiagnosed due to its similarity to Ewing sarcoma and Wilms' tumour. Previous studies found that cytokeratin, EMA, desmin, vimentin, and WT1 protein are detected in the majority of patients. The EWS-WT1 fusion gene produced by chromosomal translocation of t(11;22)(p13;q12) is diagnostic. Here, we present a case of DSRCT in our centre.

#### **CASE REPORT**

A 26-year-old man, presented with altered bowel habits, back pain and difficulty ambulating for two months. CT scan showed large retroperitoneal masses with widespread lymphadenopathies, liver and bone metastases. Left inguinal biopsy performed. HPE shows fibro-collagenous tissue infiltrated by small blue round neoplastic cells with high proliferative index, positive for CD56, desmin, WT1, and EMA, and concluded to favour nephroblastoma. Peritoneal mass and liver biopsy were repeated. The first sample was reviewed together. Immunohistochemical staining shows similar positivity. He was treated as metastatic soft tissue sarcoma and received one cycle of IVA chemotherapy regime. Second opinion by an expert sarcoma pathologist however concluded it as desmoplastic small round cell tumour. The positivity of EWSR1 gene rearrangement supported this. His chemotherapy changed to VDC/IE regime. He has started to respond clinically and ambulate with aid. We will see his radiological response soon.

#### **CONCLUSION**

DSCRT has no widely accepted treatment protocol. Current management includes combination of chemotherapy, radiation, aggressive cytoreductive surgery and intra-peritoneal hyperthermic chemotherapy (HIPEC). Despite the multimodal therapy, outcomes remain poor and survival is dismal. Given its rarity, large randomized trials cannot be performed. A better understanding of disease biology has identified potential targets to be explored in future clinical trials.

- 1. Kim J, Lee JM, Branton PE, et al: Modulation of EWS/WT1 activity by the v-Src protein tyrosine kinase. FEBS Lett 474:121-128, 2000
- 2. Bertuzzi A, Castagna L, Nozza A, et al: High-dose chemotherapy in poor-prognosis adult small round-cell tumors: Clinical and molecular results from a prospective study. J Clin Oncol 20:2181-2188, 2002



- 3. Gil A, Gomez Portilla A, Brun EA, et al: Clinical perspective on desmoplastic small round-cell tumor. Oncology 67:231-242, 2004
- 4. Gerald WL, Haber DA: The EWS-WT1 gene fusion in desmoplastic small round cell tumor. Semin Cancer Biol 15:197-205, 2005
- 5. Honore C, Amroun K, Vilcot L, et al: Abdominal desmoplastic small round cell tumor: Multimodal treatment combining chemotherapy, surgery, and radiotherapy is the best option. Ann Surg Oncol 22:1073-1079, 2015



# GENETIC TESTING AND DECISION-MAKING FOR BREAST CANCER PATIENT DURING PREGNANCY - A CASE STUDY

Claudia Richard Beginda<sup>1</sup>, Heamanthaa Padmanabhan<sup>2</sup>, Nur Tiara Hassan<sup>1,2</sup>, Meow-Keong Thong<sup>1</sup>, Sook-Yee Yoon<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup> GENETIX, CRMY Technologies Sdn. Bhd., Selangor, Malaysia <sup>2</sup> Genetic Counselling Unit, Cancer Research Malaysia, Selangor, Malaysia

#### INTRODUCTION

This case report explores the decision-making process of a pregnant woman diagnosed with germline triple-negative breast cancer (TNBC) who has a family member with a BRCA1 pathogenic variant. We examine the challenges and complexities in her decision-making for genetic testing and risk management during pregnancy.

#### **REPORT:**

The patient, a 36-year-old pregnant woman with TNBC and a family history of early breast cancer (sister diagnosed at 38), was offered predictive testing after her sister was found to carry a BRCA1 pathogenic variant. Her positive test result led to discussions on risk management, including the possibility of mastectomy and bilateral salpingo-oophorectomy (BSO) post-delivery. Consideration was given to nipple-sparing mastectomies and breast reconstruction to facilitate breastfeeding. However, breast reconstruction post-bilateral mastectomy may impact the quality of life, affecting body image and leading to grief, particularly if breastfeeding is not possible. Tailored information is crucial to manage patient expectations and aid in surgical decision-making.

# **CONCLUSION**

This case highlights the necessity for comprehensive discussions with healthcare professionals specializing in breastfeeding and cancer risk management for pregnant women with breast cancer. It underscores the importance of a multidisciplinary approach, considering the patient's medical history, familial cancer risk, autonomy, and potential risk management strategies, to facilitate informed decision-making

- Wolters, V., Joosje Heimovaara, Maggen, C., Cardonick, E., Boere, I., Liesbeth Lenaerts, & Amant, F. (2021). Management of pregnancy in women with cancer. International Journal of Gynecological Cancer, 31(3), 314–322. https://doi.org/10.1136/ijgc-2020-001776
- Rosenberg, S. M., Dominici, L. S., Gelber, S., Poorvu, P. D., Ruddy, K. J., Wong, J. S., Tamimi, R. M., Schapira, L., Come, S., Peppercorn, J. M., Borges, V. F., & Partridge, A. H. (2020). Association of Breast Cancer Surgery With Quality of Life and Psychosocial Wellbeing in Young Breast Cancer Survivors. JAMA Surgery, 155(11), 1035–1035. https://doi.org/10.1001/jamasurg.2020.332



# 'FROM TERATOMA TO THYROID CARCINOMA'. A CASE OF PRIMARY MALIGNANT STRUMA OVARII

Izzati Zainee<sup>1</sup>, Muhammad Adib Abdul Onny<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Radiotherapy & Oncology Department, Institut Kanser Negara, 62250, W.P. Putrajaya, Malaysia.

<sup>2</sup>Nuclear Medicine Department, Institut Kanser Negara, 62250, W.P. Putrajaya, Malaysia

### INTRODUCTION

Struma ovarii (SO) is categorised as monodermal ovarian teratoma, comprising predominantly (>50%) thyroid tissue <sup>(1)</sup>. Struma ovarii is rarely malignant but Malignant Struma Ovarii (MSO) accounts for about 5% of SO and 0.01% of all ovarian tumours with papillary and follicular carcinoma being the most common <sup>(3,4,5)</sup>. We report a case of primary MSO with local dissemination and its management conundrum.

#### **REPORT**

62-year-old lady, Para 1 with history of left ovarian cystectomy >30 years ago, presented with progressive abdominal distension. CA125 was elevated at 1453u/ml. CT-Abdomen-Pelvis revealed large solid cystic pelvic mass with papillary projection and internal calcification. She underwent TAHBSO, PLND, omentectomy and appendectomy for suspected ruptured epithelial ovarian tumour. Histopathological examination revealed papillary thyroid carcinoma (PTC) of bilateral ovaries. Following that, total thyroidectomy was performed but it was negative for malignancy. No further treatment initiated. However, just 4-months later, she complained of new abdominal swelling. CT-TAP showed recurrent large left pelvic mass. Patient underwent debulking surgery and intraoperatively noted ruptured tumour with intra-abdominal seedlings. HPE concluded as metastatic PTC. Subsequently, she was referred for radioiodine ablation therapy (RAI). Serum Thyroglobulin was low at 0.18ng/ml but Anti-Thyroglobulin Antibody was positive.

# **CONCLUSION**

Due to the rarity of MSO, diagnostic criteria and subsequent management are not clearly defined. CT finding typically reveals non-specific cystic appearance and features such as mass size, wall thickness and presence of internal structures may suggest presence of MSO <sup>(6)</sup>. Definitive diagnosis is always with histopathogical confirmation. There has been advocate on managing MSO as per other germ cell tumour, but many recommend treatment as per thyroid carcinoma <sup>(7)</sup>. Following an initial surgery; based on the staging, total thyroidectomy is recommended and the patient should subsequently undergo RAI and thyroid hormone suppression therapy <sup>(8)</sup>. Follow-up strategy should include serum thyroglobulin level monitoring with Anti-Thyroglobulin Antibody.



- 1. Singh P, Lath N, Shekhar S, Goyal M, Gothwal M, Yadav G, Khera P. Struma Ovarii: A Report of Three Cases and Literature Review. J Midlife Health. 2018 Oct-Dec;9(4):225-229. doi: 10.4103/jmh.JMH 53 18. PMID: 30692823; PMCID: PMC6332726.
- 2. Rosenblum NG, LiVolsi VA, Edmonds PR, Mikuta JJ. Malignant struma ovarii. Gynecol Oncol. 1989;32:224–7.
- 3. Talerman A. Germ cell tumors of the ovary. In: Kurman RJ, editor. Blaustein's Pathology of the Female Genital Tract. 3rd ed. New York, NY: Springer Verlag; 2001. pp. 967–1033
- 4. Yamashita Y, Hatanaka Y, Takahashi M, Miyazaki K, Okamura H. Struma ovarii: MR appearances. Abdom Imaging. 1997;22:100–2
- 5. DeSimone CP, Lele SM, Modesitt SC. Malignant struma ovarii: a case report and analysis of cases reported in the literature with focus on survival and I131 therapy. Gynecol. Oncol. (2003) 89:543–8. doi: 10.1016/S0090-8258(03)00141-0
- 6. Rahma A, Mardiyana L, Fauziah D. Malignant struma ovarii: Case report of an unusual ovarian tumor with CT imaging. Radiol Case Rep. 2022 Mar 22;17(5):1705-1708. doi: 10.1016/j.radcr.2022.02.067. PMID: 35345561; PMCID: PMC8956866.
- 7. Ayhan A, Yanik F, Tuncer R, Tuncer ZS, Ruacan S: Struma ovarii. Int J Gynecol Obstet 42(2):143–146 (1993)
- 8. Ma D, Guseva NV, Dahmoush L, Robinson RA. Struma ovarii with malignant transformation and germline KIT mutation: a case report with review of the literature. Int. J. Gynecol. Pathol. (2016) 35:442–7. doi: 10.1097/PGP.0000000000000275



# DILEMMA IN MANAGING SEROUS BORDERLINE OVARIAN TUMOUR WITH DISTANT LYMPH NODE INVOLVEMENT

Noradila Ishak<sup>1</sup>, Hadi Ab.Jalil<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Radiotherapy, Oncology and Palliative Department, Sarawak General Hospital, Malaysia

#### INTRODUCTION

Serous borderline ovarian tumour (SBOT) represents the most common subtype of borderline ovarian tumour (BOT) (1). In contrast with ovarian carcinoma, most BOTs have excellent prognosis, younger predilection, and present at an earlier stage (2). However, in a minority of cases, late recurrence with malignant transformation results in poor outcomes. SBOTs commonly have peritoneal implantation and approximately 30% have lymph node involvement (LNI) at diagnosis. The importance of LNI in predicting prognosis is still controversial, leading to a treatment dilemma. We present a case of SBOT with distant LNI.

#### CASE REPORT

A 23-year-old lady presented with a 2-month history of worsening abdominal distension and constitutional symptoms. Initial scan showed extensive disease involving bilateral ovaries; gross ascites; and multiple enlarged pelvic, para-aortic, inguinal and axillary lymph nodes (LN). Diagnostic laparoscopy revealed cauliflower-like growth arising from bilateral ovaries, widespread peritoneal nodules, and enlarged pelvic and inguinal LNs. Biopsies of the ovaries, peritoneal nodules, and inguinal LNs confirmed typical SBOT with non-invasive implants based on WHO classification. She received 4 cycles of induction chemotherapy demonstrating partial response, and subsequently underwent debulking surgery with axillary node dissection. Despite extensive sampling, there was no evidence of invasion hence confirming SBOT from all samples taken, including the axillary LN. Adjuvant chemotherapy or surveillance strategy was discussed with the patient, who opted for surveillance.

### **CONCLUSION**

Due to the lack of evidence of the benefit of adjuvant treatment, it is not recommended irrespective of the risk factors in clinical setting. Contradictory results from small studies regarding the importance of LNI has led to the dilemma for surgeons and oncologists in tailoring treatments for patients with extensive SBOT. Hence, it is important to inform patients regarding prognostic uncertainties when counselling them for active surveillance. Close monitoring with a better follow-up guideline is essential to detect early recurrence.

- 1. <a href="https://www.pathologyoutlines.com">www.pathologyoutlines.com</a>. (n.d.). Serous borderline tumor / atypical proliferative serous tumor. [online] Available at: <a href="https://www.pathologyoutlines.com/topic/ovarytumorserousborderline.html">https://www.pathologyoutlines.com/topic/ovarytumorserousborderline.html</a>.
- 2. Seidman, J.D., Soslow, R.A., Vang, R., Berman, J.J., Stoler, M.H., Sherman, M.E., Oliva, E., Kajdacsy-Balla, A., Berman, D.M. and Copeland, L.J. (2004). Borderline ovarian tumors: Diverse contemporary viewpoints on terminology and diagnostic criteria with illustrative images. Human Pathology, 35(8), pp.918–933. doi:https://doi.org/10.1016/j.humpath.2004.03.004.



35<sup>th</sup> Annual Scientific Congress of Malaysian Oncological Society *EP-65 A-0108* 

# CLINICAL UTILITY AND ADVANTAGES OF LIQUID BIOPSY: CASE STUDIES UNVEILING REVOLUTIONARY DIAGNOSTIC INSIGHTS

Amanda Suet Min Goon, Jia Wei Tan, Share-Yuan Goh, Amy Huei Teen Teh, Su Wen Lim Oncode Scientific Sdn. Bhd, 40300 Shah Alam, Selangor D.E., Malaysia

#### INTRODUCTION

Precision medicine is revolutionising oncology patient care, with liquid biopsy testing at the forefront of this transformation. Unlike tissue biopsies, liquid biopsy—particularly those utilising next-generation sequencing (NGS)—offers a groundbreaking, non-invasive alternative that captures the dynamic landscape of tumour heterogeneity, enables timely selection of targeted therapies, and monitors genetic alterations<sup>1</sup>.

Notably, lung cancer accounts for the majority of liquid biopsy cases at 79.6%, with a positivity rate of 57.8% at Oncode from 2022 to date. We present compelling case studies demonstrating the clinical utility and advantages of liquid biopsy.

#### **REPORT**

Sensitivity. A lung cancer patient previously identified with only the EGFR L858R variant, liquid biopsy NGS detected the EGFR T790M mutation at 0.1% VAF. Similarly, in a colon cancer patient, liquid biopsy NGS identified KRAS G12V at 0.7% VAF, which was undetectable by PCR. NGS demonstrates superior sensitivity in detecting low-level mutations, enabling early intervention.

Detection Capability. A NSCLC patient underwent chemotherapy and radiotherapy without prior detection of EGFR/BRAF/ALK/ROS1 genetic alterations; subsequent liquid biopsy NGS revealed an EGFR exon 20 insertion, prompting a change to targeted therapy. Additionally, liquid biopsy NGS assays can detect actionable fusions regardless of the partner genes, e.g., ALK rearrangements involving BABAM2 was identified in an NSCLC patient, surpassing the limitations of standard fluorescence in situ hybridisation (FISH) assays at detecting rare or less common fusion partners<sup>2</sup>. Liquid biopsy NGS for another lung cancer patient experiencing treatment failure with EGFR TKIs detected an EGFR T790M mutation in *cis* configuration with C797S, explaining the TKI resistance.

Monitoring & Concordance. A lung adenocarcinoma patient's initial tissue biopsy NGS detected EGFR exon 19 deletion at 48% VAF, thereafter starting gefitinib treatment. Follow-up liquid biopsy NGS detected the same variant at 2.6% VAF, indicating EGFR TKI responsiveness. This high concordance between tissue and liquid biopsy results underscore the utility of liquid biopsy for ongoing monitoring.

# **CONCLUSION**

These case studies underscore the transformative impact of liquid biopsy NGS in oncology. Its sensitivity, detection capability, and monitoring benefits provide practical, cost-effective, and valuable information for optimising treatment strategies.



- 1. Nigro MC, Marchese PV, et al. Clinical Utility and Application of Liquid Biopsy Genotyping in Lung Cancer: A Comprehensive Review. Lung Cancer (Auckl). 2023 Feb 3;14:11–25.
- 2. Kasi PM, Lee JK, et al. Circulating Tumor DNA Enables Sensitive Detection of Actionable Gene Fusions and Rearrangements Across Cancer Types. Clinical Cancer Research. 2024 Feb 16;30(4):836–48.



# UNLOCKING HOPE: NEXT GENERATION SEQUENCING (NGS) A GAME CHANGER IN RARE SUBTYPE THYMIC CELL CARCINOMA

Dr Meerah Ghandhi Muniandy, Dr Soo Hoo Hwoei Fen Department of Radiotherapy and Oncology, Penang General Hospital

#### INTRODUCTION

Thymic carcinomas is a rare mediastinal neoplasm and little is known about its tumorigenesis. Theres no effective treatment except complete resection and the prognosis of the advanced and recurrent cases are poor. Because of their paucity, clinical studies are very limited. NGS has been adopted in clinical oncology to advance personalized treatment of cancer especially to identify novel and rare cancer mutations. NGS has the ability to fully sequence all types of mutations for a large number of genes in a single test at a relatively low cost. This method is effective and ideal for rare tumours like thymic carcinoma to analyse the molecular mechanism of tumorigenesis.

#### **REPORT**

A case of 69 years old lady who presented with shortness of breath, reduced oral intake, loss of weight. CT Imaging revealed a large anterior mediastinal mass consistent with a thymic mass. Right Video Assisted Thoracoscopic, incisional biopsy mediastinal mass was performed. Histopathology examination shows tumor arising from thymic with clear cell component. In view of rarity of the disease there was delay before an end diagnosis. A restaging scan prior surgery shows metastatic disease in the liver. Six cycle of palliative chemotherapy was given. This was followed by palliative radiotherapy to the mediastinal mass to relieve the compression Subsequently enrolled into Atlas symptoms. Study. NGS analysis identified CTCCR3::MAML2 fusion hence rare variant of mucoepidermoid carcinoma was confirmed. Therefore the diagnosis amended as a clear cell variant of mucoepidermoid carcinoma trachea/bronchus or thymus.

# **CONCLUSION**

There is no doubt that emergence of NGS constituted a turning point for diagnosis and treatment of rare thymic cell carcinoma. Therefore a recommendation to include NGS testing as a part of diagnostic tool in all the rare tumours for early initiation of treatment should be implemented

#### REFERENCE

Lale SA, Tiscornia-Wasserman PG, Aziz M. Diagnosis of thymic clear cell carcinoma by cytology. *Case Rep Pathol.* 2013;2013 617810.



# PEMBROLIZUMAB TREATMENT IN MALIGNANT MELANOMA WITH PRE-EXISTING VITILIGO: A CASE REPORT

I N Minggu, M S Mohamad Zuki, N K Abd Ghafar Hospital Wanita dan Kanak-Kanak Sabah

#### INTRODUCTION

Cutaneous melanoma represents the most aggressive form of skin cancer, whereas vitiligo is an autoimmune disorder that results from the destruction of melanocytes which affects about 2% of the world's population. <sup>1,2</sup> Immunotherapy intravenous pembrolizumab is one of the anti-programmed death-1(PD-1) agents commonly used in the treatment of malignant melanoma with vitiligo as one of the most frequent dermatologic adverse events in which the incidence rate ranging between 9.6% to 25%. There are not many cases reported for the management of malignant melanoma with pre-existing vitiligo receiving pembrolizumab.

#### **REPORT**

We report the case of a 64-year-old gentleman with pre-existing vitiligo who was diagnosed with metastatic malignant melanoma. He started immunotherapy treatment with intravenous pembrolizumab after progression of disease with two lines of chemotherapy. However, there is risk of worsening skin hypopigmentation with the use of pembrolizumab. Hence, dermatology team was consulted for co-management whereby he was started on topical steroids and given education regarding sun protection. During immunotherapy, there is an increase in skin hypopigmentation at the areas affected which are at the forehead, bilateral foot, and elbow. Despite this, it doesn't affect his quality of life. To date, the patient shows good clinical response to treatment according to the schedule with manageable skin toxicity. Unfortunately, he succumbed to his disease after 8 months of treatment due to progression of disease in the brain.

#### **CONCLUSION**

Pembrolizumab is known to have a high incidence rate of skin adverse reactions and may cause a flare of pre-existing vitiligo. With a rational approach and close monitoring, side effects are manageable, and patients can benefit from the treatment while maintaining a good quality of life. Therefore, it is important to educate the patient regarding the risks and benefits of the treatment given as well as the prevention that can be done to avoid worsening toxicity.

- 1. Cristina Maria Failla, Melanoma and Vitiligo: In Good Company: 2019 Nov 15;20(22):5731. doi: 10.3390/ijms20225731.
- 2. Joge R R, Kathane P U, Joshi S H (September 18, 2022) Vitiligo: A Narrative Review. Cureus 14(9): e29307. DOI 10.7759/cureus.29307
- 3. Lorenza Burzi, Cutaneous Events Associated with Immunotherapy of Melanoma: A Review: J. Clin. Med. 2021, 10, 3047. https://doi.org/10.3390/jcm10143047



35<sup>th</sup> Annual Scientific Congress of Malaysian Oncological Society *EP-68 A-0119* 

# CLINICAL CHARACTERISTICS OF NON-SMALL CELL LUNG CANCER IN SARAWAK, MALAYSIA

Elsie Sie Hui Pui<sup>1</sup>, Jenny Kha Mieng Chong<sup>1</sup>, Yi Leen Chan<sup>1</sup>, Suan Yin Lim<sup>1</sup>, Nur Qistina Nabilah<sup>1</sup>, Seng Wee Cheo<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Radiotherapy, Oncology and Palliative Care, Sarawak General Hospital, Sarawak.

#### INTRODUCTION

Non-small cell lung cancer (NSCLC) accounts for 80-85% of all lung cancers<sup>1</sup>. It can further subdivide into squamous and non-squamous histology<sup>2</sup>. In this study, we aimed to evaluate the clinical characteristics of patients with NSCLC in Sarawak.

#### **MATERIALS & METHODS**

This retrospective study examined data of patients with NSCLC diagnosed between year 2017-2023 in Sarawak. Data on clinical characteristics and pathological features were collected. Analysis was done by SPSS version 22.

# **RESULTS**

Among 581 lung cancers patients, 522 (89.8%) had NSCLC. It is more common in male (53.4%) than female (46.6%). The median age was 65 year (21-91). 45.8% were ex/active smoker, 49.8% were never smokers. Adenocarcinoma (81.4%) is the most common histology followed by squamous cell (11.9%) and adenoasquamous carcinoma (1.7%). The stage at diagnosis were as follows: stage I (6.9%), II (4.2%), III (13.6%) and IV (75.3%). Among all patients, the common comorbid included hypertension (42.7%), dyslipidemia (25.1%), diabetes mellitus (16.5%) and ischemic heart disease (3.6%). Cough (57.9%) is the most common presenting symptoms, followed by weight loss and poor appetite (33.7%), dyspnea (24.9%), and chest pain (8.8%). 11.8% were diagnosed incidentally while working for other causes. Among patients with advanced NSCLC, 91 (23.2%) patients had brain metastasis at presentation and more commonly among patients with oncogene driven compared to non-oncogene driven NSCLC (26% vs 18.4%).

#### **DISCUSSION**

Our study provided real world data on NSCLC in Sarawak, Malaysia. Our data largely consistent with previous reported data with adenocarcinoma being most common histology and a quarter had brain metastasis at diagnosis.

#### **CONCLUSION**

NSCLC is a heterogenous disease. Majority of our patients presented with advanced stage and significant proportion patients were affected by brain metastasis at presentation. This analysis provides insights into clinical features of our population with NSCLC.



#### REFERENCE

- 1. Molina JR, Yang P, Cassivi SD, Schild SE, Adjei AA. Non-small cell lung cancer: epidemiology, risk factors, treatment, and survivorship. Mayo Clin Proc. 2008 May;83(5):584-94. doi: 10.4065/83.5.584. PMID: 18452692; PMCID: PMC2718421
- 2. Wang W, Liu H, Li G. What's the difference between lung adenocarcinoma and lung squamous cell carcinoma? Evidence from a retrospective analysis in a cohort of Chinese patients. Front Endocrinol (Lausanne). 2022 Aug 29;13:947443. doi: 10.3389/fendo.2022.947443. PMID: 36105402; PMCID: PMC9465444.

# **KEYWORDS**

Clinical Characteristics, non-small cell lung cancer



# PRIMARY NEUROENDOCRINE LUNG CARCINOMA MANIFESTING AS UNCOMMON ORAL CAVITY LESION - A HARBINGER OF GRAVE PROGNOSIS?: A CASE REPORT

Ling Poh Huang, Jie Yi Eng

Department of Radiotherapy, Oncology and Palliative Care, Sarawak General Hospital

#### INTRODUCTION

Metastatic dissemination to oral cavity is unusual, accounting for approximately 1% of all oral malignancy. However, a quarter of cases found oral cavity metastasis discerned as the first manifestation of an occult malignancy at distant site.

#### **REPORT**

We report a case of neuroendocrine carcinoma of lung in a 58-year-old Iban gentleman, presenting a two-month history of ulcerated and hemorrhagic mass afflicting the lower gingival as the first sign of his primitive lung malignancy. Clinically, the exophytic gingival lesion mimicked a high-grade carcinoma of oral cavity. He is a heavy smoker with no medical illness. The initial histological evaluation from the gingival mass shows metastatic high-grade carcinoma. Computed tomography staging shows a large solid left upper lung mass measuring 4x5x5 cm. A lung biopsy was performed and revealed combined small cell lung carcinoma (45%) and large cell neuroendocrine carcinoma (55%). Neoplastic cells are positive for Synaptophysin with a high Ki-67 proliferative index of 60%. Both histopathological findings show similar morphology. He had palliative radiotherapy to oral cavity 20Gy/5# over 1 week and ongoing platinum-based doublet chemotherapy. However, he experienced clinical progression evidenced by rapidly and expansive enlargement of oral cavity mass with bilateral cervical lymphadenopathy and impaired nutritional status.

#### **CONCLUSION**

Gingival metastasis of a primary lung carcinoma is rare. Unfortunately, the identification of metastatic oral cavity typically signifies widespread disease and indicates a grim overall prognosis.

- 1. Hirshberg, A., Shnaiderman-Shapiro, A., Kaplan, I., & Berger, R. (2008). Metastatic tumours to the oral cavity pathogenesis and analysis of 673 cases. *Oral oncology*, 44(8), 743–752. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.oraloncology.2007.09.012
- 2. Üngör, C., Memiş, S., & Günhan, Ö. (2015). GİNGİVAL METASTASİS FROM THE SQUAMOUS CELL CARCİNOMA OF THE LUNG: A CASE REPORT AND REVİEW OF THE LİTERATURE. Atatürk Üniversitesi Diş Hekimliği Fakültesi Dergisi, 24(Supplement 8), 30-35. https://doi.org/10.17567/dfd.53998



# CHEMOTHERAPY-INDUCED PNEUMATOSIS INTESTINALIS IN GASTROESOPHAGEAL CANCER

Dr Norhidayu Salimin<sup>1</sup>, Dr Jia Huey Wong<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Radiotherapy & Oncology, National Cancer Institute, Putrajaya, Malaysia <sup>2</sup>Department of Radiology, National Cancer Institute, Putrajaya, Malaysia

#### INTRODUCTION

Pneumatosis intestinalis (PI) indicates the presence of gas within the bowel wall.<sup>1</sup> Oncological therapies are secondary causes of PI, often at tumour sites in the respiratory and gastrointestinal (GI) systems & in palliative settings.<sup>2</sup> Approximately a third of these cases are asymptomatic and discovered incidentally on computed tomography (CT) scans.<sup>2</sup> PI is mainly reported with targeted therapies within the first 12 weeks of treatment rather than with cytotoxic chemotherapy; however, 5-fluorouracil is the most frequently reported cytotoxic chemotherapy agent.<sup>3-5</sup> PI is often localized in the large bowels, typically presenting with mild or absent symptoms, with few fatalities.<sup>1,2</sup> The pathogenesis involves interactions of mucosal integrity, intraluminal pressure, and bacterial flora, though exact pharmacological mechanisms are unclear.<sup>6</sup> We report a series of PI cases in gastroesophageal (GOJ) adenocarcinoma identified incidentally on interim CT scans during chemotherapy.

#### **REPORT**

Two patients, with mean age of 62 and no comorbidities were diagnosed with GOJ adenocarcinoma. One, with peritoneal metastasis, received palliative Folinic acid, 5-fluorouracil and Oxaliplatin (FOLFOX) chemotherapy; the other, with stage III, received perioperative 5-fluorouracil, Leucovorin, Oxaliplatin and Docetaxel (FLOT) chemotherapy. Both patients underwent 8-12 weeks of chemotherapy before their interim reassessment CT scans, revealing partial treatment response and incidental PI findings. Intramural gases were seen in the large bowels extending into the pericolic fat, with associated air locules in the portal vein & intraperitoneally. Both patients were asymptomatic and non-neutropenic, hence were managed conservatively without surgery and resumed their chemotherapy. Follow-up CT scans 4 weeks post-chemotherapy revealed uncomplicated resolution of PI in one patient and decreased PI features in the other.

### **CONCLUSION**

Awareness of this rare radiological finding is crucial for timely management, especially in symptomatic patients. Cytotoxic chemotherapy induces GI mucosal damage, which could lead to PI. With advancements in systemic cancer therapy, understanding the mechanisms of PI behind different therapies is essential.

#### REFERENCES

1. Morris MS, Gee AC, Cho SD, Limbaugh K, Underwood S, Ham B, Schreiber MA. Management and outcome of pneumatosis intestinalis. Am J Surg. 2008 May;195(5):679-82; discussion 682-3.



- 2. Gazzaniga G, Villa F, Tosi F, Pizzutilo EG, Colla S, D'Onghia S, Di Sanza G, Fornasier G, Gringeri M, Lucatelli MV, Mosini G, Pani A, Siena S, Scaglione F, Sartore-Bianchi A. Pneumatosis Intestinalis Induced by Anticancer Treatment: A Systematic Review. Cancers (Basel). 2022 Mar 25;14(7):1666.
- 3. Kouzu K, Tsujimoto H, Hiraki S, Takahata R, Yaguchi Y, Kumano I, Horiguchi H, Nomura S, Nagata K, Harada M, Nagata H, Sugihara T, Ishibashi Y, Itazaki Y, Tsuchiya S, Aosasa S, Hase K, Yamamoto J, Ueno H. A case of pneumatosis intestinalis during neoadjuvant chemotherapy with cisplatin and 5-fluorouracil for esophageal cancer<sup>†</sup>. J Surg Case Rep. 2017 Nov 21;2017(11):rjx227
- 4. Chaudhry NS, Bi WL, Gupta S, Keraliya A, Shimizu N, Chiocca EA. Pneumatosis Intestinalis After Molecular-Targeted Therapy. World Neurosurg. 2019 May;125:312-315.
- 5. Sperling G, Shatila M, Varatharajalu K, Lu Y, Altan M, Zhou Y, Zhao D, De Toni EN, Török HP, Schneider BJ, Khan A, Thomas AS, Zhang HC, Shafi MA, Wang Y. Pneumatosis intestinalis in cancer patients who received immune checkpoint inhibitors. J Cancer Res Clin Oncol. 2023 Dec;149(19):17597-17605.
- 6. St Peter SD, Abbas MA, Kelly KA. The spectrum of pneumatosis intestinalis. Arch Surg. 2003 Jan;138(1):68-75.



# CLINICAL CHARACTERISTICS AND TREATMENT OF SMALL CELL LUNG CANCER IN SARAWAK

Nur Qistina Nabihah<sup>1</sup>, Jenny Kha Mieng Chong<sup>1</sup>, Elsie Sie Hui Pui<sup>1</sup>, Yi Leen Chan<sup>1</sup>, Suan Yin Lim<sup>1</sup>, Seng Wee Cheo<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Radiotherapy, Oncology and Palliative Care, Sarawak General Hospital, Sarawak.

#### INTRODUCTION

Approximately 10-15% of lung cancers are due to small cell lung cancer (SCLC), which is associated with extremely poor overall survival with survival rate of 6.9% at 5 years even with best available treatment. In this study, we aimed to describe the clinical characteristics and treatment of SCLC in Sarawak.

#### **MATERIALS & METHODS**

This retrospective study examined data of patients with SCLC diagnosed between year 2017-2023 in Sarawak. Data on clinical characteristics and treatment were collected. Analysis was done by SPSS version 22.

# **RESULTS**

Out of 581 lung cancer patients, 57 (9.8%) were due to SCLC. SCLC was more common among male (88%) than female (12%). The median age of our cohort was 63 years (46-82). 15 patients were Chinese, 16 were Iban, 13 were Malay and remaining were of other ethnicities. 98% were active/ex-smoker. The performance status of our patients were as follows: 0 (n=3), 1 (n=21), 2 (n=4), 3 & 4 (n=9). Majority (68.4%) were extensive stage at diagnosis and remaining were limited stage. Cough (22/57, 38.5%) was the most common initial presenting symptoms, followed by weight loss/poor appetite (35.3%) and dyspnea (26.3%). For treatment of limited stage SCLC, 6 patients received definitive chemoradiotherapy, 2 patients received surgery and adjuvant chemotherapy, 1 patient treated with palliative systemic therapy. For extensive stage SCLC, 27 patients received palliative intent systemic therapy, 1 patient received radiotherapy alone, 10 was treated with best supportive care upfront.

# **DISCUSSION**

Our study provided real world data on clinical features of SCLC in Sarawak. Consistent with previous report, majority were smoker and diagnosed at advanced stage.

#### **CONCLUSION**

SCLC is an aggressive lung cancer with poor prognosis. More works needs to be done to improve the outcome with better screening and more effective systemic therapy. This analysis provides real world data of SCLC in Sarawak.

- 1. Rudin CM, Brambilla E, Faivre-Finn C, Sage J. Small-cell lung cancer. Nat Rev Dis Primers. 2021 Jan 14;7(1):3. doi: 10.1038/s41572-020-00235-0. PMID: 33446664; PMCID: PMC8177722.
- 2. Johal S, Hettle R, Carroll J, Maguire P, Wynne T. Real-world treatment patterns and outcomes in small-cell lung cancer: a systematic literature review. J Thorac Dis. 2021 Jun;13(6):3692-3707. doi: 10.21037/jtd-20-3034. PMID: 34277061; PMCID: PMC8264706.



# CLINICAL CHARACTERISTICS AND TREATMENT OF ALK POSITIVE LUNG CANCER IN SARAWAK, MALAYSIA

Jenny Kha Mieng Chong<sup>1</sup>, Elsie Sie Hui Pui<sup>1</sup>, Yi Leen Chan<sup>1</sup>, Seng Wee Cheo<sup>1</sup>

Department of Radiotherapy, Oncology and Palliative Care, Sarawak General Hospital,

Sarawak

#### INTRODUCTION

Anaplastic lymphoma kinase (ALK) rearrangement is an uncommon gene mutation in non-small cell lung cancer (NSCLC)<sup>1</sup>. The prognosis is significantly different compared other molecular subtypes due to highly effective tyrosine kinase inhibitor (TKI). In this study, we aimed to describe the clinical characteristics and treatment of ALK positive NSCLC.

#### **MATERIALS & METHODS**

This retrospective study examined data of patients with ALK-positive NSCLC diagnosed between year 2017-2023 in Sarawak. Data on clinical characteristics and treatment were collected. Analysis was done by SPSS version 22.

# **RESULTS**

ALK rearrangements were detected in 30/401 (7.5%) NSCLC patients, being more common in female (56.6%) than male (43.3%). The median age of our patients was 55.5years (34-83). Majorities (60%) were never smokers and 33.3% were active/previous smokers. 90% were stage IV and 10% were stage III at initial presentation. In term of histology, all patients had adenocarcinoma. 93% (28/30) of ALK rearrangement were diagnosed by immunohistochemical stain (IHC) method and remaining by NGS. 33% (10/30) patients had brain metastasis at diagnosis. The first treatment received were as follows: ALK TKI [crizotinib (n=3), ceritinib (n=4), alectinib (n=6, brigatinib (n=1), lorlatinib (n=2)], platinum based chemotherapy (n=10), best supportive care (n=2). 8 patients received ALK TKI in the second line setting [alectinib (n=4), lorlatinib (n=2), ceritinib/crizotinib (n=1 each)]. 9 (30%) patients did not receive ALK TKI in their treatment journey.

#### **DISCUSSION**

Our study described real world data on ALK positive NSCLC in Sarawak. The prevalence of ALK rearrangement is slightly higher compared to the previous report. Despite highly effective therapy, 30% of patients did not receive ALK TKI.

#### **CONCLUSION**

ALK rearrangement present in a significant amount of NSCLC patients. More works need to be done to improve the access of highly effective ALK TKI to this group of patients.

# **REFERENCE**

1. Poh ME, How SH, Ho GF, Pang YK, Hasbullah HH, Tho LM, Muhamad Nor I, Lim BC, Ho KF, Thiagarajan M, Samsudin A, Omar A, Ong CK, Soon SY, Tan JYK, Zainal Abidin MA. Real-World Treatment and Outcomes of ALK-Positive Metastatic Non-Small Cell



- Lung Cancer in a Southeast Asian Country. Cancer Manag Res. 2023 Jan 13;15:31-41. doi: 10.2147/CMAR.S393729. PMID: 36660237; PMCID: PMC9844146.
- 2. Bearz A, De Carlo E, Del Conte A, Spina M, Da Ros V, Bertoli E, Revelant A, Stanzione B, Tirelli U. The Change in Paradigm for NSCLC Patients with EML4-ALK Translocation. Int J Mol Sci. 2022 Jun 30;23(13):7322. doi: 10.3390/ijms23137322. PMID: 35806325; PMCID: PMC9266866.

#### **KEYWORDS**

Treatment, Anaplastic lymphoma kinase, lung cancer



#### THE SILENT ALARM: FROM BACK PAIN TO LEUKAEMIA

Nurul Syamelia Afza Samsuri<sup>1</sup>, Nur Hidayah Zainuddin<sup>1</sup>, Nuha Zhafirah Nor A'zam<sup>1</sup>. <sup>1</sup>Emergency and Trauma Department, Hospital Sungai Bakap, Pulau Pinang, Malaysia.

# **INTRODUCTION**

Low back pain is a common medical condition, usually undifferentiated during initial presentation.

#### **REPORT**

A 25-year-old gentleman presented with low back pain after heavy lifting 3 days prior. He was discharged with analgesia and physiotherapy referral as neurological examination was normal. Within the following fortnight, he had 3 hospital visits for similar complaints. MRI thoracolumbar spine showed annular tear of L5/S1 herniated disc, bone marrow signal intensity was normal. During the 4th visit, blood investigations revealed hyperleukocytosis  $(93.3 \times 10^{5})$  with predominant neutrophils (89.2%). Otherwise, haemoglobin, and platelet counts were normal. Full blood picture sent was suggestive of myeloproliferative leukaemia likely Chronic Myeloid Leukaemia (CML). Patient was urgently referred to Haematology team and definitive diagnosis of Acute Myeloid Leukaemia (AML) with BCR-ABL1 was established. The absence of hepatosplenomegaly further supported the diagnosis in comparison to CML in myeloid blast crisis. Induction chemotherapy started together with Ponatinib. Patient currently still undergoing treatment under the Haematology team.

#### **CONCLUSION**

AML is common in males, as in this case. However, there was only symptoms of back pain which could be confused with bone pain in AML complicated with concurrent MRI findings. Only 0.5-3% of AML cases exhibit the BCR-ABL1-positive subtype. Both AML and CML key treatments are chemotherapy and targeted therapy but AML require rapid treatment due to its fast progression and poor prognosis. Despite initial unremarkable findings, persistent back pain warranted further investigation, leading to the diagnosis of AML. This emphasizes the importance of early consideration and detection of haematological malignancies and the need for timely and prompt management.

- 1. Vakiti A, Reynolds SB, Mewawalla P. Acute Myeloid Leukemia. [Updated 2024 Apr 27]. In: StatPearls [Internet]. Treasure Island (FL): StatPearls Publishing; 2024 Jan-. Available from: https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/books/NBK507875/
- 2. Guenette JP, Tirumani SH, Keraliya AR, Shinagare AB, Ramaiya NH, Jagannathan JP. MRI Findings in Patients With Leukemia and Positive CSF Cytology: A Single-Institution 5-Year Experience. *AJR Am J Roentgenol*. 2016;207(6):1278-1282. doi:10.2214/AJR.16.16221
- 3. Aqil B. AML with BCR::ABL1. PathologyOutlines.com website. https://www.pathologyoutlines.com/topic/bonemarrowneoplasticAMLBCRABL1.html. Accessed May 31st, 2024.



# EFFICACY OF PERIOPERATIVE FLOT IN GASTRIC CARCINOMA AND GASTRO-OESOPHAGEAL JUNCTION CARCINOMA IN ACHIEVING PCR: RETROSPECTIVE ANALYSIS IN A SINGLE INSTITUTION EXPERIENCE

Xue Ru Ting<sup>1</sup>, Ying Ying Sum<sup>1</sup>, Cheen Leng Lee<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Radiotherapy and Oncology, Penang General Hospital, Malaysia

#### INTRODUCTION

Gastric carcinoma (GC) has a high incidence rate of 7% in Asian countries.<sup>1</sup> Perioperative FLOT has been the standard of care for potentially resectable GC and Gastro-oesophageal junction (GOJ) carcinoma.<sup>2</sup> This study aims to evaluate the proportion of patients with pathological complete regression (pCR) in the primary tumor after preoperative chemotherapy.

#### **MATERIALS & METHODS**

This retrospective analysis included patients diagnosed with locally advanced, resectable GC or GOJ who received perioperative FLOT at Penang General Hospital between July 2019 and December 2023. Patient data were obtained from departmental records.

#### **RESULTS**

Our cohort comprised 43 patients, majority were men (69.8%) with median age of 58 years old (29-75). GOJ carcinoma made up 72% of the cohort. 35 patients (81.4%) completed preoperative FLOT, whereby 30 of them (85%) proceeded with surgical resection. Among the 30 patients who underwent surgical resection, 3 patients (10%) achieved pathological complete response (PCR), 22 patients (73%) achieved margin-free (R0) resection. The median time patients received their first chemotherapy from time of diagnosis was 6 weeks with 15 patients receiving it within 4 to 6

weeks. Postoperatively, 24 patients (55.8%) initiated adjuvant FLOT, but only 17 of them (39.5%) completed total 8 cycles perioperative FLOT. The most common grade 3 and 4 toxicities were diarrhea in 2 (4.6%) of 43 patients, 1 (2.3%) neutropenia, 1 (2.3%) laryngospasm, 1 (2.3%) infection.

### **DISCUSSION**

Our cohort obtained a PCR rate of 10%, which is lower than the 16% reported by FLOT4 trial.<sup>3</sup> This discrepancy could be attributed to variables, such as patients' tolerance to full course preoperative treatment, diagnostic and referral process to initiation of treatment. Diarrhea was our most frequent toxicity (4.6%), while FLOT4 patients had more neutropenia (52%).

#### **CONCLUSION**

Our cohort observed a comparable PCR in the primary tumor with preoperative FLOT. We aim for a prospective data collection and analysis in the future.



- 1. Ferlay J, Ervik M, Lam F, Laversanne M, Colombet M, Mery L, Piñeros M, Znaor A, Soerjomataram I, Bray F (2024). Global Cancer Observatory: Cancer Today. Lyon, France: International Agency for Research on Cancer. Available from: https://gco.iarc.who.int/today, accessed [29 April 2024].
- 2. Al-Batran SE, Homann N, Pauligk C, et al. Perioperative chemotherapy with fluorouracil plus leucovorin, oxaliplatin, and docetaxel versus fluorouracil or capecitabine plus cisplatin and epirubicin for locally advanced, resectable gastric or gastro-oesophageal junction adenocarcinoma (FLOT4): a randomised, phase 2/3 trial. Lancet. 2019;393(10184):1948–1957. doi: 10.1016/S0140-6736(18)32557-1
- 3. Al-Batran, S. E., Hofheinz, R. D., Pauligk, C., Kopp, H. G., Haag, G. M., Luley, K. B., Meiler, J., Homann, N., Lorenzen, S., Schmalenberg, H., Probst, S., Koenigsmann, M., Egger, M., Prasnikar, N., Caca, K., Trojan, J., Martens, U. M., Block, A., Fischbach, W., Mahlberg, R., ... Tannapfel, A. (2016). Histopathological regression after neoadjuvant docetaxel, oxaliplatin, fluorouracil, and leucovorin versus epirubicin, cisplatin, and fluorouracil or capecitabine in patients with resectable gastric or gastro-oesophageal junction adenocarcinoma (FLOT4-AIO): results from the phase 2 part of a multicentre, open-label, randomised phase 2/3 trial. The Lancet. Oncology, 17(12), 1697–1708. https://doi.org/10.1016/S1470-2045(16)30531-9



35<sup>th</sup> Annual Scientific Congress of Malaysian Oncological Society *EP-75 A-0138* 

# USING PARAFFIN WAX BASED IN RADIOTHERAPY TREATMENT USING ELECTRON FOR PATIENT WITH BASAL CELL CARCINOMA AT RIGHT TIPS OF NOSE: A CASE STUDY

Aznita Adan 1, Siti Hajar Abu Bakar 1. Izzati Rusli 1 Institut Kanser Negara, Putrajaya, Wilayah Persekutuan, 62250, Malaysia;

#### INTRODUCTION

Basal cell carcinoma (BCC) is a common skin cancer affecting the head and neck region. Radiotherapy is a viable treatment option for BCC, offering excellent cosmetic outcomes and functional preservation. However, delivering precise radiation doses to tumors on the nose can be challenging due to the complex anatomy and proximity to critical structures. This case study explores the feasibility and effectiveness of paraffin wax-based radiotherapy treatment with electron beams.

#### **PURPOSE**

The aim of this study to evaluate the efficacy of custom-made paraffin wax during electron beam treatment for patient with BCC.

#### **METHODS**

This case study enroll a 71-year-old female with BCC at right tips of nose with a dome shaped skin nodule. Patient was simulated using Mark on Set (MOS) method. Patient was treated 33 fractions at 4 cm D\_max using 12 MeV electron beam at LINAC (ELEKTA SYNERGY) with head mask. A customized paraffin wax bolus was fabricated to ensure uniform dose distribution and uniform dose delivery during the treatment sessions.

#### **RESULTS & DISCUSSION**

The usage of custom-made paraffin wax in radiotherapy treatment shows several advantages such as a more homogenous treatment beam, more accurate immobilization, improved target coverage and better consistencies in treatment delivery.

#### **CONCLUSIONS**

This case study highlights a successful of paraffin wax based in radiotherapy treatment for BCC at right tips of nose. The technique demonstrated precise set-up and efficacy dose delivery with minimal side effects and excellent cosmetic results

#### **KEYWORDS**

Paraffin Wax, Basal Cell Carcinoma, BCC, Radiotherapy, Electron.



#### **REFERENCE**

- 1. A. Mohd Affandi, Skin Cancer: 13-Year Experience at the Department of Dermatology, Hospital Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia, Journal of Global Oncology; 2018 4:Supplement 2, 79s-79s, DOI: 10.1200/jgo.18.26600.
- 2. Chang SW, Yun BM, Kang JW. Unusual Basal Cell Carcinoma in the Nasal Vestibule Treated with Excision and a Full-Thickness Skin Graft. Ear, Nose & Throat Journal;2022;0(0), DOI: 10.1177/0145561321117791.
- 3. Albantow. C, Hargrave. C, Brown. A, Halsall. C, Comparison of 3D printed nose bolus to traditional wax bolus for cost-effectiveness, volumetric accuracy and dosimetric effect, Journal of Medical Radiation Sciences; 2019, DOI: 10.1002/jmrs.378

CORRESPONDING AUTHOR: Aznita Adan; rtaznita@nci.gov.my



35<sup>th</sup> Annual Scientific Congress of Malaysian Oncological Society *EP-76 A-0139* 

# PRIMARY ADULT EWING'S SARCOMA OF KIDNEY: A RARE ENTITY

<sup>1</sup> Dr Suganeswaran Marimuthu; <sup>1</sup>Dr Angel Kwan Khor Nee; <sup>1</sup> Dr Lavannia Rajaretnam; <sup>1</sup> Dr Chan Ming Jun

<sup>1</sup>Radiotherapy and Oncology Unit, Hospital Raja Permaisuri Bainun,

# INTRODUCTION

Ewing's sarcoma (ES)/primitive neuroectodermal tumours (PNET) are high-grade small round blue cell tumours often found in children and adolescents and rarely in the adult population. <sup>1,2</sup> The extra-osseous ES represents nearly 6% of the ES family of tumours. However, renal localization is very rare and has a poor prognosis; where there is no consensus concerning the treatment of renal ES, treatment is extrapolated from osseous ES.<sup>3,4</sup> We report a rare case of renal ES and the treatment modality.

#### **REPORT**

A 60-year-old man with underlying hypertension was noted to have locally advanced renal mass by imaging when he presented with right flank pain and constitutional symptoms in mid-2022. He underwent right radical nephrectomy in July 2022, with HPE proven to be ES/PNET of the right kidney, positive lymphovascular invasion, histologic grade 3, and involved surgical margin. Immunohistochemistry (IHC) examination showed the tumour cells were strongly positive for CD99, NKX2.2, focal positivity to FL1, Vimentin and Cyclin D1. He was on closed imaging surveillance and only referred to us when the renal bed tumour recurred with liver and lung secondaries in March 2023. Due to poor performances of Eastern Cooperative Oncology Group (ECOG) 3 at progression, he was offered single agent doxorubicin, where he completed 6 cycles in September 2023 and only achieved stable disease but improved ECOG to 1. He progressed again two months later, in November 2023, and was commenced on etoposide-ifosfamide, however he stopped at 5 cycles due to treatment toxicity and the progression of the disease in March 2024.

### **CONCLUSION**

Due to the high invasiveness and poor prognosis of tumors, early diagnosis and intervention are crucial to achieving a promising outcome. Once diagnosed, multidisciplinary approaches and multimodal therapy, including radical nephrectomy, radiotherapy, and systemic chemotherapy, are highly recommended to prolong survival.<sup>5</sup>

### REFERENCE

- 1. Almeida MF, Patnana M, Korivi BR et al. Ewing Sarcoma of the Kidney: A Rare Entity. Case rep Radiol. 2014; 2014:283902.
- 2. Shangpliang DM, Rangad G, Das JK et al. Primary Adult Renal Ewing's Sarcoma: A Rare Entity. Cureus .2022 Feb 16;14(2): e22302.
- 3. Kairouani M, Mokrim M, Mellas N et al. Metastatic Ewing's sarcoma/PNET of kidney in 40-year-old patient. Int J Surg Case Rep. 2012;3(6):215–7.
- 4. Zhang S, Li Y, Wang R, Song B. Ewing's sarcoma/primitive neuroectodermal tumor of the kidney: a case report and literature review. Transl Androl Urol. 2019 Oct;8(5):562–566.
- 5. Thyavihally YB, Tongaonkar HB, Gupta S et al. Primitive neuroectodermal tumor of the kidney: a single institute series of 16 patients. Urology. 2008 Feb;71(2):292-6.

#### **KEYWORDS**

Ewing's sarcoma (ES)/primitive neuroectodermal tumours (PNET), Kidney mass



# CASE REPORT: KETAMINE USE IN REFRACTORY NEUROPATHIC PAIN OF MALIGNANT PERIPHERAL NERVE SHEATH TUMOUR

Yoke Yeng Leong <sup>1</sup>, Choi Ling Yeat <sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Oncology and Radiation Therapy, Palliative Care Unit, Hospital Umum Sarawak

<sup>2</sup>Department of Medicine, Palliative Care Unit, Hospital Raja Permaisuri Bainun

# INTRODUCTION

Cancer related neuropathic pain is very challenging to manage despite various treatments. Ketamine at subanesthetic doses shows promise for it, but evidence for parenteral and oral administration is limited. This report details a patient with refractory cancer-related neuropathic pain managed with parental and enteral ketamine adjunct to opioids without adverse effects.

# **REPORT**

A 27-year-old man with a malignant peripheral nerve sheath tumor underwent L4 laminectomy and tumor debulking. He experienced severe 'electric-like' pain in his left foot and ankle, rated 8/10, significantly affecting sleep and mobility. His ECOG status was 2. CT imaging showed a large infiltrative mass at the left lumbosacral area with significant bone destruction of L5 and sacral bone. Initial treatment with oral morphine (60mg/day) and amitriptyline (25mg nocte) provided limited relief despite multiple breakthrough doses.

Methadone was prescribed and titrated to 5mg twice daily, with increased amitriptyline (100mg nocte) and oral morphine (180mg/day). Despite this, pain relief was short-lived, and breakthrough doses only reduced pain to 6-7/10. A psychosocial assessment revealed no additional pain elements. Early signs of opioid toxicity appeared, necessitating a 50% reduction in morphine dosage.

A continuous subcutaneous infusion (CSCI) of burst ketamine 50mg was initiated, titrated to 100mg, which improved pain to 3-4/10 without psychotomimetic effects. However, opioid toxicity worsened, leading to the withholding of methadone, morphine, and ketamine. Once his sedation score improved, oral morphine (120mg/day) was resumed, and oral ketamine (5mg three times daily) was added. His pain improved to 3-4/10, and he could ambulate with a walking aid while awaiting palliative chemotherapy.

# **CONCLUSION**

Parenteral burst ketamine and oral ketamine are effective adjuncts in managing refractory cancer-related neuropathic pain, especially in patients intolerant to opioids and methadone. Further research is necessary to understand the efficacy and safety of ketamine in this context.

- 1. Evans, D. G., Baser, M. E., McGaughran, J., Sharif, S., Howard, E., & Moran, A. 2002. Malignant peripheral nerve sheath tumours in neurofibromatosis 1. Journal of medical genetics, 39(5), 311–314.
- 2. Loveday, B. A., & Sindt, J. 2015. Ketamine Protocol for Palliative Care in Cancer Patients With Refractory Pain. Journal of the advanced practitioner in oncology, 6(6), 555–561.
- 3. Prommer E. E et al. 2012. Ketamine for pain: an update of uses in palliative care. Journal of palliative medicine, 15(4), 474–483.
- 4. Bell RF, Eccleston C, Kalso EA. Ketamine as an adjuvant to opioids for cancer pain. Cochrane Database Syst Rev. 2017 Jun 28;6(6)



# NON-THYROGLOBULIN SECRETING COLUMNAR CELL PAPILLARY THYROID CARCINOMA

Aimi Nadiah Zainudin<sup>1,2</sup>, Khadijah Abdul Hamid<sup>2</sup>, Mohd Wajdi Ghazali<sup>1</sup>, Muhamad Imran Bin Tengah<sup>1,2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Nuclear Medicine, Hospital Pulau Pinang <sup>2</sup>Department of Biomedical Imaging, Pusat Perubatan USM Bertam

# INTRODUCTION

Papillary thyroid carcinoma accounts for 90% of all diagnosed thyroid cancer (1). Although papillary thyroid carcinoma has favourable prognosis given its overall survival rate of 97% at 20 years, poorer outcome is seen in the more aggressive subtypes of thyroid cancer (2). Amongst these subtypes, columnar cell variant of papillary thyroid cancer (CCV-PTC) constitutes for 0.15 to 0.2% of papillary thyroid carcinoma (3). As columnar cell carcinoma is a type of differentiated cancer, it typically produced thyroglobulin, which is a protein biomarker used for post-operative surveillance (4). This case report describes a case of non-thyroglobulin secreting columnar cell variant papillary thyroid carcinoma including the challenges in management and subsequent disease surveillance.

# **CASE REPORT**

We report a case of a 24 years old female with pT3aN1Mx columnar cell variant papillary thyroid cancer. She initially presented with neck swelling and USG neck showed left solitary thyroid nodule. Histopathological examination of the resected thyroid revealed a tumour occupying the whole left lobe measuring 7.0 x 6.0 x 4.5cm. This is composed of closely packed papillary structure with occasional follicular structure lined by neoplastic epithelial cells and these neoplastic cells are largely columnar cells with enlarged hyperchromatic nuclei. The patient is stratified into intermediate risk category and she received radioactive iodine (RAI) remnant ablation with 30 mCi. The post-therapy whole body scan showed focus of uptake at the neck region (Figure 1a). On non-contrasted CT image, there are two lesions seen in the thyroid bed measuring 1.6 x 1.6 x 2.8cm and 3.2 x 2.8 x 3.6cm (Figure 1c). The uptake corresponds to some part of the soft tissue lesion seen in the left thyroid bed hybrid image while the rest of the lesion is non-iodine avid (Figure 1b). The serum thyroglobulin level at this time was <0.1 ng/mL with TSH of >100 mIU/L.

The patient was planned for high dose RAI therapy with 120 mCi in 6 months time however, she had missed the appointment due to the symptoms of myelopathy secondary to tumor compression from spinal metastases. Contrasted CT thorax, abdomen and pelvis showed enlarged left thyroid lobe and isthmus with enlarged left level IV lymph node as well as multiple lytic destructive bone lesions at the sternum, left 4<sup>th</sup> and 9<sup>th</sup> ribs, T12, L1, L3 and L5 vertebrae, left iliac bone, left inferior pubic ramus, right pubic bone, left acetabulum and bilateral visualised proximal femur. The lesion at L1 and L5 in particular has soft tissue component extending into the spinal canal causing significant spinal canal stenosis (Figure 2). Tissue biopsy from the lesion at T12 vertebra was taken and came back as malignant tumour cells arranged in papillae with fibrovascular core, lined by pseudostratified columnar shaped



vesicular nuclei with prominent nucleoli. The immunohistochemistry (IHC) are strongly positive for TTF1 but negative for thyroglobulin, CK20, Pax8, CDX2 and SatB2. Although histological features are consistent with papillary thyroid carcinoma, the tumour does not show classical IHC staining pattern given the negative thyroglobulin and Pax8 stain.

# **DISCUSSION**

Columnar cell variant of papillary thyroid carcinoma is identified by the presence of hypercellular neoplasm with thin papillar lined by pseudostratified epithelium (5). Classically, it demonstrates positive staining for TTF1, thyroglobulin, cyclin D1, bcl-2, b-catenin, oestrogen and progesterone expression and in 55% of cases for CDX2 staining (6). In our case, although the TTF1 and CDX2 are positive, the common marker that is thyroglobulin came back negative on IHC.

Thyroglobulin is amongst the most specific biomarker for follicular-derived thyroid carcinomas. It is expressed in the cytoplasm of normal follicular thyroid cells and colloid and commonly present in well-differentiated thyroid carcinomas (7). In a study by Steurer et al. looking at thyroglobulin expression in thyroid tumours, 98.1% of 364 papillary thyroid cancers and 95.2% of 147 follicular thyroid carcinomas showed positive staining for thyroglobulin on IHC (8). Out of 15 tissues that stained negative, 12 showed focal weak thyroglobulin staining on large sections (8). Although in our case, the tissue that went through immunohistochemistry analysis was obtained via transpedicular biopsy of T12 vertebra and the limited volume of sample may be consequential to the negative staining, the patient's low serum thyroglobulin may be reflective in the scarcity of thyroglobulin expression in the tumour itself. Apart from establishing histopathological diagnosis, thyroglobulin is also utilised in post-operative follow-up in differentiated thyroid carcinomas (4). Thus, absence of thyroglobulin expression in thyroid carcinoma may posed a conundrum in surveillance and management of the patient.

# **CONCLUSION**

Columnar cell variant of papillary thyroid carcinoma is an uncommon subtype of papillary thyroid carcinoma which comes with poor prognosis due to its associated with higher risk of recurrence, morbidity and mortality rate. The non-Tg secreting nature of the carcinoma described in this case, attributed to absence of thyroglobulin expression on immunohistochemistry, is also rare and posed complications in directions of management and disease surveillance.



# DIBH FOR LIVER STEREOTACTIC BODY RADIATION THERAPY (SBRT)

Nur Idalia Abdul Majid<sup>1</sup>, Nur Amirah Shariff<sup>2</sup>

Department of Radiotherapy, KPJ Ampang Puteri Specialist Hospital, 1, Jalan Mamanda 9, Taman Dato' Ahmad Razali, 68000 Ampang, Selangor, Malaysia

# INTRODUCTION

Liver cancer most study suggests that minimizing the mobility of internal organs, including the liver and organs-at-risk (OAR), due to the possibility of significant geometric variation. The diaphragm is a reliable surrogate for liver motion, therefore reducing diaphragm motion will result in equivalent motion (1). Liver cancer DIBH Amplitude Gated SBRT reduced target motion by freezing it in the DIBH amplitude-phase, resulting in a lower PTV margin. DIBH amplitude-based SBRT is a reliable and precise motion management approach for SBRT liver (3).

## **OBJECTIVE**

This study assesses the stability motion management system (Active Breathing Coordinator) in DIBH amplitude-based technique for Liver SBRT (Stereotactic Body Radiation Therapy).

# **MATERIAL/METHODS**

The Active Breathing Coordinator System (ABC) was created to assist patients in holding their breath for a short period of time. It requires inserting a plastic tube with a mouthpiece into the patient's mouth and breathing through it, much like a snorkel and a nose clip on the patient's nose. The tube is connected to a computer, allowing the staff and patient to see the breathing pattern of the patient. Since the device measures and regulates respiratory volume, the reproducibility of subject lung volume serves as its primary metric of effectiveness (2). Between July 2023 to February 2023 2 patients with Liver Metastasis received 40Gy/5#/ 1week to the liver. CBCT images was taken pre-treatment, mid treatment and post treatment. To assess the stability motion management system (Active Breathing Coordinator) the vertical (z), longitudinal (y), lateral (x), pitch, roll and rotation shift were analysed.

# **RESULTS**

The mean and standard deviation of the shift for mid-CBCT and post-CBCT for 2 patients across various treatment sessions were recorded. The mean shift and standard deviation mid CBCT for both patient (z: 0.11(SD 0.09), y: 0.09(SD 0.11), x: 0.05(SD 0.07); pitch: 0.13(SD 0.28), roll: 0.20(SD 0.35) & rotation: 0.07(SD 0.19). The mean shift and standard deviation post CBCT for both patient (z: 0.07(SD 0.11), y: 0.02(SD 0.16), x: 0.03(SD 0.07); pitch: 0.08(SD 0.10), roll: 0.10(SD 0.32) & rotation: 0.06(SD 0.19).

# **DISCUSSION**

These results indicate that DIBH significantly reduces mean shifts in liver position (target) from its planned position during treatment delivery, as seen from mid-CBCT to post-CBCT. The standard deviation shows that small variability of these displacement (shift) across different treatment session. Overall, DIBH shows promise in minimizing intra-fractional



motion and enhancing precision in treating SBRT liver cancer. Post-PET CT imaging indicates a positive response to radiotherapy and confirms the effectiveness of DIBH.

# **CONCLUSION**

For appropriately selected patients, a DIBH technique using ABC system is a reliable and safe technique for treating liver SBRT is to reduce the movement of the liver and diaphragm.

- 1. Bhatt, C. P., Ahmad, I., & Chufal, K. S. (2019). Clinical Application of Dibh Amplitude Gated Technique for Stereotactic Body Radiotherapy (SBRT) Lung and Liver Oligometastases. *International Journal of Radiation Oncology, Biology, Physics*, 105(1), E746.
- 2. Kaza, E., Dunlop, A., Panek, R., Collins, D. J., Orton, M., Symonds-Tayler, R., & Leach, M. O. (2017). Lung volume reproducibility under ABC control and self-sustained breath-holding. *Journal of Applied Clinical Medical Physics*, 18(2), 154-162.
- 3. Summers, C. (2016). DIBH for Liver Stereotactic Body Radiation Therapy (SBRT). *Journal of Medical Imaging and Radiation Sciences*, 47(1), S12.



# A CASE REPORT OF PRIMARY PULMONARY MYXOID SARCOMA

Dr Vannessa Wee Zhi Ling, Dr Lee Fong Wan, Dr Sum Ying Ying Radiotherapy and Oncology Department, Hospital Pulau Pinang

# INTRODUCTION

Primary Pulmonary Myxoid Sarcoma (PPMS) is an exceptionally rare, low-grade malignant tumor of the lung that poses diagnostic dilemmas due to its rarity and histological similarities with other pulmonary neoplasms. It commonly infiltrates lung tissue and develops within bronchial passages. The published data was largely based on case reports and series which concluded that PPMS was of intermediate malignancy and may originate from mesenchymal cells undergoing fibroblastic or myofibroblastic differentiation. This case report detailed the clinical presentation, radiological and histopathological findings of PPMS in our centre.

# CASE DESCRIPTION

A 51-year-old gentleman, who is a chronic smoker with no known comorbidity, presented with right upper back pain for two months duration associated with cough and haemoptysis. Computed tomography of thorax showed multiple cavitating lung lesions with air fluid level at the right upper lobe with surrounding consolidations. The lesion extends medially to transesophageal groove. Additionally, there are enlarged mediastinal nodes and loculated pleural effusion. A bronchoscopy revealed extraluminal compression on the trachea's distal end, and an EBUS revealed a bulging paratracheal mucosal wall that was likely caused by external mass compression. Biopsy sample reported atypical spindled to stellate cells loosely arranged in cords and strands embedded within abundant myxoid material. These cells stained strongly positive for Vimentin and weakly positive for EMA and CAM5.2. Immunohistochemistry stains were negative for \$100, Desmin, Synaptophysin, ALK, P40, CD117, CK7, CK20, TTF-1, CD34, SMA and Myogenin. The histopathological results are suggestive of PPMS.

# **CONCLUSION**

PPMS is a rare malignant tumor of the lung. The clinical manifestations of PPMS patients may vary and are relatively non-specific. An adequate tissue sample and histopathology are essential for the diagnosis of PPMS. Multidisciplinary team involvement is crucial in the management of PPMS.



# GENDER DIFFERENCES IN HEALTH-RELATED QUALITY OF LIFE AMONG CANCER PATIENTS

Shridevi Subramaniam, MMedSc<sup>1</sup>, Evi Diana Omar, MSc<sup>2</sup>, Cheng-Har Yip, MD<sup>3</sup>, Nirmala Bhoo-Pathy, MD, PhD<sup>4</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Clinical Research Centre, Kuala Lumpur Hospital, Ministry of Health, 50586 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

<sup>2</sup>Sector of Biostatistics and Data Repository, National Institutes of Health, Ministry of Health Malaysia

<sup>3</sup>Subang Jaya Medical Centre, 47500 Subang Jaya, Malaysia <sup>4</sup>Centre for Epidemiology and Evidence-Based Medicine, Department of Social and Preventive Medicine, Faculty of Medicine, Universiti Malaya, 50603 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

## INTRODUCTION

For patients newly diagnosed with cancer, not only treatment but quality of life is also a critical consideration. The impact of gender differences on the health-related quality of life (HRQoL) among cancer patients is complex. This study aims to investigate the influence of gender-specific differences in HRQoL outcomes.

# **METHODS**

Through the Asian Nations Costs in Oncology (ACTION) study, 1655 newly diagnosed cancer patients were included. Health-related quality of life (HRQoL) was assessed using the EORTC QLQ-C30 questionnaire. Psychological distress was measured using the Hospital Anxiety and Depression Scale. Participants' socio-demographics and clinical characteristics were stratified by gender and compared using the chi-square test. The HRQoL mean scores were compared using the independent t-test. All statistical analyses were performed using SPSS software, with p-value< 0.05 considered statistically significant.

# **RESULTS**

Of 1655 patients, 39.0% were male and 61.0% were female. The median age at diagnosis was 53.0 for both genders. The mean score for global health (55.9 vs. 62.1, p < 0.001) and role function (59.8 vs 63.4, p = 0.037) has negatively affected the males compared to females. Males reported higher symptom scores for pain (35.0 vs. 32.2, p = 0.047) and dyspnea (21.0 vs. 14.0, p < 0.001). Additionally, males also showed higher rates of anxiety (42.5% vs. 37.5%, p = 0.042) and depression (25.8% vs. 19.9%, p = 0.004) than females.

# **DISCUSSION**

The present study shows that men report lower health-related quality of life (HRQoL) compared to women, which challenges the commonly held belief that women typically have worse HRQoL outcomes. This study demonstrates that men newly diagnosed with cancer experience lower HRQoL than their female counterparts.



## **CONCLUSION**

The findings of this study suggest that gender plays a role in influencing HRQoL among cancer patients which underscores the necessity for gender-specific interventions in cancer care to address distinct needs and improve the overall quality of life for both male and female cancer patients.

- 1. Koch M, Hjermstad MJ, Tomaszewski K, Tomaszewska I, Hornslien K, et al (2020). Gender effects on quality of life and symptom burden in patients with lung cancer: results from a prospective, cross-cultural, multi-center study. *Journal of Thoracic Disease*, 12(8): 4253-4261.
- 2. Okeke, B., Hillman, C., Jones, J. et al (2023). The relationship of social determinants and distress in newly diagnosed cancer patients. *Scientific Reports*, 13, 2153.



# BUDD-CHIARI SYNDROME AND HEPATOCELLULAR CARCINOMA: A CLINICAL QUANDARY

Johnson H.D, Ratnavelu K Columbia Asia Bukit Rimau

# INTRODUCTION

Budd-Chiari syndrome (BCS) has been established as an eponym of any obstruction to hepatic venous outflow tract [1]. Interestingly, BCS has been reported to have geographical variation whereby patients in Europe and United States tend to have hepatic vein obstruction as opposed to those from Asian continent and South Africa who predominantly demonstrated IVC obstruction [2]. Although the pathogenesis of hepatocellular carcinoma (HCC) in BCS patients are unclear, it has been postulated that prolonged congestion leads to hepatocellular necrosis and degeneration that causes it be more susceptible to carcinogenesis [3]. Point of oncological interest entails higher risk of developing HCC, younger age of onset and an overall poorer prognosis among patients with BCS with IVC obstruction [4]. In addition to that, HCC patients with background of BCS will inevitably present with features of chronic liver disease, hypercoagulability as well hypersplenism that impose added challenges in clinical management

## **REPORT**

This case report explores the complexity in managing one such patient, Madam M, who was diagnosed with primary BCS complicated with MELD score of 12 since the year 1999 whereby she developed HCC 24 years later despite regular surveillance. Madam M was initially diagnosed with HCC BCLC B, in May 2023 for which she received five cycles of TACE after which her disease progressed and thus was referred to Oncology team. Madam M baseline CPS was 6 with an INR of 1.3 secondary to warfarin and grade 1 thrombocytopenia due to hypersplenism. She was started with Lenvatinib 12mg OD which rendered her to developing Grade 2 thrombocytopenia, Grade 1 Neutropenia and deranged INR. In addition to switching her warfarin to dabigatran, her Lenvatinib dose was adjusted as per recommendation and she was eventually maintained in 8mg EOD dose. Both her BCS and HCC is noted to be stable as evidenced by serial three monthly CT imaging and she was clinically asymptomatic, most importantly her quality of life is at optimum.

# **CONCLUSION**

BCS associated HCC patient often present with complex clinical quandary which requires multidisciplinary approach in managing their condition without compromising their quality of life.

## REFERENCE

1. De Franchis R. Evolving Consensus in Portal Hypertension Report of the Baveno IV Consensus Workshop on methodology of diagnosis and therapy in portal hypertension. Journal of Hepatology [Internet]. 2005 Jul 1;43(1):167–76. Available from: https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jhep.2005.05.009



- Kage M. Budd-Chiari syndrome and hepatocellular carcinoma. Journal of Gastroenterology [Internet]. 2004 Jul 1;39(7):706–7. Available from: https://www.proquest.com/openview/fd3aa8c2e1f1fe31a6f30af21b240d93/1?pqorigsite=gscholar&cbl=33411
- 3. Plessier A, Valla DC. Budd-Chiari Syndrome. Seminars in Liver Disease [Internet]. 2008 Aug 1;28(03):259–69. Available from: https://doi.org/10.1055/s-0028-1085094
- 4. Li KS, Guo S, Chen YX, Zhang ZL. Budd-Chiari syndrome and its associated hepatocellular carcinoma: Clinical risk factors and potential immunotherapeutic benefit analysis. Frontiers in Oncology [Internet]. 2022 Dec 8;12. Available from: https://doi.org/10.3389/fonc.2022.1075685



# RARE CASE OF LUNG ADENOCARCINOMA METASTASIZING TO THE COLON

Sasitaran P<sup>1</sup>, Theoann LD<sup>1,2</sup>, Karthikeashvaren S<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup> Hospital Seberang Jaya, Pulau Pinang, Malaysia

<sup>2</sup> Department of Surgery, Universiti Sains Malaysia, Kubang Kerian, Kelantan, Malaysia

# INTRODUCTION

Primary lung cancer can be attributed to non small-cell lung cancer in approximately 80% of cases. Adenocarcinoma of the lung is the commonest non small cell lung cancer worldwide. Symptomatic colonic metastasis from primary lung carcinoma is rare with 0.1% incidence.

# **CASE REPORT**

We report a case of a 71 years old gentleman with newly diagnosed lung adenocarcinoma. He underwent 31 fractions of radiotherapy and 1 cycle on chemotherapy IV Cisplatin before developing right iliac fossa pain. CT abdomen/pelvis done; reported as enterocolitis with caecal collection, likely abscess with pneumatosis intestinalis which was treated conservatively with intravenous antibiotics. Patient had persistent right iliac fossa discomfort and presented to us after 2 weeks. Physical examination noted right iliac fossa mass measuring 5x8cm. Repeat CECT Abdomen/Pelvis confirms caecal mass likely malignant with right adrenal metastasis. He was subjected to colonoscopy which revealed fungating mass covering the caecum with adherent blood clot. Emergency right hemicolectomy was done in view of persistent drop in hemoglobin suspecting bleeding tumor. Intraoperatively noted caecal and ascending colon mass 20cm x10cm with bleeding caecum. Postoperatively patient had a stormy recovery but was discharged home well. Histopathology reported poorly differentiated carcinoma, immunohistochemistry findings are in keeping with metastatic adenocarcinoma of the lung.

# DISCUSSION

Bone, liver, brain, and lymph nodes are the most common sites of lung carcinoma metastasis. In the literature, squamous cell carcinoma had higher prevelance of colonic metastasis than lung adenocarcinoma. Colonoscopy with histopathological examination is the gold standard practice for patients presenting with abdominal symptoms. Metastatic lung cancer adenocarcinoma can be differentiated from primary colonic lesions with immunohistochemistry staining positive for CK7 and negative for CK20 expression. PET CT scan can aid distant occult metastasis.

# **CONCLUSION**

Early detection of colon metastasis can help to alleviate symptoms hence a high index of suspicion, prompt investigations and treatment should be done.

- 1. Luo Y, Mou K, Wang J, Luo J, Peng L, Ye H, Lin S. Colon metastasis from lung adenocarcinoma with BRAF V600E mutation: A case report. Front Immunol. 2022 Aug 8
- 2. Vittorakis S, Giannakopoulou G, Konstantinides K, Daskalaki A, Samitas K. Isolated colonic metastasis two years after resection of stage IA primary adenocarcinoma of the lung: A case report. Respir Med Case Rep. 2018 Jul 17
- 3. Parker N, McBride C, Forge J, Lalich D. Colonic Metastasis of Lung Adenocarcinoma: A Case Report. Cureus. 2019 Mar 28



35<sup>th</sup> Annual Scientific Congress of Malaysian Oncological Society *EP-84 A-0157* 

# A RARE CASE REPORT OF URETHRAL SQUAMOUS CELL CARCINOMA WITH BRAIN METASTASIS

Yun Xuan Yeoh<sup>1</sup>, Chin Heng Fong<sup>1</sup>, Ying Ying Sum<sup>1</sup>

Department of Oncology and Radiotherapy, Penang General Hospital

# INTRODUCTION

Female urethral carcinoma (UC) is very rare, accounting for <0.1% of all female system malignancies. Based on Malaysia Cancer Registry, the incidence rate in female is <5/63733 between 2012 to 2016. Intracranial metastasis in UC is even more uncommon and was rarely reported in the literature. We present a case of brain metastasis from urethral squamous cell carcinoma encountered in our centre.

# **REPORT**

A 71-year-old lady presented with a perineal mass associated with left inguinal swelling. Clinically the perineal lesion measured 2.5x2.5cm with a depth of 7cm, and the left inguinal lymph node measured 3x3cm. Vaginal and per rectal examination were unremarkable. Cystoscopy revealed papillary like projection at bladder neck with no discernible bladder mass. Tissue biopsy from urethral meatus mass confirmed squamous cell carcinoma. There was no evidence of distant metastasis from staging computed tomography (CT) thorax, abdomen and pelvis. The patient was offered induction chemotherapy cisplatin and 5-FU regime followed by concurrent chemoradiotherapy. She showed good treatment response initially with reduction in size of both primary lesion and lymph node. However, she presented with increased intracranial pressure symptoms during her course of concurrent chemoradiotherapy treatment. Emergency CT brain demonstrated ill-defined left parieto-occipital lesion suggestive of brain metastasis. In view of her declined performance status and advanced age, patient and family had opted for supportive care.

## **CONCLUSION**

Most cases of UC that have been reported to have intracranial metastasis originate from the bladder or upper urinary tract. Given the rarity of primary urethral carcinoma, the incidence of brain metastasis is unknown but it is believed to be an aggressive cancer with a high propensity for both local invasive growth and distant metastases. Even though the condition is uncommon, brain metastasis should be taken into consideration when monitoring UC patients.



# EMPOWERING FUTURE RADIATION THERAPISTS: DEVELOPMENT OF A PSYCHOSOCIAL AND SUPPORTIVE CANCER CARE [PSOSC] MODULE FOR MALAYSIAN STUDENTS

Nor Aniza Azmi<sup>1</sup>, Caryn Chan Mei Hsien<sup>1</sup>, Nur Fa'izah Ab Muin<sup>2</sup>, Mimi Syaqirah<sup>3</sup>, Ahmad Syahmiuddin Shamsuddin<sup>1</sup>, Afiqah Shukri<sup>4</sup>, Aminul Haqim Nizam<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Diagnostic Imaging and Radiotherapy Program, School of Diagnostic and Applied Health Sciences, Faculty of Health Sciences, Universiti Kebangsaan Malaysia, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.

<sup>2</sup>Oncology dan Radioterapy Department, Hospital Canselor Tuanku Muhriz UKM, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.

<sup>3</sup>Department of Radiotherapy, Sunway Cancer Centre, Petaling Jaya, Malaysia. <sup>4</sup>Cancer Centre, Pantai Hospital Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.

# INTRODUCTION

Radiotherapy is a cornerstone in cancer treatment, using high doses of radiation to target and reduce tumors. Despite its effectiveness, patients often face significant physical and emotional challenges that impact their quality of life. This study aims to develop a comprehensive psychosocial and supportive care module [PSOSC] tailored for radiation therapy students in Malaysia, addressing these challenges and improving patient well-being.

# **MATERIALS & METHODS**

The module development process involved a scientific approach, including a thorough literature review of reputable sources to identify existing modules, guidelines, and recommendations for psychosocial and supportive care in cancer treatment. This review highlighted gaps and areas for improvement in the current practices of radiation therapists in Malaysia. Based on these findings, a panel of experts, including radiation therapists, oncologists, psychologists, and social workers, provided feedback on the module's content and structure to ensure its relevance and effectiveness. The module was then pilot tested among radiation therapy students to assess its feasibility and acceptability. The study was divided into two phases: module development and module evaluation through an online survey questionnaire distributed to radiotherapy students at Universiti Kebangsaan Malaysia (UKM).

# **RESULTS**

The developed [PSOSC] module for radiation therapy students is both valid and reliable. It effectively addresses the psychosocial and supportive needs of cancer patients in Malaysia.

# **DISCUSSION**

The development and implementation of this module underscore the importance of integrating psychosocial support into the training of radiation therapists. Future studies should explore the long-term impact of such training on patient outcomes and expand the module's applicability to other regions. This initiative not only enhances the educational experience of radiation therapy students but also contributes to the overall improvement of cancer care in Malaysia.



## **CONCLUSION**

The systematic implementation of the [PSOSC] module for radiation therapy students in Malaysia lays the groundwork for future developments in comprehensive and patient-centered care delivery, enhancing the quality of life and well-being of cancer patients throughout their treatment course. This evidence-based and standardized training module equips radiation therapy students with the necessary knowledge, skills, and attitudes to deliver holistic care to cancer patients undergoing radiation therapy. By integrating scientific approaches and expert input, the module effectively addresses the psychosocial and supportive needs of cancer patients.

- 1. Riedl, D., Gastl, R., Gamper, E., Arnold, C. R., Dejaco, D., Schoellmann, F. & During Rumpold, G. 2018. Cancer Patients #39; Wish for Psychological Support During Outpatient Radiation Therapy: Findings from A psycho-oncological Monitoring Program in Clinical Routine. Strahlentherapie und Onkologie: Organ der Deutschen Rontgengesellschaft... [et al] 194(7): 655-663.
- 2. Schuit, A. S., Holtmaat, K., Van Zwieten, V., Aukema, E. J., Gransier, L., Cuijpers, P. & Schuit, A. S., Holtmaat, K., Van Zwieten, V., Aukema, E. J., Gransier, L., Cuijpers, P. & Schuit, A. S., Holtmaat, K., Van Zwieten, V., Aukema, E. J., Gransier, L., Cuijpers, P. & Schuit, A. S., Holtmaat, K., Van Zwieten, V., Aukema, E. J., Gransier, L., Cuijpers, P. & Schuit, A. S., Holtmaat, K., Van Zwieten, V., Aukema, E. J., Gransier, L., Cuijpers, P. & Schuit, A. S., Holtmaat, K., Van Zwieten, V., Aukema, E. J., Gransier, L., Cuijpers, P. & Schuit, A. S., Holtmaat, K., Van Zwieten, V., Aukema, E. J., Gransier, L., Cuijpers, P. & Schuit, A. S., Francisco, Concological Care for Cancer Patients: The Patients Perspective. Frontiers in psychology 12(625117.)



# ASSOCIATION OF DELTA RADIOMICS OF PAROTID GLANDS FROM CONE BEAM COMPUTED TOMOGRAPHY TO LATE XEROSTOMIA FOLLOWING HEAD AND NECK RADIOTHERAPY

Mahayu Ismail<sup>1,2</sup>, Mohd Ariff Mohamed Hanifa<sup>2</sup>, Eznal Izwadi Mohd Mahidin<sup>2</sup>, Hanani Abdul Manan<sup>3</sup>, Noorazrul Yahya<sup>1,\*</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Faculty of Health Sciences, Universiti Kebangsaan Malaysia, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.

<sup>2</sup>Department of Radiotherapy and Oncology, Hospital Kuala Lumpur, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.

<sup>3</sup>Functional Image Processing Laboratory, Department of Radiology, Universiti Kebangsaan Malaysia Medical Centre, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.

\*Corresponding author

## INTRODUCTION

Radiotherapy given to head and neck cancer patients often involves normal tissue which may result in late xerostomia. This study aims to investigate the ability of radiomics features derived from cone beam computed tomography (CBCT) imaging to predict late xerostomia based on CBCT images.

# **MATERIALS & METHODS**

Planning CT and CBCT images at four weeks of head and neck patients treated with VMAT radiotherapy were extracted. Both parotid glands were segmented and radiomics features were extracted. Spearman's correlation was used for feature reduction. A multivariate logistic regression with forward stepwise selection was then performed to find the association of delta radiomics and clinical factors with the incidence of late xerostomia at 6-months and 12-months post radiotherapy.

# **RESULTS**

The radiomics features from week 4 of radiotherapy were associated in detecting the late xerostomia characteristics of the patients during radiotherapy. At the outcome of 6 months, radiomics features area under curve intensity histogram (IH), and high grey level run length matrix (GLRLM) were found to be predictive of outcomes (all p<0.05). Among the clinical factors, the mean dose ( $D_{mean}$ ) of the right parotid gland has shown a significant association with p<0.05. The model shows good performance with AUC of 0.704.

# **CONCLUSION**

CT and CBCT radiomics features in planning and during treatment may predict xerostomia following radiotherapy. Future studies will focus on improving the modeling step with external validation.

# REFERENCE

1. Sheikh, K., Lee, S. H., Cheng, Z., Lakshminarayanan, P., Peng, L., Han, P., McNutt, T. R., Quon, H., & Lee, J. (2019). Predicting acute radiation induced xerostomia in head and neck



- Cancer using MR and CT Radiomics of parotid and submandibular glands. *Radiation Oncology*, 14(1). https://doi.org/10.1186/s13014-019-1339-4
- 2. Mireștean, C. C., Iancu, R. I., & Iancu, D. P. T. (2023). Image Guided Radiotherapy (IGRT) and Delta (Δ) Radiomics—An Urgent Alliance for the Front Line of the War against Head and Neck Cancers. In *Diagnostics* (Vol. 13, Issue 12). Multidisciplinary Digital Publishing Institute (MDPI). https://doi.org/10.3390/diagnostics13122045
- 3. Tan, D., Mohd Nasir, N. F., Abdul Manan, H., & Yahya, N. (2023). Prediction of toxicity outcomes following radiotherapy using deep learning-based models: A systematic review. *Cancer/Radiotherapie*, 27(5), 398–406. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.canrad.2023.05.001
- 4. van Dijk, L. v., Langendijk, J. A., Zhai, T. T., Vedelaar, T. A., Noordzij, W., Steenbakkers, R. J. H. M., & Sijtsema, N. M. (2019). Delta-radiomics features during radiotherapy improve the prediction of late xerostomia. *Scientific Reports*, *9*(1). https://doi.org/10.1038/s41598-019-48184-3
- 5. Tan, D., Mohamad Salleh, S. A., Manan, H. A., & Yahya, N. (2023). Delta-radiomics-based models for toxicity prediction in radiotherapy: A systematic review and meta-analysis. *Journal of Medical Imaging and Radiation Oncology*, 67(5), 564–579. https://doi.org/10.1111/1754-9485.13546



# HDR INTERSTITIAL BRACHYTHERAPY AND CHEMORADIATION IN TREATING BUCCAL MUCOSA SQUAMOUS CELL CARCINOMA- A CASE REPORT

Dr. Miqdad Danial, Dr. Yusri Musa Pusat Perubatan USM Bertam, Penang, Malaysia

# INTRODUCTION

The aggressive nature of buccal mucosal squamous cell carcinoma (SCC) is seen in its quick growth, good penetration, and high recurrence rate. When tumours from the buccal mucosa spread to nearby anatomical structures, surgical tumour removal becomes more difficult. This means that particular reconstruction considerations related to the amount of resection must be made. Surgery is the recommended therapy, with radiation and chemotherapy also having important roles depending on the stage of the disease. In this report, we present the brachytherapy and chemoradiation approach in treating buccal mucosa SCC.

# **REPORT**

70 year old lady with a history of betel nut chewing for 20 years was diagnosed with left buccal mucosa SCC. She presented with non-healing ulcer over left buccal region for 3 months which was associated with pain, dysphagia and loss of appetite. Upon examination there was a fungating erythematous ulcer with raised border at left buccal mucosa, extending from left oral commisures to lower gingiva nearing ginngivo buccal sulcus. Biopsy was done which reported to be well differentiated squamous cell carcinoma and later proceeded with CT-imaging which reported local lesion with suspicious lung metastases. PET- scan ruled out distant metastases, and the cancer was staged as T4aN0M0. Patient refused surgery and thus offered for brachytherapy and followed with concurrent chemo-radiotherapy. She completed 5 fractions of HDR interstitial brachytherapy, 35 fractions of EBRT and 6 cycles of chemotherapy. 3 months post treatment completion, CT imaging showed complete response. 1 year post treatment, patient is generally doing well, ADL independent, able to tolerate soft diet.

# **CONCLUSION**

Oral mucosa interstitial brachytherapy followed by chemoraradiation may be an alternative to treat oral cancer in the case of surgery refusal patient. High-dose rate brachytherapy offers a great deal of promise for treating oral cancers. Furthermore, it may be used either as a primary treatment modality or as a boost in buccal mucosal cancers provides results comparable to that of surgery, with the advantages of organ preservation, better cosmetic and functional outcomes.<sup>2</sup>

- 1. J Appl Clin Med Phys. A buccal mucosa carcinoma treated with high dose rate brachytherapy 2005 Winter; 6(1): 8–12
- 2. Vedasoundaram et al.; licensee Springer. 2014



35<sup>th</sup> Annual Scientific Congress of Malaysian Oncological Society *EP-88 A-0168* 

# EXAMINING MARITAL CHALLENGES: A QUALITATIVE STUDY ON THE IMPACT OF CERVICAL CANCER ON INTIMATE PARTNERSHIPS IN SARAWAK

Kristy Karthini John<sup>1</sup>, Associate Professor Dr. Rekaya Anak Vincent Balang<sup>2</sup>
<sup>1</sup> Radiotherapy and Oncology Department, Sarawak General Hospital, Kuching, 93586,
Sarawak, Malaysia.

Faculty of Medicine and Health Sciences, Universiti Malaysia Sarawak (UNIMAS), Kota Samarahan, 94300, Sarawak, Malaysia.

Email: kristy2705@yahoo.com

Email: vbrekaya@unimas.my

# INTRODUCTION

Cervical cancer has a significant impact on intimate relationships, particularly in culturally rich and diverse regions like Sarawak. This qualitative study explores the marital strains encountered by women diagnosed with cervical cancer, emphasizing the dynamics within their intimate relationships.

# **MATERIALS & METHODS**

In-depth interviews with eleven respondents revealed a concerning trend: five participants reported being left, divorced, or abandoned by their husbands due to their inability to meet sexual needs. This abandonment highlights the crucial role of sexual relationships in marital stability, with the affected women perceiving the cervix as their essential "crown", surpassing traditional symbols such as hair as a woman's crowning glory.

The study underscores the intricate interplay between cultural expectations and personal health crises, illustrating how cervical cancer poses challenges to conventional gender roles and marital expectations. The narratives of the participants expose a complex array of emotional, physical, and sexual difficulties contributing to marital dissolution. The finding that a woman's sexual health, symbolized by the cervix, is regarded as more significant and other traditionally valued attributes call for a reassessment of support mechanisms for these couples.

# **RESULTS**

Based on these findings, the researcher recommends that medical practitioners integrate sexual therapy into the treatment plan for both the patient and her spouse before initiating cervical cancer treatment. This intervention could potentially alleviate the sexual dissatisfaction that seems to be a primary cause of marital breakdown. Additionally, the introduction of intimate products designed to enhance comfort and pleasure for both partners should be considered to foster a more supportive and understanding environment within marriages affected by cervical cancer.

# **CONCLUSION**

In conclusion, this study advocates for a holistic approach to cervical cancer treatment - one that addresses not just the physical ailment but also the emotional and relational dimensions of the disease. Such an approach may improve marital outcomes and the overall quality of life for women undergoing treatment for cervical cancer in Sarawak.

# **KEYWORDS**

Cervical cancer, marital strain, intimate relationships, sexual therapy, Sarawak.



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> Faculty of Medicine and Health Sciences, Universiti Malaysia Sarawak (UNIMAS), Kota Samarahan, 94300, Sarawak, Malaysia.

# GOING THE DISTANCE: A CASE STUDY OF LOCAL ABLATIVE THERAPY IN OLIGOMETASTATIC EGFR MUTATED NON SMALL CELL LUNG CANCER (NSCLC)

Dr Sophia Waheida Binti Ahmad, Assoc Prof Dr Adlinda Binti Alip Department of Clinical Oncology, Universiti Malaya Medical Centre, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

# INTRODUCTION

The landmark FLAURA trial shows significantly longer median progression-free survival (PFS)<sup>1</sup> and overall survival (OS)<sup>2</sup> with the third generation TKI osimertinib. Osimertinib is now the preferred first line treatment in EGFRm NSCLC.<sup>3</sup> In particular, the exon 21 L858R point mutation has inferior outcome as compared to the exon 19 deletion mutation.<sup>4</sup>. Several phase II trials have looked into local ablative therapy in the treatment of oligometastatic disease.<sup>5</sup> Amongst them is the SABR-COMET trial which had shown significantly higher median OS compared to those who received standard of care therapy.<sup>6</sup>

## **REPORT**

Patient MK is a 63 years old lady with a diagnosis of right lung adenocarcinoma with synchronous metastases to brain and right ilium cT4N2M1c. Her cancer mutation harbours both EGFR exon 20 and exon 21 mutations and she was started on first line osimertinib in June 2022. Following a remarkable response to osimertinib, she received radiotherapy to all tumor sites in October 2022. The following year she developed pneumonitis which resolved with prednisolone. Her latest PET CT in April 2024 shows improving right upper lobe lung mass with resolved bilateral pneumonitis and MRI brain in March 2024 shows stable brain lesion.

# **CONCLUSION**

Now at 24 months mark, she remains stable on osimertinib, surpassing the expected median PFS and the expectation that she would do less well due to the exon 21 L858R point mutation.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>6</sup> 6. Palma DA, Olson R, Harrow S, et al. Stereotactic ablative radiotherapy versus standard of care palliative treatment in patients with oligometastatic cancers (SABR-COMET): a randomised, phase 2, open-label trial. Lancet. 2019;393(10185):2051-2058. doi:10.1016/S0140-6736(18)32487-5



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> 1. Soria J-C, Ohe Y, Vansteenkiste J, et al. Osimertinib in Untreated EGFR -Mutated Advanced Non–Small-Cell Lung Cancer . N Engl J Med. 2018;378(2):113-125. doi:10.1056/nejmoa1713137

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> 2. Ramalingam SS, Vansteenkiste J, Planchard D, et al. Overall Survival with Osimertinib in Untreated, EGFR -Mutated Advanced NSCLC . N Engl J Med. 2020;382(1):41-50. doi:10.1056/nejmoa1913662

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> 3. Hendriks LE, Kerr KM, Menis J, et al. Oncogene-addicted metastatic non-small-cell lung cancer: ESMO Clinical Practice Guideline for diagnosis, treatment and follow-up☆. Ann Oncol. 2023;34(4):339-357. doi:10.1016/j.annonc.2022.12.009

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> 4. Takeyasu Y, Yoshida T, Masuda K, et al. Distinct Progression and Efficacy of First-Line Osimertinib Treatment According to Mutation Subtypes in Metastatic NSCLC Harboring EGFR Mutations. JTO Clin Res Reports. 2024;5(2):100636. doi:10.1016/j.jtocrr.2024.100636

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup> 5. Santos PMG, Li X, Gomez DR. Local Consolidative Therapy for Oligometastatic Non-Small Cell Lung Cancer. Cancers (Basel). 2022;14(16). doi:10.3390/cancers14163977

Local ablative therapy in oligometastatic disease is safe and potentially prolongs survival in selected patients.

- 1. Soria J-C, Ohe Y, Vansteenkiste J, et al. Osimertinib in Untreated EGFR -Mutated Advanced Non-Small-Cell Lung Cancer. N Engl J Med. 2018;378(2):113-125. doi:10.1056/nejmoa1713137
- 2. Ramalingam SS, Vansteenkiste J, Planchard D, et al. Overall Survival with Osimertinib in Untreated, EGFR -Mutated Advanced NSCLC. N Engl J Med. 2020;382(1):41-50. doi:10.1056/nejmoa1913662
- 3. Hendriks LE, Kerr KM, Menis J, et al. Oncogene-addicted metastatic non-small-cell lung cancer: ESMO Clinical Practice Guideline for diagnosis, treatment and follow-up☆. Ann Oncol. 2023;34(4):339-357. doi:10.1016/j.annonc.2022.12.009
- 4. Takeyasu Y, Yoshida T, Masuda K, et al. Distinct Progression and Efficacy of First-Line Osimertinib Treatment According to Mutation Subtypes in Metastatic NSCLC Harboring EGFR Mutations. JTO Clin Res Reports. 2024;5(2):100636. doi:10.1016/j.jtocrr.2024.100636
- 5. Lievens Y, Guckenberger M, Gomez D, et al. Defining oligometastatic disease from a radiation oncology perspective: An ESTRO-ASTRO consensus document. Radiother Oncol. 2020;148:157-166. doi:10.1016/j.radonc.2020.04.003
- 6. Santos PMG, Li X, Gomez DR. Local Consolidative Therapy for Oligometastatic Non-Small Cell Lung Cancer. Cancers (Basel). 2022;14(16). doi:10.3390/cancers14163977
- 7. Palma DA, Olson R, Harrow S, et al. Stereotactic ablative radiotherapy versus standard of care palliative treatment in patients with oligometastatic cancers (SABR-COMET): a randomised, phase 2, open-label trial. Lancet. 2019;393(10185):2051-2058. doi:10.1016/S0140-6736(18)32487-5



# SELECTION OF PATIENTS FOR LU-177 THERAPY

Dr Madhumathi Ananda Dorai Hospital Al-Sultan Abdullah, UiTM, Puncak Alam, Malaysia

## INTRODUCTION

Lutetium-177 (Lu-177) therapy represents a promising advancement in the treatment for metastatic castrate-resistant prostate cancer. It provides a targeted approach to delivering radiation directly to tumor cells while minimizing damage to healthy tissues.

# **REPORT**

A 73 year old gentleman was diagnosed with localized adenocarcinoma of prostate with iPSA of 7.2. He underwent Robot-Assisted Radical Prostatectomy which revealed poorly-differentiated adenocarcinoma, GS 9 (5+4) of the prostate with bilateral seminal vesicles invasion and positive excision margin (pT3b) with 9/11 lymph nodes positive. His PSMA PET scan showed bone metastasis at T12, L1 and L2 vertebral bodies with no other distant metastasis. He was started on ADT which further dropped his PSA to 0.105. A year later, his PSA began to rise, CT restaging showed local recurrence at prostatic bed with worsening bone metastasis. Serum testosterone was 0.5nmol/L which was castrate level. He was then given 6 cycles of Docetaxcel and IV Zometa, which he failed to respond to. He was then started on Tablet Abiraterone with prednisolone. After 1 year, he had biochemical and radiological progression, which revealed discordant disease in the liver (FDG avid, PSMA non-avid) and worsening PSMA avid bone metastasis. This patient was planned for Lu-177 therapy however progressed with symptomatic brain metastasis and was deemed unsuitable for the therapy.

# **CONCLUSION**

Lu-177 therapy requires high expression of PSMA receptors, and several prognostic factors play a role in its use. Prior taxane chemotherapy (either one or two lines) are prognostic for worse survival outcomes with reported median OS for taxane-pretreated patients to be 10.7 months, compared with 27.1 months in the taxane-naïve group ( $p \le 0.001$ )<sup>1</sup>. Distribution of disease is also informative, with hepatic metastases correlating with worse OS regardless of the degree of PSMA expression seen on PET/CT<sup>2</sup>. Additionally, patients with an SUV mean of  $\ge 10$  on PSMA PET/CT scan were more likely to achieve a  $\ge 50\%$  PSA response (OR 12.19 versus 2.22, p = 0.039).<sup>3</sup>

- 1. Barber TW, Singh A, Kulkarni HR, et al. Clinical outcomes of (177)Lu-PSMA radioligand therapy in earlier and later phases of metastatic castration-resistant prostate cancer grouped by previous Taxane Chemotherapy. J Nucl Med 2019; 60: 955–962.
- 2. Ahmadzadehfar H, Rahbar K, Baum RP, et al. Prior therapies as prognostic factors of overall survival in metastatic castration-resistant prostate cancer patients treated with [(177)Lu]Lu-PSMA-617. A WARMTH multicenter study (the 617 trial). Eur J Nucl Med Mol Imaging 2021; 48: 113–122.
- 3. Buteau JP, Martin AJ, Emmett L, et al. PSMA and FDG-PET as predictive and prognostic biomarkers in patients given [(177)Lu]Lu-PSMA-617 versus cabazitaxel for metastatic castration-resistant prostate cancer (TheraP): a biomarker analysis from a randomised, open-label, phase 2 trial. Lancet Oncol 2022; 23: 1389–1397.



# OCCURRENCE OF UNUSUAL SITES OF METASTASES IN DIFFERENTIATED THYROID CARCINOMA DETECTED ON I-124 PET-CT. A REVIEW OF 15 CASES IN INSTITUT KANSER NEGARA

Muhammad Adib Abdul Onny<sup>1</sup>, Nurfadzelah Mokhtar<sup>1</sup>, Nurulhuda Sulaiman<sup>1</sup>, Nor Salita Ali<sup>1</sup>
1. Nuclear Medicine Department, Institut Kanser Negara, Putrajaya, Malaysia.

## INTRODUCTION

Differentiated thyroid carcinoma (DTC) which consist of Papillary or Follicular Thyroid Carcinoma is an uncommon cancer among Malaysian with higher incidence recorded in female, whereby it is the 7<sup>th</sup> most common cancer with age incident rate of 3.2. DTC has excellent 5-year survival of 99% (localized), 98% (regional), and >50% (distant metastasis). The common sites of metastases are lung and bone. However, presence of rare metastatic sites such as brain, kidney, adrenal and pituitary carry poorer prognosis. Thyroidectomy followed-by radioiodine therapy (RAI) are the standard modes of treatment and the ensuing post-therapy whole-body scan (WBS) are essential in staging and surveillance of DTC. The advancement of radiopharmaceutical and imaging technique technology has led to the utilization of I-124 PET-CT which has revolutionized the management of DTC particularly in detecting previously unseen lesions.

# **REPORT**

Here, we report the occurrence of unusual sites of metastases from DTC upon review of 15 metastatic DTC cases which underwent I-124 PET-CT. 11-female and 4-male patients with mean age of 47.2-year-old (range 22-78), stage II or IV and of ATA high risk category had total thyroidectomy followed by varying courses of RAI (range 1-6 courses) via empirical or dosimetry-guided dosing with mean total cumulative dose of (847.3mCi, range 300-2000). Interestingly, due to higher resolution and sensitivity of I-124 PET-CT, numerous rare metastatic sites were identified namely renal(3), skeletal muscles(3), brain(2), adrenal(1), breast(1), pituitary(1), heart(1), and sphenoid sinus(1) in addition to the usual lung and bone metastases. Some of these patients underwent definite therapies such as surgery and radiotherapy to the aforementioned sites.

# **CONCLUSION**

These cases highlight the drawback of conventional imaging and WBS which often unable to identify these metastases. I-124 PET-CT has shown to be a superior imaging modality in metastatic DTC and invaluable to RAI through its greater detection and dosimetry capabilities.

- 1. Azizah A.M., et al, (2019) 'Malaysia National Cancer Registry Report 2012-2016'.
- 2. Avram, A.M. Giovanella, L. *et al.* (2022) 'SNMMI Procedure Standard/EANM Practice Guideline for Nuclear Medicine Evaluation and Therapy of Differentiated Thyroid Cancer: Abbreviated Version', *Journal of Nuclear Medicine*, 63(6), pp. 15N-35N.
- 3. Song, S-J. *et al.* (2011) 'Rare metastases of differentiated thyroid carcinoma: Pictorial Review', *Endocrine-Related Cancer*, 18(5), pp. R165–R174.
- 4. Bashank, N. et al. (2022) 'Rare sites of metastases in patients with differentiated thyroid carcinoma and added value of SPECT/CT over planar whole body radioactive iodine scan', *European Journal of Hybrid Imaging*, 6(1). doi:10.1186/s41824-022-00155-0.



# LYNCH SYNDROME ASSOCIATED COLORECTAL CANCER: AN INVISIBLE PREDATOR

Johnson HD, Ratnavelu K, Dharmaratnam J Columbia Asia Bukit Rimau

# INTRODUCTION

Lynch Syndrome (LS) is an autosomal dominant disorder that results from germline mutations in DNA mismatch repair genes [1]. This syndrome confers upto 80% lifetime risk of developing colorectal cancer, 60% lifetime risk of developing endometrial cancer and significantly increased risk of developing other primary cancers including gastric, ovarian, brain and pancreas [2]. As far as colon cancers are concern, LS, also known as Hereditary Non-Polyposis Syndrome commonly presents insidiously among younger age groups of patients with either colonic or extracolonic tumours [3]. Although, Rotterdam Criteria and Modified Bethesda Classification serve as general guideline in identifying high-risk populations to be screened for LS, it is crucial to note that the majority of patients with LS may not fulfill these criteria to begin with [4].

# **REPORT**

This case reports explores a case of an 30 years old Indian patient who was initially diagnosed with stage 2 poorly differentiated mucinous adenocarcinoma of hepatic flexure of colon. Unfortunately, he developed recurrence with abdominal mass within two months post resection of primary tumour while undergoing adjuvant chemotherapy. Despite resection of the tumour followed by second line of chemotherapy, his disease continues to progress. The aggressive nature of his disease warranted genomic testing which revealed lynch syndrome. However, it is important to note that patient did not display any classical features that raise clinical suspicion of LS other than his age onset and tumour profiling. His treatment regimen underwent multiple modification as per clinical response whereby currently he is receiving triplet chemotherapy along with immunotherapy which shows stable disease in the last 10 months.

# **CONCLUSION**

LS confers significant clinical implications in both prevalence and prognostication of colon cancers. Given the nature of LS that is rather non-specific, a high clinical suspicion is warranted in identifying these groups of patients.

- 1. Bhattacharya P, Leslie SW, McHugh TW. Lynch Syndrome (Hereditary Nonpolyposis Colorectal Cancer) [Updated 2024 Jun 8]. In: StatPearls [Internet]. Treasure Island (FL): StatPearls Publishing; 2024 Jan-. Available from: https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/books/NBK431096/
- 2. Lim A, Rao P, Matin SF. Lynch syndrome and urologic malignancies: a contemporary review. Curr Opin Urol. 2019 Jul;29(4):357-363.
- 3. Clark SK. Management of genetically determined colorectal cancer. Surgeon. 2019 Jun;17(3):165-171.
- 4. Vasen HF, Boland CR. Progress in genetic testing, classification, and identification of Lynch syndrome. *JAMA*. 2005;293(16):2028-203015855438

